Public Document Pack

cv':ﬁm .
e i1y Flint
i i Contact Officer:
!i!!ﬂ!ﬁbﬂl re Nicola Gittins 01352 702345

nicola.gittins@flintshire.gov.uk

To: Clir Aaron Shotton (Leader)

Councillors: Bernie Attridge, Chris Bithell, Helen Brown, Derek Butler,
Christine Jones, Kevin Jones and Billy Mullin

12 October 2016
Dear Councillor
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Cabinet which will be held at 9.30 am on
Tuesday, 18th October, 2016 in the Clwyd Committee Room, County Hall, Mold CH7

6NA to consider the following items

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES
Purpose: To receive any apologies.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Purpose: To receive any Declarations and advise Members accordingly.

3  MINUTES (Pages 5 - 16)
Purpose: To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the last meeting.

TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING REPORTS

STRATEGIC REPORTS

4  ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 2015/16 (Pages 17 - 110)
Report of Chief Executive - Cabinet Member for Corporate Management

Purpose: Overview of the performance of the Council during 2015/16
against the priorities set.



STRATEGIC EQUALITY PLAN 2016/2020 (Pages 111 - 168)
Report of Chief Executive - Cabinet Member for Corporate Management

Purpose: To agree the Council’'s equality objectives and Strategic
Equality Plan (SEP) 2016/ 2020.

NORTH WALES REGIONAL SOCIAL CARE/HEALTH PARTNERSHIP
BOARD (Pages 169 - 174)

Report of Chief Officer (Social Services) - Cabinet Member for Social Services

Purpose: To approve the arrangements for the Board.

OPERATIONAL REPORTS

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2016/17 (MONTH 5) (Pages 175 - 196)

Report of Corporate Finance Manager - Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Member for Finance

Purpose: To provide Members with the latest revenue budget monitoring
information for 2015/16 for the Council Fund and Housing
Revenue Account based on actual income and expenditure as
at month 5 and projected forward to year-end based on the
most up to date information available.

PROVISIONAL LEARNER OUTCOMES (Pages 197 - 204)
Report of Chief Officer (Education and Youth) - Cabinet Member for Education

Purpose: Provisional learner outcomes from Summer 2016.

SCHOOL MODERNISATION - 21ST CENTURY SCHOOLS PROGRAMME -
BAND A CAPITAL PROJECTS - CONNAH'S QUAY HIGH SCHOOL (Pages
205 - 210)

Report of Chief Officer (Education and Youth) - Cabinet Member for Education

Purpose: To consider and approve a Capital Scheme under the 21st
Century School programme.



10

11

12

13

14

SCHOOL MODERNISATION - 21ST CENTURY SCHOOLS PROGRAMME
BAND A CAPITAL PROJECT - PENYFFORDD (Pages 211 - 260)

Report of Chief Officer (Education and Youth) - Cabinet Member for Education

Purpose: To consider and approve a Capital Scheme under the 21st
Century School programme.

SCHOOL MODERNISATION - NERCWYS VA SCHOOL REVIEW (Pages
261 - 264)

Report of Chief Officer (Education and Youth) - Cabinet Member for Education

Purpose: To consider a report on informal consultation with the
community and identify next steps with the education review.

CHANGES TO WASTE COLLECTION VEHICLES AND NEW RECYCLING
OPERATIONS (Pages 265 - 316)

Report of Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation) - Cabinet Member for
Waste Strategy, Public Protection and Leisure

Purpose: To review alternative delivery options for the household
recycling centre service and the new waste recycling collection
opportunities planned to be introduced for residents in 2017.

THEATR CLWYD COMPLIMENTARY TICKET POLICY (Pages 317 - 324)

Report of Chief Officer (Organisational Change) - Leader of the Council and
Cabinet Member for Finance

Purpose: To consider and agree a policy for complimentary tickets from
Theatr Clwyd.

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS (Pages 325 - 326)
Report of the Chief Executive enclosed.

Purpose: To provide details of actions taken under delegated powers.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - COUNTY COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT
AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - FOR INFORMATION

Yours faithfully

P

T

Peter Evans
Democracy & Governance Manager

3



This page is intentionally left blank



56.

57.

58.

Agenda Iltem 3

CABINET
20t SEPTEMBER 2016

Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet of Flintshire County Council held in the Clwyd
Committee Room, County Hall, Mold on Tuesday, 20t September 2016

PRESENT: Councillor Aaron Shotton (Chair)
Councillors: Bernie Attridge, Chris Bithell, Derek Butler, Christine Jones, Kevin Jones
and Billy Mullin

APOLOGY:
Councillor Helen Brown

IN ATTENDANCE:

Chief Executive, Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise), Chief Officer
(Governance), Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation), Corporate Finance
Manager, Highway Strategy Manager and Team Manager - Committee Services

OTHER MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE:
Councillors: Ron Hampson and Carolyn Thomas

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Bernie Attridge declared a personal and prejudicial interest in agenda
item number 12 — Appointment of Council Members as Directors — NEW Homes.

MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2016 had been circulated with the
agenda.

RESOLVED:
That the minutes be approved as a correct record.

COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2017/18 STAGE ONE

The Chief Executive introduced the report on the Council Fund Revenue Budget
2017/18 Stage One which was the first step in planning the annual Council Fund
Revenue Budget for 2017/18, including details of how the forecast gap of £13.7M could
be bridged. The forecast gap between predicted income levels and the projected
expenditure requirement reported in July 2016 stood at £14.4M which was an increase
of £0.7M on the April forecast.

A set of service portfolio business plans had been developed by Cabinet and
reviewed extensively by Cabinet Members and Chief Officers with annualised
efficiency proposals forming the basis for recommendations for the annual budget.
The proposals for budget efficiencies and income charging within the business plans
for 2017/18 were reported in full to the Overview and Scrutiny Committees throughout
the June/July meeting cycle. Those Committees were supportive of the efficiency and

Page 5



charging proposals overall with the cumulative total of the proposals estimated to be
£5.921M.

At the Overview and Scrutiny Committees presentations were delivered on
assessments of the efficiency and resilience status of the services within their
respective portfolios which reviewed the efficiency of each service. Those
assessments demonstrated the limited options which remained for achieving further
efficiencies of scale without having to reduce services to unpredictable levels of
provision or running the risk of service failure.

The review of the portfolio business plans was the first of the three part strategy
for Medium Term Financial Planning:-
e Service reform;
e Corporate financial stewardship; and
o Working with Welsh Government

The Corporate Finance Manager highlighted the details in Table 1 on the
financial forecast 2017/18 — 2018/19, referring to a number of assumptions such as
pay inflation, Council Tax annual increase and national and local pressures. The
forecast for 2017/18 was under continuous review and would be updated later in the
year.

Following on from the Chief Executive’s comments on the revised forecast gap,
the Corporate Finance Manager explained that the figure had been reduced, following
a comprehensive review, due to (1) the removal of or change to options which were
not considered to be acceptable and / or workable; and (2) the review and refinement
of detailed cost estimates per proposal based on detailed planning and cost method
calculations.

Moving forward the key focus was on seeking to offset or reduce cost pressures
through corporate financial stewardship. Work was ongoing on the following areas and
a report would be submitted to Cabinet in October 2016 which would provide the
outcome of the work:

e [nflation;

e Pay inflation, and incremental pay progression provision;

e The outcomes of the triennial review of the Clwyd Pension Fund currently
underway with the Fund Actuary, and the employer funding contributions
required for future years;

e Provision within the Central Loans and Investment Account (CLIA) for
capital financing charges including interest on debt and Minimum
Revenue Provision for debt repayment and any income returns made
from investments;

e The use of reserves and balances

e Detailed assessment of national and local cost pressures including latest
intelligence on risks to the continuation of national specific grants to
current levels of funding; and

e The impacts of the 2016/17 projected out-turn for 2017/18 and future
years.

Page 6



Councillor Shotton said the Council was actively involved in national discussions
on the Welsh Government (WG) Budget for 2017/18 including the Local Government
Settlement, both as part of the Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) and as
an individual Council. Key issues under debate included:

e The need for medium term financial planning at a national level,

e Sufficient and sustainable levels of Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and the
option for the WG to set a zero-reduction or ‘flat-line’ RSG for 2017/18 at
2016/17 levels;

e Reform of specific grants and retention of sufficient current grant funding levels
to maintain services;

¢ Relaxing charging levels for services including domiciliary care;

e Meeting cost pressures of national legislative and public demand in key services
such as social care;

e Recognition of the workforce cost impacts of the Living Wage in both directly
provided services and commissioned services; and

e Local retention of Non Domestic Rate Relief (NNDR) growth by the collecting
authority.

He commented on the importance of continued lobbying, particularly on the
case of Flintshire being a low funded Council, to seek the relief required in the interests
of the public.

Councillor Kevin Jones asked for an update on progress being made in national
discussions. Councillor Shotton explained that individual and collective meetings had
been held with the Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government, Mr Mark
Drakeford who appeared receptive to the challenges faced. The WG draft budget
proposals would be published on 19t October 2016 and lobbying of WG would
continue until the final budget was announced.

On a question on specific grants, the Chief Executive explained that details on
grants were received at a later stage in the process.

Councillor Attridge urged colleagues to lobby AM’'s and MP’s as much as
possible in the coming weeks, particularly with a number of Ministerial visits scheduled.

Members hoped that the lobbying of WG would be successful and commended
the level of work that had been undertaken to date.

The Chief Executive concluded that the report would be considered at a special
meeting of Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 28" October to
which all Members of the Council were invited to. A special County Council meeting
had been arranged for 15" November 2016 which would recommend formal sign off
of Stage 1 of the budget.

RESOLVED:
(@) That the service portfolio efficiency proposals listed in the appendices to the

report be recommended for adoption by Council as Stage 1 of setting the
Council Fund Revenue Budget for 2017/18; and

Page 7



59.

(b)  That the ongoing work on reviewing corporate financing options, and the
national activity around the funding formula and Local Government Settlement,
be noted.

GROWTH VISION AND STRATEGY FOR THE ECONOMY OF NORTH WALES

Councillor Shotton introduced the report on the Growth Vision and Strategy for
the Economy of North Wales. The vision was being presented to all six Councils for
adoption and set out a clear ambition for North Wales for infrastructure development,
skills and employment, and business growth.

The Council had been working closely with partners in the Mersey Dee Alliance,
Economic Ambition Board, North Wales Business Council and West Cheshire and
North Wales Chamber of Commerce, to develop and launch a prospectus for rail
improvement across North Wales and the Mersey Dee area as a requirement to
support improved economic growth.

If funding was secured in phases for the action plan then the region would be
able to see a positive future for sustainable economic growth. The value of the North
Wales economy could increase from £12.8 billion in 2015 to £20 billion by 2035 and
generate an additional 120,000 new employment opportunities.

Councillor Butler welcomed the report, commenting that the Authority was also
part of a cross border growth bid on the Cheshire and Warrington Local Enterprise
Partnership (LEP). He had met with the Minister the previous day who was supportive
of the North Wales Growth Vision.

The Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise) said that in addition to
infrastructure projects, the Vision would see a focus on skills development to better
equip local people for future job opportunities.

In response to a question from Councillor Bithell, Councillor Butler explained
that there were options for a Metro system which could see better connectivity between
rail and bus services. There was the potential for rail services on Deeside Industrial
Park and Saltney Mold Junction which was at the rear of Airbus.

Members welcomed and supported the report which presented exciting
opportunities for the region.

RESOLVED:
(@) That the “Growth Vision for the Economy of North Wales” as the basis for
negotiation with the UK and Welsh Governments over a Growth Bid for the

region be approved; and

(b)  That the prospectus for Rail Improvement “Growth Track 360” be supported and
endorsed.

Page 8



60.

61.

WELSH LANGUAGE ANNUAL REPORT

Councillor Mullin introduced the report on the Welsh Language Annual Report,
which provided an overview of the Annual Report and details of progress being made
to comply with the Welsh Language Standards. Areas for improvement were also
identified.

The Chief Executive explained that the Annual Report covered the following
areas:

e The number of employees who had Welsh language skills;

e The number and % of employees who attended training through the
medium of Welsh;

e The number of posts advertised as: Welsh essential; Welsh desirable;
Welsh skills not necessary; and Requirement to learn Welsh;

e The number of complaints received relating to compliance with the
Operational Standards, Policy Making Standards and Service Delivery
Standards; and

¢ Information on how the Council had complied with the Standards

Discussions with the Welsh Language Commissioner would conclude in the
coming weeks on the Standards.

Councillor Bithell asked if Welsh Language training was available to County
Councillors to which the Chief Executive said it was.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the Welsh Language Annual Monitoring Report for the period 2015/16 be
approved; and

(b)  That progress being made to implement the Welsh Language Standards and
areas for improvement be noted.

THE FINAL STAGE OF THE REVIEW OF EXISTING SPEED LIMIT ORDERS ON
THE COUNCIL’S HIGHWAY NETWORK AND PROPOSED PROCESS
IMPROVEMENTS FOR ANY FUTURE CHANGES TO SPEED LIMIT ORDERS

Councillor Attridge introduced the report on the Final Stage of the Review of
Existing Speed Limit Orders on the Council’s Highway Network and Proposed Process
Improvements for any Future Changes to Speed Limit Orders.

The report detailed the intended approach for the next and final phase of the
work which would address anomalies within the existing speed limit orders on all other
routes on the Highway Network. In addition, the current process for implementing
speed limit orders was both complex and time consuming and there was a clear need
to adopt a more efficient method of working. Adopting a revised process would provide
a consistent, transparent and more simplistic approach for any future revisions to
speed limit orders.

Page 9



62.

A mapping exercise was required which would accurately record the positioning
of all existing speed limits which would result in a single consolidated Order. The
information on all speed limits would be easily accessible to members of the pubic via
the Flintshire County Council website.

Adoption of the revised process would streamline the current process and would
also reduce demand on officer’s time.

The report had been submitted to Environment Overview and Scrutiny
Committee where it was fully supported.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the revised process to deliver the final phase of the review of speed limit
orders on all of the Council’s Highway Network be approved; and

(b)  That the proposed changes to the process which will be adopted for any future
revisions of highway speed limit orders be approved.

CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES

Councillor Mullin introduced the report on Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs).
CPRs set out how officers must advertise and award contracts to ensure that they were
let in a lawful, fair and open manner. A review of the CPRs was required following
changes in European Procurement Law, the introduction of the Well Being of Future
Generations Act, the move to electronic procurement and the introduction of the new
Welsh Language Standards.

The Chief Officer (Governance) explained that the Council shared its
procurement service with Denbighshire County Council and the revised CPRs had
been adopted by that Authority. The same or similar rules would create consistency
for suppliers and the service itself.

The proposed CPRs were written in a logical order that flowed step by step from
the considerations necessary before placing a contract, through sourcing of suppliers
to award of contract and contract management.

The tender values and the level at which the relevant decision must be taken
was as detailed below. The levels increased the degree of oversight for Members:

Contract Value Authorisation Required From
Up to £250,000 Manager of the service
£250,000 to £1,000,000 Chief Officer

£1,000,001 to £2,000,000 Delegated decision

£2,000,001 and over Cabinet

Community benefits were additional services or investment made by contractors
in addition to the goods and services they were contracted to provide. Examples of
community benefits already delivered in Flintshire included:

¢ An apprenticeship scheme as part of SHARP;

Page 10



63.

e The community benefit investment fund as part of the residual waste treatment
project; and

e Support for community groups through Welsh Housing Quality Standard
(WHQS).

The CPRs would be presented to Audit Committee on 26t September 2016,
Constitution Committee on 5t October 2016 and County Council on 19t October 2016.

In response to a question from Councillor Mullin, the Chief Officer (Governance)
explained that the electronic system provided a full audit trail of the process from
inception to contract award and was open for Members to view.

RESOLVED:

That County Council be recommended to:
e Adopt the proposed Contract Procedure Rules
e Harmonise delegated authority levels for spending decisions within the
Constitution with effect from 15t November 2016

CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING 2016/17 (MONTH 4)

The Corporate Finance Manager presented the report on Capital Programme
Monitoring 2016/17 (Month 4). The report summarised changes made to the Capital
Programme 2016/17 since it was set in February 2016 to the end of Month 4 (July
2016), along with expenditure to date and projected outturn.

Changes during the period had resulted in a net increase in the programme total
of £5.863M (Council Fund £3.768M, Housing Revenue Account £2.095M), full details
of which were detailed in the report.

As at Month 4 Early Identified Rollover (EIR) of £0.067M had been identified
which reflected reviewed spending plans across all programme areas. Three
additional pressures totalling £0.910M had been approved since the budget was set.
Additional IT data storage (£0.590M) and remedial works at closed landfill sites
(£0.250) which were approved at Cabinet in July 2016 whilst a further £0.070M for
target hardening works had been approved under delegated powers.

The repot had been discussed at Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee the previous week with no issues being identified.

RESOLVED:
(@)  That the report be approved;
(b)  That the rollover adjustments be approved; and

(c) That the request for additional resources be approved.

Page 11



64.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2016/17 (MONTH 4)

The Corporate Finance Manager introduced the report on Revenue Budget
Monitoring 2016/17 (Month 4) which provided the latest revenue budget monitoring
position for 2016/17 for the Council Fund and the Housing Revenue Account.

The report had been considered at Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee the previous week where it resolved: “That the Committee wishes to
impress upon the Cabinet the need to learn to be more realistic about the achievement
of efficiency savings, some of which may not be wholly within the Council’s control’. In
response to that resolution, Members commented on the objections to some of the
initial budget proposals by Overview and Scrutiny Committees which had resulted in
changes to some schemes. This impacted on the budget and was part of the
democratic process.

The Corporate Finance Manager explained that the final year end position was:

Council Fund
e Net in year expenditure forecast to be £2.081M higher than budget
e Projected contingency reserve balance of £2.107M

The underlying forecast overspend would be reduced to £1.641M with the
successful negotiation of an additional Welsh Government (WG) transport grant of
£0.440M. Of the remaining £1.641M, £0.861M (52%) came from conscious decisions
to change proposals for household recycling centres, community asset transfers, town
centre and County Hall car parking charging, and workforce essential car user
allowances. This left a true unpredicted working deficit of £0.780M. The recurring
impacts of the forecast position for 2017/18 were explained in the report.

Housing Revenue Account
¢ Net in year expenditure forecast to be £0.013M lower than budget
e Projected closing balance as at 31 March 2016 of £1.111M

The report covered significant budget movements; programme of efficiencies;
inflation; reserves and balances; and an overview of the Housing Revenue Account.

The Chief Executive explained that the Council set a challenging level of
specified efficiencies to be achieved in-year as part of its approach to annual budget
planning. The first assessment of the efficiency profile for 2016/17 showed that 86%
of the efficiencies pre-set in the annual budget would be achieved. That figure rose to
93% following the conscious decisions to change proposals for household recycling
centres, community asset transfers, town centre and County Hall car parking charging,
and workforce essential car user allowances. He commented on the difficulty in
accurate predictions which included the democratic process.

He added that following the liquidation of GHA Coaches, the Council was
attempting to recover as much of the costs as possible. Councillor Attridge praised
staff for their work to ensure there was a continuation of service for both school children
and public transport.

Page 12



65.

66.

Councillor Bithell commented on the 86% of efficiencies being achieved and
asked if the Wales Audit Office (WAO) provided details of the statistics from other Local
Authorities. The Chief Executive said a composite list of efficiencies achieved was not
available but if one was produced it would be a helpful document.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the report be noted; and

(b)  That an allocation of £0.861M from the contingency reserve be approved to
meet the financial impact of the changed proposals for household recycling
centres, community asset transfers, town centre and County Hall car parking

charges, and workforce essential car user allowances.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

The Corporate Finance Manager introduced the Treasury Management Annual
Report 2015/16.

The Annual Report was reviewed by Audit Committee on 13t July 2016 and
would be reported to County Council on 26" September 2016.

RESOLVED:

That the Annual Treasury Management Report for 2015/16 be approved and
recommended to County Council.

APPOINTMENT OF COUNCIL MEMBERS AS DIRECTORS — NEW HOMES

The Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise) introduced the report on the
Appointment of Council Members as Directors, NEW Homes.

Following the resignation of two Councillors who cited their membership of the
Council’'s Planning and Development Control Committee as a conflict of interest, and
the subsequent resignation of another Councillor for personal reasons, there were
three Councillor Board vacancies.

Nominations from Councillors were sought and it was agreed that to ensure the
greatest levels of propriety, that Members on the Planning and Development Control
Committee and / or relevant Scrutiny Committee would not be considered.
Nominations were received from Councillors Glyn Banks, Hilary McGuill and Nigel
Steele-Mortimer. None of those Councillors were members of any of those
Committees.

RESOLVED:

That the appointment of Councillor Glyn Banks, Councillor Hilary McGuill and
Councillor Nigel Steele-Mortimer as Directors of North East Wales Homes Limited be
approved.

Page 13



67.

68.

BUSINESS RATES — WRITE OFF ABOVE £25,000

Councillor Mullin introduced the report on Business Rates — Write Off above
£25,000.

Richmond Investment Properties Ltd were liable for business rates at the Bryn
Awel Hotel, Denbigh Road, Mold for the period between 25" July 2012 and 8" July
2014. Despite litigation action being taken by the Council to recover business rate
liabilities amounting to £25,881.51, the debt remained outstanding and was now
considered to be irrecoverable on the basis that all recovery options had been
exhausted.

The Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise) explained that there were no
direct financial implications for the Council or local taxpayers as business rates which
were collected were borne by the National Collection Pool for Wales. As the Collection
Pool was supported by Welsh Government, non-payment of rates did though have a
wider impact on the Welsh taxpayer.

RESOLVED:

That the write off of the business rate debt for Richmond Investment Properties Ltd
amounting to £25,881.51 be approved.

HIGHWAYS AND CAR PARK INSPECTION POLICY

Councillor Attridge introduced the report on the Highways and Car Park
Inspection Policy.

In order to ensure the Council’s highway network remained fit for purpose and
in a safe condition, and in order to provide a defence for the Council against claims
made for compensation by users of the network, a robust Safety Inspection Policy was
required. The Policy defined safety inspection frequencies on all of the classifications
of carriageway, footway and cycleway maintained by the Council and the Policy also
defined intervention criteria i.e. the point at which maintenance work was required, and
defined timescales for completing any required remedial work.

The Council owned and managed a large number of car parks across the
County and the Inspection Policy had been extended to include those facilities in order
to ensure the safety of the sites and to provide a defence against any claims that may
be received by users of the car parks, for personal loss or damage.

The report had been submitted to the Environment Overview and Scrutiny
Committee where it was fully supported.

RESOLVED:
That the reviewed Highway and Car Park Inspection Policy outlining the Council’s

approach to all safety inspections, intervention criteria and response times be
approved.

Page 14



69. EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS

An information item on the actions taken under delegated powers was

submitted. The actions were as set out below:-

Organisational Change

Target Hardening Work to Various Flintshire County Council Sites
Work to target harden various Council owned sites across Flintshire to improve
security of sites against illegal traveller incursions.

Land to the Rear of Withen Cottages off Alltami Road, Buckley
The subject comprises of a parcel of land extending to approximately 1.78 acres
accessible from the purchaser’s land only.

Ysgol Y From Annexe, Halkyn Street, Holywell
The sale of this section of Ysgol Y Fron to ICR Group for conversion to offices
for their own use

Saltney Library Site, Delcaring Site Surplus to Service Requirements
The site of the former Saltney Library is declared surplus to the Library Service
requirements.

Revenues

Business Rates Write Offs

Financial Procedure Rules (Section 9.6 — Income and Expenditure) stipulate
that any individual debt between values of £5,000 and £25,000 shall be reported
to the Chief Finance Officer (Corporate Finance Manager / Section 151 Officer)
for consideration to write off, in conjunction with the Cabinet Member for
Finance. The scheduled, which are summarised by the category of write off
involve 7 Business Rates accounts where the overall debt for each company is
greater than £5,000.

Council Tax Write Offs

Financial Procedure Rules (Section 9.6 — Income and Expenditure) stipulate
that any individual debt between the values of £5,000 and £25,000 shall be
reported to the Chief Finance Officer (Corporate Finance Manager / Section 151
Officer) for consideration to write off, in conjunction with the Cabinet Member
for Finance. The delegated powers form details 1 Council Tax account where
the overall debt is greater than £5,000.

Public Protection

Annual Increase in Fees and Charges
Revised fees and charges for Public Protection relating to 2016/17.

Streetscene and Transportation

B5129 Chester Road, Pentre, Sandycroft, Restricted Road — Order 2016
To advise of an unresolved objection received following the advertisement of
the proposal to reduce the speed limit on the B5129 Chester Road, Pentre,
Sandycroft. It is recommended that the objection be overruled and that the
speed limit be adopted as advertised.

Page 15



70.

e Proposed on and off Street Parking Orders — Talacre
To advise of the objections and one unresolved objection received following the
advertisement of the proposed introduction of car parking orders both on and
off street. Itis recommended that the objection be overruled and that the orders
be adopted as advertised.

RESOLVED:

That the actions taken under delegated powers be noted.

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE

There was one member of the press and one member of the public in
attendance.

(The meeting commenced at 9.30am and ended at 11.40am)

Page 16



Agenda Item 4

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%h.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 18th October 2016
Report Subject Annual Performance Report 2015/16
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Corporate Management
Report Author Chief Executive
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Annual Performance Report for 2015/16 reviews our progress against the
Improvement Priorities as detailed in the Improvement Plan 2015/16.

The report reflects the overall good progress that has been made against our
priorities and the high level of confidence we have in achieving the desired
outcomes. It also shows that we managed our risks well, with only 1 remaining at a
high level at year end.

Performance against the Improvement Plan measures was also positive with 75%
achieving or exceeding target and 79% showing improved performance on that
achieved in 2014/15.

Comparison nationally using the National Strategic Indicators (NSls) and Public
Accountability Measures (PAMs) revealed 54% of indicators achieved or exceeded
target and 41% showed improved or sustained performance. Of the 22 Authorities
across Wales Flintshire was in the top 10 to show improvement between 2014/15
and 2015/16.

RECOMMENDATION

1 To recommend adoption of the 2015/16 Annual Performance by County
Council.

Page 17



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE ANNUAL REPORT

1.01

The Annual Performance Report (the Report) meets the statutory
requirement to publish an Improvement Plan as required by the Local
Government (Wales) Measure (2009) (the Measure). The report must be
published by 31st October each year. The purpose of the report is to
account for the organisation’s previous year’'s performance against its
Improvement Priorities.

1.02

The requirements of the Measure are met through the “forward looking”
document; the Improvement Plan 2015/16. This sets out the vision and
priorities for the Council. The second statutory requirement of the Measure
is met by this Annual Performance Report, which reviews progress on
commitments made in the previous year.

1.03

The Annual Performance Report must be approved by the full Council prior
to publication.

1.04

The Annual Performance Report for 2015/16 reviews our progress against
the Improvement Priorities as detailed in the Improvement Plan 2015/16.
This assessment takes into consideration assessments of our performance
for each of the Improvement Priorities through:

e Progress against key actions and projects
e Progress against identified risks and challenges
e Performance indicator outturns (target and trend analysis)

e Regulatory, audit and inspection activity

1.05

Progress against Key Activities

Overall good progress has been made against the 2015/16 Improvement
Plan priorities and there is a high level of confidence in the achievement of
desired outcomes. The report summaries progress against the key
activities supporting the priorities as follows:

Progress:
e We are making good progress in 75% (44).
e We are making satisfactory progress in 25% (15).
¢ None of our activities have made limited (red) progress.

Outcome:
¢ We have a high level of confidence in the achievement of 79% (46).

¢ We have a medium level of confidence in the achievement of 17%
(10).

e We had a low level of confidence in the achievement of 3% (2)

¢ We have one (1%) outcome level of confidence which was not set.

Page 18




1.06 | Progress against Risks and Challenges
Good progress was made in managing our risks. Analysis of the year end
risk levels for the 45 strategic risks identified in the Improvement Plan is as
follows:
e 69% (31) risks remained the same.
o 29% (13) risks reduced
e 2% (1) risk increased
1.07 | Performance Indicator Outturns
The report summaries our performance against the Improvement Plan
measures and also nationally using the National Strategic Indicators
(NSIs) and Public Accountability Measures (PAMs).
Improvement Plan Measures
Assessment of actual performance against target:
e 64% (62) of performance measures showed improved performance.
e 32% (31) showed performance which had downturned.
e 4% (4) had maintained the same level of performance.
NSIs and PAMs
We were in the top 10 to show improvement between 2014/15 and
2015/16
1.08 | The Local Government Performance Bulletin for 2015/16 was published
2nd September 2016 by the Local Government Data Unit (link to bulletin).
Analysis of the bulletin has been undertaken and Chief Officers have
prepared responses to the findings.
1.09 | Regulation, Audit and Inspection Activity
The Wales Audit Office publishes an Annual Improvement Report (AIR)
each year on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales. The AIR published
in June 2016 for Flintshire included the findings and recommendations
from the Corporate Assessment.
Overall the Auditor General concluded that:
“Despite increasing financial pressures, the Council has continued to
improve performance within its priority areas and to strengthen its
corporate arrangements.”
1.10 | The statutory requirements of the Measure are met through a
concentration on the Council’'s Improvement Priorities.
1.11 | The report will be available via the Council’s website. Paper copies can be

generated as required and the supporting documents which provide the
more detailed information will be available as ‘hyperlinked’ documents. A
summary of the report will be included within the emagazine ‘Your
Council’.

Page 19



http://www.dataunitwales.gov.uk/SharedFiles/Download.aspx?pageid=79&mid=459&fileid=1052

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
2.01 | There are no specific resource implications within this report.
3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT
3.01 | Consultation is undertaken throughout the year by Cabinet and Overview
and Scrutiny Committees reviewing the quarterly performance reports.
A report on the full year’s progress against the Improvement Plan 2015/16
was presented to Cabinet in July 2016.
4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT
4.01 | An assessment of the risks identified in the Improvement Plan for 2015/16
has been made within the Annual Performance Report.
5.00 | APPENDICES
5.01 | Appendix 1 — Annual Performance Report 2015/16
Appendices to the Annual Performance Report:
Appendix A — Improvement Plan Risk Summary
Appendix B — Improvement Plan Measures Data Table
Appendix C — NSI and PAM Data Table
Appendix D — Glossary
6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
6.01 | Improvement Plan 2015/16
Contact Officer:  Chris Phillips
Strategic Performance Lead
Telephone: 01352 701457
E-mail: christopher.x.phillips@flintshire.gov.uk
7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS
7.01 | Annual Performance Report: accounts for the organisation’s previous

year’s performance against its Improvement Priorities. It must be published
by 31st October each year.

Improvement Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of
the Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure
2009 to set Improvement Objectives and publish an Improvement Plan.

Page 20



mailto:christopher.x.phillips@flintshire.gov.uk

Local Government (Wales) Measure (2009): A measure of the National
Assembly for Wales to make provision about arrangements by local
authorities and other authorities in Wales to secure continuous
improvement in the exercise of their functions; to make provision for
community strategies; and for connected purposes.

National Strategic Indicators (NSIs): set by Welsh Government, these
performance indicators are used to measure the performance of local
authorities at a national level, focusing on key strategic priorities.

Public Accountability Measures (PAMs): a set of “outcome focussed”
performance indicators that reflect those aspects of local authority work
which local authorities agree are considered to be important in terms of
public accountability, e.g. recycling, educational attainment, etc.

Performance Indicator (Pl): a type of performance measurement used to
evaluate the success of an organisation or of a particular activity in which it
engages.

Pl Outturn: the actual performance achieved for a performance indicator.

Pl Target Analysis: comparison of actual performance compared with the
target.

Pl Trend Analysis: comparison of actual performance for the year with
the previous year(s) performance.

Improvement Plan Measures: the performance indicators or milestones
used to evaluate the success of activities in the Improvement Plan.

Wales Audit Office (WAO): works to support the Auditor General as the
public sector watchdog for Wales. They aim to ensure that the people of
Wales know whether public money is being managed wisely and that
public bodies in Wales understand how to improve outcomes.

Audit General for Wales: Appointed by the Queen and independent of
government the Auditor General for Wales is the statutory external auditor
of most of the Welsh public sector.

Annual Improvement Report (AIR): is publicised by the Wales Audit
Office (WAO) on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales. It brings
together, with the co-ordination of other inspectorates such as Estyn and
the Care and Social Services Inspectorate for Wales (CSSIW), a picture of
the Council’s delivery and evaluation of services and it's planning of
improvement for the coming year.

Corporate Assessment: WAQO’s assessment of the Council’s
arrangements that enable progress and transformation, and that support
continuous improvement and good performance.

Page 21



http://www.audit.wales/about-us/auditor-general-wales

This page is intentionally left blank



Annual

Performance Report
2015/16

:ﬂ.:EFFEETI'n"E BLSHE
iAcmEVEMENTu

n_smrec,-r SUGCE 55 CONTAET
EMANAGEM ENT E

: PEOPLE < ORARALI BT Aﬂ.

EOF'I';EAMWORKE @5‘;

iR

EOVELOPAMT

' 551 gﬂ gﬁ‘s%:&f

<
,
A I e 1)

\\\\\

Slr y Fflint
FllntshlrE

Page 23 140



Contents

Introduction

Consultation

Section 1

o Assessment of Performance against our Improvement Priorities

e Risk Management

e Performance Data Summary

e QOutcome Agreement

Section 2

e Detailed Improvement Priority Reporting
Section 3

o Equality

o Welsh Language

e Sustainable Development

e Partnership and Collaboration Activity

e Regulation, Audit and Inspection

e Corporate Health and Safety

Appendices
Appendix A — Improvement Plan 2015/16 Risk Register

Appendix B — Improvement Plan Measures Data Table Hyperlinked
Appendix C — National Indicators Data Table Documents
Appendix D — Glossary of Terms

How to contact us for further information and to give feedback
List of Tables and Charts

Table 1 Improvement Priorities 2015/16

Table 2 Summary of 2015/16 Priority Performance

Chart 1 Performance against target for our Improvement Plan measures

Chart 2 Performance trend for our Improvement Plan measures

Chart 3 Performance against target for the national statutory measures

Chart 4 Performance trend for the national statutory measures

Chart 5 Number of national measures by quartile position

Page 24 2| 40



file://flintshire.gov.uk/shared/FCC_Fileshare_05/PPP/CORPORATE%20REPORTING/201617/Cabinet/Imp%20Plan%2015-16%20YE%20progress/Risk%20Register%2015-16.doc
Appendix%2520B%2520-%2520Improvement%2520Plan%2520Measures.xlsx
Appendix%2520C%2520-%2520NSI%2520&%2520PAM%2520Schedule.xls
Appendix-D-Glossary%2520of%2520Terms.pdf

Introduction

The Annual Performance Report (APR) gives an overview of the performance of the
Council during 2015/16 against the priorities we set.

The report covers: -

e Progress against key actions and projects.

e Actual and comparative performance information against local and nationally set
performance indicators.

e An assessment of how well the Council is managing the strategic risks and
challenges it faces.

e The outcomes of external regulatory work and the Council's response to improve
governance and public services as a result.

¢ Anassessment of achievement of the Council’s Outcome Agreement with the Welsh
Government (WG).

The publication of this Annual Performance Report meets the statutory requirement to
publish an annual ‘backward looking’ report on our Improvement Plan as part of the Local
Government (Wales) Measure (2009). The Improvement Plan, our ‘forward looking’
publication, meets the other statutory requirement. In meeting these requirements the
Council demonstrated a sound system of internal control which supports the effective
discharge of its functions.

Setting Priorities

The Council has competing pressures and priorities. Some priorities are ‘self-selecting’ to
meet national government social policy objectives such as housing and education. Others
are set more locally.

The priorities have been shaped by councillors across our Cabinet and the Overview and
Scrutiny functions to ensure continuity of analysis for past, present and future performance
against which the Council can be judged. There is widespread ownership of the priorities
within the Council and with our key partners in the public, private and voluntary sectors.

This set of eight priorities supported by a series of sub-priorities (seen overleaf in Table 1)
has helped the Council to concentrate on the things where attention was most needed
during 2015/16. The remaining priorities from previous years have been managed as more
routine business outside of the Plan.

The Council acts as a representative democratic body and sets its priorities based on the
evidence it has gathered from many sources. Our elected members are in touch with local
views through:-

Democratic representation.
Partnership Forums.

Statutory consultation.

Direct community/user consultation.

Page 25 3|40



Table 1: Improvement Priorities 2015/16

Housing

Living Well

Economy
and
Enterprise

Skills and
Learning

Safe
Communities

Sub - Priority

Planned Impact

Appropriate and Affordable
Homes

Modern and Efficient and
Adapted Homes

Improve the choice and quality of
local housing

Independent Living

Integrated Community Social
and Health Services

Enabling more people to live
independently and well at home

Safeguarding

Ensuring adults, young people, and
children are safeguarded

Business Sector Growth

Town and Rural Regeneration

Creating jobs and growing the local
economy

Modern and High Performing
Education

Apprenticeship and Training

Improving learning provision and
opportunities to achieve better learner
outcomes

Community Safety

Keeping people and communities
safe

Poverty

Maximising Income

Fuel Poverty

Protecting people from poverty

Environment

Note: The colour scheme used in this table is used throughout the document for ease of

recognition.

Transport Infrastructure and
services

Helping people to access
employment, local services and
facilities

Sustainable Development and
Environmental Management

Developing and protecting the
environment

Developing Communities

Supporting communities to be
resilient

Improving Resource
Management

Supporting front-line services to
perform well while being efficient

Page 26

4 | 40



Consultation

Consultation and engagement with our customers and communities takes place on a
number of different levels: representative democracy through our elected members,
structured engagement through, for example, our County Forum (with Town and
Community Councils), formal needs assessments through our strategic partnerships,
surveys and feedback, and workshops and roadshows. Different methods are used
according to circumstances, the type of audience, and the reach of coverage sought.

Between April 2015 and March 2016 we undertook a range of consultations with impacted
stakeholders. Examples of these are:

Public Consultation on Library Proposals (April 2015)

In-House Supported Living Move On Consultation (May - June 2015)

e Extra Care Housing Consultation (May - June 2015)
e School Modernisation Consultations (October - December 2015)
e Active Travel Existing Routemap (December 2015)

¢ Recycle More Survey (March-April 2016)

Prompted by unprecedented forecast cuts to the Council budget, we held a series of public
consultations in November and December 2015 to find out local views on council services
and how they should be protected. This consultation was called This is our Moment. In this
exercise we set out the severity of the situation and people were asked whether they would
support some of the choices the Council would need to make in the future.

Page 27 5| 40


http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/County-Forum/County-Forum.aspx
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/County-Forum/County-Forum.aspx
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Council-and-Democracy/This-is-our-moment.aspx

Section 1

Assessment of our Performance against Improvement Priorities for
2015/16

For 2015/16 the Council had 8 Improvement Priorities as detailed in its Improvement Plan.
The first 7 priorities are around public services and the final priority is about the corporate
organisation as a ‘social business’.

Table 2 below shows a summary of the year end “progress” and confidence in meeting
“outcome” assessment for each priority based on the following red, amber, green (RAG)
status key.

PROGRESS RAG Status Key OUTCOME RAG Status Key

Limited Progress - delay in Low - lower level of confidence in
scheduled activity; not on track the achievement of outcome(s)

Satisfactory Progress - some Medium - uncertain level of
delay in scheduled activity, but confidence in the achievement of
broadly on track the outcome(s)

High - full confidence in the
achievement of the outcome(s)

R

Good Progress - activities
completed on schedule, on track

Table 2: Summary of 2015/16 Priority Performance

Priority / Sub-priority Progress Outcome
Housing A A
e Appropriate and Affordable Homes A G
e Modern, Efficient and Adapted Homes G A

Living Well
e Independent Living G G
e Integrated Community Social and Health G G
Services
e Safeguarding G G

Economy and Enterprise

e Business Sector Growth and
Regeneration
e Town and Rural Regeneration

Skills and Learning

e Modernised and High Performing
Education

e Apprenticeships and Training G G

Page 28 6 | 40



Section 2 of this report (page 11) gives a more detailed assessment for the “progress” and
confidence in “outcome” against each of the 16 sub-priorities which support the 8
Improvement Priorities. Each assessment contains a link to the full report for the sub-
priority as presented to the relevant scrutiny committee at year end.

Summary Progress Assessment

Within each of the sub-priorities were a number of high level activities. A summary of our
overall progress is provided as follows: -

PROGRESS
e Good (green) progress in 44 (75%) of activities.
e Satisfactory (amber) progress in 15 (25%) of our activities.

OUTCOME

e We have a high (green) level of confidence in the achievement of 46 (79%) of
our planned outcomes.

¢ We have a medium (amber) level of confidence in the achievement of 10
(17%) of our outcomes.

e We have a low (red) level of confidence in the achievement of 2 (3%) of our

outcomes.

1 (1%) had no target set.

Page 29 7 | 40



Risk Management

The Council adopted the Improvement Plan for 2015/16 in June 2015. This provided the
Council with the opportunity of realigning its strategic risks to the priorities and sub-priorities
within the Plan.

Analysis of the year end risk levels for the 45 strategic risks identified in the Improvement
Plan is as follows: -

e 4 (9%) are low (green)

e 30 (67%) are medium (amber)
e 3 (7%) are high (red)

e 8 (18%) are minor (yellow)

Trend analysis was also undertaken, comparing risk levels at the end of the year with those
at the start of the year. The analysis showed that: -

e 13 (29%) risks had reduced
o 31 (69%) risks remained the same
1 (2%) risk had increased

A summary table of the risks at year end 2015/16 is shown at Appendix A1.

Performance Data Summary

National Performance Summary (All Wales Position)

The Welsh Government and the Local Government Data Unit released 2015/16
performance data for all local authorities in Wales (National Strategic Indicators and Public
Accountability Measures) in September 2016. This was accompanied by an overview of
national trends as in previous years. The Local Government Performance Bulletin is a
supporting document to this report.

Improving Our Performance

Performance for 2015/16 against our Improvement Plan Measures is summarised in an
outturn performance indicator table (Chart 1). Flintshire is able to demonstrate an
improvement on 2014/15 with 81 indicators having achieved target or better against the
previous year of 75. Missed targets within an acceptable margin reduced from 33 in
2014/15 to 18 last year.

Page 30 8 | 40


file://flintshire.gov.uk/shared/FCC_Fileshare_05/PPP/Performance%20Indicators/Local%20Government%20Performance%20Bulletin%202015-16%20FINAL%20(002).pdf

Analysis of year end levels of performance identified: -

Chart 1: Performance against target for our Inprovement Plan measures

m Achieved target
or better

= Missed target but
within an
acceptable margin

m Significantly
missed target

Chart 2: Performance trend for our Improvement Plan measures

= Improved

m Downturned
= Maintained

Page 31

9| 40



Chart 3: Performance against target for the national statutory measures

This is a single outturn performance indicator which shows Flintshire’s performance in the
national statutory measures; National Strategic Indicators (NSls) and Public Accountability
Measures (PAMs).

NSI & PAM Measures - Performance
Against Target

m Achieved target or

better
17 Missed target but
41% within an

acceptable margin

m Significantly
missed target

Chart 4: Performance trend for the national statutory measures

Analysis of the number of indicators for which performance had improved, been maintained
or downturned. 3 performance indicators maintained the same level of performance all at
the optimum level of 100%.

NSI & PAM Measures - Performance
Trend

= Maintained or
Improved

m Downturned

Page 32 10 | 40



Chart 5: Number of national measures by quartile position

Of the 22 local authorities across Wales Flintshire is in the top 10 to show improvement
between 2014/15 and 2015/16.

(" Number of PIs by quarter by year )
O Upperguart=r OUppermidde= guarer Blowsr midde guarter B lLowsr quarfer
11 12 12 11
10 g
a8 8 8 8
7
\_ 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 J

Flintshire’s quartile performance shows continued improvement over previous years.

Outcome Agreement

All Councils have been required to enter into a Successor Outcome Agreement with the
Welsh Government for the last three years 2013/14 to 2015/16. These agreements
incentivised the delivery of local priorities.

2015/16 was the last year of the Outcome Agreement programme.

The Outcome Agreement Grant attracted a special grant of approximately £1.4 million per
year over a three year period. In the final year of the Outcome Agreement the Council
again received its full grant for achievement. Full grant payments have been received by
the Council in each of the 3 years based on its level of performance.

Section 2

Detailed Improvement Prioity Reporting

IEIETlN Progress | Satisfactory | Outcome | Satisfactory

Approprlat:oanr]\:sAffordable Progress | Satisfactory | Outcome | Satisfactory

1.

During 2015/16 we said we would aim to meet the new homeless prevention duties
of the Wales Housing Act 2014 by:

Working more closely with the private rented sector.

The number of households where homelessness is prevented by use of the
private rented sector.

The number of households where the Council has discharged its full statutory
duty into private rented accommodation.

Maintaining the percentage of all potentially homeless households for whom
homelessness was prevented for at least 6 months.

Page 33 11 | 40



What we did:

J Throughout 2015-16 92% of potentially homeless households were prevented from

homelessness for at least 6 months. A number of leased properties were commissioned

to provide temporary accommodation for homeless people, 148 households were assisted

to secure accommodation in the private rented
sector. Cashless deposit bonds were provided
to all customers accessing private rented
properties and some customers received rent
in advance through spend to save to enable
them to access available housing.

Despite good progress some cases could
not be prevented through use of the private
rented sector due to the availability of suitable

and affordable properties. Demand on
homeless prevention services remains high and developing suitable and affordable
accommodation options in the county remains a priority to meet need.

2. Stimulate the growth of affordable housing by:

e Increasing the numbers of new Council and affordable homes through the
Strategic Housing Regeneration Programme (SHARP).

¢ Increasing the numbers of gifted new homes using the Section 106 Agreement.

¢ Adopting a Flintshire House Standard Design Specification for new build Council
led housing.

What we did:

Planning permission was granted for 12 new Council houses in Connah’s Quay, and

permission granted for the Walks development in Flint, with work scheduled to start
in July 2016. The SHARP Programme will also aim to deliver 500 new affordable homes
between 2015 — 2019. 2 properties were transferred to NEW homes bringing the total to
6 under the Section 106 agreement for 2015/16.

3. Meet the duties of the Wales Housing Act 2014 for the Traveller Community by:
e Completing a Gypsy/Traveller accommodation assessment.

What we did:

The Gypsy/Traveller accommodation assessment was completed by the target
date of 31/03/2016.

Page 34 12 | 40



4. Develop extra care provision to provide units in Flint and Holywell by:

e Securing full planning approval for both sites.
e Agree the design and delivery model for both schemes
e Commencing the building of both schemes.

What we did:

The Flint Scheme has all planning approvals and building regulations completed,
with works now having started. The 18 month build programme is scheduled for
completion by April 2017.

Outline planning permission was initally refused for the Holywell Extra Care scheme
in April 2015 as a result of concerns over the favoured site and the impact of the loss of
parking to the town. Alternative sites and designs are being reconsidered with the scheme
partner Wales and West for the Holywell area.

Modern, Effllfl:lent and Adapted Outcome | Satisfactory
omes

1. During 2015/16 we said we would deliver financial support to repair, improve, and
adapt private sector homes by:

¢ Repairing and improving 40 private sector dwellings through the Council’s capital
programme and Welsh Government’s National Home Improvement Loan.

¢ Improving the timeliness of adaptions, particularly those delivered through
Disabled Facilities Grants.

What we did:

There has been an increase in the number of expressions of interest for financial

support, which coincides with the launch of the Welsh Government (WG) Home
Improvement Loan Scheme. 20 loans have been approved and a further 16 in progress,
however building work has not started as yet. In addition 10 of the new WG Home
Improvement Loans are progressing through the assessment process. Recruitment is in
progress to address the capacity gap resulting from the increased WG resources of Home
Improvement Loans, Houses into Homes Loans, and Vibrant and Viable Places Energy
Works.

Although the target of timeliness to deliver a Disabled Facilities Grant for Children was

not met, there has been a significant reduction compared with the previous year from
619 days down to 455. The position for Disabled Facilities Grants for Adults is also similar
in that the actual time has also reduced compared to 2014-15.

2. Reduce the number of long term vacant homes by:

e Bringing empty homes back into use for residential living through the Welsh
Government’s Houses (WG) into Homes Scheme.

Page 35 13 | 40



What we did:

Performance has been strong with 32 long term vacant properties returned to use

against a target of 30. This is as a result of additional funds through the WG Vibrant
and Viable Places scheme being made available for the Living
Over the Shops initiative and, the high demand for Houses
into Homes loan funding.
3. Deliver the six year asset management strategy to meet
the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) across all
Flintshire Council Homes by:

e Completing WHQS work schemes to a value of
£21M, in line with the Housing Asset Management
Strategy.

What we did:

The six year strategy has been developed and

approved. Capital work teams have completed all main
tendering exercises and are now delivering projects onsite.
Additional Contractors have been procured to assist on major
work streams to ensure full delivery and customer satisfaction
onsite. Excellent progress has been made throughout the
year with only one element of the external workstream
overlapping into the first quarter of the new financial year. The majority of the major
workstreams have all been procured on two, three, and four year rolling contracts and
therefore delivery will continue seamlessly into 2016-17. Capital work timeliness targets
have improved for kitchen replacements, installation of smoke detectors, and bathroom
replacements.

It was anticipated that the installation of new heating systems in theTreuddyn area

would have commenced during the 3rd quarter, however delays to the installation of
the Off Gas infrastructure meant that planned heating installations could not be undertaken
and will be rescheduled for the new financial year.

LIVING WELL Progress [JG00dy Outcome FHigh']
| Independent Living [ Progress

1. During 2015/16 we said we would ensure care home provision within Flintshire
enables people to live well and have a good quality of life by:

¢ Delivering the key Local Authority actions from the plan developed in response
to the Older People’s Commissioner’s report on care home provision including:

e Monitoring care home inspection reports

e Evaluating the impact of the pilot project being undertaken with Age Concern
‘Listening Voices’

¢ Improving the quality of care through implementing pre-placement agreements
for all care homes

Page 36 14 | 40



What we did:

JS initiatives have been delivered through the Dementia Awareness Programme. All
training and follow up sessions have been completed in Dance Circles and Dementia
Gardening, and 16 memory cafes established across Mold, Holywell, Mostyn, Flint, and
Buckley. Evaluating the impact (including satisfaction levels) of the pilot project is being
undertaken with Age Connects ‘Listening Friends’ using a pool of existing volunteers.
Training is ongoing and volunteers are setting up regular visits to homes.

All care homes in Wales that have a Flintshire funded placement have been sent pre-
placement agreements.

There has been a challenge in ensuring that Care Homes have signed and returned
their pre placement agreement. Approximately 80% of contracts have been returned
signed.

2. Support greater independence for individuals with a frailty and, or disability by:

e Continuing the success rate of reablement

¢ Piloting a night support service and evaluate

o Establishing a baseline for the people offered advice and support through the
single point of access

What we did:

J The percentage of referrals for a reablement service where support was maintained
or reduced, or where no further support was required at the end of the service, improved
from 77.8% to 85.4%. Establishing a baseline for existing access routes to obtain
information and advice about community services is now complete and benefits of
developing a single point of access for professionals and citizens has been recognised.
The night support pilot is in progress, and a review initiated as part of Phase 2 will seek to
establish business benefits, efficiency and sustainability.

3. Strengthen and enhance prevention and early intervention services for vulnerable
children and families by:

e Changing the operating arrangements to better support a new delivery model for
prevention and early intervention services

e Ensuring service users are provided with advice and assistance from the Family
Information Service (FIS) that enables them to make an informed decision about
childcare and family support.

What we did:

JA new operating structure for Children’s Services has been formed with key
management posts filled and recruitment processes in place for all additional vacancies.
The structure responds to the key recommendations identified within the CSSIW Inspection
Report. Included within this is the establishment of a targeted support team that will bring
together and coordinate a range of early intervention services

Page 37 15 | 40



The Family Information Service is now co-located with our Children’s fieldwork teams to
develop and strengthen the opportunities to provide timely advice and information to
children and families.

Integrated Community Social and Progress
Health Services 9

1. During 2015/16 we said we would continue integrating community based health and
social care teams to provide consistent service across localities by:

e Continuing to support people effectively through the use of step up and step
down beds where Health and Social Services can work together to avoid hospital
admission and delayed discharge.

¢ Increasing the number of care homes in Flintshire who sign up to the ‘Six Steps
to Success’ programme which supports the provision of high quality care for
people at the end of their life.

¢ Reviewing and agreeing funding arrangements for people in residential care
through the Continuing Health Care (CHC) programme.

What we did:

JProjects continued to run well with additional funding from Welsh Government for
January - March being utilised to ensure that demand could be met, for example, in relation
to additional use of Step Up Step Down Beds. The target was set at 90, and the actual
achieved was 147. 22 care homes including 2 extra care facilities have completed the “Six
Steps to Success Programme” for Palliative Care Nursing across Flintshire. The
programme aims to improve end of life care for all residents in Care Homes in Flintshire
and to increase workforce confidence and understanding of end of life care, and ensure
residents have choice and control over their end of life care plans. The programme also
aims to reduce inappropriate hospital admissions and delayed transfers of care for those
residents who are at end stage of palliative care.

The programme will be run jointly with Betsi Cadwaladwr University Health Board (BCUHB)
Macmillan End of Life Care Facilitation Team with the Lead Macmillan End of Life Care
Facilitator overseeing the Six Steps to Success Programme.

We are waiting for a response from BCUHB over the re-organisation of community
services. BCUHB is considering a site at Connah’s Quay, however, co-location has
not yet been achieved. Negotiations are continuing and the identified site is still an option.

2. During 2015/16 we aimed to ensure that
effective services to support carers are in
place as part of the integrated social and
health services by:

e Reviewing the Carer's Strategy to
redefine the priorities for the next 5 years

Page 38




e Agreeing and implementing plans to support carers
o Establishing a Dementia Respect Empathy and Dignity (RED) project within GP
surgeries offering advice and information to carers.
What we did:

JThe percentage of identified carers of adult service users who were assessed or
reassessed in their own right during the year and provided with a service improved from
86% during 2014/15 to 97% in 2015/16.

Consultation events with voluntary organisations were held between March and July 2015.
Wider consultation with all Flintshire carers was arranged for September 2015 and
notification given to providers to end and develop new contracts from April 2016. A draft
tender specification is out for stakeholder comment. New contracts will be in place by
September 2016.

Dementia Respect, Empathy, and Dignity (RED) is a new project in GP surgeries. An

average of 20 people accessed the RED project over a 12 month period and three GP
surgeries signed up in Flintshire via the Alzheimer’s Society. Our ambition had been for a
greater level of take up of this scheme.

3. During 2015/16 we aimed to influence the use of Intermediate Care Funds to support
effective discharge from hospital and ensure a smoother transition between Health
and Social Care services by:

¢ Reducing the rate of delayed transfers of care for social care reasons
e Gaining commitment from BCUHB to the continued funding of current provision

What we did:

J The budget for Intermediate Care Funds was balanced at the end of the financial

year. Arrangements are in place to determine funding allocation for 2016/17 to
continue to support effective intermediate care services including high quality care home
provision.

The target for delayed transfers was set as a rate of 2.00 per 1,000 population over 75;
however performance declined from 2.05 in 2014/15 to 3.39 in 2015/16. Whilst the target
was missed, significant work was undertaken to minimise delays. Our Locality Services
have been very proactive in working with hospitals to ensure a timely discharge and to
minimise delays. A significant number of delays this year were due to the increased number
of adults with complex mental health needs.

| Safeguarding [ Progress

1. During 2015/16 we said we would:

e Create a single safeguarding unit to manage protection processes for adults,
young people, and children.

e Prepare for the new and additional safeguarding requirements of the Social
Services and Well-being Act.

e Strengthen arrangements within all Council portfolios to have clear
responsibilities to address safeguarding by:

Page 39 17 | 40



Managing the risks identified through adult protection referrals.

Establish a Flintshire Sexual Exploitation Framework (SERAF) panel to
manage the risks of sexual exploitation of children in the County.
Meeting child protection conference timescales.

Completing child protection reviews on time.

VV VY

What we did:

JThere is now a single Safeguarding Unit operational that covers both adults and
childrens safeguarding processes and functions. The unit is located in Flint and
consideration is currently being given to the appointment of a dedicated Safeguarding Unit
Manager. Of those risks identified through adult protection referrals 100% were managed
compared to 98.9% from the previous year, and 99.2% of child protection reviews were
completed against a target of 98%. The Flintshire Sexual Exploitation Framework has been
established and a panel meet on a monthly basis to discuss progress of referrals.

The percentage of initial child protection conferences held within timescale decreased

from 97.8% in 2014/15 to 86.3% in 2015/16. The reason for the decline was that the
increase in the rate of child protection referrals to Social Services, and the subsequent
increase in requests for conference, impacted on the capacity of conference chairs to
deliver all conferences within statutory timescales. All conferences were convened as
quickly as possible and prioritised in the interests of the children concerned.

Economy and Enterprise Qi{es[(:ELS - Outcome -
Business sector growth and m
: rogress
regeneration

1. During 2015/16 we said we would promote Flintshire as a recognised centre for
energy and advanced manufacturing by:

e Converting enquiries to investment with Flintshire.

Page 40 18 | 40



What we did:

J Overall 2015/16 has seen 2,139 jobs created of which 863 have been within the
Deeside Enterprise Zone (DEZ). The
total number of jobs created within the
DEZ is 6,569 against a target of 5,000
for the period 2012 — 2017. In addition,
the proportion of business enquiries
converting into  investment has
remained high throughout the year at
74.1 against a target of 63.

2. During 2015/16 we said we would support the growth of existing businesses in
Flintshire, to maximise opportunities and investment by:

e Creating and safeguarding jobs within Flintshire.

e Creating jobs within Flintshire through our large scale capital programmes
(WHQS and SHARP)

What we did:

JWe supported local business expansion. This year has seen successful delivery of
events in conjunction with public and private partner involvement. During 2015-16 we
delivered 37 events to support economic growth with attendance from 5,782 delegates
from schools, colleges, and private industry. 917 new jobs were created and reported in
Flintshire, of which 395 were in the Deeside Enterprise Zone. 1,500 jobs have been
safeguarded at Airbus.

A total of 43 job opportunities were also created within the large scale capital work
programmes against a target of 36.

3. During 2015/16 we said we would improve the local broadband infrastructure in
economic growth by:

¢ Rolling out superfast broadband across Flintshire in line with Welsh Government

programme of works for 2015/16.
What we did:

JWG has reported 31,897 premises fall in the Superfast Cymru intervention area across
Flintshire.

Premises completed (tested and verified) within Superfast Cymru intervention area
was 22,632 or 71% complete.

Page 41 19 | 40



Town and R_ural Outcome
Regeneration

1. During 2015/16 we said we would deliver an integrated programme of regeneration
for Deeside by:

e Implementing the key actions of the vibrant and viable places programme,
includingby:

» Redeveloping vacant sites and properties.

» Providing grant assistance to high street businesses.

» Providing skills and training opportunities; and Developing an over-arching
regeneration strategy for Deeside.

What we did:

J The WG Vibrant and Viable Places programme is now in its second year of delivery.
All projects are in progress and the programme is forecast to draw down all funding for this
financial year. Projects include: Shop front grants and grants to convert space over shops
into accommodation; Environmental improvements; Energy efficiency improvements to
housing; and Group repair scheme to improve private housing stock. The Council has
secured £6.024m of WG funding for Deeside through the Vibrant and Viable Places
programme for 2014 — 2017.

The former Dairy site in Connah’s Quay and former Council offices have been

demolished ready for future development. The process of acquiring two derelict sites
for redevelopment has also commenced. Three businesses benefitted from the Deeside
Living Above the Shop Scheme. 17 businesses are in the application process for the
Deeside Shop Front grant scheme but have not reached approval as yet. 5 businesses
have received planning consent and works procurement is underway, scheduled for
completion by the end of June. A further 5 businesses have submitted planning
applications, and 7 were in preparation.

2. During 2015/16 we said we would develop and implement long term regeneration
plans for Town Centres by:

e Completing key actions as set out in the Town Centre plans through the
completion of the streetscape improvement projects
e Progressing the Flint regeneration programme through:

» The completion of the maisonette demolition.
» The successful appointment of a lead contractor for their replacement
and the completion of the St. Mary’s Church square improvements.

¢ Monitoring trends in ground floor commercial vacancy rates

What we did:

JThe programme of environmental improvement projects across the towns is largely
complete with European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) and WG funding ending in

Page 42 20 | 40



June 2015. In Flint the programme of regeneration centred around the replacement of the
maisonettes is being delivered according to plan.

Trends in ground floor commercial vacancies have varied over the year. Four areas
have shown a reduction in vacancy rates; Connah’s Quay, Flint, Holywell, and
Shotton. Buckley, Mold and Queensferry have all increased.

3. Increase the economic benefits to Flintshire for visitors coming into the County by:

e Developing new electronic promotion and communication tools e.g. website.
¢ Using alternative methods of distribution for promotional materials.
¢ Monitoring the value and volume of tourism expenditure in Flintshire.

What we did:

JThe Explore Flintshire website was launched and promoted throughout North Wales
and bordering counties. Tourism Information Points have been implemented and a new
information point installed at Dangerpoint in Talacre. Digital self service options for local
people and visitors are now available via social media websites. The number of visitors
increased by 6.8% against the 2013 data to 3.38M visitors. The economic impact of tourism
in Flintshire has increased by 2.5% from 2013 to £220.92M.

SLUISERCRRCEIGIL I Progress _ Outcome -
Modernised and High Performing m
. rogress
Education

During 2015/16 we said we would make a difference through our Education and Youth
Improvement Modernisation Strategy by raising standards through: working effectively with
the regional school improvement service; reducing the impact of poverty and disadvantage;
improving outcomes for looked after children and young people exiting the Youth Justice
Service (YJS); and developing and implementing a plan for the next phase of schools
modernisation, including continuing to implement the 21st Century School (Band A)
programme by:

e Improving outcomes in Mathematics, English/Welsh 1st Language and Core
Subject Indicators at Foundation Phase and Key Stages 2 and 3.

e Improving outcomes in Key Stage 4 including Level 2 Inclusive Threshold,
Capped Points Score and A*-A Threshold.

¢ Raising standards achieved by learners who are entitled to free school meals.

¢ Improving the number of hours in education, training or employment that young
people in the youth justice system have access to.

e Completing key milestones for the 21st Century School and School
Modernisation programmes.

What we did:

Page 43 21| 40



« Improvements in primary are in line with local priorities and strategy are welcomed.
Greater resilience in leadership and learner outcomes is now needed in secondary.

Performance in the Foundation Phase indicator and the Key Stage 2 core subject indicator
has steadily improved over the last four years. Performance in both indicators was just
above the Wales average in 2015. At Key Stage 3, performance in the core subject
indicator has remained well above the Wales average.

At Key Stage 4, performance in the level 2 threshold including English or Welsh and
Mathematics has consistently been above the Wales average.

In primary schools, the performance of pupils eligible for free school meals, while gradually
improving, has been below the Wales average for the last two years. In secondary schools,
however, the performance of these pupils has remained above the Wales average during
the same period.

Key milestones for 21st Century Schools and School Modernisation Programmes have
been met .

e

Performance in the capped average wider points _

score has improved every year for the last five /"’f,i‘éé’?nét\@w

O
years, but a slower rate than for Wales as a whole. In of mem,(;“,?}*;g N
educa Ehr_e

2015, performance was lower than the Wales average {e
for the first time. mowwl edge
arsolutlon search strat

. . ce
The authority has not met either of the benchmarks set “““12\“0“ EXper'er‘L,edg
3 science kno g

by the Welsh Government for Key Stage 4 performance & ness €2
in 2015, having met one in the previous two years and \ -l
both in 2012. The proportion of pupils achieving five A* ‘ ﬁ

or A grades at GCSE or equivalent has been consistently h
below the Wales average.

Apprenticeships and Training | Progress |

During 2015/16 we said we would work with public, private, and voluntary sectors to
maximise the number of apprenticeships, traineeships, and work experience opportunities,
communicated through the Common Application Process (CAP) by:

¢ Increasing the numbers of training and apprenticeship opportunities started as a
result of the WHQS and SHARP contracts.

e Improving the local skills base to improve employability and earning prospects
through improved qualifications.

Page 44 22| 40



Increasing the number of learners achieving the Level 1 Threshold.

Securing high levels of 16 year olds in education, employment and training.
Reducing the number of 18 — 24 year olds claiming Jobseekers Allowance.
Rolling Out Release on Temporary Licence (ROTL) to new institutions/partners.

What we did:

J 10 apprenticeship placements were created throughout 2015/16 against a target of 4.
This is a positive contribution towards the authorities commitment to create as many
apprenticeship placements as possible. The number of 18 — 24 year olds claiming
Jobseekers Allowance has reduced from 5.7% to 5%. In November 2014 there were 360
claimants compared with 130 in November 2015. A new programme, TRAC was signed
off by Welsh European Funding Office (WEFO) in February 2016. TRAC officers have
been appointed and multi agency meetings being held with schools to identify and allocate
support to young people at risk of disengagement.

The number of learners achieving the level

1 threshold has improved from 94.1% to
96.2%, but lower than the set target of 91%.
FCC maintained the levels of engagement for
16 year olds from 2014-15 which was the
highest level in Wales for two consecutive years
at 98.7% narrowly missing the target of 98.8%.

Safe Communities Progress - Outcome -
Community Safety | Progress [iGoodN Outcome [INHIgGh

1. During 2015/16 we said we would develop a plan to deliver the key outcomes of
the North Wales Safer Communities Board (NWSCB) Community Safety Plan by:

e Agreeing a delivery framework by the NWSCB.

Page 45 23| 40



¢ Flintshire Local Service Board (LSB) adopting the key priorities of the regional
Community Safety Plan.

What we did:

«The local Community Safety Plan was adopted by the Local Service Board at its
meeting in January 2016. The plan reflects the aims and objectives of the Regional Safer
Communities Board’s regional work programme. During 2015/16 all actions were
completed on a regional and local level.

2. Contribute to the delivery of the North
Wales Community Safety Plan Priorities to
reduce the impact of domestic abuse, anti-
social behaviour, and substance misuse by:

e Addressing high risk repeat instances of
domestic abuse

e Formally agreeing a procedure to allow
Public Space Protection Orders (PSPOs) to be
granted

e Monitoring the number of formal
consultations for PSPOs

e Continuing to meet Welsh Government targets
for ‘Completed treatments’ and waiting times
for substance misuse services

What we did:

JThe percentage of high risk instances of repeat victims of domestic abuse has fallen
from 23% to 20%. Work is currently in progress for a PSPO which will replace the former
‘dog control’ areas, however, this work will not be completed until October 2017. There is
no reported increase in anti-social behaviour.

Completed treatment and waiting times for substance misuse services has been consistent
throughout the year. The previous year was 80% compared to 78.9% for 2015/16.

2. Reduce the fear of crime by making best use of the latest technology including
closed circuit television (CCTV) by:

e Developing a new sustainable model of CCTV provision within Flintshire.
What we did:

The feasibility study is complete and the draft report received. It has been agreed to
identify a new CCTV control room prior to progressing to phase 2. It is planned that
service level agreements will be negotiated during 2016/17.

Page 46 24 | 40



Poverty Progress - Outcome -
Maximising Income | Progress _ Outcome _

1. During 2015/16 we said we would help children, young people and families, in or
at risk of poverty, achieve their potential by:"

¢ Increasing the numbers of free and quality, part-time childcare sessions
provided for 2-3 year olds through the Flying Start Programme.

¢ Increasing the numbers of children receiving an enhanced Health service
through the Flying Start Programme.

¢ Increasing the numbers of parents accessing Parenting programmes.

¢ Increasing the number of speech, language and communication structured and
unstructured sessions for parents and children (Flying Start).

What we did:

The number of childcare sessions taken up increased from 40,000 to over 46,000

during 2015-16 due to increased parenting support and greater awareness of the
importance of good child care provision, and the benefits of long term outcomes. All Flying
Start families with children in the programme range received enhanced health services.
Mandatory Health Visitor services have been enhanced by offering speech and language
therapy, and Midwifery and counselling intervention. Although the number of children in
receipt of the service has gone down from 1,515 to 1,479, the target of 1,407 was
exceeded.

All parents are offered the opportunity to

attend a Parenting Programme. During
2015-16 a review was undertaken of 5

programmes, and how these should be offered 4

using the intelligence on the needs of family, J A—-‘_\.. - A v"
and ensuring appropriate assessments are , ; ok ,
made to offer the right programme at the right 4 ! J
time. A further focus has been put on \ _ v Q% '
engagement, using and developing informal . - 4 B

parenting support that can promote the

parenting programme principles and messages

through an informal, structured approach. The

number of places filled on both structured and unstructured speech, language and
communication sessions has dropped from 314 to 302, and was below the target of 350.

2. Provide advice and support services to help people protect their income by:

e Assisting Flintshire residents to maximise their income.

e Supporting Flintshire residents to claim additional benefits.

e Assisting Flintshire residents to claim additional Social Security and Tax
Credits to which they are entitled.

o Assisting people with Welafare Reform changes through the effective
application of the Council’s Discretionary Housing Payment Policy.

Page 47 25 | 40



e Supporting Flintshire residents to better manage their financial commitments.
e Monitoring the speed of processing of Housing Benefit claims: i) new claims ii)
change of circumstances.

What we did:

The Council continues to provide advice and support services to help residents

maximise their household income through accessing the correct entitlement of social
security benefits and manage their debts as effectively as possible. The amount of Social
Security and Tax Credits paid totalled £2,120,315 against a target of £2M. The number of
residents claiming additional social security benefits has reduced from 1,600 to 1,287, and
the amount paid to assist people with welfare reform changes has also reduced from
£259,000 to £145,347.

Supporting residents to better manage their financial commitments is a new indicator,

however throughout the year our Money Advice Officer helped 168 residents who
were at risk of becoming homeless. The speed of processing Housing Benefit claims has
increased from 19.1 days to 20.34. As a result, working practices have been realigned and
dedicated officers allocated to new claims processing.

3. Support the implementation of Universal Credit (UC) within Flintshire by:

¢ Assisting Universal Credit claimants referred for Personal Budgeting support.

e Assisting Universal Credit claimants with on-line access.

e Processing enquiries received from the Universal Service Centre by the Housing
Benefit Service on housing costs.

What we did:

The number of claimants referred for personal budgeting support has reduced from

55 to 20. This figure is in line with the agreed amounts in the Delivery Partnership
Agreement with Department for Work and Pensions. Work is continuing via communication
with colleagues and partner organisations to ensure that claimants who may benefit from
this service are referred through for support.

| Fuel Poverty | Progress

1. During 2015/16 we said we would help residents to access funding support to
improve the thermal efficiency of their homes by

¢ The number of private homes receiving energy efficiency measures.
¢ Reducing the overall annual fuel bill for residents.
¢ Reducing annual carbon emissions.

Page 48 26 | 40



What we did:

JThe number of private homes receiving energy efficiency measures has improved from

422 to 593. Overall annual fuel bills have improved, showing a £91,340 reduction for non-

Council properties and a £30,370 reduction for Council
owned properties. The number of residents engaged
in the process has increased from 244,360 to
296,030, and number of Council homes receiving
these measures has increased from 417 to 649. The
annual reduction for carbon emissions has also
improved from 29,429 to 33,623 (measured in lifetime
tonnes of carbon emissions).

2. Deliver energy efficient efficiency measures to Council homes by:

¢ The number of Council homes receiving energy efficiency measures.
¢ Reducing the overall annual fuel bill for tenants in Council homes.

What we did:

The overall annual fuel bill for Council homes also shows an improvement. The target
was set at £50,000. The actual amount achieved totalled £107,240.

3. Development of a best practice procurement solution for energy efficiency and
renewable energy across Wales by:

e Creating and launching a national energy efficiency materials and supplier
framework

What we did:

Agreement was reached with National Procurement Service (NPS) and Valueworks,
for a series of roadshows. These were not arranged on time. There is still a market
need for this framework

Environment Progress - Outcome -
Transport Infrastructure and
Servi Progress Outcome
ervices

1. During 2015/16 we said we would use available funding to support Council priorities
for accessing employment, health, leisure and education by:

Page 49 27 | 40



e Successfully delivering WG funded schemes/feasibility studies funded through
the Local Transport Fund (LTF) 2015/16.

e Consulting on the draft Active Travel Network Maps.

¢ Publicising the Active Travel Network Maps for designated settlements.

¢ Promoting and developing “Active Travel Routes” through partnership working.

What we did:

V/LTF grant funding was allocated and used prior to the end of March 2016. The full
works scheme was scheduled for completion in May 2016. Design of the proposed junction
improvement on the A548 Sealand Road and Seahill Road was completed in February
2016 with work starting the same day for a period of two weeks. The introduction of a speed
camera on the A541 at Pontblyddyn has also been completed.

2. Prioritise the Council’s road infrastructure for repairs and maintenance, and
implement network improvement programmes by:

e Monitoring the condition of the highway’s infrastructure
e Monitoring the percentage of permits issued for road works for the purposes of
coordinating and minimising disruption to Flintshire's highway network

What we did:

V/Scanner surveys of poor road conditions took place between October 2015 and
February 2016. The findings showed a marginal improvement of 4.02% compared with the
previous year of 4.48%; (still top performer in Wales).

3. Use available funding to support the Council’s priorities to improve road safety on
the County’s highway network by:

e Delivering Welsh Government funded:

» Grant Aided Safety Schemes to address collision trends and
concentrations on the road network through the Welsh Government’s
Grant Aid Programme.

» Schemes identified as part of Safe Routes in Communities.

» Road safety initiatives to reduce the risk of collisions of high risk groups.

v/63 Initiatives were introduced to reduce the risk of collisions involving motorcyclists
compared to 51 in 2014/15. The number of persons trained through the Bikesafe Scheme
is dependent on instructor availability which also reduces during the winter months.

Incidents of collisions from high risk groups has reduced from 35 to 24 as a result of
introducing road safety initiatives. Reduction of collisions from newly qualified drivers has
also reduced from 75 to 43. The target of 108 initiatives represented a maximum in relation
to allocated funding rather than an achievable target.

Page 50 28 | 40



e Develop and support community transport arrangements by:
e Reviewing the Council’s subsidised bus services.
e Working with local communities to develop Community Transport.

What we did:

« Between April and July 2016 Town and Community Councils have been consulted on
a range of options to introduce community based transport services to replace existing
subsidised routes and reduce the impact of bus service changes. To date 15 Community
Councils have expressed an interest in the pilot scheme. The next phase is to meet with
these communities during June and July 2016 to establish partnership arrangements and
set up the pilot schemes.

Sustainable Development & P
. rogress
Environmental Management
1. During 2015/16 we said we would agree the Local Development Plan vision,
objectives and options to accommodate growth by:

e Agreeing a revised timetable and delivery agreement with Welsh Government.
e Publicising the pre-deposit plan.

What we did:

J The Plan’s vision and objectives were consulted on in the Spring of 2016 as part of
the Key Messages Public Consultation, where the feedback resulted in only minor
amendments to the wording of certain objectives for clarification. The vision and objectives
now form part of the emerging Plan Strategy.

Growth and spatial options have been developed and discussed with Members at the
Planning Strategy Group. These will be published for public consultation in the autumn of
2016, in line with a revised Delivery Agreement and Timetable.

The Plan is on target to prepare the Core Strategy by the end of 2016 which will be made
available for consultation by March 2017.

2. Identify and develop large scale renewable energy schemes by:

e Securing planning approval for 4 solar farms on Flintshire County Council land.
e Creating two solar farms on Flintshire County Council land.
e Reducing our carbon emissions.

What we did:

Page 51 29 | 40



(A number of potentially suitable sites have been identified, of which two have been
given full planning consent and contractors appointed. Central Government have
announced consultation on the level of future subsidies which means business cases
cannot be concluded and, all projects are now under review. The Government has also
issued its review of Feed in Tariffs and Renewable Obligation certificates. Following a
detailed business case Cabinet gave approval to proceed on the two landfill site schemes
in Buckley. Contractors have been appointed to develop the solar farms at Brookhill and
both sites have been pre-accredited with Ofgem.

3. Minimise waste to landfill and maximise opportunities for energy generation from
waste by:

e Improving recycling performance.

e Undertaking a feasibility study into the development of local waste streams e.g.
wood waste into usable biomass energy generation resources.

e Securing planning approval for the introduction of a waste transfer station in
Greenfield.

What we did:

(Cessation of trade waste will result in a reduction sent to landfill sites. Recruitment of
HRC site specific operatives and the introduction of bag splitting at all recycling centres
has resulted in waste diverted from landfill. A waste disposal contract was awarded to
Treatment Outlet. Since October 2015 residual waste is sent for treatment which is used
for energy recovery. Of the waste collected thoughout 2015/16 58% was either recycled,
reused or composted, compared to 55% in 2014/15.

_ Progress | Satisfactory | Outcome | Medium

Outcome [ Medium

1. During 2015/16 we said we would develop the community and social sector through
developing and growing social enterprises in Flintshire, in turn supporting and
creating new forms of local business by:

Page 52 30 | 40



¢ Monitoring the number of new social enterprises developed.
e Monitoring the number of social enterprises supported to thrive and prosper.

What we did:

15 new Social Enterprises were developed across Flintshire through the Community
Asset Transfer Programme. Those established include:

Cambrian Aquatics

Café Isa

Mancot Community Library
Connah’s Quay Nomads
New Beginnings

During 2015/16 a total of 12 social enterprises were
supported including 7 in the Community First areas.

2. Encourage volunteers and active citizens by:

¢ Monitoring the impact of the local volunteering policy.

What we did:

JFIintshire Local Voluntary Council directly placed 541 individuals into new placements
against a target of 480.

3. Ensure community benefit through our commissioning of goods and services by:

¢ Monitoring the percentage of community benefit clauses included in new
procurement contracts.

What we did:

A new commissioning form has been developed and is out for consultation as part of
updating the current contract procedure rules. This will ensure community benefits are
considered for all contracts greater than £25k.

4. Design and implement Alternative Delivery Models (ADMs) to sustain important
services to meet future need by:

e Monitoring the level of efficiencies ADMs have supported.
¢ Monitoring the number of services sustained through delivery via alternative
models.

What we did:

Page 53 3140



A target was not set for either of these two measures, however, business plans completed
during 2015/16 identified £2m savings by 2017/18. These are now moving into the
transitional phase in preparation for an April 2017 implementation.

5. Empower communities to run and manage facilities in their locality through the
Community Asset Transfers (CAT) by:

¢ Increasing the number of public assets transferred to the community.

What we did:

«8 Community Asset Transfers (CAT) were completed or in final stages of legal
completion as shown below. Other applications are at various stages of maturity.

Connah’s Quay allotment site
Gwernymynydd Village Hall

Connah’s Quay Swimming Pool

Mancot Library

Trelogan Village Hall

Gwespyr Play Area

Bagillt War Memorial

Mynydd Isa Community Centre and Library

6. Ensure our Armed Forces Community and their families are not disadvantaged
when accessing Council Services by:

e Monitoring the achievements of the Armed Forces Covenant Action Plan.

What we did:

A working group has been established to review the Community Covenant Action
Plan. The work programme focusses on 6 key workstreams as outlined in the Council’s
Covenant. The majority of planned tasks within the work streams have been completed
e.g. the establishment of an on-line service library of organisations with a remit to provide
assistance and support to members of the Armed Forces Community and training of
frontline employees. One of the key areas within the action plan is to define the Armed
Forces Community within Flintshire, which continues to be work in progress. The working
group has a number of processes in place to deliver the plan, including face to face contact
where service users will be asked if they or any member of their family are in, or a veteran
of the Armed Forces. It is considered this programme of work will take two years to

complete.

1. During 2015/16 we said we would develop and implement a four year financial plan
that reflects anticipated funding, costs and efficiencies to support strategic decision
making by:

¢ Adopting an achievable plan to meet the £50m funding gap for 2015-2018.
e Matching our priorities with revenue and capital investment.

Page 54 32 | 40



e Achieving our efficiency targets.
e Achieving our big plans for change which modernise services and generate
efficiencies.

What we did:

J The Council has been able to set a balanced budget for
2016/17 by applying part two of the Medium Term Financial
Strategy and taking a balanced risk approach to managing cost
pressures and fluctuations during the year.

Based on the risk assessment reported to Council, the non-
achievement of the 2016/17 budget is described as an amber
risk due to the scale of efficiencies required to meet national
funding reductions beyond our control.

2. Implement the People Strategy to ensure the Council has
sufficient capacity and capability to operate effectively as a smaller organisation

by:

¢ Monitoring the impact of the renewed appraisal system on performance.

¢ Monitoring the impact of the new Employee Development and Talent
Management scheme on retention of our capability.

¢ Monitoring the impact of the People Strategy in service portfolios.

What we did:

A new People Strategy has been developed and agreed in principle. Many of the
activities have been actioned and are embedded. An outline action plan in support of the
strategy has been drafted with further work required for completion. Some of the parts of
the strategy have been agreed and piloted e.g. the new appraisal process including talent
management assessment.

3. Rationalise the Council’s use of corporate accommodation by:

¢ Reducing the floor space and costs of occupied office accommodation.
¢ Increasing the number/percentage of employees who work in an agile way.

What we did:

JThe asset rationalisation programme in terms of County Hall involves the relocation of
Phases 3 and 4 to Phases 1 and 2. The first stage of this is the relocation of Phase 4 - to
accommodate this employees have had to reduce to an 87% desk provision. This is
currently in progress and the final teams from Phase 4 are scheduled to move by the end
of September 2016 Thereafter occupants of Phase 3 should be moved. By April 2017 -
this will then mean a further reduction to desk provision of 74%.

Page 55 33|40



The Council has been working through this on a number of levels, particular in the
demolition of accommodation no longer fit for purpose, the most recent being the Connah’s
Quay Offices. Rationalisation of space has focussed on County Hall, however, there have
been some delays in meeting fire regulations. As a result the move across from Phase 4
to Phase 1 will be delayed until early 2016/17.

4. Optimise purchasing efficiencies through the use of regional and national
procurement collaborations and through the increased use of electronic solutions
by:

e Creating efficiencies through the use of the regional and national procurement
collaborations.

¢ Reducing the cost of procurement through the use of end to end electronic
purchasing.

What we did:

We are currently waiting for Welsh Government (WG) to provide access to the
Benefits Realisation tool which will allow the Council to track efficiencies from electronic
purchasing.

5. Extend and improve customer access to Council information and services using
technology and our Flintshire Connects Centres by:

¢ Increasing the number of services available through the Connects Centres and
the numbers of customers using them.

e Increasing usage of and positive customer feedback on our website.

What we did:

«The Connects Centres continue to igi
promote digital access CLINTQHIRE

to services and offer help and support to customers to do this FLINTSHIRE CONNECTS
in self service facilities. The total achieved during 2015/16 was 0. 0._0._90
5,056 against a target of 1,250. A review of the Bond Scheme
has also been undertaken to identify efficiencies that could be
achieved through joint working with Connects. It has been
agreed that Housing Benefit support and affordability checks

SIRY FELINT YN CYSYLLTU

Page 56 34| 40



will be done by Connects to increase availability of access to the service and generate
efficiencies within the service area.

Section 3
Equality

The Council takes seriously its duty to promote equality, eliminate discrimination and foster
good relations through all its activities. During 2015/16 the Council reviewed its equality
objectives and is now updating its Strategic Equality Plan (SEP). The SEP Annual
Monitoring Report for 2015/16 will be published before 315t March 2017. This will set out
details of our achievements and progress; it will also highlight those areas where we need
to improve.

V/We are developing an electronic system for equality and Welsh language impact
assessments. This will be in place later this year and will contribute to more effective
monitoring and recording of impact assessments; ensuring that they are undertaken
systematically and are robust.

V/We have exceeded our targets to collate data on the diversity of our employees. This
data is important not only to fulfil our legal obligations but to support the authority to monitor
its employment practices making sure that they are fair and identifying areas for
improvement.

Progress remains inconsistent across service portfolios and we appreciate that further

work is needed to fully integrate the Strategic Equality Plan within the Council’s new
business planning process. A key area of improvement is to continue to collate baseline
data to identify those areas of significant inequality where we need to target our resources
to improve outcomes for our customers.

Welsh Language Standards (WLS)

The Council believes that respecting and meeting the language needs and preferences of
our customers is central to good and effective customer care. We provide services to the
most vulnerable people in our communities, where accessing services in an individual’s
first language is very important. We have published our first annual report to show how
we are meeting the new Welsh Language Standards; this report also includes data that
we are required to publish.

Page 57 35 | 40



We introduced a variety of initiatives to raise the visibility of Welsh language and promote
awareness of the new Welsh language Standards:

V/We celebrated St David’'s Day and Shwmae/Sumae Day, encouraging employees to
use their Welsh at work, whatever their level of Welsh.

V/We have established a Welsh Language Network comprising officers from a range of
services to raise the profile of Welsh language.

We can only deliver excellent services in Welsh if there are sufficient numbers of
employees with the appropriate Welsh language skills at each service delivery point
and in each workplace where there is contact with the public. A key area for
improvement is to increase the response rate to the employee Welsh language skills
audit; approximately 40% of employees have completed the audit.

Link to detailed year end Welsh Language Annual Report .

Sustainable Development

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 is about improving the social,
economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales. The Act recognises that Wales
faces a number of challenges now and in the future, such as climate change, poverty,
health inequalities, jobs and growth. It also recognises the need to work together and think
about the long term impacts of decisions in order to tackle these issues.

V/Within the Council a considerable amount of work has been undertaken during
2015/16 which has focused on securing vital services for the future. This has been
evidenced earlier in the report through, for example:

Our own change in operational model and integration of business units.
Increased collaborative and partnership working.

Greater levels of consultation with local people e.g. Big Budget Conversation.
Re-launching our Community Asset Transfer approach.

Consideration of and working toward alternative service delivery models.

V/Our work to sustain services continues into 2016/17 and is evident throughout our
Improvement Plan for 2016/17 particularly in sections such as ‘Developing Communities’
where we support communities to become more resilient and self-sufficient.

Partnership and Collaboration Activity

Flintshire has a longstanding and proud track record of partnership working. The
communities it serves expect the statutory and third sector partners to work together, to
work to shared priorities and, through collective effort, to get things done. The Flintshire
Public Services Board (FPSB), is at the heart of promoting a positive culture of working
together and concentrates energy, effort and resources on some of the big social issues
of today.

Page 58 36 | 40


http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Diversity-and-Equality/Welsh-Language/Welsh-Language-Annual-Report-2015-2016-2.pdf

The Flintshire Public services Board was established on 1st April 2016 as a result of the
“Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act” coming into effect/force. The Flintshire
PSB is made up of senior leaders from a number of public and voluntary organisations:
Flintshire County Council, BCUHB, Natural Resources Wales, North Wales Fire & Rescue
Services (Statutory PSB members), North Wales Police, Public Health Wales, Flintshire
Local Voluntary Council, Coleg Cambria, Glyndwr University, Wales Community
Rehabilitation, National Probation Services Wales, Police & Crime Commissioner and
Welsh Government (Invited PSB members). Together these organisations are responsible
for developing and driving the Well-being Plan for Flintshire forward.

Whilst the PSB realise there is much that could be done to add value to public service and
to the communities of Flintshire they have identified a number of priorities for 2016/17 that
support the seven goals of the “Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act’. These
being;

Supporting Independent Living

Vulnerability, Intervention and Prevention

Inspiring Community Resilience

Physical Activity and Sedentary Behaviour (Possibly combined with Inspiring
community resilience in going forward)

e Supporting Families with Complex Needs (Troubled Families Initiative)

Regulation, Audit and Inspection

The Council is regulated by a number of organisations throughout the year. These include,
amongst others the Wales Audit Office (WAOQO), Estyn for Education and the Care and
Social Services Inspectorate (CSSIW).

The WAO published a significant report on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales in
2015/16 called the Annual Improvement Report., which drew on findings of their Corporate
Assessment (undertaken once every four years). The Auditor General has not made any
statutory recommendations with which the Council must comply. Instead seven advisory
proposals for improvement have been made. In response an action plan was drawn up
against which progress is regularly monitored.

Overall the Auditor General concluded that:

"/ “Despite increasing financial pressures, the Council has continued to improve
performance within its priority areas and to strengthen its corporate arrangements.”

The judgement reflects the conclusions of the corporate assessment, that:

J “The Council has made significant progress in a number of difficult areas during the
last year; although it needs to strengthen aspects of its arrangements, The Council has
made good progress in addressing the governance-related proposals for improvement
arising from our 2015 corporate assessment report.”

“Despite some strengths and areas of progress, aspects of the Council’s

arrangements are not fully supporting decision-making and the delivery of the
Council’s agreed priorities”

Page 59 37| 40


http://www.audit.wales/publication/flintshire-county-council-%E2%80%93-annual-improvement-report-2015-16

‘/ “The Council has taken significant strides forward in its use of resources and now
needs to co-ordinate the elements more systematically in the face of future financial
challenges”

‘/ “The Council made good progress against the improvement priorities we looked at
but its performance against the national indicators declined slightly.”

In addition, the Care and Social Services Inspectorate Wales (CSSIW), and the Welsh
Language Commissioner (WLC) included areas for improvement/action in their inspection
reports and letters issued to the Council during the year. These are available at
www.cssiw.org.uk and www.comisiynyddygymraeg.org.

(Hyperlinks to each of the reports and any relevant responses)

Wales Audit Office Financial
Resilience Review

Wales Audit Office Annual
‘Improvement Plan’ Audit

Wales Audit Office Annual
“Assessment of Performance’
Audit

C35IW: Review of the Social
Services Department's
performance 2014-15

Estyn desk top analysis
Wales Audit Office

Benchmarking social services
costs against performance

Wales Audit Office
Performance Assessment

Follow-up work

MNational Reports

Review of the Council's financial position and how it
is budgeting and delivening on required savings.

Review of the Council's published plans for
delivering on improvement objectives.

Review of the Council's published performance
assesament, including testing and validation of
performance information.

Annual Review and Evaluation of Performance of
the Council's Social Services functions for 2014-15.

An overview of key issues at the Council, prepared
by Estyn.

A review across the six North Wales councils,
exploring the value of cument social services
performance indicators and their links if any to
service delivery costs.

Assessment of progress against the proposals for
improvement included within the Council’s Annual
Improvement Report 2014 (incorporating the
Corporate Azsessment Report 2014), published in
March 2015.

To seek azsurance that the Council has appropriate
corporate processes for responding to Wales

Audit Office reports, tracking implementation

of recommendations and reporting this to the
appropriate committes.

* The financial resilience of councils in Wales
*  Community safety parinerships

* Income generation and charging

*  Council funding of third-sector services

Corporate Health and Safety

Page 60

38| 40


http://www.comisiynyddygymraeg.org/

The Council is committed to its duties and responsibilities as an employer for health and
safety. We fully meet the requirements of the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and
other associated legislation, as far as is reasonably practicable, to safeguard the health
and safety of our employees and others.

JThe Council continues to provide a robust system for accident/incident reporting and
all accidents that are reported under RIDDOR to the Health and Safety Executive (HSE)
continue to be investigated and statistical data gathered by the Corporate Health and
Safety team and provided to portfolios/services for detailed trend analysis.

J The Corporate Health and Safety Steering Group continue to meet on a quarterly basis
playing a major part in identifying risk management priorities and demonstrating health and
safety leadership. Each Portfolio have presented the group with annual health and safety
reports, reviewed and updated health and safety action plans, detailed
accident/investigation statistics and claims data for 2015/16.

v Initiatives for 2015/16 have included:

e Development of new accident/incident reporting system which will provide an
electronic form and compatibility with new ICT systems — to be rolled out end of
2016.

¢ Development and implementation of e-learning programmes (risk assessing display
screen equipment, fire evacuation training, H&S Induction)

¢ Radon Monitoring in Schools

¢ Noise/Hand Arm Vibration monitoring

"/A comprehensive programme of health and safety training continues to be made
available. Relevant health and safety training needs are identified through learning and
development appraisals and delivered both internally and externally.

It is important that employees and managers ensure health and safety management
arrangements are reviewed and/or maintained and monitored through periods of change.
The Corporate Health and Safety Steering Group will continue to seek assurances from
each of the Portfolios of these arrangements and the Corporate Health and Safety Team
will continue to monitor effectiveness of health and safety arrangements through a rolling
programme of inspection/accident investigations and audits.

Appendices
Appendix A — Improvement Plan 2015/16 Risk Register

Appendix B — Improvement Plan Measures Data Table

Appendix C — National Indicators Data Table

Appendix D — Glossary of Terms

Feedback and how to Obtain Further Information

Page 61 39 | 40


file://flintshire.gov.uk/shared/FCC_Fileshare_05/PPP/CORPORATE%20REPORTING/201617/Cabinet/Imp%20Plan%2015-16%20YE%20progress/Risk%20Register%2015-16.doc
Appendix%2520B%2520-%2520Improvement%2520Plan%2520Measures.xlsx
Appendix%2520C%2520-%2520NSI%2520&%2520PAM%2520Schedule.xls
Appendix-D-Glossary%2520of%2520Terms.pdf

There are a number of related documents which support this Annual Performance Report.
These can be obtained through the following links:

e Flintshire County Council Improvement Plan 2015/16

National Performance Bulletin 2015/16

Flintshire Social Services Annual Performance Report 2015/16

Annual Strategic Equality Plan Report 2015/16

Welsh Language Monitoring Report 2015/16
Thank you for reading our Annual Performance Report for 2015/16.

A public summary of this report will be published before December and will be available on
the Council’s website and via our e-magazine.

Your views and suggestions about how we might improve the content and layout of the
Annual Performance Report for future years are welcome.

In addition, should you wish to know more about our priorities for 2016/17 onwards please
read our Improvement Plan 2016/17. Again, your views regarding future priorities, plan
content and layout are welcome.

Please contact us on:

Tel: 01352 701457
Email: policy.and.performance.team@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 62 40 | 40



’-\)J Integrated Risk Manager

\U A CAMMS SOLUTION

Strategic Risk Report

Flintshire County Council

g abed

Sir y Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL Print Date: 04-Jul-2016

4

www.cammsgroup.com




Risk Summary

Strategic Risks

Initial Risk Assessment Current Risk Assessment
a0
32 Insignificant 2% (1) Insignificant 9% [4)
’ Minor 11% (5} ] | Minor 185 (8}
Maoderate 71% [32) Moderate 575 (20)
B Vizjor 16% (7) 4 Bl Nisjor 7% (3)
2 :

79 abed

www.cammsgroup.com |. I.




Strategic Risks

Initial Risk

Supporting Current Risk

Risk Ref. Risk Title

IP1.1.1R1 |Homelessness will remain a

growing area of demand due to the

current economic climate

Risk Type

Strategic Risk

Lead Officer

Clare Budden -
Chief Officer -

Community and

Enterprise

Officers

Pam Davies -
Housing Options
Team Leader

Rating

Rating

Risk Trend

Risk Status

Risk Ref. Risk Title

IP1.1.1R2 |Demand and aspirations for

independent living will not be met

Risk Type

Strategic Risk

Lead Officer

Neil Ayling - Chief

Officer - Social
Services

Supporting
Officers

Michael Jones -
Planning and
Development

Initial Risk
Rating

Current Risk
Rating

Risk Trend

Risk Status

Officer

Initial Risk
Rating

Current Risk
Rating

Supporting

Risk Ref. Risk Title Risk Type Lead Officer Risk Trend Risk Status

Officers

IP1.1.1R3 |The supply of affordable housing Strategic Risk Clare Budden - Denise Naylor - Open
will continue to be insufficient to Chief Officer - Customer el ‘
meet community need Community and Services
Enterprise Manager,

Melville Evans -
Strategic Housing
and
Regeneration
Programme
(SHARP)
Programme
Manager

Initial Risk
Rating

Current Risk
Rating

Supporting
Officers

Nikki Evans -
Senior Manager

www.cammsgroup.com - .

Risk Title Lead Officer Risk Trend

Risk Type

Risk Status

IP1.1.2R1 Clare Budden -

Chief Officer -

The increased work programme to
deliver the WHQS will not be met

Strategic Risk




due to the scale of the programme Community and

Enterprise

Council Housing
Services

Risk Title Lead Officer

Risk Type

Supporting
Officers

Initial Risk

Current Risk

Risk Trend

Risk Status

IP1.1.2R2 Clare Budden -
Chief Officer -
Community and

Enterprise

Council funding for adaptations
and home loans will not be
sufficient to meet demand

Strategic Risk

Gavin Griffith -
Housing
Regeneration &
Strategy
Manager

Rating

Yellow

Rating

Yellow

Open

Risk Ref. Risk Title Risk Type Lead Officer

IP1.1.2R3 Clare Budden -
Chief Officer -
Community and

Enterprise

Financial assistance available to
repair residents' homes is not
taken up by residents

Strategic Risk

Supporting
Officers

Gavin Griffith -
Housing
Regeneration &
Strategy
Manager

Initial Risk
Rating

Current Risk
Rating

Risk Trend

Risk Status

Risk Ref. Risk Title Lead Officer

Risk Type

IP1.1.2R4 Clare Budden -
Chief Officer -
Community and

Enterprise

Customer expectations for the
timeliness of adaptations
undertaken through disabled
facilities grants will not be met due
to competing demands on
resources

Strategic Risk

Supporting
Officers

Gavin Griffith -
Housing
Regeneration &
Strategy
Manager

Initial Risk
Rating

Amber

Current Risk
Rating

Amber

Risk Trend

Risk Status

Open

www.cammsgroup.com - .




2 Living Well

N GES Risk Title

Risk Type

Lead Officer

Current Risk Risk Trend

Risk Status

IP2.1.1R2  |The quality of care home services

will not meet required standards.

Strategic Risk

Neil Ayling - Chief

Officer - Social
Services

Supporting Initial Risk
Officers Rating
Lin Hawtin -
Commissioning Amber
Manager

Rating

= o

Open

Risk Ref. Risk Title

Risk Type

Lead Officer

Initial Risk
Rating

Supporting
Officers

Current Risk

Rating Risk Trend

Risk Status

IP2.1.1R3  |Children and vulnerable families
are not fully supported where
multi-agency services and partners
do not move toward an early
intervention and prevention

approach together.

Strategic Risk

Neil Ayling - Chief
Officer - Social
Services

Gail Bennett -
Early
Intervention
Services Manager

Open

Risk Ref. Risk Title

IP2.1.2R1 |Funding between Health and
Council does not transfer
smoothly; eg. CHC, ICF, Primary
Care funds

Risk Type

Strategic Risk

Lead Officer

Neil Ayling - Chief
Officer - Social
Services

Initial Risk
Rating

Supporting
Officers

Jane M Davies -
Senior Manager,
Safeguarding &
Commissioning

Current Risk

Rating Risk Trend

Risk Status

Risk Title

IP2.1.2R2  |Service provision is not co-

ordinated / integrated.

Risk Type

Strategic Risk

Lead Officer

Neil Ayling - Chief
Officer - Social
Services

Initial Risk
Rating

Supporting
Officers

Jane M Davies -
Senior Manager,
Safeguarding &
Commissioning

Amber

Current Risk
Rating

Amber 0

Risk Trend

Risk Status

Open

Risk Ref. Risk Title

IP2.2.1R1

Safeguarding arrangements do not
meet the requirements of the

Risk Type

Strategic Risk

Lead Officer

Neil Ayling - Chief
Officer - Social

Initial Risk
Rating

Supporting
Officers

Jane M Davies -
Senior Manager,

Current Risk

Rating Risk Trend

Risk Status

www.cammsgroup.com - .




SSWB Act. Services Safeguarding & o e “
Commissioning

89 abed

www.cammsgroup.com ‘ . |.




3 Economy and Enterprise

Risk Ref. Risk Title Risk Type Lead Officer Supp.o rting In|t|al. Risk Curren.t Risk Risk Trend Risk Status
Officers Rating Rating
IP3.1.1R1 |Some areas within Flintshire will Strategic Risk Clare Budden - Rachael Byrne - Open
not be covered by superfast Chief Officer - Enterprise FAE ki “
broadband if the joint project Community and Manager
between Welsh Government and Enterprise
BT stalls.

Current Risk
Rating

Supporting Initial Risk

Officers Rating Risk Trend Risk Status

Risk Ref. Risk Title Risk Type Lead Officer

IP3.1.1R2 Clare Budden -
Chief Officer -
Community and

Enterprise

Businesses are not sufficiently
supported to maximise
opportunities presented to them
through major transformational
projects within Flintshire.

Strategic Risk Rachael Byrne -
Enterprise

Manager

Supporting Initial Risk Current Risk

Risk Ref. Risk Title Risk Type Lead Officer Officers Rating Rating

Risk Trend Risk Status
IP3.1.2R1 |Opportunities to access external Strategic Risk Clare Budden - Niall Waller -

funding programmes to invest in Chief Officer - Enterprise and

our urban and rural areas are not Community and Regeneration

maximised. Enterprise Manager

Risk Ref. Risk Title Risk Type Lead Officer Supp.o rting |n|t|al. Risk Curren.t Risk Risk Trend Risk Status
Officers Rating Rating
IP3.1.2R2 |Opportunities to access funding to Strategic Risk Clare Budden - Richard Jones - Open
invest in the promotion of tourism Chief Officer - Regeneration AT ki 0
are not maximised Community and Project Officer
Enterprise

Supporting Initial Risk Current Risk

Risk Ref. Risk Titl Risk T L ffi Risk T Risk
isk Re isk Title isk Type ead Officer Officers Rating Rating isk Trend isk Status
IP3.1.2R3  |External funding sources are often Strategic Risk Clare Budden - Niall Waller - Open
weighted towards urban Chief Officer - Enterprise and

www.cammsgroup.com - .




regeneration with funding for rural Community and Regeneration e s
regeneration being limited. Enterprise Manager

0/ abed

www.cammsgroup.com ‘ . |.




4 Skills and Learning

Risk Ref. Risk Title Risk Type Lead Officer Supp.o rting In|t|al. Risi Curren.t Risk Risk Trend Risk Status
Officers Rating Rating
IP4.1.1R1 |Local employers and learning Strategic Risk lan Budd - Chief | Jeanette Rock - Open
providers do not work closely Officer - Education Principal A e ‘
enough to identify and meet the and Youth Education Officer
skills based needs of the future. Inclusion

Risk Ref. Risk Title Risk Type Lead Officer Supp.ortlng In|t|al. Risk Curren.t Risk Risk Trend Risk Status
Officers Rating Rating
IP4.1.1R2 |Training places will not match Strategic Risk lan Budd - Chief | Jeanette Rock - Open
current and future employer Officer - Education Principal A Yellow ‘
aspirations and needs. and Youth Education Officer
Inclusion

Supporting Initial Risk Current Risk

Risk Title Risk Type Lead Officer Risk Trend Risk Status

Officers Rating Rating

abec

IP4.1.2R1 [Schools do not receive and/or Strategic Risk lan Budd - Chief | Claire Homard -

make best use of the support they Officer - Education Principal
need from the Council and GwE and Youth Education Officer
Primary

Supporting Initial Risk Current Risk

Officers Rating Rating Risk Trend Risk Status

Risk Title Risk Type Lead Officer

IP4.1.2R2 |Numbers of school places will not Strategic Risk lan Budd - Chief | Damian Hughes -

be sufficient to meet the future Officer - Education | Senior Manager,

demands of changing and Youth School Planning
demographics & Provision

Supporting Initial Risk Current Risk

Officers Rating Rating Risk Trend Risk Status

Risk Title Risk Type Lead Officer

IP4.1.2R3 |Limited funding to address the Strategic Risk lan Budd - Chief | Damian Hughes -
backlog of known repair and Officer - Education | Senior Manager,
maintenance works in Education and Youth School Planning
and Youth assets will be further & Provision

www.cammsgroup.com - .




reduced to meet new pressures on
the Education and Youth Budgets

2/ obed

www.cammsgroup.com ‘ . |.




Supporting Initial Risk Current Risk

Risk Ref. Risk Title Risk Type Lead Officer . . . Risk Trend Risk Status
P Officers Rating Rating
IP5.1.1R1 |Grant funded services that are Strategic Risk Andrew Farrow - Sian Jones - Open
administered through the Chief Officer - | Public Protection ot it “
Community Safety Partnership are Planning and Manager -
not delivered effectively. Environment Community

. o . . Supportin Initial Risk Current Risk . .
Risk Ref. Risk Title Risk Type Lead Officer pp_ e X . Risk Trend Risk Status
Officers Rating Rating
IP5.1.1R2 |Funding for the provision of CCTV Strategic Risk Andrew Farrow - |Sherryl Burrows - Open
with local partners will not be Chief Officer - CCTV Manager Yeliow Yellow 0
sustainable in the long term. Planning and

Environment

¢/ obed

www.cammsgroup.com - .




Risk Ref.

IP6.1.1R1

Risk Title

Demand for advice and support
services will not be met.

Risk Type

Strategic Risk

Lead Officer

Clare Budden -
Chief Officer -
Community and
Enterprise

Supporting
Officers

Katie Clubb -
Community
Support Services
Manager, Paul
Neave - Manager
- Advice and
Homelessness
Service

Initial Risk
Rating

Amber

Current Risk
Rating

Amber

Risk Trend

Risk Status

Open

Risk Ref.

Risk Title

Risk Type

Lead Officer

Supporting

Initial Risk

Current Risk

Risk Trend

Risk Status

IP6.1.1R2

v/ abed

Debt levels will rise if tenants are
unable to afford to pay their rent

Strategic Risk

Clare Budden -
Chief Officer -
Community and
Enterprise

Officers

Katie Clubb -
Community
Support Services
Manager, Paul
Neave - Manager
- Advice and
Homelessness
Service

Rating

Amber

Rating

Amber

Open

Risk Ref.

Risk Title

Risk Type

Lead Officer

Supporting
Officers

Initial Risk

Current Risk

Risk Trend

Risk Status

IP6.1.1R3

The local economy will suffer if
residents have less income to
spend

Strategic Risk

Clare Budden -
Chief Officer -
Community and
Enterprise

Katie Clubb -
Community
Support Services
Manager, Paul
Neave - Manager
- Advice and
Homelessness
Service

Rating

Amber

Rating

Amber

Open

www.cammsgroup.com - .




Risk Ref.

Risk Title

Risk Type

Lead Officer

Supporting
Officers

Initial Risk
Rating

Current Risk
Rating

Risk Trend

Risk Status

IP6.1.1R4

Resources to meet the
requirements of the Universal
Credit roll-out will not be sufficient

Strategic Risk

Clare Budden -
Chief Officer -
Community and
Enterprise

Katie Clubb -
Community
Support Services
Manager, Paul
Neave - Manager
- Advice and
Homelessness
Service

Amber

Amber

Open

Risk Ref. Risk Title Risk Type Lead Officer Supp? rting In|t|al. Risk Curren-t Risk Risk Trend Risk Status
Officers Rating Rating
IP6.1.2R1 |Residents do not take up the Strategic Risk Clare Budden - Gavin Griffith - Open
energy efficiency measures as we Chief Officer - Housing Gl ks Q
hope Community and | Regeneration &
Enterprise Strategy
Manager, Leanna
0 Jones - Home
8 Energy
[9) Conservation
~ Officer
o1
Risk Ref. Risk Title Risk Type Lead Officer Supp.o rting In|t|al. Risk Curren.t Risk Risk Trend Risk Status
Officers Rating Rating
IP6.1.2R2 |Available funding falls short of Strategic Risk Clare Budden - Gavin Griffith - Open
public demand Chief Officer - Housing e ke 0
Community and | Regeneration &
Enterprise Strategy

Manager, Leanna
Jones - Home
Energy
Conservation
Officer

www.cammsgroup.com - .




7 Environment

Initial Risk
Rating

Supporting

Risk Ref. Officers

Risk Title Lead Officer

Risk Type

Current Risk

Rating Risk Status

Risk Trend

IP7.1.1R1 |Sufficient funding is not found to Strategic Risk Stephen Jones - | Barry Wilkinson -
ensure our highways infrastructure Chief Officer - Highways G
remains safe and capable of Streetscene and Networks
supporting economic growth. Transportation Manager

o <> open

Initial Risk
Rating

Supporting

Risk Ref. Risk Title Risk Type Lead Officer

Officers

Current Risk

. Risk Status
Rating

Risk Trend

IP7.1.1R2 Katie Wilby -
Transportation
and Logistics

Manager

Stephen Jones -
Chief Officer -
Streetscene and
Transportation

Sustainable transport options do Strategic Risk

not remain attractive to users. i keaZ]

e <> opern

Initial Risk
Rating

Supporting

Risk Ref. Officers

Risk Title Risk Type Lead Officer

Current Risk

Rating Risk Status

Risk Trend

O)IP7.1.1R3  |Sufficient funding will not be found
to continue to provide subsidised

bus services.

Strategic Risk Stephen Jones -
Chief Officer -
Streetscene and

Transportation

Katie Wilby -
Transportation
and Logistics
Manager

Amber

‘ Open

Initial Risk
Rating

Supporting

Lead Officer Officers

Risk Title Risk Type

Current Risk

. Risk Status
Rating

Risk Trend

IP7.2.1R1 Will Pierce -

Energy Manager

Andrew Farrow -
Chief Officer -
Planning and
Environment

Agreement and funding for the Strategic Risk
renewable energy schemes is not

secured.

Amber

e <> oper

Initial Risk
Rating

Supporting

Lead Officer Officers

Risk Title Risk Type

IP7.2.1R2 |Funding for the waste transfer Strategic Risk Stephen Jones - | Harvey Mitchell -
Chief Officer - Waste and
Streetscene and |Ancillary Services

Transportation Manager

station is not secured.

Current Risk

Rating Risk Status

Risk Trend

Closed

www.cammsgroup.com - .




Supporting Initial Risk Current Risk

Officers Rating Rating Risk Trend Risk Status

Risk Ref. Risk Title Risk Type Lead Officer

IP7.2.1R3  |Planning approval for the waste Strategic Risk Stephen Jones - | Harvey Mitchell - Closed
transfer station is not secured. Chief Officer - Waste and A ‘
Streetscene and |Ancillary Services
Transportation Manager

S . . Supportin Initial Risk Current Risk . :
Risk Title Risk Type Lead Officer pp- & : . Risk Trend Risk Status
Officers Rating Rating
IP7.2.1R4 |Recycling programmes are not Strategic Risk Stephen Jones - | Harvey Mitchell - Open
supported by the public and Chief Officer - Waste and el Yetiow

employees. Streetscene and |Ancillary Services
Transportation Manager

/] obed

www.cammsgroup.com - .




Risk Ref.

IP8.1.1R1

Risk Title

The capacity and appetite of the
community and social sectors

Risk Type

Strategic Risk

Lead Officer

lan Bancroft -

Chief Officer -

Organisational
Change 1

Supporting
Officers

Dawn Holt -
Alternative
Delivery Models
and
Transforming
Social Services
Programme
Manager

Initial Risk
Rating

Amber

Current Risk
Rating

Yellow

Risk Trend

Risk Status

Open

Risk Ref.

Risk Title

Risk Type

Lead Officer

Supporting

Initial Risk

Current Risk

Risk Trend

Risk Status

J IP8.1.1R2

The willingness of the workforce
and trade unions to embrace
change

Strategic Risk

lan Bancroft -

Chief Officer -

Organisational
Change 1

Officers

Dawn Holt -
Alternative
Delivery Models
and
Transforming
Social Services
Programme
Manager

Rating

Rating

Amber

Open

Risk Ref.

Risk Title

Risk Type

Lead Officer

Supporting
Officers

Initial Risk
Rating

Current Risk
Rating

Risk Trend

Risk Status

IP8.1.1R3

Market conditions which the new
alternative delivery models face

Strategic Risk

lan Bancroft -

Chief Officer -

Organisational
Change 1

Dawn Holt -
Alternative
Delivery Models
and
Transforming
Social Services
Programme
Manager

Amber

Amber

Open

www.cammsgroup.com - .




Risk Ref.

Risk Title Risk Type

Lead Officer

Supporting
Officers

Current Risk
Rating

Initial Risk

Risk
Rating isk Status

Risk Trend

IP8.1.1R4

Limitations on public funding to Strategic Risk

subsidise alternative models

lan Bancroft -

Chief Officer -

Organisational
Change 1

Dawn Holt -
Alternative
Delivery Models
and
Transforming
Social Services
Programme
Manager

Open
Amber

Risk Ref.

Risk Title Risk Type

Lead Officer

Supporting

Officers

Current Risk
Rating

Initial Risk

Risk
Rating isk Status

Risk Trend

IP8.2.1R1

The scale of the financial challenge.| Strategic Risk

Helen Stappleton -
Chief Officer -
People and
Resources

Gary Ferguson -
Corporate
Finance Manager

Open

abec

IP8.2.1R2

Risk Title Risk Type

The capacity and capability of the Strategic Risk
organisation to implement

necessary changes

Lead Officer

Helen Stappleton -
Chief Officer -
People and
Resources

Supporting

Officers

Sharon Carney -
Lead Business
Partner

Current Risk
Rating

Initial Risk

. Risk Trend
Rating

Risk Status

Risk Ref.

IP8.2.1R3

Risk Title Risk Type

The pace of procurement Strategic Risk
collaborations and our limited
control over their development.

Lead Officer

Gareth Owens -
Chief Officer -
Governance

Supporting
Officers

Arwel Staples -
Strategic
Procurement
Manager

Current Risk
Rating

Initial Risk

Risk Trend Risk Status

Rating

Risk Ref.

IP8.2.1R4

Risk Title Risk Type

Public attitude to accessing Strategic Risk

services on-line.

Lead Officer

Clare Budden -
Chief Officer -
Community and

Supporting
Officers

Katie Clubb -
Community
Support Services

Current Risk
Rating

Initial Risk

. Risk Trend
Rating

Risk Status

www.cammsgroup.com - .




Enterprise Manager,
Rebecca Jones -
Customer
Services Team
Leader

08 abed

www.cammsgroup.com ‘ . |.




Sub-Priority: Appropriate and Affordable Homes

. 2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance
Achievement Measures Baseline Data Target 2015/16 Outturn RAG Trend
The number of households where homelessness is prevented N/A - new N/A - baseline Not Not
by the use of the private rented sector measure to be 148 Applicable Applicable
y P established PP PP
The number of households where the Council has discharged N/A - new N/A - baseline Not Not
its full statutory duty into private rented accomodation measure to be 2 Applicable Applicable
y uly P established PP pp

HHA/013 - The percentage of all potentially homeless
households for whom homelessness was prevented for at 85.2% 90% 98.30% Improved
least 6 months.
The_pumber of gifted new homes, realised through Section
106g3lanning A t between the Council, NEW H N/A - new 9 6 A Not

st anning Agreement between the Council, omes measure Applicable
andine developers
Sub-Priority: Modern, Efficient and Adapted Homes

. 2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance
Achievement Measures Baseline Data Target 2015/16 Outturn RAG Trend

Repair / improve 40 private sector dwellings through the N/A - new Not
Council's capital programme and Welsh Government's 40 23 .

. measure Applicable
national Home Improvement Loan
PSR/009a - The average number of calendar days taken to
deliver a Disabled Facilities Grant for children and young 619 days 316 days 455 days Downturned
people.
PSR/009b - The average number of calendar days taken to
deliver a Disabled Facilities Grant for adults. 322 days 247 days 245 days Downturned
IPH2M1 - Number of empty homes brought back into use 30 homes 30 homes 34 Improved




Downturned

Improved

Capital Works Target — Heating Upgrades 966 335 192
Capital Works Target — Kitchen Replacements 1023 1149 1393
Capital Works Target — Smoke Detectors 439 500 508
Capital Works Target — Bathroom Replacements 127 1507 1688

Improved

2q abed

Improved




. 2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance
Ach tM 2015/16 Outt
chievement fiieasures Baseline Data Target witurn RAG Trend
IPH3M1 - Capital Programme expenditure on improvement
work stregms (Managlqg expend/ture within or l?elow budget £9.93m £21m £90.38m Downturned
to maximise available financial resources - Capital works
budget)
Sub-Priority: Independent Living
. 2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance
Achievement Measures Baseline Data B 2015/16 Outturn RAG Trend
Perqentage of Fllntsh!re care homes using the Ope Page N/A - new 50 100 Not Applicable
Profile as the foundation to person-centred practice measure
U
Nu&)er of care homes which are a 'Service of Concern’ 3 3 3 Maintained
D
A
Number of care homes in 'Escalating Concerns' 2 2 0 Improved
SCAL/023 - Percentage of referrals where support was
maintained or reduced or no further support was required at 77.81% 75% 84.70% Improved
the end of a period of Reablement.
The percentage of service users who say that the advice and
assistance received from the Family Information Service o o o
enabled them to make an informed decision about childcare 7% 87% 100% Improved
and family support
Sub-Priority: Integrated Community Social and Health Services
. 2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance
Achievement Measures Baseline Data Target 2015/16 Outturn RAG Trend




Support people effectively through the use of 'step up and

step down' beds 90 90 147 Improved
The number of care homes in Flintshire signed up to the Six N/A - new N/A 69 N/A Not Applicable
Steps to Success measure

. 2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance

Achievement Measures Baseline Data Target 2015/16 Outturn RAG Trend
SCA/018c - The percentage of identified carers of adult
service users who were assessed or reassessed in their own 82.4% 82% 97% Improved
right during the year who were provided with a service.
Demjéntia Respect Empathy and Dignity (RED) project within N/A - new 50 19 Not Applicable
GP@&urgeries measure
D
X

The rate of delayed transfers of care for social care reasons
(SCA/001) 1 2 3 A Downturned
Sub-Priority: Safeguarding

. 2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance

Achievement Measures Baseline Data Target 2015/16 Outturn RAG Trend

SCNO19 The percentage of adult protection referrals where 99% 98% 100% Improved
the risk was managed
SCA/014 The percentage of initial child protection 91.2% 95% 80% Downturned

conferences held within 15 days of the strategy discussion




SCC/034 The percentage of child protection reviews
completed within timescales

100.0%

98%

98.6% _ Downturned

Gg abed




Sub-Priority: Business Sector Growth

2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance

Achievement Measures Baseline Data Target 2015/16 Outturn Trend
Percentage of enquiries converted to investment in Flintshire AnnuaBIOa;/erage 63% 74.2% Improved
0
Number of jobs created and sustained in Flintshire Annual toj[al 1,200 2,139 Improved
1,130 new jobs
Number of jobs created as a result of large capital
programmes (Welsh Housing Quality Standard) 52 36 43 Downturned
Number of jobs created as a result of large capital N/A - new
programmes (Strategic Housing and Regeneration measure 5 0 Not Applicable

Programme
Sub-Priority: Town and Rural Regeneration
U

Q 2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance
Q i
= Achievement Measures Baseline Data B 2015/16 Outturn RAG Trend
S N/A
Number of vacant sites and properties redeveloped - hew 3 2 A Not Applicable
measure
, . . N/A - new .
Number of business grants offered to high street businesses 8 6 A Not Applicable
measure
Number of trainees recruited N/A - new 40 74 Not Applicable
measure
Monitoring trends in ground floor commercial vacancy rates: 6.3% 0.0% 11.3% Downturned

Buckley




Monitoring trends in ground floor commercial vacancy rates:

Connahs Quay 10.5% 0.0% 8.8%
II\:/:ic;]r:|t0r|ng trends in ground floor commercial vacancy rates: 10.7% 0.0% 5 6%
. 2014/15 2015/16 Performance
Achievement Measures Baseline Data Target 2015/16 Outturn RAG

I\H/Iglr;l\;t\?erlllng trends in ground floor commercial vacancy rates: 11.6% 0.0% 8.0%
MS:-;@ormg trends in ground floor commercial vacancy rates: 6.9% 0.0% 7 3%

Q

)
g/ls(raﬂeﬁr:g%g:rgends in ground floor commercial vacancy rates: 8.7% 0.0% 9.2%
I\S/I;?rllt;);mg trends in ground floor commercial vacancy rates: 0.0% 0.0% 9.9%
g/lrc])gtlfgrr]mg trends in ground floor commercial vacancy rates: 11.7% 0.0% 10.8%

o . . . N/A

Monitoring the value and volume of tourism expenditure in 324 million management 3.38 million

Flintshire: number of visitors

information

Improved

Improved

Performance
Trend

Improved

Downturned

Downturned

Downturned

Improved

Not Applicable




Monitoring the value and volume of tourism expenditure in N/A
ohitoring the im P £215.53 million | management | £220.92 million G Not Applicable
Flintshire: estimated economic impact . .
information
Monitoring the value and volume of tourism expenditure in N/A
. : g . : . P 2468 management 3175 G Not Applicable
Flintshire: estimated direct jobs supported . .
information
Sub-Priority: Apprenticeships and Training
. 2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance
Achievement Measures Baseline Data Target 2015/16 Outturn RAG Trend
Increased numbers of learners achieving the Level 1 94 1% 97 1% 96.2% A Improved
threshold
U
) . 2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance
% Achievement Measures Baseline Data Target 2015/16 Outturn RAG Trend
0
SecRing high Ievels. qf 16 years olds in education, 99.6% 97.90% 98.70% A Maintained
employment and training
Reducing the percentage of 18 — 24 year olds claiming 3.30% 5 10% 5 0% Improved
Jobseekers Allowance
Number of training and apprennticeship opportunities started
as a result of the Welsh Housing Quality Standards contracts 3.4 3.6 10.0 Improved
Number of training and apprennticeship opportunities started N/A - new
as a result of the Strategic Housing and Regeneration 2.0 2.0 Improved
measure
Programme contracts
Numper gf people leaving the Construction Academy with a N/A - new N/A 29.0 N/A
qualification measure




Number of people leaving the Construction Academy with a

N/A - new

: N/A 7.0 G
job measure

Num_b_er gf people leaving the Retail Academy with a N/A - new N/A 16.0 G
qualification measure
. . : : N/A - new

Number of people leaving the retail Academy with a job N/A 6.0 G
measure

Sub-Priority: Modernised and High Performing Education

N/A

N/A

N/A

. 2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance
Achievement Measures Baseline Data Target 2015/16 Outturn RAG Trend
;I;]Z?Cz(taéfentage of learners achieving the Foundation Phase 84 5% 84.4% 87.0% G Improved
¢a
IPS@I M1 - The percente!ge of learners achieving GCSE grade 68.40% 75 50% 69.40% R Improved
C ofmbove in Mathematics
IPSEAM2 - The percentage of learners assessed as achieving o o o
Level 5 or above at the end of Key Stage 3, in Mathematics 88.70% 90.90% 92.0% € Improved
. 2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance
Achievement Measures Baseline Data Target 2015/16 Outturn RAG Trend
IPSL1M3 - The percentage of learners assessed as achieving o o o
Level 4 or above at the end of Key Stage 2, in Mathematics 88.40% 92% 90.90% & Improved
Percentagg of Foundatllon Phase learners achieving improved 88.3% 89.0% 90.2% Improved
outcomes in Mathematics
IPSL1M4 - The percentage of learners achieving GCSE grade 73.30% 77 4% 79 20% Downturned

C or above in English




10

IPSL1MS5 - The percentage of learners assessed as achieving

Improved

Improved

Improved

Downturned

Downturned

Improved

Improved

Improved

o o 0,
Level 5 or above at the end of Key Stage 3, in English 89.40% 90.50% 91.40%
IPSL1M6 - The percentage of learners assessed as achieving o o o
Level 4 or above at the end of Key Stage 2, in English 89.00% 90% 90.10%
Percentagg of Fo_undatlon Phase learners achieving improved 87 4% 87 3% 89.0%
outcomes in English
Percentagg of Key St.age 4 learners achieving improved 59.7% 74 7% 54 6%
outcomes in Welsh (first language)
Percentagg of Key St.age 2 learners achieving improved 90.0% 85.0% 86.4%
outcomes in Welsh (first language)
Pert‘:@ntagg of Key St.age 3 learners achieving improved 56.0% 87.0% 80.0%
out@mes in Welsh (first language)

®

Ejtlg:tslsg)?no\;‘vzijsl:]ndatlon Phase learners achieving improved 87 3% 84.4% 91.2%
EDU/003 — The percentage of learners achieving the Core o o o
Subject Indicator at Key Stage 2 86.10% 89.1% 87.9%
EDU/004 - The percentage of learners achieving the Core o o o
Subject Indicator at Key Stage 3 84.30% 89.3% 87.10%
Improvement of outcomes in Capped Wider Points score, 3415 3589 349 1

including an increasing proportion of A* and A grades

Improved

Improved




11

Performance

Performance

Trend

Downturned

Downturned

Downturned

Improved

Improved

Improved

Achievement Measures 20?4/15 2015/16 2015/16 Outturn
Baseline Data Target
EDU/017 - The percentage of learners achieving the Level 2
Threshold inclusive of Mathematics and English and/or Welsh 61.8% 69.9% 60.6%
18t Language
IPSL1M7 - Improve performance of cohort of learners entitled
to Free School Meals (FSM) in achieving the Level 1 Indicator 93.20% 95.8% 92.1%
(Five GCSE passes A* to G or vocational equivalent)
IPSK1MB8 - Improve performance of cohort of learners entitled
to Free School Meals (FSM) in achieving the Level 2+
Indicator (Five GCSE passes A* to C or vocational equivalent 37.30% 61.3% 35.2%
including Mathematics and English and/or Welsh 1%
Language)
IPS@ M9 - Improve performance of cohort of learners entitled
f[o e Schoo_l Meals .(FSM)_ in The (_Dapped Points Score 307.6 330.9 308.1
indiggtor. (Points achieved in best eight course outcomes)
H
Improve performance of cohort of learners entitled to Free
School Meals (FSM) in achievement of the Core Subject 65.1% 73.8% 71.3%
Indicator at Key Stage 3
The percentage of young people of school age in the youth o 0 o
justice system that are offered 25 hours ETE 27.0% 40.0% 80.0%
The percentage of young people of school age in the youth 43.0% 55.0% 75.0%

justice system that are offered 16+ ETE

Improved




12

Sub-Priority: Community Safety

. 2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance
Achievement Measures Baseline Data Target 2015/16 Outturn RAG Trend

The percentage of high risk repeat victims of domestic abuse
referred to the Flintshire MARAC 23 28 20 Improved
Monitoring the number of formal consultations for public space N/A N/A 0 Not
protection orders (PSPOs) Applicable
IPSC1M4 - Achieve a waiting time of less than 20 days from 89% 80% 90.9% Improved
referral to treatment (KPI 2)
IPSC1MS5 - Substance Misuse Treatment Completes (KPI 6) 80% 80% 78.90% A Downturned
SubsPriority: Maximising Income

Q

«Q . 2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance

g Achievement Measures Baseline Data Target 2015/16 Outturn RAG Trend

o
Number of free quality, part time childcare sessions provided
for 2-3 year olds through the flying start programme 39,455 40,000 46,190 Improved
Number of chﬂ@ren receiving an enhanced Health service 1,515 1,407 1,479 Downturned
through the Flying Start Programme
Number of places filled on structured and unstructured
speech, language and communication sessions for parents 314 350 302 Downturned
and children within Flying Start
Number of parents accessing Parenting programmes 212 200 191 Downturned
Amount of additional Social Security and Tax Credits paid to
Flintshire residents as a result of the work undertaken by FCC £2.3 million £2 million £2.1 million Improved

(WEL/001)




13

Speed of processing Housing Benefit claims - new claims

19

17.5

20

Speed of processing Housing Benefit claims - change of
circumstances

9.0

Downturned

c6 abed

Downturned




14

. 2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance
Achievement Measures Baseline Data Target 2015/16 Outturn RAG Trend
The following indicators are provided for information and monitoring only and are not suitable for setting targets against
Number of Flintshire residents assisted by FCC to claim 1622 Not 1287 Not Downturned
Additional Social Security and Tax Credits ’ Applicable Applicable
Amount of monthly discretionary housing payment (DHP) paid £959 000 Not £145.347 Not Not
to support people to adjust to Welfare Reform changes ’ Applicable ’ Applicable Applicable
Number of residents supported to better manage their N/A - new Not Not
, . . N/A 168 . .
flnanalal commitments measure Applicable Applicable
(a}}
Nutger of Universal Credit claimants referred to Citizens Not Not
2 D
Advfae Bureau for Personal Budgeting support o9 Applicable 0 Applicable ownturned
NungRer of Universal Credit claimants assisted with on-line 2 Not 3 Npt Improved
access Applicable Applicable
Number of enquiries received from the Universal Service Not
Centre by Flintshire County Council's Housing Benefit Service 88 N/A 34 Applicable Downturned
relating to housing costs
Sub-Priority: Fuel Poverty
. 2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance
Achievement Measures Baseline Data Target 2015/16 Outturn RAG Trend
Number of private homes receiving energy efficiency 429 350.0 593 Improved
measures
Overall annual fuel bill reduction for residents £244,360 £175,000 £296,030 Improved
Annual reduction in carbon emissions 24,949 tonnes | 22,500 tonnes | 33,623 tonnes Downturned




15

. 2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance
Ach tM 2015/16 Outt
chievement Weasures Baseline Data Target aan RAG Trend
IPI?ZM4 - Number of Council homes receiving energy 417 council 400 council 649 Improved
efficiency measures homes homes
Overall annual fuel bill reduction for tenants in Council homes 121,451 100,000.0 107,240 Downturned
Sub-Priority: Transport Infrastructure and Services
. 2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance
Achievement Measures Baseline Data Target 2015/16 Outturn RAG Trend
Successful delivery of WG funded schemes / feasibility .
studies funding through the Local Transport Fund 100 100 100 Maintained
THS{12 - The percentage of principal (A) roads, non-
prin@lpal (B) roads and non principal (C) roads that are in 4.50% 7% 4% Improved
oveppll poor condition*
Th rcentage of notices issued for all roadworks for the N/A - new
pureé.'g:es of coordinating and minimising to disruption to N/A 82.6% Improved
. R measure
Flintshire's highway network
Road safetY |n|t|at|v§s to reduce the risk of collisions of high 35 80 24 Downturned
risk groups: older drivers
Road safet}/ initiatives tglreduce the r.ISk of collisions of high 75 108 43 Downturned
risk groups: Newly qualified young drivers
Road safety initatives to reduce the risk of collisions of high 51 108 63 Improved

risk groups: Motorcyclists




16

Sub-Priority: Sustainable Development & Environmental Management

. 2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance
Achievement Measures Baseline Data Target 2015/16 Outturn RAG Trend
0.43% (reduction)
EEFLM1 - Carbon Reduction Commitment - Reduce our 18.96 (cumulative
carbon footprint through delivery of our Carbon Reduction reduction 5% 1.1% A Improved
Strategy (non domestic portfolio) weather
corrected
WMT/009b - The percentage of municipal waste collected by
!ocal e_luthorltles and prepared .for reuse and/or recycled, 58% 59% 58.49% A Improved
mcluﬂlng source segregated bio wastes that are composted or
treaggd biologically in another way.
WMD/011 - The percentage of local authority municipal waste
receéed at all local authority household waste amenity sites
thatR prepared for reuse, recycled or of source segregated 62% 63% 69.3% Improved
bio waste that is composted or treated biologically in another
way.
Sub-Priority: Developing Communities
. 2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance
Achievement Measures Baseline Data B 2015/16 Outturn RAG Trend
The number of new social enterprises developed 1 2 5 Improved
The number of social enterprises supported to thrive and 7 7 12 Improved

prosper




17

Number of volunteers in volunteering placements 480 N/A 541 Not Applicable Improved
Percentage of communlfty ben_eflt clauses included in new N/A - new N/A 220 Not Applicable Improved
procurement contracts (including those under £2m) measure
The level of efficiencies alternative delivery models (ADMs) N/A - new N/A 0 G Not Applicable
have supported measure

. 2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance

Achievement Measures Baseline Data B 2015/16 Outturn RAG Trend
The nur_nber of services sustained through delivery via N/A - new N/A 0 G Maintained
alternative models measure
o
Nu@)er qf assets transferred to the commuplty through 4 5 8 Improved
Corfimunity Asset Transfer or other mechanism
©

Sub=Priority: Improving Resource Management

. 2014/15 2015/16 Performance | Performance

Achievement Measures Baseline Data Target 2015/16 Outturn RAG Trend

Amount of efficiency targets achieved £7.7 million £12.9 million £10.6 million Improved
Perceptage of appraisals completed using the renewed N/A - new N/A No Data Not Applicable | Not Applicable
appraisal system measure
Number of interventions being undertaken: capability process , .
(from the point of intervention from HR) No Data N/A 0 Not Applicable | Not Applicable




18

CHR/002 — The number of working days/shifts per full time

equivalent (FTE) local authority employee lost due to sickness | 10.66 days/shifts | 9.6 days/shifts 10.4
absence.

Reduction in square meters of occupied office 290, 26% 19.9%
accommodation

Reduction in the running costs of corporate accommodation No Data 20 19.9
Agile working - desk provision as a percentage of staff 08% 87% No Data
(County Hall)

IPME4M3 - Achievement of efficiency savings achieved due

to the use of National, Regional and Sectoral procurement £530,263 £550,000 £796,470
frameworks

Eﬁicienqies achieved through the use of end to end electronic N/A - new £200,000 £200,000
puroﬁ,asmg measure

96 obe

N

A Improved

Not
Applicable

Not Applicable

ot Applicable | Not Applicable

Improved

Improved




19

Motile version

. 2014/15 2015/16 Performance
Achievement Measures Baseline Data Target 2015/16 Outturn RAG
Digital take up of services via Connects N/A - new 1250 5056
measure
Review of existing services (36) available at Connects N/A - new 3 4
Centres to ensure they are fully transactional measure
The percentage of customers who successfully found what
they were Ioo.klng for on our website: 54.00% 559% 459%
Desktop version
The percentage of customers who successfully found what
theé?/ere looking for on our website: 52 00% 55% 579%

66 [0

Performance
Trend

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Downturned

Improved




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C - NSI PAM Data Table

TOT abed

. NSI/ (O Annual Target VCEPIA Performance
Indicator Outturn Outturn RAG
PAM 2015/16 Trend
2014/15 2015/16
Organisational Change

LCL/001(b): The eumber of visits to Public Libraries during the year, NS 4,991 Visits per|5,000 Visits per| 4,535 Visits A Downturned
per 1,000 population - Annual Pl 1,000 1,000 per 1,000
LCS/002(b).: The number of visits to local Iauthonty sport er.1d Ie|eure 9,730 Visits per| 9739 Visits per | 9501 Visits
centres during the year per 1,000 population where the visitor will be NSI A Downturned

) ) . 1,000 1,000 per 1,000
participating in physical activity

Social Services

PSR/OOZ: The.e.\verage number of calendar days taken to deliver a NSI/PAM 328 days 247 307.74 days A Downturned
Disabled Facilities Grant
SCA/001: The rate of delayed transfers of care for social care reasons NSI 2.30 per t2 3.4 rate per A Downturned
per 1,000 population aged 75 or over 1,000 ra1 %ggr 1,000
SCA/002(a): The rate of older people (aged 65 or over) supported in NSI 51.36 per Not Set 51.44 per Improved
the community per 1,000 population aged 65 or over at 31 March 1,000 Mgt Info 1,000 P
SC‘::/OE{)Zb: Ther:ate of oldﬁr people (elgggo% or cl)\/ter) whor;ége NS 16.02 per 17 13.2 per e
authority supports in care homes per 1, population age or 1,000 Rate per 1,001 1,000 p
over at 31 March
SCA/007: The percentage of clients with a care plan at 31st March
whose care plans should have been reviewed that were reviewed PAM 98.2% 98% 97.5% A Downturned
during the year
SCA/018(a): The plercentagel of carere of aeults Who were.oﬁ‘ered an PAM 92.3% 94% 88.2% A Downturned
assessment or review of their needs in their own right during the year
SCA/019: The percentage of adult protection referrals completed NSI/ PAM 09.33% 08% 100% Improved
where the risk has been managed
SCNOZQ: The percentage of adult clients who are supported in the PAM 86.03% 90% No data N/A N/A
community during the year
SCC/004: The percentage of children Ioeked after on 31st March who NS/ PAM 8.6% 6.5% 7 04% A Improved
have had three or more placements during the year.
SCC/011(a): The percentage of initial assessments that were
completed during the year where there is evidence that the child has PAM 77.0% 80% 83.4% Improved
been seen by the Social Worker




Appendix C - NSI PAM Data Table

20T abed

. NSI/ (O Annual Target VEER IS Performance
Indicator PAM Outturn 2015/16 Outturn RAG Trend
2014/15 2015/16
. NSI / UL Annual Target VCELRS Y Performance
Indicator Outturn Outturn RAG
PAM 2015/16 Trend
2014/15 2015/16
SCC/011(b): The percentage of initial assessments that were
completed during the year where there is evidence that the child has NSI 57.0% 59% 56.1% A Downturned
been seen alone by the Social Worker
SCC/OZS: The percentage of st.atutory visits to Ipoked after chlldren PAM 90 7% 93% 84.2% A Downturned
due in the year that took place in accordance with the regulations
SCC/033(d): The percentage of young people formerly looked after NS 88.9% 90% 100% | d
with whom the authority is in contact at the age of 19 e ° ° mprove
SCC/033(e): The percentage of young people formerly looked after
with whom the authority is in contact, who are known to be in suitable, NSI 87.5% 90% 100% Improved
non emergency accommodation at the age of 19
SCC/033(f): The percentage of young people formerly looked after
with whom the authority is in contact, who are known to be engaged in NSI 87.5% 75% 100% Improved
education, training or employment at the age of 19
SQC/O41(a): The percentage of eligible, rglevant and former relevant NS 100% 100% 100% Maintained
children that have pathway plans as required
SCC/045: The percentage of reviews of looked after children, children
on the Child Protection Register and children in need carried out in PAM 89.3% 90% 97.2% Improved
line with the statutory timetable
Planning & Environment
PLA/006b: The number of additional affordable housing units provided 39 Not Set
during the year as a percentage of all additional housing units NSI 20.65 homes N/A Downturned
, i homes Mgt Info
provided during the year.
PPN/QOQ: The percentagg of food establishments which are 'broadly PAM 95.61% 93% 96.5% Improved
compliant' with Food Hygiene standards
Community & Enterprise
HHA/013: The percentage of all potentially homeless households for NSI / PAM 8529 90% 98.3% Improved

whom homelessness was prevented for at least 6 months - Annual Pl




Appendix C - NSI PAM Data Table

Annual

Year End

£0T abed

Indicator :;li:vf Outturn Anr;t;:ls'll"la éget Outturn RAG Perflt_)an;:nce
2014/15 2015/16
. NSI/ Ol Annual Target VCELRS Y Performance
Indicator Outturn Outturn RAG
PAM 2015/16 Trend
2014/15 2015/16

PSR/004: The percentage of private sector dwellings that had been
vacant for more than 6 months at 1st April that were returned to

NSI 3.88% 6% 8.8% I d
occupation during the year through direct action by the local authority ° ° ° mprove
- Annual Pl

Streetscene & Transportation
WMT/004(b): The percentage of municipal waste collected by local NS/ PAM 42.28% 20% 7.4% Improved
authorities sent to landfill ' '
WMT/009(b): The percentage of municipal waste collected by local
authorities an-d prepared for reuse and/or recycled, mc!udmg sources NS/ PAM 55% 599% 58.5% A Improved
segregated biowastes that are composted or treated biologically in
another way
STS/OOG: Thg percentage of reported fly tipping incidents cleared NSI 97.70% 95% 97.8% _ Improved
within 5 working days
STS/005(b): The percentage of highways inspected of a high or o o
acceptable standard of cleanliness - Annual Pl PAM 95% 95% 93.2% s Downturned
THS/007.: The percentage of adults aged 60+ who hold a NS 79.5% 79% 78.8% A Downturned
concessionary bus pass
THS/012: The percentage of principal (A) roads, non-principal (B) 4.5%
roads and non-principal (C) roads that are in overall poor condition - PAM ' 7% 4.02% Improved
Annual Pl
THS/012a: The percentage of principal (A) roads that are in overall
poor condition - Annual Pl
THS/012b: The pgrcentage of non-principal (B) roads that are in 4.5% 7% 4% Improved
overall poor condition - Annual Pl
THS/012c: The percentage of non-principal (C) roads that are in
overall poor condition - Annual Pl
People & Resources

CHR/002: The number of working days / shifts per full-time equivalent 10.6 days / . 10.5 days /
(FTE) local authority employee lost due to sickness absence PAM shifts 9.6 days / shifts shifts & Downturned




Appendix C - NSI PAM Data Table

0T abed

need issued within 26 weeks including exceptions - Annual Pl

. NSI/ (O Annual Target VEER IS Performance
Indicator PAM Outturn 2015/16 Outturn RAG Trend
2014/15 2015/16
. NSI / UL Annual Target VCELRS Y Performance
Indicator Outturn Outturn RAG
PAM 2015/16 Trend
2014/15 2015/16
Education & Youth
EDU/002(i): The percentage of all pupils (including those in local
authority care), in any local authority maintained school, aged 15 as at
the preceding 31 August that leave compulsory education, training or | NSI/PAM 0.1% 0.30% 0.0% Improved
work based learning without an approved external qualification -
Annual Pl
EDU/002(ii): The percentage of pupils in local authority care in any
local authority maintained school, aggd 15 a_s gt the preceding 31 NS 0.0% 39, 0.0% Maintained
August that leave compulsory education, training or work based
learning without an approved external qualification - Annual Pl
EDU/003: The percentage of pupils assessed at the end of Key Stage
2, in schools maintained by the local authority, achieving the Core NSI/ PAM 86.1% 87% 87.91% Improved
Subject Indicator, as determined by Teacher Assessment - Annual Pl
EDU/004: The percentage of pupils assessed at the end of Key Stage
3, in schools maintained by the local authority, achieving the Core PAM 84.3% 86.5% 87.11% Improved
Subject Indicator, as determined by Teacher - ssessment - Annual Pl
EDU/006(ii): The percentage of pupils assessed, in schools
maintained by the local authority, receiving a Teacher Assessment in NSI 4.6% Not Set 5.5% Improved
Welsh (first language) at the end of Key Stage 3 - Annual PI
EDU/011: The average point score for pupils aged 15 at the preceding . . :
31 Aug, in schools maintained by the local authority - Annual PI NSI/PAM | 547.5 points 558.6 Points | 541.8 Points A Downturned
EDU/015(a): The percentage of final statements of special education NS 87 7% 90% 89 7% A Downturned




Appendix C - NSI PAM Data Table

Annual

Year End

setting - Annual Pl

Indicator :;li:vf Outturn Anr;t;:ls'll"la ;get Outturn RAG Perflt_)an;:nce
2014/15 2015/16
Annual Year End
Indicator NSI / Outtum Annual Target Outturm RAG Performance
PAM 2015/16 Trend
2014/15 2015/16
EDU/Q15(b): T.he. percentage of fma! statemenfts of special education NS 100% 100% 98.6% A Downturned
need issued within 26 weeks excluding exceptions - Annual Pl
EDU/O}E}S:(;): The percentage of pupil attendance in primary schools - PAM 94.80% 94.9% 94.7% A Downturned
nnua
E(I;L;g; G(Z)I;Jhael p;e;rcentage of pupil attendance in secondary PAM 93.9% 94.3% 94.29% A Improved
- u
EDU/017: The percentage of pupils aged 15 at the preceding 31st
August, in schools maintained by the local authority who achieved the
NSI/ PAM 61.99 69.909 60.619 Downt d
Level 2 threshold including a GCSE grade A*-C in English or Welsh & & e ownturne
first language and mathematics - Annual Pl
—J/SCC/002: The percentage of children looked after at 31st March who
g havle experlepced one or more changes of school, during .al period or NS 18.2% 10% 13.4% A Downturned
( |Periods of being looked after, which were not due to transitional
jfarrangements, in the 12 months - Annual PI
O\ SCC/037: The average external qualifications point score for 16 year 358 270
Ulold looked after children, in any local authority maintained learning NSI points Points 248 points A Downturned




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix D: Glossary

Term

Definition

Extra Care

Providing self-contained homes for people with varying
levels of care and support needs on site.

Affordable and Flexible
Housing

Covers a range of tenure options for renting and
purpose.

Local Development Plan

The Council’s land use planning document that will
guide development until 2030.

Wales Housing Quality
Standard

Welsh Government’s physical quality standard for
modern social housing.

Telecare / Telehealth

Providing support through telecommunication devices in
the home.

Commissioning plans

Ensure purchased and commissioned care meets
demand and service user need.

Transition Service

Dedicated service for children and young people with
Disabilities who are supported to become young adults.

Integrated Family Support
Service

Specific time limited and well researched support for
families with parents who abuse substances.

an intense, short term approach to social care for

Reablement individuals to gain or regain the skills and confidence to
live as independently as possible
. Changes to a person’s home to enable her/him to live as
Adaptations

independently as possible.

Disabled Facility Grant

A grant available for larger adaptations to a person’s
home.

Enhanced Care Service

Short term intensive community based care as an
alternative to hospital

Crisis Intervention Team

Team to provide short term intensive care to prevent
people’s health deteriorating or enable swift discharge
from hospital into the community.

Enterprise Zones

A Welsh Government initiative to stimulate growth and
support business in designated areas.

Masterplan

The plan that sets out the intentions and actions for the
Northern Gateway site.

Learning providers

Schools and further and higher education
establishments.

Business Grant Scheme

Grant available to Town Centre property owners and
tenants to refurbish
properties and improve their frontages.

Social Enterprises

Businesses with primarily social objectives whose
surpluses are mainly reinvested for that purpose in the
business or community.

Flintshire Social Enterprise
Fund

Financial assistance for start-up or development of
social enterprises.

Community benefit clauses

Benefits to local communities from major procurements
e.g. training and employment opportunities, community
facilities. This incorporates social value by taking wider
impacts and benefits into account other than price.

Core Subject Indicator

Learners achieve the expected level in

Page 107




Mathematics, English or Welsh 1st language and
Science.

21st Century Schools

A national programme of funding to improve school
buildings and environments.

Surplus places -

The difference between the number of learners a school
can accommodate and the number on roll.

Employers’ Promise

Employers committed to working together to create
additional training, apprenticeships and work
opportunities.

Communities First Job Club

Work to support adults into employment.

Programmes
Young Entrepreneur An opportunity for young people to work with mentors on
Programme - their business ideas.

Flintshire Business
Entrepreneurship Network -

Employers working together to support Entrepreneurship
Programmes.

Substance Misuse

The continued use of drugs or alcohol despite negative
consequences to the individual using, their friends,
family and the community.

Human Trafficking

‘Trade’ in people, most commonly for the purpose of
sexual slavery, forced labour or for the extraction of
organs or tissues.

Sexual Exploitation

The use of another person in non-consensual sex for
profit

Anti-social Behaviour

Behaviour that lacks consideration for others and that
may cause damage to society, whether intentionally or
through negligence.

CCTV

To prevent and respond to crime and disorder.

Environmental Visual Audits

Detailed “community intelligence” to support both crime
reduction and deliver other improvements to quality of
life issues via partnership working.

Collision Cluster Site

A site where there have been 5 or more collisions,
resulting in personal injury, recorded in the past 3 years
within a 50 metre radius.

Welfare reform

A range of measures being introduced by Central
Government to reform the Welfare Benefits system.

Universal Credit

New benefit which replaces the current means tested
benefit for working age claimants.

Homeless Prevention

Take reasonable steps to prevent homelessness for
anyone at risk of homelessness within 56 days.

Vibrant and Viable Places

Welsh Government’s regeneration framework launched
in March 2013 with the vision that everyone in Wales
should live in well-connected, vibrant, viable and
sustainable communities with a strong local economy
and good quality of life.

Deeside Infrastructure
Business Plan

A plan that has been developed to improve the
highways, transport and utility services capacity around
the Deeside Enterprise Zone.

Deeside Enterprise Zone

Deeside Enterprise Zone is one of the first to be created
in Wales and covers over 2000 hectares that will provide
space for new and existing businesses to grow.

Page 108




Infrastructure

Facilities, systems, sites and networks that are
necessary for the County to function.

Sustainable transport

Changing behaviour in the promotion of more resource
efficient and healthier ways to travel including car
sharing, public transport, cycling and walking.

Carbon ‘footprint’

The amount of Carbon Dioxide that enters the
atmosphere through electricity and fuel used.

Renewable energy schemes

Schemes designed to use energy from a source that is
naturally replenished e.g. sunlight.

Carbon reduction
commitment

A mandatory scheme aimed at improving energy
efficiency and reducing emissions in large public sector
and private organisations.

Operating Model -

How an organisation is structured, functions and
performs, according to its objectives and values.

Working practices

The Council’s internal processes and procedures.

Social business model

The way in which we run the Council as an accountable
and ethical organisation operating in a business world.
This incorporates social value; the importance of the
overall quality of the outcomes.

Revenue funding

Spending on day to day running costs for the Council
e.g. salaries and wages, supplies and services, energy.

Capital funding

Spending on assets (e.g. buildings, equipment and
land).

Fees and Charges

The amount service users pay for services which are not
provided for free

Efficiency Targets

Financial savings we aim to achieve within a given
period of time through specific actions.

Values for Money

Being efficient and effective in using our resources to
achieve our service objectives and standards.

Equal pay

Equality legislation prohibits less favourable treatment
between men and women in terms of pay and conditions
of employment. Where there has been a potential
historical pay gap between men and women, Equal Pay
claims may be brought.

Medium-term Financial Plan

The Council’s plan forecasts funding levels and resource
requirements over the medium term, identifies the gap
between the two with specific actions identified to
balance the budget and manage resources.

Asset Strategy

Long term plan to make best use of our buildings.

Council Property Assets

Buildings owned and maintained by the Council.

Agile Working

Working across locations in a flexible way with the use
of technology.

Capital

Money spent on assets (e.g. buildings, equipment and
land).

Community Asset Transfers

Transfers of land or buildings into the ownership or
management of a Voluntary / Community Sector
organisation or statutory body.

Community benefit clauses

Benefits to local communities from major procurements
e.g. training and employment opportunities, community

Page 109




facilities. This incorporates social value by taking wider
issues in to account other than price.

Procurement collaborations

Ways of procuring goods and services within agreed
terms and conditions.

Flintshire Connects Centres

Simpler and more “joined up” access to Council and
other public sector services in County towns in a modern
and welcoming environment.

Customer Service
Standards

What customers can expect when they make contact
with the council e.g. how quickly we answer the phone,
respond to email etc.

Page 110




Agenda Iltem 5

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%h.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 18 October 2016
Report Subject Strategic Equality Plan 2016/2020
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Corporate Management
Report Author Chief Executive
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of the Strategic Equality Plan (SEP) is to identify and address specific
areas of inequalities. In 2012, the Council agreed its first SEP and six high level
equality objectives:-

Reduce health inequalities

Reduce unequal outcomes in education to maximise individual potential
Reduce inequalities in employment

Reduce inequalities in personal safety

Reduce inequalities in representation and voice

Reduce inequalities in access to information and services, buildings and
the environment

These equality objectives have now been reviewed and the SEP 2012/2016 has
been updated to cover the period 2016/2020. The equality objectives from the SEP
2012/2016 have been carried forward into the SEP for 2016/2020 as reducing
deeply entrenched inequalities will not happen in the short term but will be
achieved over a longer period of time. Consultation with stakeholders also
confirmed that objectives set in 2012 are still priorities.

The SEP 2016/2020 is attached as an Appendix to this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 To agree the Council’s equality objectives and Strategic Equality
Plan (SEP) 2016/ 2020, prior to publication.

Page 111



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE EQUALITY OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIC
EQUALITY PLAN

1.01

All devolved public authorities in Wales are required by the public sector
equality duties of the Equality Act 2010 to identify and publish equality
objectives and produce a Strategic Equality Plan (SEP), every four years,
and report annually on progress. The aim of these duties is to ensure the
delivery of positive outcomes for people with protected characteristics
through evidenced based objectives. The protected characteristics are;
age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race,
religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

1.02

The Strategic Equality Plan sets out how the Council will achieve the
equality objectives and meet the general duty of the Public Sector Equality
Duty (PSED):
e eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation;
e advance equality of opportunity; and
o foster good relations, between those who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it.

1.03

Review of equality objectives and Strategic Equality Plan 2012-2016
A series of activities of engagement and consultation events were held to
review the SEP 2012-2016 and equality objectives. This included holding
workshops with the Council's employee networks and with key
stakeholders. We also worked in partnership with other public bodies in
North Wales and held a regional joint consultation event with stakeholders,
representing people with protected characteristics. A review of local,
regional and national data and research was also undertaken.

1.04

The outcomes of the research and consultation reflected that the
objectives set for 2012-2016 were still a priority. This is not surprising,
given that these are entrenched and persistent inequalities, not just in
Flintshire but regionally. Reducing inequalities will not happen in the short
term but will be achieved over a longer period of time.

1.05

The equality objectives for the period 2016-2020 will continue to be:

o Reduce health inequalities

o Reduce unequal outcomes in education to maximise individual
potential

Reduce inequalities in employment

Reduce inequalities in personal safety

Reduce inequalities in representation and voice

Reduce inequalities in access to information and services,
buildings and the environment.

1.06

The SEP describes how we developed our priorities, why each objective is
a priority, what we intend to do by 2020 and how we will measure
achievement. The measures and actions have been developed to ensure
consistency with the Council’'s Improvement Plan 2016/17.

Page 112




1.07 | Actions from the Strategic Equality Plan will be incorporated within
CAMMS and progress will be reported as part of performance
management reports. The equality objectives and SEP 2016-2020 will be
reviewed in line with the future Flintshire Well-being Plan, which will be put
in place to meet the requirements of the Well-being and Future
Generations (Wales) Act (2015). This will ensure that the SEP and Local
Well-being Plan are aligned and support each other.

1.08 | Schools are required to produce their own equality objectives and
Strategic Equality Plans.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | A training programme to ensure employees have the skills and knowledge
to meet these statutory duties. A budget for equalities training is held by
the Learning and Development Team.

2.02 | Itis difficult to assess the cost of implementing the plan. The costs (if any)
of any initiatives undertaken or proposed by services will be expected to
be met from existing resources.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | Workshops have been held with local stakeholders in addition to a regional
consultation event.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | The purpose of the SEP is to ensure the Council is meeting its statutory
duty to promote equality, eliminate discrimination and foster good
community relations for people who live in, work and visit Flintshire.
Placing equality at the heart of everything that we do will contribute to
addressing poverty experienced by people across all protected groups.

4.02 | Implementing the SEP will ensure that the Council is compliant with the
PSED.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Strategic Equality Plan 2016/2020.

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | Strategic Equality Plan Annual Report 2014/2015

Contact Officer: Fiona Mocko, Policy Advisor Equality and Equality

Page 113



http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Diversity-and-Equality/Strategic-Equality-Plan-2014-2015.pdf

Cohesion
Telephone: 01352 702122
E-mail: fiona.mocko@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

CAMMS: an integrated planning, risk management and programme /
project management and reporting system.

Protected Characteristics: these are the groups protected under the
Equality Act 2010. The characteristics are: Age, Disability, Gender
Reassignment, Marriage and Civil Partnership, Pregnancy and Maternity,
Race, Religion and Belief, Sex and Sexual Orientation.

PSED: Public Sector Equality Duty, places a General Duty and Specific
Duty on public bodies. The General Duty requires public bodies to show
due regard to the need to: eliminate unlawful discrimination, advance
equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and foster good relations. The Specific Duty in Wales
requires public bodies to develop equality objectives and publish Strategic
Equality Plans. It also includes the requirement to train employees, assess
impact of decisions and undertake equality monitoring.

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act: The Act sets out seven
Well-being goals. Public Service Boards must develop a plan to contribute
to achieving these goals. The Act also means that devolved public bodies
will need to take into account the impact of current and future generations
when they make decisions.

Well-being Plan: To meet the requirements of the Well-being of Future
Generations Act every Public Service Board must prepare and publish a
Local Well-being Plan setting out its objectives and actions to meet the
Well-being goals.

Page 114



mailto:fiona.mocko@flintshire.gov.uk

- t Stonewall
C b M (24 N

DIVERSITY CHAMPIONS
HYRWYDDWYR AMRYWIAETH

Strategic Equality Plan

2016 - 2020

We are happy to provide this information in alternative formats or in your own
language

If you would like a copy of this document in an alternative format or your own
language please contact:

Stephanie Aldridge
Assistant Policy Officer — Equalities and Social Policy
Corporate Services
County Hall
Mold
Flintshire
CH7 6NG
Tel: - 01352 702131
E-Mail: stephan|e.aldrldge@fllntshlre.gov.uk

Q¢ ABo, 0514

%\r
M 2 \/
fSAE-‘f*' 4’4 po®

Page 115



Flintshire County Council Strategic Equality Plan 2016 — 2020

Contents
Page
Foreword 4
1. Introduction 5
1.1 Legal Context 5
1.2 Community Profile 6
1.3 The Council 7
2. Equality Objectives 10
2.1 Meeting our Equality Objectives 2012/16
2.2 Reviewing our Equality Objectives
2.3 Our equality objectives 2016/2020
3. Meeting the Specific Duties 22
3.1 Arrangements for identifying, collate and 22
publishing information
3.2 Arrangements for assessing impact 23
3.3 Arrangements for promoting knowledge 23
and understanding
3.4 How we will incorporate equality into 24
procurement
4 Monitoring and Review 25
5. Publication 25

Page 116



Appendices
1. Action Plan
2. Profile of community

3. Profile of Flintshire County Council Workforce

Page 117



Foreword

Welcome to Flintshire County Council’s second Strategic Equality Plan. We
are pleased to publish this plan which details the objectives, actions and
targets that will be undertaken during the next four years and identifies the
evidence base and rationale on which the objectives are based.

We have continued to work in partnership with all the public bodies across
North Wales and have identified high level regional as well as local equality
objectives. We are pleased that the membership of the original North Wales
Public Sector Equality Network has grown and includes Coleg Cambria and
Glyndwr University. Working in partnership is important in these financially
challenging times but it also helps to identify common equality objectives. This
means that activity is focussed on tackling specific areas of inequality which
will benefit all sections of the North Wales community. Several organisations
working together to create change will have greater impact than a single
organisation. Our objectives are based on the following:-

Health

Education

Employment

Personal Safety

Representation and Voice

Access to information, services and environment

These are consistent with the equality objectives identified in the first Strategic
Equality Plan. This is not surprising as we are addressing deeply entrenched
and long standing inequalities. We recognise that we are on a journey and
making a sustained change will take time. In producing this plan we will meet
our statutory Public Sector Equality Duties under the Equality Act 2010 to
advance equality, eliminate unlawful discrimination, victimisation and
harassment, and foster good community relations in our employment, policy,
procurement and service delivery functions.

This Strategic Equality Plan builds upon the progress we have made through
the previous Plan. The Strategic Equality Plan alongside the Diversity and
Equality Policy and Welsh Language Standards sets out the Council’s
commitment to equality. The Strategic Equality Plan is linked to the Council’s
improvement priorities.

We have valued the contributions from everyone who has participated in the
development of this plan. If you would like to become involved and contribute
to continuing to review our priorities that will reduce inequalities in Flintshire,
please contact us.

Colin Everett Clir Billy Mullin
Chief Executive Cabinet Member for Corporate
Management

Page 418


http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Policy-and-Performance/Improvement-Plan-2012-17-English.pdf
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Policy-and-Performance/Improvement-Plan-2012-17-English.pdf

Flintshire County Council - Strategic Equality Plan 2016-2020

1. Introduction

1.1 Legal Context
The Equality Act 2010 protects people from discrimination in employment and
services on the basis of the following characteristics:-

e Age e Race

e Disability e Religion or belief
e Gender reassignment e Sex

e Marriage and civil e Sexual orientation

partnership

e Pregnancy and maternity

General Duty
The Act introduced the public sector equality duty which places a General
Duty on public bodies to have due regard to the need to:

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act;

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
And

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.

Specific Duty

Devolved public bodies in Wales have specific duties which include setting
and publishing equality objectives and developing a Strategic Equality Plan
(SEP). This is Flintshire County Council’'s second Strategic Equality Plan
setting out our equality objectives and the steps we will take to achieve them.

The purpose of the plan is to address inequalities to make a real difference to
the lives of people across the protected characteristics who live and work in
Flintshire. The equality objectives aim to address significant areas of
inequality; we have reviewed evidence from a range of sources both
gualitative and quantitative to inform the SEP. Welsh language is addressed
through implementation of the Welsh Language Standards as set out in the
Compliance Notice served by the Welsh Language Commissioner.

Page 119


http://www.comisiynyddygymraeg.cymru/English/Publications%20List/20151201%20Hysbysiad%20Cydymffurfio44%20Cyngor%20Sir%20y%20Fflint%20(en).pdf

1.2 Equality objectives for 2016/2020
We have updated and reviewed the Council’s equality objectives, going
forward from 2016/20 the objectives are:

Reduce health inequalities

Reduce unequal outcomes in Education to maximise individual potential
Reduce inequalities in employment

Reduce inequalities in Personal Safety

Reduce inequalities in Representation and Voice

Reduce inequalities in access to information and services, buildings and the
environment

Achieving these equality objectives will contribute to providing appropriate,
accessible and effective services and facilities meeting the diverse needs of
our community and ensuring that the Council is a fair employer in all its
employment practices. Appendix 1 identifies the steps that we will take to
meet these objectives and meet the specific duties of the Equality Act 2010.

1.3 Community Profile

Flintshire is a semi-rural Welsh county in North East Wales. It borders
Cheshire to the East, Wrexham to the South and Denbighshire to the West.
The population of Flintshire is 152,506 according to the Census 2011. A
detailed breakdown of the population is provided in Appendix 2.

Key headlines from the Census 2011 show that:-

e in the last five years, the population of Flintshire has seen an
increase of 1.1% (1724 people).

e between 2001 and 2011, the percentage of usual residents who
described their ethnic group as "White" in Flintshire has decreased
from 99.2% to 98.5%.

e in 2014, 9.2% of working age people resident in Flintshire had no
gualifications. This compares to 10.0% for Wales.

e in 2015, the average weekly gross pay for full time workers in
Flintshire was £528.30. This figure has increased by 12.3% since
2011.

e 80.6% of respondents to the 2011 Census in Flintshire reported that
their day to day activities were not limited by their health. This figure
has decreased by 0.2 percentage point(s) from the 2001 Census
figure of 80.8%.

Page 420


http://www.ons.gov.uk/ons/guide-method/census/2011/index.html
http://www.ons.gov.uk/ons/guide-method/census/2011/index.html

e 1.6% of households in Flintshire had no central heating. This figure
has decreased by 5.1 percentage points from the 2001 figure of
6.7%.

e Dbetween 2013-14 and 2014-15 the number of households decided to
be eligible, unintentionally homeless and in priority need has risen
from 80 to 95.

1.4 The Council

Flintshire County Council has 70 Councillors who represent 57 electoral
divisions in Flintshire; they are democratically elected every four years. Of the
elected members 51 are male, 19 are female. There has been an increase in
female elected members; prior to 2008 elections there were 13 female elected
members.

The Council employs 7,017 people delivering services from various sites
around the county with the main administrative centre at County Hall, Mold.
Services include arts, council tax, education, housing, leisure, libraries,
planning, refuse services, social services, trading standards and transport. A
breakdown of the profile of the workforce is provided in Appendix 3. Data shows
that the majority of Council employees are female 65% compared to 34%
males. For employees working in schools this figure increases to over

85% female employees compared to just over 14% males. Detailed annual
workforce information reports are published on the Council website.

As a Council we have saved over £22m in the past three years to meet the
financial challenge. In doing this we have still managed to protect key services
such as maintaining roads, keeping communities clean and tidy, leisure
centres, local schools, welfare support and services for older people,
vulnerable children and those with disabilities. The annual Government grant
funding to pay for local services is reducing year on year, between now and
2018 the Council is facing a further budget gap of £53m.

There are seven priorities identified in the Council’s Improvement Plan 2016
onwards:

Housing

Environment

Living Well

Modern and Efficient Council

Economy and Enterprise

Skills and learning

Safe Communities

Each priority is supported by sub priorities. Details of our Improvement Plan
can be found here

Page 121


http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Diversity-and-Equality/Workforce-Information-Report.aspx
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Improvement-Plan-201617-PDFs/Improvement-Plan-2016-17-How-achievement-will-be-measured.pdf

Links to other plans and strategies

The Strategic Equality Plan cannot stand alone if equality is to be
mainstreamed into every day practice; it is linked to:

e Accessibility Strategy schools- to ensure that schools are accessible
for disabled pupils, parents/carers and employees

e Affordable Warmth action plan- ensuring vulnerable residents can
access affordable heating to stay warm

e Dignity at Work policy- The long-term aim is to be a responsive
authority in every aspect of our service activities; providing appropriate,
accessible and effective services and facilities to meet the diverse
needs of our community

e The People Strategy and other Human Resources policies which aim
to ensure that we are fair in all our employment practices

e Domestic Energy Efficiency Project

e Managing Unauthorised Encampments Protocol, which aims to ensure
that the way the Council manages unauthorised Traveller
encampments is fair and proportionate. The objectives are:-

o balance the rights and needs of settled communities with those
of Gypsies and Travellers;

o manage unauthorised encampments in an efficient and effective
way, balancing the rights and responsibilities of Gypsy and
Travellers, local residents and key stake holders;

o work with partner agencies to promote community cohesion and
prevent social exclusion of Gypsies and Travellers;

o set a framework within which clear, consistent decisions can be
made which link to other strategies that effect Gypsies and

Travellers.

Well Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 is a significant piece of
legislation in which we will need to publish a Wellbeing plan in April 2017. This
plan will need to identify seven well-being goals - two of which will have direct
links to the Strategic Equality Plan:

A more equal Wales A society that enables people to fulfil their potential no
matter what their background or circumstances (including their socio
economic background and circumstances).

A Wales of cohesive communities Attractive, viable, safe and well-connected
communities.
The SEP will make a significant contribution to the remaining goals

A prosperous Wales
A resilient Wales

Page 422


http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/150623-guide-to-the-fg-act-en.pdf

A healthier Wales

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

A globally responsible Wales

Links between the Well Being of Future Generations Act, Council Priorities and
Strategic Equality Plan

Well Being of Council Priorities SEP

Future

Generations Act

A prosperous Economy and Enterprise | Reduce inequalities in
Wales representation and voice

Reduce unequal outcomes
in Education to maximise
individual potential

Reduce inequalities in

employment
A resilient Wales | Environment All six equality objectives
A healthier Wales | Living Well Reduce inequalities in
health

Reduce inequalities in
access to information and
services, buildings and the
environment

A globally Environment Reduce inequalities in

responsible access to information and

Wales services, buildings and the
environment

A Wales of Modern and Efficient Reduce inequalities in

vibrant culture Council representation and voice

and thriving Economy and Enterprise

Welsh language | Skills and Learning
Reduce inequalities in
access to information and
services, buildings and the
environment

A more equal Housing
Wales Skills and Learning All six equality objectives
Modern and Efficient
Council
A Wales of Safe Communities All six equality objectives
cohesive
communities

Page 123



2.0 Equality Objectives

2.1 Meeting our equality objectives 2012/16. Progress to meeting our
equality objectives is set out in our annual equality reports. During the past
four years we have improved information on the diversity of our employees
and have exceeded our targets. We have also increased the number of
accessible buildings, full details our achievements are set out in our annual
reports. Examples of how we have met the three parts of the General Duty
are set out below:

Promoting equality

¢ Installed photovoltaic solar panels on homes, including pensioner
bungalows, reducing heating bills benefitting older people

e Increasing supply of gas to rural communities and looking at other
ways to reduce heating bills reducing the number of people who
experience or live in fuel poverty

e Awarded Most Improved Welsh Employer by Stonewall Cymru in 2013

e Undertook an Equal Pay Audit to ensure the Council’s pay scheme
rewarded men and women fairly

Eliminating Discrimination, Harassment and Victimisation

e Raised Rainbow Flag and Trans flag to celebrate LGBT History Month
and Trans Day of Remembrance
e Provided Trans awareness training for employees
e Traveller awareness training
e Increased the number of accessible schools
o High Schools, from one, in 2012 to five in 2016
o Primary schools from five in 2012 to fifteen primary schools in
2016
e Provided training on “No Recourse to Public Funds” and “Rights of
European Nationals” to ensure employees did not inadvertently
discriminate against customers
e Hate Crime training was provided by Victim Support for employees
working in Education, Housing and Social Services
e “Prevent!” training was delivered to schools by North Wales Police
e We continue to offer the Two Ticks Scheme, which guarantees
interviews for disabled people who apply for jobs in the Council and
who meet the essential criteria.

! Prevent is a Government strategy encouraging children to develop a positive
attitude to others whilst developing a high regard for themselves

Page1b24


http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Diversity-and-Equality/Strategic-Equality-Plan.aspx
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Diversity-and-Equality/Strategic-Equality-Plan.aspx
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Diversity-and-Equality/Strategic-Equality-Plan.aspx

Fostering Good Relations

e Provided Trans awareness training for employees to help them raise
awareness of the issues facing the Trans community

e Traveller awareness training was provided for employees; the Welsh
Government funded training for elected members

¢ Provided information about Refugees on the Council website

e Training on Roma culture was offered to employees

2.2 Reviewing our objectives

The statutory equality duties require public bodies to set equality objectives in
relation to the protected groups. Objectives should be evidenced based and
outcome focussed to address the most significant areas of inequality leading
to improvements for both employees and customers. The equality objectives
should meet the three parts of the general duty. We must also publish an
objective to address gender pay difference. The action plan to meet our
equality objectives is set out in Appendix 1.

We reviewed our objectives using a variety of approaches:-
Regionally

e We worked collaboratively with other public sector bodies across North
Wales to undertake regional and national research, this is published on
our website

e We consulted with stakeholders on regional objectives. The results of this
workshop can be found here.

Locally

e We worked with local stakeholders from protected groups and employee
forums to identify key issues for them. We asked the following questions
for each objective:

= s this still a priority?

=  Why/why not?

= Are there any specific equality issues for people with protected
characteristics not covered within the existing objectives?

= Are there any other priorities that we need to consider?

e We asked the Council’'s employee forums to review current equality
objectives and the draft regional objectives

e We reviewed progress of our current Strategic Equality Plan and identified
those objectives we struggled to find data to measure progress.

e We also reviewed the data we held on the profile of Council employees
and customers. We found limited data was available about the profile of
customers and employees and where available did not cover all of the

Page 125


http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Diversity-and-Equality/Strategic-Equality-Plan.aspx

protected characteristics. We recognise we need to continue collating data
to monitor any inequalities for specific groups and also to identify areas for
improvements.

A review of local and national assessments and reports included:-

Attainment levels of pupils 2014- this showed that girls still out perform
boy, with 84.7% girls achieving five GCSE’s grades A*- C. The data also
showed that 50% of Looked after Children achieved Key Stage 3
compared to 84.3% of all pupils.

Hate crime figures for Flintshire 2015/16, the table below shows that the
majority of hate crime reports is racist hate crime.

Type of crime | No.
Racist 33
Homophobic 6
Disability 6
Religious 4

Reports from Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) “Is Wales
Fairer’? This identified key challenges as

o Gaps in attainment
Fair recruitment, development and reward in employment
Improve living conditions in cohesive communities
Increase access to justice and encourage democratic participation
Improve access to mental health services and support to people
experiencing poor mental health
Prevent abuse, neglect and ill treatment in care and detention
Eliminate violence, abuse and harassment in the community.

o O O O

o O

Priorities raised during engagement and information gathering:

Access to services- all members of the community can access services, in
particular housing.

Training - all employees and elected members are trained in order to meet
the equality agenda

Contractors and service providers who deliver service goods and works on
behalf of Flintshire County Council need to adhere to the equality agenda
Employment — there is pay equality for men and women and the make - up
of employees reflect the local community

Voice - opportunities for all employees to have a voice in the workplace
and customers to be involved in shaping services

Hate Crime - greater numbers of people reporting incidents and reduction
in incidents

These were consistent with current equality objectives, feedback from
consultation did not identify any equality objectives that should be removed.

Page 1226


http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/publication/wales-fairer
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/publication/wales-fairer

Our revised equality objectives
These are set out in the following pages, feedback indicated that the
objectives should remain and more action focussed on identifying and
addressing local inequalities.
The Regional equality objectives can be found here. These objectives are:
e Address health inequalities
e Address unequal outcomes in education to maximise individual
potential
Address inequalities in employment and pay in the community
Address inequalities in personal safety
Address inequalities in representation and voice
Address inequalities in access to information, services, buildings and
the environment

Meeting our local equality objectives will contribute towards achieving the
Regional equality objectives.

Page 127


file://flintshire.gov.uk/shared/FCC_Fileshare_05/PPP/Strategic%20Equality%20Plan/We%20are%20happy%20to%20provide%20this%20information%20in%20alternative%20formats%20or%20in%20your%20own%20language

Objective 1: Reduce Health inequalities
What we will do by 2020
Improve health outcomes for protected groups

Achievement will measured through:
% of Looked After Children registered with a General Practitioner (GP)
% Looked after Children (LAC) who have had a Health check
Number of LAC waiting to access the Children and Adolescent Mental Health
Service (CAMHS)
% of employees who attend Transgender awareness training
% employees who complete Gypsy Traveller training
Number of people supported to remain in their home because of an
adaptation
% of care leavers who have experienced homelessness during the year.

% of people who are satisfied with care and support that they received
Number of events (and take-up) aimed at raising awareness of dementia
across the county

. Minimise the impact of substance misuse on individuals, their families and
communities in the county

Achievement will be measured through:

¢ %Waiting time of less than 20 days from referral to treatment

e Achievement of Welsh Government target for % completed substance
misuse treatments

e % of customers to the service who complete the diversity audit

This is a priority because:

¢ Feedback from both regional and local consultation said this was important.

e Looked after Children and young people share many of the same health
risks and problems as their peers, but often to a greater degree. They often
enter care with a worse level of health than their peers in part due to the
impact of poverty, abuse and neglect. Health assessments are therefore
pivotal to ensure equality of care.
e Statistics show that people who remain in their own home have better
outcomes, older people and disabled people are the most likely groups to be
disproportionately affected Stonewall (2012) reported that LGB people still
remain uncertain as to how they will be treated by health and social care
services.
e Some groups of people in Britain, including Transgender people, Gypsies
and Travellers and homeless people have difficulty accessing health care.

Page1k28



Objective 2: Reduce unequal outcomes in Education to maximise
individual potential

What we will do by 2020

1. Reduce the gap in educational attainment levels between different groups
at all key stages

Achievement will be measured through:

e Annual monitoring and analysis of educational attainment levels of
different protected groups -gender, ethnic background, Free School Meals
(FSM), Looked after Children (LAC)

e 9% of children achieving the core subject indicator at key stage 2 and 4

e Improving outcomes in Mathematics, English and Welsh for all protected
groups, FSM and LAC

e % of LAC who experience 1 or more changes of school

2. Ensure pupils feel safe at school

Achievement will be measured through

e Number of teachers who attend Stonewall Cymru’s Train the Trainer
course

Development of Transgender Reassignment policy for schools
Implementation of Stonewall Cymru’s Education Champion’s action plan
% of reports of identity based bullying taking place at schools

% children reporting that they enjoy school, further education and training
Promotion of 'Respecting Others' guidance to schools;

Organise an annual “Respecting Others” Conference for Young People

This is a priority because:

e Girls outperform boys at all key stages

e 2Research has shown that there has been limited reduction in inequalities
in attainment across Wales between groups, for example, FSM, Gypsy
Travellers

e Research demonstrates that Looked after Children can have greater
challenges such as discord within their own families, frequent changes of
home or school, and lack of access to the support and advice of trusted
adults. Children often enter the care system with a worse level of education
than their peers, in part due to the impact of poverty, poor parenting,
chaotic lifestyles and abuse or neglect. Studies demonstrate that longer
term outcomes and particularly educational outcomes for Looked after
Children and care leavers remain worse than their peers.

e 3Estyn (2014) reported that bullying is a particular risk for:

2 |s Wales Fairer Equality and Human Rights Commission 2015
3 Estyn Action on Bullying 2014

Page 129



O O O O O

pupils with Special Educational Needs

disabled pupils

lesbian, gay, bisexual and Transgender (LGBT) pupils
ethnic minority pupils

pupils from a religious background

Page1k30



Objective 3: Reduce inequalities in employment

What we will do by 2020

1. Identify and address any inequalities within pay, recruitment, retention,
training and promotion processes

Achievement will be measured through:

e Increasing the quality and quantity of workforce data

e Completing and publishing an annual analysis of workforce data and
producing an action plan to address any potential or actual inequalities

2. Ensure employees receive equality training to equip them with skills and
knowledge to meet the Equality Act 2010

Achievement will be measured through:

e the number of employees who complete the equality and diversity
eLearning modules

e the number of equality related courses delivered and numbers of
employees who attend

e number of complaints made by employees of discrimination and identity
based bullying

e number of complaints of discrimination made by job applicants

w

. Support protected groups gain and maintain employment
Achievement will be measured through:

e % of all care leavers who are in sustained education, training or
employment continuously for 12 months and 24 months after leaving care.

e % of people with learning disabilities accessing work opportunities
schemes

e Reducing the number of 18-24 year olds on Job Seekers Allowance

e Increasing the number of training and apprenticeship opportunities

e Securing high levels of 16 year olds in education, employment and
training

This is a priority because:

e Training employees on the public sector equality duty, monitoring diversity
of the workforce, publishing an annual workforce report and setting a pay
objective are all requirements of the Public Sector Equality Duty.

e Consultation has highlighted the need for employees to improve awareness
of equality in particular awareness of disability and reasonable adjustments

e “Research has shown that a pay gap still exists between the average pay
of men and women

4 |s Wales Fairer Equality and Human Rights Commission

Page 131



e Unemployment is higher for some protected groups — young people,
disabled people.

e Studies demonstrate that longer term outcomes and particularly
educational and employment outcomes for Looked after Children and care
leavers remain worse than their peers.

Page1:32



Objective 4: Reduce inequalities in Personal Safety

What we will do by 2020

1. Raise awareness of hate crime

Achievement will be measured by:
e Number of reports of hate incidents by protected characteristic
e Initiatives implemented to promote Hate Crime Awareness Week

2. Raise awareness of Safeguarding
Achievement will be measured by:
e Establish Corporate Safeguarding Panel
e Develop Corporate Safeguarding Policy which includes Modern
Slavery
e Numbers of employees who attend Safeguarding training

3. Address high risk repeat instances of domestic abuse and enable victims
of domestic abuse to remain in their own properties
Achievement will be measured by:
e 9% Percentage of high risk repeat victims of domestic abuse referred to

MARAC (Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference)
e Number of home referral visits undertaken by Neighbourhood Wardens

4. Develop domestic abuse refuge for males to reduce the inequality in
provision in North Wales
Achievement will be measured by:
e Project running and accepting referrals

This is a priority because:
e Consultation identified that hate crime is still an issue for many people
e The EHRC® reported that in Wales the incidence of hate crime was

higher for some groups
e There are a lack of facilities for male victims of domestic abuse

5 |s Wales Fairer Equality and Human Rights Commission 2015

Page 133



Objective 5: Reduce inequalities in Representation and Voice

What we will do by 2020

1. Increase the diversity of the profile of people who participate in public
life and representative bodies.

Achievement will be measured through:

¢ Monitoring the diversity profile of school governors, Schools Councils,
Tenants and Residents Associations and service user planning groups.

e Publish and promote Decision making bodies- how to get involved,”
booklet

2. Improve representation of Protected groups in consultation activities and
equality impact assessments

Achievement will be measured through:

e Number of EIAs presented to Stakeholder group

e % of people reporting they felt involved in any decisions made about

their care and support

e Develop easy and accessible procedures for people to complain when
things go wrong.

Achievement will be measured through:

e Monitoring complaints data to ensure people have access via a range
of communication channels.

This is a priority because:

e Engaging with protected groups and undertaking equality impact
assessments are statutory requirements of the PSED

e This has been raised as an issue during consultation

e Evidence suggests people are more likely to successfully achieve
outcomes if they have been involved in planning their support.

Page 134



Objective 6: Reduce inequalities in access to information and
services, buildings and the environment

What we will do by 2020

1. Promote and increase use of Language Line® across all services when
dealing with customers where language barriers may result in information not
being clearly understood by either parties.

Achievement will be measured by:

e Number of requests for information in different languages and formats

e Agreement of standard statement for wording for all public documents
stating the information can be provided in different languages and formats

e Number of employees attending Deaf awareness training

e % of people reporting they have received care and support through their
language of choice

2. Improve access to services, transport, the built environment and open
spaces which the Council provides or manages

Achievement will be measured by:

e Equality monitoring and analysis undertaken in key services:
Education, Housing, Social Services

e Welsh language and Equality impact assessments incorporated into
the Council’'s Performance Management System

e Number of equality impact assessments undertaken in each Portfolio

e Develop standard clause in contracts to ensure contractors,
Alternative Delivery Models and Community Asset Transfer adhere to
the equality duty and Welsh Language Standards

e Waiting times for Adapted Housing compared to other Housing

e Number and % of New Home employees who attend transgender
awareness training

e Number of Housing employees who attend Gypsy Traveller awareness
training

e Increasing the number of alternative delivery model and community
asset transfers that contain clauses relevant to the PSED and Welsh
Language Standards

This is a priority because:

e Consultation both regionally and locally has identified that this is an
issue

e Disabled people wait longer for adapted accommodation than other
groups

6 Language Line is an organisation providing 24/7 interpretation and translation facilities

Page 135



3. Meeting the Specific Duties

3.1 Arrangements for identifying, collating and publishing information
Employment
We currently monitor the profile of employees by age, disability, ethnicity,

marital status, religion, sex and sexual orientation. Detailed reports are
published annually on our website and include profiles of:-

e the workforce

e levels of pay

e applicants submitted for jobs

e applicants selected for interview

e successful appointments

e leavers

e incidents of bullying and harassment

e disciplinary action

e employees who have received training
Schools

We also collate data on the profile of school pupils by age, ethnicity, gender,
language, in relation to:-

attainment (key stages 2, 3, 4 and 5)
attendance

exclusions

free school meal entitlements

Pagezb36


http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Diversity-and-Equality/Workforce-Information-Report.aspx

Data on attainment at specific key stages is published in the annual equality
report. The data is collated as part of Pupil Level Annual School Census
(PLASC) and published by the Welsh Government.

Services

A profile of customers is collated by Social Services for Adults, Social
Services for Children, Housing and Customer Services through the Council’s
complaints and comments system. This information is published in the annual
equality report on our website. Residents’ surveys, satisfaction surveys and
consultation exercises also capture equality information.

3.2 Arrangements for assessing impact

To meet the specific duty all public authorities are required to set out the
methods of impact assessments on policies and practices. This is to ensure
that the needs and concerns of all protected groups are taken into
consideration.

An equality impact assessment (EIA) screening tool and template for a full
impact assessment have been developed. This now incorporates Welsh
language. Rolling programmes of workshops to support Portfolios undertake
ElAs have been implemented. Each impact assessment will be endorsed by
the relevant Portfolio. A group of stakeholders representing protected
characteristics from both employees and members of the public review EIAs
and provide feedback to authors. EIAs have been integrated into the
performance management system to facilitate more effective monitoring.
Summaries of EIAs which have a significant impact as agreed by the
stakeholder group are published on our website.

All reports to Committee have a Risk Assessment section which needs to
include Equality and Welsh language Impact. This section has to be completed
by the author of the report.

3.3 Arrangements for promoting knowledge and understanding and
identify training needs of employees in relation to public sector duties

This section sets out the Council’'s arrangements for ensuring employees
have the knowledge, skills and attitudes to meet the general and specific duty.
We recognise that some awareness raising / training will be generic which all
employees will need to attend and other training will be more specifically
related to individual job roles and will support them to implement the SEP.

Specific activities to support these arrangements include:-
o Bespoke workshops on Equality Impact Assessments.

e Training to support initiatives such as Deaf Awareness Week, Gypsy and
Traveller History Month Lesbian, Gay Bisexual and Transgender History

Page 137


http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/schooldata/ims/datacollections/pupillevelannualschoolcensus/?lang=en

3.4

Month and promote awareness and understanding of specific equality
issues.

Stonewall Cymru have been commissioned to deliver training on specific
issues, such as dealing with homophobic bullying. They will also be
delivering training to Teachers and school Governors

Resources are available on the Council’s intranet including guidance for
working with people from the protected groups.

The introduction of an e-learning modules on the Equality Act 2010,
equality and diversity and impact assessments. The first two modules
have to be completed by all new starters.

Training needs in relation to the public sector equality duties will be
identified as part of the appraisal process.

How we will incorporate equality into Procurement

When procuring works, goods or services from other organisations a public
body in Wales must:-

have due regard to whether it would be appropriate for the award
criteria for that contract to include considerations to help meet the
general duty

have due regard to whether it would be appropriate to stipulate
conditions relating to the performance of the contract to help meet the
three aims of the general duty.

In some contracts equality will be a core requirement and this will be set out in
detail within the contract. The Flintshire County Council Procurement Policy
states its commitment to:-

Users of all services

Council core and policy objectives
Compliance with service aims and objectives
Continuous improvement

Quality and equality

Operational efficiency

Our Contract Procedure Rules include all the protected characteristics into the
pre- qualification questionnaire (PQQ) for tenders. Guidance is available for
employees on the inclusion of equality considerations into specific contracts.
Draft guidance is also available for contractors on what we expect from them
when they provide goods, services, and works on our behalf. We will also be
holding briefings for contractors to increase their awareness of our
expectations regarding equality and contracts.

Pagezh38



4 Monitoring and review

4.1 Actions and measures will be incorporated into the Council’s performance
management system and progress will reported to Cabinet annually and as
when needed. A report describing progress to meeting the equality objectives
will be published annually; relevant equality information will be published in
this report. Progress will be monitored through the Chief Officer Team,
Equality Impact Assessment Stakeholder Group, Cabinet and relevant
Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

The Strategic Equality Plan will be reviewed against the Well- being Plan for
Flintshire when developed in 2017 and revised if necessary or if monitoring
indicates that there are emerging areas of inequality that need to be
addressed urgently. If the objectives are revised the Strategic Equality Plan
will be republished otherwise it will be republished in 2020.

5. Publication

The Strategic Equality Plan will be published on our website and will be
available in English, Welsh and Easy Read. A summary will be available in
British Sign Language DVD. Other formats and languages will be available on
request. Information on the profile of the workforce is published annually.

Thank you for reading our Strategic Equality Plan 2016/2020.
Views and suggestions for the Strategic Equality Plan are welcome.

Please contact us on: Tel: @ 01352 702131

Email: £ Stephanie.aldridge @flintshire.gov.uk

Page 139



Pagezk40



Appendix 1 Strateqgic Equality Plan Action Plan 2016- 2020

Objective 1 Reduce Health Inequalities

Improve health outcomes for protected groups

Task Who Date Measure Base line
2015/2016

Develop and implement Team Manager | To be Number of Looked after Children (LAC) To be
action plan to reduce waiting | Performance confirmed | waiting to access the Children and confirmed
times for children accessing and Planning Adolescent Mental Health Service
mental health services and (CAMHS)
Development
;? Officer
Q Explore alternative providers | Team Manager | To be
@ for children’s mental health Performance confirmed
'_; and Planning
= and
Development
Officer
Incorporate need for health Team Manager | To be % of health assessments for LAC in time
assessments within Foster Performance confirmed | scales To be
Care training and Planning confirmed
and
Development
Officer
Incorporate prompt Team Manager | To be % LAC Registered with GP 100%
registration with General Performance confirmed




2T obed

Practitioner (GP) and dentist | and Planning % LAC registered with a dentist within 3 To be
in PARIS (care assessment and months of becoming registered confirmed
system) Development
Officer
Organise annual Trans Policy Advisor annually number of employees who attend 10
awareness training to Equality and Transgender awareness training
coincide with Trans Cohesion
remembrance day
Explore potential to provide Policy Advisor March Trans awareness e-learning available 2016/17 is a
training through e-learning Equality and 2017 baseline year
Cohesion for this data
Develop e-learning module Regional December | % employees who complete Gypsy 2016/17 is a
on Gypsy Traveller Community 2017 Traveller e-learning modules baseline year
awareness Cohesion Co- for this data
ordinator
Provide annual Gypsy Policy Advisor Annually % employees who attend Gypsy Traveller | To be
Traveller awareness training | Equality and awareness training confirmed
Cohesion/Learni
ng and
Development
Manager
Implement Social Care Team Manager | On going The number of people supported to 2016/17 is a
Training Strategy Performance remain in their own home because of a baseline year

and Planning
and
Development
Officer

home adaptation.

for this data

28




ey T abed

Implement Supporting People | Housing On going % of care leavers, by protected To be

Improvement Plan Support Co- characteristic, who have experienced confirmed
ordinator homelessness during the year

Implement Social Care Planning and On going  |% of people, by protected characteristic, 2016/17 is a

Training Strategy Development who are satisfied with care and support baseline year
Officer that they received for this data

Implement Dementia Friendly | Planning and
communities action plan

Development
Officer

Number of events (and take-up) aimed at
raising awareness of dementia across the
county

2016/17 is a
baseline year
for this data

Minimise the impact of substance misuse on individuals, their families and communities in the

complete substance
misuse treatments

and Development
Officer

lask Measure Baseline
Minimise the impact of | Regional Substance To be % waiting time of less than 20 days from | 90.91%
substance misuse on Misuse Commissioning | confirmed | referral to treatment
individuals , their and Development
families and Officer
communities in the
county
Supporting those Regional Substance To be % of completed substance misuse 78.91%
receiving treatment to | Misuse Commissioning | confirmed | treatments

29




v T obed

Objective 2 Reduce unequal outcomes in Education to maximise individual potential

Reduce the gap in educational attainment levels between different groups at all key stages

Task

Who

DE(S

Measure

Baseline
Data

scrutiny of school
improvement plans,
ensure that schools
are effectively
targeting the use of the
Pupil Deprivation

GCSEs passes A*- C)

Through Regional Senior Manager Annual Annual analysis % of children (by gender, | FSM:
School Improvement School Improvement ethnic background, FSM, LAC) for core -KS 3=71.3%
Service (GWE) work to subject indicator at all key stages.
raise standards
achieved by learners % of learners entitled to FSM in
who are entitled to achieving the Level 1 and Level 2
Free School Meals Indicator (Five GCSEs passes A* -C)
(FSM) by undertaking % of LAC who have experienced one or 2016/17 isa
analysis of attainment more changes of school baseline year
across all key stages for this data
by gender and by FSM
% LAC reporting that they enjoy school, 2016/17 isa
further education or training baseline year
for this data
Implement Supporting | Housing Support Co- On going % of care leavers, by protected 2016/17 is a
People Improvement ordinator characteristic, who have experienced baseline year
Plan homelessness during the year. for this data
Through GwWE Senior Manager Autumn | % of learners entitled to FSM in achieving | To be
Challenge Advisors School Improvement. Term 2016 | the Level 2 and Level 2 Indicator (Five confirmed

30




GiT obed

Grant to support
learners entitled to
FSM to improve

outcomes.
Ensure pupils feel safe at school
Task Who Date Measure Baseline
Promote Stonewall GwE Regional School | Annual Number of teachers who attend training To be
Train the Trainer Improvement Service confirmed
course to encourage
schools to send
representatives
Draft Transgender Healthy Schools To be Transgender Reassignment policy N/A
Reassignment policy Officer, Inclusion confirmed | published on Moodle
for schools Officers, Children and
Young People’s
Partnership
Involve and consult Healthy Schools To be
with Trans community | Officer, Inclusion confirmed
on draft policy Officers, Children and
Young People’s
Partnership
Draft Equalities Plan Healthy Schools Autumn All schools adopt updated policy N/A
for schools Officer Term 2016
Promote 'Respecting Healthy Schools To be % of reports of identity based bullying 2016/17 is a
Others' guidance to Officer; Inclusion confirmed taking place at schools baseline year

schools

Officers; Children and
Young Peoples’
Partnership

for this data

31




ot T abed

Organise annual
conference
“‘Respecting Others”

Healthy Schools
Officer; Inclusion
Officers; Children and
Young Peoples’
Partnership

To be
confirmed

Objective 3 Reduce inequalities in employment

Identify and address any inequalities within pay, recruitment, retention, training and promotion

processes

Conference organised

Measure

N/A

Baseline

Integrate employee Policy Advisor Equality | December | % response rate to employee diversity School based

equality monitoring into | and Cohesion 2016 audit employees

performance 20%

management system Non school
employees
approx. 30%

Include equality plan Strategic Performance | December | Response rate to diversity audit improves | N/A

as a standing agenda | Lead 2016

item at Performance

Leads monthly

meetings

Undertake annual Workforce Information | Annually Annual action plan and annual report N/A

workforce equality Manager published

analysis of data in line

with the PSED

Develop and Workforce Information | Annually

implement action plan
to address any

Manager and Policy

32



/T abed

potential or actual
inequalities including

Advisor Equality and
Cohesion

Publish annual
workforce information
report

Workforce Information
Manager

Annually

Ensure employees receive equality training to equip them with skills and knowledge to meet
the Equality Act 2010

Baseline

Promote equality Policy Advisor Equality | September | Communications plan developed and N/A

training e-learning and Cohesion 2017 implemented

modules

Equality incorporated Policy Advisor Equality | March Number of employees completing N/A

into appraisal and Cohesion 2017 equality e-learning modules

Develop and Policy Advisor Equality | March number of equality related courses 2016/17 is a
implement training and Cohesion 2017 delivered and numbers of employees baseline year

plan for employees to
support them to meet
equality duties

who attend

number of complaints made by
employees of discrimination and identity
based bullying

number of complaints of discrimination
made by job applicants

for this data

Support protected groups gain and maintain employment

Develop and
implement action plan
to support care leavers
gain employment and
training opportunities

Team Manager
Performance Planning
and Development
Officer

on going

Measure

% of all care leavers, by protected
characteristic, who are in sustained
education, training or employment
continuously for 12 months and 24
months after leaving care

Baseline

2016/17 is a
baseline year
for this data

33




81T abed

progression work
programme for
learners in danger of

disengaging
Objective 4

Enterprise and Chief
Officer Education and
Youth

Reduce inequalities in personal safety

Promote work Team Manager To be % of people with learning disabilities 2016/17 is a

opportunities services | Performance Planning | confirmed | accessing work opportunities schemes baseline year

to increase access and Development for this data
Officer

Maximise the number | Chief Officer To be Number and % of young people not in

of apprenticeships, Community and confirmed | education, employment or training

traineeships and work | Enterprise; Chief

experience Officer Education and Number of 18-24 year olds on Job

opportunities Youth Seekers Allowance

Support the Young Chief Officer To be

Entrepreneur Community and confirmed

Programme with the Enterprise; Chief

Flintshire Business Officer Education and

Entrepreneurship Youth

Network

Develop the Youth Chief Officer To be Number % of young offenders not in

Engagement and Community and confirmed | education, employment or training

Raise awareness of hate crime

Task

Who

Date

Work with North Wales | Policy Advisor Equality | Annually

Public Sector Equality
Network to develop

and Cohesion

Measure

Number of reports of hate crime by
protected characteristic

Baseline

Data
49

34




61T abed

and implement a joint
communications plan
to raise awareness of
hate crime

Initiatives to raise awareness of hate
crime implemented

2016/17 is a
baseline year
for this data

Support Victim Support | Policy Advisor Equality | Annually Number of employees who attend training
to provide hate crime and Cohesion
awareness sessions to
employees
Implement Social Team Manager To be % of people reporting that they feel safe. | 2016/17 is a
Services Improvement | Performance and confirmed baseline year
Plan Planning and for this data
Development Officer
Implement Team Manager To be % of adult protection reports where the 100%
safeguarding training Performance and confirmed | risk has been managed.
Planning and
Development Officer
Implement early Team Manager To be % of re-registrations of children on Child | 2016/17 is a
interventions/ Performance and confirmed | Protection Register (CPR). baseline year

preventative training

Planning and
Development Officer

for this data

The average length of time of children on
the CPR.

2016/17 is a
baseline year
for this data

Raise awareness

Develop safeguarding
policy which includes
Modern Slavery

of Safequardino

Corporate
Safeguarding Panel

September
2016

Measure
Policy published

Baseline
N/A

35




0GT abed

Identify organisational | Corporate September | Training needs analysis undertaken N/A

training needs relating | Safeguarding Panel 2016

to Safeguarding

Develop safeguarding | Corporate September | Training plan in place N/A

training plan Safeguarding Panel 2016

Implement Corporate January Number and % of employees who attend | 2016/17 is a
safeguarding training Safeguarding Panel 2017 safeguarding training baseline year

plan

for this data

Address high risk repeat instances of domestic abuse and enable victims of domestic abuse to
remain in their own properties

Task Who Date Measure Baseline
Ensure that high risk Public Protection Ongoing % of high risk repeat victims of domestic | 28% (Home
repeat instances of Manager abuse referred to MARAC Office target)
domestic abuse are

referred to MARAC

Home safe referral Anti-Social Behaviour | Ongoing Number of home referral visits TBC

visits undertaken by
the Neighbourhood

Wardens

Co-ordinator/Trading
Standards Team
Manager

Develop domesti

Task

Develop domestic
abuse refuge for males
to reduce the
inequality in provision
in North Wales

c abuse refuge for males to reduce the inequality in provision in North Wales

Who

Community Support
Services Manager

Date
To be
confirmed

Measure
Number of referrals

Baseline
2016/17 is a
baseline year
for this data

36




TGT abed

Objective 5 Reduce inequalities in Representation and Voice

bodies

Measure

Increase the diversity of the profile of people who participate in public life and representative

Baseline

Carry out “What Team Manager % of people, by protected characteristic, | 2016/17 is a

Matters” assessment Performance and To be reporting they can do what matters to baseline year
Planning and confirmed | them for this data
Development Officer

Deliver “What Matters” | Team Manager To be % of people, by protected characteristic, | 2016/17 is a

training to Social Performance and confirmed | reporting they felt involved in any baseline year

Services Planning and decisions made about their care and for this data
Development Officer support
Team Manager To be % of people, by protected characteristic, | 2016/17 is a
Performance and confirmed | who are satisfied with care and support baseline year
Planning and that they received for this data
Development Officer

Improve representation of Protected groups in consultation activities and equality impact

assessments
Task Who Date Measure Baseline
Implement new Team Manager To be % of parents reporting that they felt 2016/17 isa
assessment framework | Performance and confirmed | involved in any decisions made about baseline year
for children and young | Planning and their child’s care and support for this data
people Development Officer
Implement new Team Manager To be % of carers reporting they felt involved in | 2016/17 is a
assessment framework | Performance and confirmed | designing the C and S plan for the person | baseline year
for carers and training | Planning and that they care for for this data
for carers Development Officer

37




ZGT obed

Develop easy and

accessible procedures
for people to complain
when things go wrong.

Customer Services
Team Leader

To be
confirmed

Number and % of complaints of
discrimination

2016/17 is a
baseline year
for this data

Objective 6 Reduce inequalities in access to information and services, buildings and the

environment

Promote and increase use of Language Line across all services when dealing with customers

where language barriers may result in information not being clearl

Date

Measure

understood by either parties

Baseline

Promote and increase | Customer Services April 2017 | Number of requests for information in 9 requests for

use of Language Line | Officer different languages and formats languages

across all services 4 requests for
formats

Develop standard Policy Advisor Equality | April 2017 | Agreement of standard statement for N/A

wording for all key and Cohesion wording for all public documents stating

documents to promote the information can be provided in

that they are available different languages and formats

in different formats

Deaf awareness Policy Advisor Equality | Annually Number and % employees attending 9

training commissioned | and Cohesion training

and delivered annually

during Deaf

Awareness week

Promote interpretation | Team Manager To be % of people reporting they have received | 2016/17 is a

and translation Performance and confirmed | care and support through their language | baseline year

services of choice for this data

38




€GT abed

Planning and
Development Officer

Develop joined up
working with customer
services teams within
the Community and
Enterprise portfolio to
provide a consistent
approach towards
customer contact

Housing Strategy
Officer

April 2016

Consistent information provided by all
teams

N/A

Improve access to services, transport, the built environment and open spaces which the
Council provides or manages

Measure

Baseline

Promote the Licensing Team To be Number of concessionary rate referrals To be
availability of Leader confirmed | received by the Pest Control Team confirmed
concessionary rates

for Pest Control to

enable all residents to

live in clean and pest

free homes

Guidance provided to | Policy Advisor Equality | December | Equality monitoring undertaken N/A
key services to support | and Cohesion and 2016 systematically in Education, Housing and

them to undertake Performance Leads Social Services

equality monitoring

systematically

Develop electronic Policy Advisor Equality | June 2017 | Welsh Language and Equality impact N/A

toolkit

and Cohesion

assessments incorporated into the
Council’s Performance Management
system

39




vGT obed

Number of impact assessments
completed in each Portfolio

To be
confirmed

Develop Standard
clauses for contracts to
ensure compliance
with equality duty and
Welsh Language
Standards

Policy Advisor Equality
and Cohesion

October
2016

Standards clauses for contracts and
Service level Agreements in place

N/A

Develop guidance for
contractors, alternative
delivery models
(ADMS) and
Community Asset
Transfers (CAT) to
support them to
comply with the PSED
and Welsh Language
Standards

Policy Advisor Equality
and Cohesion

December
2016

Number of ADMs and CATs containing
equality and Welsh language clauses

2016/17 is a
baseline year
for this data

Continue to improve
waiting times for
adapted housing

Housing

On going

Waiting times for adapted housing
compared to other housing

To be
confirmed

Employees in
customer facing posts
to attend Transgender
awareness training

Customer Services
Officer

April 2017

Number and % employees who attend
training

To be
confirmed

NEW Homes
employees to attend
transgender
awareness training

Housing Strategy
Officer

April 2017

Number and % employees who attend
training

TBC

40




GGT obed

Employees with Gypsy | Housing Strategy April 2017 | number and % employees who attend TBC
Traveller Officer training

responsibilities to

attend relevant

awareness training

Prepare options to Customer Services April 217 Options identified N/A

meet the assessed Manager

accommodation needs

of the Traveller

community

Ensure employees Customer Support December | Number of employees who attend training | 2016/17 is a
have skills and Manager 2017 baseline year

knowledge to meet
needs of Refugees

41




Appendix 2 Profile of the population of Flintshire
Age

Table 1: Age Structure (2001 & 2011)

Source: Census 2011 table KS102EW

Flintshire

Age Structure

All People 148,629 - 152,506 - -

0 - 15 Years 30,529 20.5% 28,644 18.8% 18.2%

16 - 64 Years 95,914 64.5% 97,026 63.6% 63.5%

65+ Years 22,151 14.9% 26,336 17.6% 18.4%
Disability

Disability is defined in the Equality Act 2010 as a physical or mental
impairment which has a long term and substantial effect on their ability to
carry out normal day to day activities. This also includes severe disfigurement.
The exact numbers of disabled people living in Flintshire is not known; the
following tables provide some limited information.

Table 2: Long Term Health Problem or Disability (2011)

Source: Census 2011

Day-to-day Day-to-day Day-to-day

local authority All people activities activities activities not
limited a lot limited a little limited

Flintshire 152,506 14,474 15,189 122,843

Gender Reassignment

Data is not available on the numbers of transgendered people in Flintshire.
However, a social group for the LGBT community is based in Flintshire and is
well attended. In addition a support group, Unique, has been established for
several years to support the Trans community from across North Wales. This
group meets on a regular basis in the county of Conwy.

Gender Recognition Certificates issued

As of the end of June 2015, since the Gender Recognition Act 2004 came into
force (April 2005), data for the UK shows that:

e 4,631 applications have been received

3,999 full Gender Recognition Certificates (GRCs) have been issued by
the Gender Recognition Panel

Page4b56



e 183 interim Gender Recognition Certificates have been issued by the
Gender Recognition Panel (67% converted to full GRCs)
e 193 applications have been declined

110 applications are still pending

Race

The Equality Act 2010 defines ‘race’ as including colour, nationality and ethnic or national
origins.

A person has the protected characteristic of race if they fall within a particular racial group.

There is a low percentage of people from a non—White background (this has
grown from 0.5% in 1991 to 0.8% in 2001 to 1.5 in 2011 as identified in the
2011 Census).

Romany Gypsies and Irish Travellers There is one Council owned permanent
site and 11 privately owned sites for the Travelling community. Another
privately owned site has been granted temporary planning permission for five
years. A profile of unauthorised encampments is maintained by the Council
and reported to the Welsh Government. This highlights the frequency and
pattern of stopping off points across the county.

Since 2004 more people from Eastern Europe have moved to work and live in
Flintshire. These communities tend to be based in the Deeside and Flint areas
and are employed in specific sectors, for example, food industry and the
social care sector. The main group of migrant workers are Polish.

Table 3: Ethnic groups (2001 & 2011)
Source: Census 2011 table KS201EW & Census 2001 table KS006

Flintshire ‘ WEIEH
Consus  Z0LECENSUS ol Cencus
% | No. % % %

All people - 152,506 - - -
Asian/Asian British 0.3% 0.8% 2.3% 1.1%
Slr;at?:skéAfrican/Caribbean/BIack 0.3% 0.8% 11% 2 3%
"White 99.2% | 150,161 | 98.5%
White British 146,185 | 95.9% | 96.0% | 93.2%
Mixed / Multiple Ethnic Group 0.4% 851 0.6% 0.6% 1.0%
Other ethnic group 0.1% 1,494 0.1% 0.2% 0.5%

" Ethnic group classifies people according to their own perceived ethnic group and cultural

background. The indicator 'White' includes 'White: English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern
Irish/British', '"White: Irish', '"White: Gypsy or Irish Traveller' and 'White: Other White'.

Page 157



Table 4 Ethnic background Census 2011

Flintshire
2011
Census
No.
All people 152,506
White British 146,185
White Irish 693
White Gypsy or Irish Traveller 95
White other 3188
Mixed / Multiple Ethnic Group 851
Asian: Indian 296
Asian: Pakistani 87
Asian: Bangladeshi 223
Asian: Chinese 323
Asian: Other 272
Blagk African and Black 142
Caribbean
Other ethnic group 151

Table 5: Country of birth (2001 & 2011)
Source: Census 2011 table KS204EW & Census 2001 table KS005

Flintshire Wales
Census ZOLLCENSUS oL ilLe Consus
~ No. % % %
All people -1 152,506 - - -
People born in Wales 51.1% | 76,243 50% | 75.4% | 72.7%
People born in England 44.7% | 67,578 | 44.3% | 20.3% | 20.8%
People born in Scotland 1,673 1.1% 0.8% 0.8%
People born in Northern Ireland 548 0.4% 0.3% 0.3%
People born in Republic of Ireland 633 0.4% 0.4% 0.4%

People born in other EU countries,
members 2001

People born in other EU countries,
accession countries

People born elsewhere 2,363 1.5% 1.9% 3.3%

1.3% 1,234 0.8% 0.8% 0.9%

- 2,198 1.4% - 0.9%

Page4k58



Languages
Table 6: Languages spoken (Census 2011)

Highest number of non-UK language use \

Other European Language (EU): Slovak

Other European Language (EU): Total

Other European Language (EU): Polish

Other European Language (EU):

Other European Language (EU):

Other European Language (EU):
unaarian

South Asian Language: Total

South Asian Language: Bengali (with

Sylheti and Chatgaya)

East Asian Language: Total

N
[
N
[EEN
N
(o0}
[ERN
[EEN
(00}
[EEN
O
N
[ERN
SN
N
N
w
(00]
o
N
(o0}
[y

Flintshire

Number

Number of British Sigh Language users= 38

Religion

Table 7: Religion (2001 & 2011)
Source: Census 2011 table KS209EW & Census 2001 table KS007

Flintshire Wales
Census  201LCeNsUs Ll coneus
% \[o} % % %
All people - | 152,506 - - -
Christian 79.2% | 101,298 66.4% | 71.9% | 57.6%
Buddhist 0.1% 344 0.2% | 0.2% 0.3%
Hindu 0.1% 158 0.1% | 0.2% 0.3%
Jewish 0.1% 70 0.1% | 0.1% 0.1%
Muslim 0.1% 482 0.3% | 0.8% 1.5%
Sikh 0% 0 0% | 0.1% 0.1%
Other religion 0.1% 362 0.2% | 0.2% 0.4%
No religion 12.9% | 38,726 25.4% | 18.5% | 32.1%

Page 159



The Census 2011 reported that 49.34% of the population in Flintshire is male
and 50.66% are female.

Table 8 : Population of Flintshire (1991, 2001 & 2011)
Source: Census 2011 table KS102

Population | 1991 2001 | 2011
All Persons 141,344 148,629 152,506
Male 69,027 | 72,929 | 75,247
Female 72,317 75,700 77,259

Sexual Orientation

Government actuaries estimate 6% of the population is lesbian, gay or
bisexual (LGB). A social group for the Lesbian Gay Bisexual Transgendered
(LGBT) community meets regularly in Flintshire. Membership is drawn from
across North Wales

Table 9: Sexual Identity by area and identity status (2011 & 2012 January

- December)
Source: Integrated Household Survey, Stats Wales, Welsh Government

All people aged Don't know / Gay Heterosexual No response Other
Lew vzl / Lesbian / Straight
/ Bisexual

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012

Flintshire
& Wrexham 229,000 | 230,000 | 9,000 | 11,500 | 1,500 | 2,000 | 215,400 | 213,300 | 2,600 | 3,000 | 500 | 200

Number of civil partnerships

The number of civil partnerships formed in the UK by same-sex couples was
6,385 in 2010 compared with 6,281 in 2009. This represents a very small
increase of 1.7 per cent between 2009 and 2010. The total number of civil
partnerships formed in the UK since the Civil Partnership Act came into force
in December 2005, up to the end of 2010, is 46,622. Details of Civil
Partnership (CP) Ceremonies conducted in Flintshire are below:-

Number of CP ceremonies conducted Notice of CP

2008/09 5 12
2009/10 10 15
2010/11 7 23

Page4k60



Civil Partnership registrations

1 April 2012 - 31 March 2013 12
1 April 2013 - 31 March 2014 9
Same sex marriage became law on 29 March 2014
1 April 2014 - 31 March 2015 0
1 April 2015 - 30 November 2015 1

Civil Partnership conversions to marriage became law on 10 December

2014
10 Dec 2014 - 31 March 2015 17
1 April 2015 - 30 November 2015 9

Welsh Language

Table 10: Knowledge of Welsh (2001 & 2011)
Source: Census 2011 table KS207WA & Census 2001 table KS025

Flintshire WEES

Conous  201LCensUs  O0lc coneus

% No. % % %

All aged 3+ - 146,940 - - -
No knowledge of Welsh 78.6% | 116,736 | 79.4% | 71.6% | 73.3%
Understands spoken Welsh only 4.4% 7,503 5.1% 4.9% 5.3%
All Welsh speakers 14.4% | 19,343 | 13.2% | 20.5% | 19.0%
Speaks, reads and writes Welsh 10.9% | 13,650 9.3% | 16.3% | 14.6%

Page 161



Table 11: Profile of Welsh speakers by age

Number able % ableto Not able to speak Total

to speak speak Welsh
Welsh Welsh
3-4 545 14.4 3,238 3783
5-9 2,768 33.1 5,605 8,373
10- 14 3,499 38.9 5,498 8,997
15-19 2,298 24.2 7,199 9,497
20- 24 1,152 12.8 7,818 8,970
25-29 892 10.4 7,655 8,547
30-34 938 11.2 7,439 8,377
35-39 1,009 10.4 8,715 9,724
40-44 1,005 8.8 10,470 11,475
45-49 939 8.0 10,776 11,715
50- 54 767 7.6 9,346 10,113
55-59 674 7.1 8,830 9,504
60- 64 721 6.5 10,308 11,029
65- 69 597 7.1 7,858 8,455
70-74 476 7.0 6,368 6,844
75-79 426 8.6 4,503 4,929
80 -84 324 9.4 3,131 3,455
85 + 313 9.9 2,840 3153

Page4k62



Appendix 3 Profile of the Flintshire County Council employees

Profile of workforce as at 31.03.2016

Profile of employees by ethnic origin

Table 1: Profile of the non School employees by ethnic origin

BME 17 0.49
White 2,452 71.03
Not Stated 983 28.48

Table 2: Profile of School employees by ethnic origin

!

BME 7 0.19
White 2,108 57.90
Not Stated 1,528 41.91

Table 3: Profile of the non School employees - leavers by ethnic origin

BME 2 0.35
White 343 59.24
Not Stated 234 40.41

Table 4: Profile of the School employees - leavers by ethnic origin

BME 1 0.31
White 154 47.38
Not Stated 170 52.31

Page 163



Profile of employees who classify themselves as being disabled

Table 5: Profile of Non School employees with disabilities

No 2,286 66.22
Not Stated 1,051 30.45
Yes 115 3.33

Table 6: Profile of School employees with disabilities

No 1,948 53.50
Not Stated 1,651 45.34
Yes 42 1.16

Table 7: Profile of Non School employees- leavers with disabilities

!

No 310 53.54
Not Stated 242 41.80
Yes 27 4.66

Table 8: Profile of School leavers with disabilities

No 144 44 .31
Not Stated 175 53.84
Yes 6 1.85

Pagesb64




Profile of employees by Sexual Orientation

Table 9: Profile of Non School employees by Sexual Orientation

Bi-Sexual 5 1 0.14 0.17
Gay Man 12 0 0.35 0.00
Gay Woman/Lesbian 11 0 0.32 0.00
Heterosexual / Straight 1,137 118 32.93 20.42
Not Stated 2,221 460 64.34 77.74
Other 4 1 0.12 0.11
Prefer Not To Say 62 9 1.80 1.56

Table 10: Profile of School employees by Sexual Orientation

Bi-Sexual 2 0 0.05 0.00
Gay Man 2 0 0.05 0.00
Gay Woman/Lesbian 1 0 0.03 0.00
Heterosexual / Straight 771 59 21.18 18.15
Not Stated 2,826 261 77.62 80.31
Other 5 0 0.14 0.00
Prefer Not To Say 34 5 0.93 1.54

Profile of employees by Religion or Belief

Table 11: Profile of Non School employees by Religion or Belief

Buddhist 3 0 0.09 0.00
Christian 1,146 174 33.20 30.05
Hindu 0 0 0.00 0.00
Muslim 2 0 0.06 0.00
None 512 49 14.83 8.47
Not Stated 1,671 340 48.40 58.72
Other 60 5 1.74 0.86
Prefer Not To Say 58 11 1.68 1.90
Sikh 0 0 0.00 0.00

Page 165




Table 12: Profile of School employees by Religion or Belief

Buddhist 1 0 0.03 0.00
Christian 986 73 27.07 22.46
Hindu 0 0 0.00 0.00
Muslim 1 1 0.03 0.31
None 278 19 7.64 5.85
Not Stated 2,301 225 63.20 69.23
Other 31 0 0.85 0.00
Prefer Not To Say 42 7 1.15 2.15
Sikh 1 0 0.03 0.00

‘
L

Profile of employees by Marital Status

Table 13: Profile of Non School employees by Marital Status

Divorced or in a Dissolved

Partner

Civil Partnership 126 25 3.65 4.32
Married or in a Civil 1,525 221 44.18 38.17
Partnership

Not Marrlgd or in a Civil 697 71 20.19 1226
Partnership

Not Stated 1,087 259 31.49 44.73
Widowed or Surviving Civil 17 3 0.49 0.52

Table 13:Profile of School employees by Marital Status

westvneDeoed g om | om
'\P":rrtﬁee‘:sﬂi;” a Civi 1,389 114 38.15 35.08
'F\,'g:tg"e‘?g:]eig orin a Civil 487 26 13.38 8.00
Not Stated 1,746 184 47.95 56.61
\Fl)\lailcrjt(r)]v(;/red or Surviving Civil 4 0 011 0.00

Pagesk66




Profile of employees by gender

Table 15: Profile of Non School employees by gender

2,247 65.09 1,205 34.91 0 0.00
Table 16: Profile of Non School employees - leavers by gender
338 58.38 241 41.62 0 0.00
Table 17: Profile of School employees by gender
3,112 85.47 529 14.53 0 0.00
Table 18: Profile of School employees - leavers by gender
58 17.85 0 0.00

Page 167



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%!z.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday 18" October 2016
Report Subject North Wales Regional Social Care/Health Partnership
Board
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Social Services
Report Author Chief Officer (Social Services)
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report has been compiled to inform Cabinet of the requirements within Part 9
of the Social Services and Well-Being (Wales) Act 2014 that came into force on 6t
April 2016 and which requires the establishment of a Regional Partnership Board
in each health board region in Wales. The Regional Partnership Board will be a
statutory body with functions defined by the Act and in subsequent regulations with
the force of law. This report will also inform North Wales partners of the steps
which are being taken to establish this Regional Partnership Board.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1

It is recommended that the Council endorses the establishment of the
Regional Partnership Board as described in 1.09 and 1.10 and nominates
its Cabinet Member for Social Services and Chief Officer of Social
Services to sit on the board.

Page 169



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING NORTH WALES REGIONAL PARTNERSHIP BOARD

1.01

The North Wales Region has operated a regional forum bringing together
key partners in Social Care and Health (principally Councils and the Health
Board) for many years. This regional body has worked with the Social
Services Directors and Health Board Officials to manage grants made
available on a regional basis by the Welsh Government to improve joint
working between councils, the health service and independent care
providers. The Act has transferred this activity to the new, statutory
Regional Partnership Boards which will take an overview of the
Intermediate Care Fund and other regional funding streams as directed by
the Minister.

1.02

The new Regional Partnership Board will also take an overview of the
promotion of integrated working. It is proposed that the delivery of
integrated working and the implementation of pooled budgets are
undertaken at the area level in partnership with the Area Directors of the
BCUHB. In order to help meet the statutory timetable a Shadow Board has
been established to enable work on the final terms of reference, priorities
and work programme of the new Board in a two way dialogue with the
constituent members of the Board.

1.03

Part 9 of the Social Services and Well-Being (Wales) Act 2014 requires
local authorities to make arrangements to promote co-operation with their
relevant partners and others in relation to adults with needs for care and
support, carers and children. It places a duty on relevant partners to co-
operate with, and provide information to, the local authorities for the
purpose of planning and delivering their social services functions. This
information will be fundamental to compiling a regional needs assessment
which will guide the work of areas in delivering integrated working locally.

1.04

Part 9 also provides for partnership arrangements between Local
Authorities and Local Health Boards for the discharge of their functions. It
also provides Welsh Ministers with regulation making powers in relation to
formal partnership arrangements, resources for partnership arrangements
(including pooled funds) and partnership boards.

1.05

The purpose of Part 9 is to improve outcomes and well-being of people as
well as improving the efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery. The
key aim of co-operation, partnership and integration are described the
Statutory Guidance as:

e to improve care and support, ensuring people have more say and

control

e to improve outcomes and health and well-being

e provide co-ordinated, person centred care and support

¢ make more effective use of resources, skills and expertise.

1.06

The objectives of the Regional Partnership Boards are to ensure the

Page 170




partnership boards work effectively together to:

e respond to the population needs assessment carried out in
accordance with section 14 of the Social Services and Well-Being
(Wales) Act

e implement the plans for each of the local authority areas covered by
the board which local authorities and local health boards are
required to prepare and publish under section 14A of the Act

e Ensure the partnership bodies provide sufficient resources for the
partnership arrangements, in accordance with their powers under
section 167 of the Act

Promote the establishment of pooled funds where appropriate.

1.07 | Regional Partnership Boards will also be required to prioritise the
integration of services in relation to:
e Older people with complex needs and long term conditions,
including dementia
e People with learning disabilities
e Carers, including young carers
e Integrated Family Support Services
e Develop integrated services for children with complex needs due to
disability or illness and for children and young people with mental
health problems. This includes transition arrangements from
children to adult services
e Ensure that pooled funds are established and managed for the
exercise of care home accommodation and family support functions
as well as for functions that will be exercised jointly as a result of an
assessment carried out under section 14 of the Act. Pooled funds
in relation to care home accommodation are required from 6" April
2018.
1.08 | The North Wales Partnership Board will bring together for the first time on
a full statutory basis all the statutory agencies, Local Authority, Health,
Third and Independent Sector to develop services in the region. The
development of pooled budgets as required by the Social Services and
Wellbeing Act by April 2018, will be an early priority for the board, as will
the most effective commissioning of care homes and home care services
across the region, in a very pressured time for the sector.
1.09 | Statutory guidance lists those who must be members of the Regional

Partnership Board as follows however, regions can co-opt other persons to
be members of the board as appropriate.
e At least one elected member of a local authority which established
the regional partnership board
e At least one member of a Local Health Board which established the
regional partnership board
e The person appointed as director of social services under section
144 of the Act in respect of each local authority which established
the regional partnership board, or his or her nominated
representative
¢ A representative of the Local Health Board which established the
regional partnership board
e Two persons who represent the interest of third sector organisations
in the area covered by the regional partnership board

Page 171




e At least one person who represents the interests of care providers
in the area covered by the regional partnership board

e One person to represent people with needs for care and support in
the area covered by the regional partnership board

e One person to represent carers in the area covered by the regional
partnership board.

1.10

With regard to North Wales each local authority will be represented by its
statutory director and Cabinet/Executive Member for Social Services. It
has also been agreed by the Shadow Body that the North Wales Board will
invite representatives of the Police and Crime Commissioner, the North
Wales Police, the North Wales Fire and Rescue Authority and the Fire
Service to be co-opted onto the Board.

1.11

Appropriate arrangements should be made at a strategic level to engage
with other boards and organisations as needed. There is also a need to
foster engagement through existing networks or forums wherever possible.
In North Wales there is a desire to ensure that existing forums such as
Public Service Boards are connected to the North Wales Regional
Partnership Board and able to influence its work. The new Board will have
a reporting arrangement to the North Wales Regional Leadership Board.

1.12

The main risks of the Partnership Board include there could be duplication
with existing boards, such as the Public Services Boards, and that the
large regional footprint means a clear focus for the Board maybe more
difficult. These risks will be addressed in workshops being held in October,
2016, to ensure the Board starts with an appropriate pace and direction.
The benefits of the board include that it is required by statute as a key part
of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act. It also allows a formal statutory
oversight of key activities and links well to existing mechanisms with a
reporting relationship to the Regional Leadership Board.

1.13

There is a requirement that the Regional Partnership Board prepares and
submits to Welsh Ministers an annual report on the extent to which the
board’s objectives have been achieved. The first report must be prepared
and submitted by 1st April 2017 and must include information on the
membership of the Regional Partnership Board; information on how the
board has met its objectives including financial information and details of
the partnership arrangements in place.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

No resources required apart from the time of the Officer and Cabinet
Member.

3.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01

A workshop with current members of the Partnership Forum and
Leadership Group was held on 14t March 2016; this was a facilitated
session led by the Institute of Public Care, Oxford Brookes University.

Page 172




3.02 | Directors of Social Services and the Head of Regional Collaboration have
presented on the Act to Chief Executives and to the Regional Leadership
Board and highlighted the requirements around Part 9 of the Act.

3.03 | The draft report has been shared and commented on by representatives of
each authority, including the Health Board.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | Whilst it is a requirement to have a Regional Partnership Board, there are
risks associated with the ambition, pace and prioritised areas for
integration of services as required within the Act.

4.02 | Ongoing funding to support the Regional Partnership Board from April
2017 onwards.

4.03 | Whilst the Regional Partnership Board is a statutory body it has no
decision-making powers.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | None

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None
Contact Officer: Neil Ayling
Telephone: 01352 704511
E-mail: neil.j.ayling@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | None.

Page 173



mailto:neil.j.ayling@flintshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%h.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 18 October 2016
Report Subject Revenue Budget Monitoring 2016/17 (month 5)
Cabinet Member Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance
Report Author Corporate Finance Manager
Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This monthly report provides the latest revenue budget monitoring position for
2016/17 for the Council Fund and Housing Revenue Account. This presents the
position, based on actual income and expenditure, as at Month 5 of the financial
year. The report projects how the budget would stand at the close of the financial
year if all things remained equal.

The projected year end position, without mitigation to reduce cost pressures and
improve the yield on efficiency planning, is:-

Council Fund

. Net in year expenditure forecast to be £1.421m higher than budget
. Projected contingency reserve balance of £1.884m

The underlying forecast overspend will be reduced to £0.981m with the successful
negotiation of an additional Welsh Government transport grant of £0.440m. The
position in month 5 is an additional deficit from month 4.

Housing Revenue Account

. Net in year expenditure forecast to be £0.003m lower than budget
. Projected closing balance as at 31 March 2017 of £1.1098m

Page 175



RECOMMENDATIONS

1

Cabinet is recommended to note the overall report and the projected
Council Fund contingency sum as at 31st March 2017.

2 Note the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue
Account.
3 To agree a contribution from the contingency reserve of £0.100m to meet

the resource requirements for specialist social work for child protection
(see paragraph 1.17).

REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE MONTH 5 POSITION

1.01

Council Fund Overall Position

The projected year end position, without mitigation to reduce cost
pressures and improve the yield on efficiency planning, is as follows:-

e Net in year expenditure forecast to be £1.421m higher than budget
e Projected contingency reserve balance of £1.884m

1.02

The underlying deficit balance will be reduced to £0.981m with the
successful negotiation of an additional Welsh Government transport grant
of £0.440m. The Council, along with neighbouring councils, was given
notice in July that one of its contracted transport operators, GHA Coaches,
was going into immediate liquidation. Urgent action was required to secure
the school and public transport subsidised routes operated by GHA
Coaches. The procurement of full replacement service providers is
projected to incur an additional cost of £0.440m for the remainder of
2016/17. The councils affected are in negotiation with Welsh Government
for an additional in-year transport grant to fund these costs. Negotiations
are advanced and the Council expects to recover at least a proportion of
the additional cost. Decisions can then be made with Welsh Government
on transport routing, procurement and costs for 2017/18 onwards. A
recurring negative impact on the 2017/18 financial year can be avoided
through this work.

1.03

Council Fund Latest in Year Forecast

The table shows the projected position by portfolio.

Page 176




TOTAL EXPENDITURE | Original | Revised | Projected | In-Year
AND INCOME Budget Budget Outturn Over/
(Under)
spend
£m £m £m £m
Social Services 58.534 60.346 60.696 0.350
Community & Enterprise 12.035 12.326 11.962 (0.365)
Streetscene & 27.011 28.444 29.455 1.011
Transportation
Planning & Environment 4,978 5.463 5.495 0.032
Education & Youth 11.225 11.404 11.488 0.083
Schools 86.162 87.372 87.372 0.000
People & Resources 4.319 4.633 4.649 0.016
Governance 8.159 8.427 8.463 0.036
Organisational Change 1 5.560 5.972 5.979 0.007
Organisational Change 2 2.244 2.575 2.399 (0.176)
Chief Executive 3.204 3.189 3.133 (0.057)
Central & Corporate 28.552 21.831 22.315 0.484
Finance
Total 251.984| 251.984 253.405 1.421

1.04

The reasons for the projected variances are summarised within Appendix
2 with key significant portfolio variances explained in paragraph 1.07.

1.05

The month 4 report approved use of £0.861m from the contingency
reserve. This use of the contingency fund is reflected in the month 5
projected outturn. Had this use of the contingency reserve not been
approved the month 5 projected outturn would be £2.282m - an increase of
£0.201m from month 4. Key movements between periods are summarised
in Appendix 1.

1.06

Significant Budget Movements between Original and Revised Budget

A significant budget movement of £0.190m has occurred from Central &
Corporate Finance to Social Services due to further distribution of
superannuation increases and employer national insurance increases.
These were centrally held within the Central & Corporate Finance budget
when the 2016/17 budget was set.

1.07

Streetscene and Transportation

There is a significant variance within the portfolio of £1.011m. This will be
reduced to £0.571m with the successful negotiation of an additional Welsh

Page 177




Government transport grant of £0.440m as described in 1.02. Full details
of all other variances are given in Appendix 1.

1.08 | Programme of Efficiencies
The 2016/17 budget contains £11.282m of specific efficiencies which are
being tracked and monitored. An amount of £0.761m was approved from
the contingency reserve in the month 4 report to meet the impact of
conscious decisions to change proposals for household recycling centres,
community asset transfers, town centre car parking charging and
workforce essential car user allowances resulting in a revised efficiency
target of £10.521m.

1.09 | The table below shows how the use of the contingency reserve has altered
the efficiency target for 2016/17.

£(m)

2016/17 Budget Efficiencies 11.282
Met from Contingency Reserve;

Household Recycling Centres (0.250)
Community Asset Transfers (0.200)
Town Centre Car Parking Charging (0.100)
Workforce Essential Car User Allowance (0.211)
Revised 2016/17 Efficiency Target 10.521

1.10 | Appendix 3 provides detail on the latest position where there is a variation
to the level of efficiency achievable compared to the budget.

1.11 | This shows that it is currently projected that £9.612m (91%) will be
achieved resulting in a net underachievement of £0.909m. The position
will continue to be monitored and reported in future monitoring reports.

1.12 | Inflation
Included within the 2016/17 budget are provision for pay (£0.936m),
targeted price inflation (£0.573m) and income (£0.185m).

1.13 | No provision has been made for non-standard inflation (NSI) in 2016/17.
Areas that may be subject to NSI increases will be monitored throughout
the year and any emerging pressures will be considered in future reports.
Reserves and Balances

1.14 | Un-earmarked Reserves
The 2015/16 outturn reported to Cabinet on 19 July 2016 showed un-
earmarked reserves at 31 March 2016 (above the base level of £5.769M)
of £4.375M.

1.15 | Taking into account the current projected overspend at Month 5 and

previously agreed allocations the balance on the contingency reserve at 31
March 2017 is projected to be £1.884m as detailed in appendix 4.

Page 178




1.16

This takes into account the allocation of £0.861m approved at month 4 to
meet the financial impact of the changed proposals for household recycling
centres, community asset transfers, town centre & county hall car parking
charging and workforce essential car user allowances. This also takes into
account an additional allocation of £0.022m for costs of historic child
abuse claims which will be met from the contingency reserve as previously
agreed.

1.17

There is an increased need for specialist social work capacity for child
protection support working in partnership with statutory agencies.
Currently there are projected costs of £0.100m being shown within the
Children’s Service budget and it is recommended that this be met from the
contingency reserve.

1.18

Earmarked Reserves

The Council adopted a reserves protocol in September 2015 which set out
the principles around how the Council determines, manages and reviews
its level of reserves. Within the protocol is reference to regular reporting of
the latest position to Cabinet and Corporate Resources Overview and
Scrutiny Committee.

1.19

The table below gives a summary of earmarked reserves as at 1 April
2016 and provides an estimate of projected balances as at the end of the
current financial year.

1.20

Reserve Type Balance as at Balance as at
1/4/16 (£000) 31/3/17 (£000)

Service Balances 5,024,743 1,403,175
Schools Balances 2,306,721 1,147,740
Single Status/Equal Pay 7,548,813 4,482,672
Investment & Organisational Change 1,268,651 767,514
Budget Strategy - General Reserves 4,460,118 3,030,741
Benefits Equalisation 192,699 85,070
County Elections 193,857 193,857
Supporting People 832,163 386,638
Community Equipment Store 0 0
Unitary Development Plan (UPP) 646,982 480,000
Building Control 90,611 90,611
Waste Disposal 370,859 310,433
Countryside 0 0
Flintshire Enterprise Ltd 72,892 72,892
Third Party Claims 0 0
Design Fees 200,000 200,000
Winter Maintenance 250,000 250,000
Car Parking 86,284 0
Insurance Funds 1,221,558 1,405,000
Cash Receipting Review 241,295 0
Grants & Contributions 2,737,077 734,739
Total 27,745,323 15,041,082

Page 179




1.21

Housing Revenue Account

The 2015/16 Outturn Report to Cabinet on 19 July 2016 showed an un-
earmarked closing balance at the end of 2015/16 of £1.178m (subject to
audit).

1.22

The 2016/17 budget for the HRA is £31.979m which includes a movement
of £0.080m from reserves.

1.23

The Month 5 monitoring for the HRA is projecting in year expenditure to be
£0.003m lower than budget and a closing balance as at 31 March 2017 of
£1.098m, which at 3.4% of total expenditure satisfies the prudent approach
of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

The Revenue Budget Monitoring Report reflects the planned use of the
financial resources of the Council for the current financial year and details
the variations in the first four months and the risks as known.

3.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01

None required.

4.00

RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01

Achievement of Planned In-Year Efficiencies

The Council sets a challenging level of specified efficiencies to be
achieved in-year as part of its approach to annual budget planning. These
efficiencies are generated from the three year service portfolio business
plans and from corporate financial planning. In recent years the level of
efficiency achievement has averaged at around 85%. The current
assessment of the efficiency profile for 2016/17 shows that 91% of the
efficiencies would be achieved. There is a risk that the shortfall cannot be
mitigated other than drawing on temporary funding from the Contingency
Reserve. There is a further risk that any ongoing underachievement of
efficiencies will have a recurring and negative impact on the 2017/18
budget as an efficiency target deficit would in effect be carried forward.
Risk status: unstable/amber risk.

4.02

In-Year Reductions in Government Specific Grants

This has been a trend in recent years whereby specific grants awarded by
Government, and its grant awarding bodies, can be reduced in year and
with limited notice. In such cases the Council faces the difficult choice of
either reducing the services which the grants fund or absorbing the grant
deficit as an in-year cost pressure. Whilst grants are tracked and

Page 180




representations are made to Government when any risks of grant
reductions become known, this remains an open risk. Risk status:
unstable/amber risk.

4.03

Cost Pressures in Residential and Domiciliary Care

The Council is faced with having to meet high levels of annual cost
inflation for commissioned places and homecare packages in the
residential and domiciliary provider markets due, in the main, to the
introduction of the Living Wage and its impact on the payroll costs of
providers. In setting its annual budget the Council referred to the need to
set aside reserves of £0.646m to meet the additional inflationary costs for
2016/17 as a temporary funding solution only if additional funding was not
available to fund these increases. The Council has been successful in
securing £0.5m from the Intermediate Care Fund (ICF) to part fund these
costs. This will mean that only an amount up to £0.146m will have to be
found from reserves. The projected budget figures for the Social Services
portfolio for 2016/17 reflect this net cost. There is no confirmation at this
stage that the use of the ICF is this way will be continued for 2017/18 and
the inflationary costs within the care sector will continue to increase as
profiled in previous reports. Therefore there are risks of significant
cumulative cost pressures in this sector. Risk status: unstable/red risk.

4.04

Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI)

MMI was the predominant insurer of public sector bodies prior to 1992
before going into liquidation. Flintshire was required to pay a levy of 15%
of its share of the claims paid out previously and for any future claims.
Other local authorities likewise have to make a contribution. When MMI’s
administrator published their 2015 accounts it showed that due to an
increase in the number of claims overall there would need to be an
increase the levy to meet liabilities. A recommendation was approved in
2015/16 to meet a significant liability which reflects a 20% increase in the
levy. Whilst financial provision has been set aside for the risk assessed at
that time the risk of a further increase in the levy remains open as legal
work on claims is protracted with uncertain outcomes.

Risk status: stable/green risk.

4.05

Historic Child Abuse Settlements

A number of historic child abuse cases, which predate the existence of
Flintshire County Council, have been settled this financial year. There are
still a number of outstanding cases to be settled and it is difficult to
estimate the full financial impact of these. The financial provision set aside
may not prove to be sufficient to meet the cost liabilities of all cases when
closed. Risk status: unstable/amber risk.

4.06

Landfill Site Energy Income

The Council derives an income from the sale of electricity produced from
gas extraction at the Standard and Brookhill landfill sites. Energy
production and therefore income levels have been reducing over time.
There is potential for further loss of gas engine income through diminishing
levels of gas. The service is being out sourced to remove the risk longer-

Page 181




term. Risk status: stable/amber risk.

4.07

Orphaned Industrial Site at Sandycroft

The contract for the removal of all chemical deposits, site cleansing and
site close-down will come to a conclusion in the late autumn/early winter.
The contract has had to be flexible to meet the unforeseen given the
unique circumstances of this case (the former Euticals company). There
may be an additional cost pressure as the Council is having to maintain
the site for a longer period than first expected to see out the site closure
programme. The monthly cost of maintaining and securing the site is £25-
30,000. At the close of the programme the final cost can be determined. It
might be possible to set any overspend against the reserve provision set
aside for the contract (for which a partial Welsh Government grant of
£0.700m was secured) and/or from any proceeds for the site disposal
which will follow. Risk status: unstable/amber risk.

4.08

Infrastructure for improvement works at Bagillt

The recent flooding events in the Bagillt area resulted in a number of
properties being flooded. Drainage works have been carried out to improve
the existing outlet from Reeces Terrace, and further investigatory works
are being undertaken which could result in additional expenditure if major
infrastructure improvement is required to prevent further flooding. Risk
status: unstable/amber risk.

4.09

Procurement of Transport Services

As explained in 1.02 above there is an in-year budget risk of an additional
procurement cost of £0.440m for local transport services. Negotiations are
ongoing with Welsh Government over additional grant support. Risk status:
unstable/amber risk.

5.00

APPENDICES

5.01

Appendix 1: Council Fund — Movement in Variances from Month 4
Appendix 2: Council Fund — Budget Variances

Appendix 3: Council Fund — Programme of Efficiencies

Appendix 4: Council Fund — Movement on Un-earmarked Reserves
Appendix 5: Housing Revenue Account Variances

6.00

LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01

None required

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson
Telephone: 01352 702287
E-mail: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 182



mailto:sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

Budget: a statement expressing the Council’s policies and service levels
in financial terms for a particular financial year. In its broadest sense it
includes both the revenue budget and capital programme and any
authorised amendments to them.

Council Fund: the fund to which all the Council’s revenue expenditure is
charged.

Financial Year: the period of twelve months commencing on 1 April.

Housing Revenue Account: the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a
local authority account showing current income and expenditure on
housing services related to its own housing stock. The account is separate
from the Council Fund and trading accounts and is funded primarily from
rents and government subsidy.

Projected Outturn: projection of the expenditure to the end of the
financial year, made on the basis of actual expenditure incurred to date.

Reserves: these are balances in hand that have accumulated over
previous years and are held for defined (earmarked reserves) and general
(general reserves) purposes. Councils are required to regularly review the
level and purpose of their reserves and to take account of the advice of the
Chief Finance Officer.

Revenue: a term used to describe the day-to-day costs of running Council
services and income deriving from those services. It also includes charges
for the repayment of debt, including interest, and may include direct
financing of capital expenditure.

Underspend: when referring to expenditure the actual expenditure
incurred is less than budget. Shown as a —ve. When referring to income
the actual income achieved exceeds the budget. Shown as a —ve.

Variance: difference between latest budget and actual income or
expenditure. Can be to date if reflecting the current or most up to date
position or projected, for example projected to the end of the month or
financial year.

Virement: the transfer of budget provision from one budget head to
another. Virement decisions apply to both revenue and capital expenditure
heads, and between expenditure and income, and may include transfers
from contingency provisions. Virements may not however be approved
between capital and revenue budget heads.

Medium Term Financial Strategy: a written strategy which gives a
forecast of the financial resources which will be available to a Council for a
given period, and sets out plans for how best to deploy those resources to
meet its priorities, duties and obligations.

Page 183




This page is intentionally left blank



Budget Monitoring Report
Councli Fund Varlances

MONTH 5 - SUMMARY

Appendix 1

Service Movement between |Narrative for Movement between Periods greater than £25k
Perlods
(Em)

Social Services

Older People (0.056)

Localities (0.028)| Delays to recruitment to new posts in Single Point of Access team (£0.041m),
Domiciliary Care - reduced demand (£0.031m), Residential Care - reduced demand
(£0.023m), offset by Localities of £0.071m being budget virements to Children’s
Services to fund a contribution towards a regional advocacy service of £0.036m, and to
Governance portfolio of £0.035m to meet a budget efficiency for reduced costs of
mobile phones. Other minor variances of (£0.004m).

Resources & Regulated Services (0.031)| Day Centres - reduced payments to outside agencies (£0.027m), plus other minor
variances (£0.004m).

Other Minor Variances 0.002

Disability Services 0.359

Resources & Regulated Services 0.199] in-house supported living of £0.098m increased paylagency costs, Work Opportunities
of £0.050m increased pay/agency costs and shortfail of sales income. independent
sector supported living £0.049m due to an increase in service users.

Disability Services 0.038] Increased pay costs.

Forensic budget 0.121} Increase in projected placement costs.

Other Minor Variances 0.001

Mental Health Services 0.002

Residential Placements 0.041]| Increase in current placements.

Other Minor Variances (0.039)

Children’s Services 0.044

Family Placement {0.033)| Reduced projection for special guardianship payments.

Professional Support 0.062| Increased agency costs supporting wider resourcing pressures within service.

Other Minor Variances 0.014

Development & Resources 0.064

Charging Policy income 0.029( Reduced projection foliowing budget realignment to meet other service pressures.

Safeguarding Unit 0.032] Contribution to North Wales Safeguarding Board.

Other Minor Variances 0.003

Total Soclal Services 0.414

Community & Enterprise

Customer And Housing Services (0.017)| Minor variances.

Council Fund Housing 0.007| Minor variances.

Regeneration 0.021] Minor variances.

Revenues & Benefits (0.027)| Further underspend on the Council Tax Reduction Scheme provision {(£0.012m).
Additional surplus on the Council Tax Coliection Fund (£0.006m). Other minor
variances (£0.009m).

Housing Progr 0.003| Minor variances.

Total Community & Enterprise {0.013)

Streetscene & Transportation

Ancillary Services & Performance {0.334)

Waste Collection (0.249)| (£0.250m) of Contingency Reserve funding has been provided to meet the shortfall for
Household Recycling Centres.

Parking & Enforcement (0.104)| (£0.100m) of Contingency Reserve funding has been provided to meet the income
shortfall from Flint Car Parks due to the town centre regeneration preventing charges
being implemented until at least 2017/18.

Other Minor Variances 0.019

Highways Network {0.008)

Other Minor Variances (0.008)

Transportation & Logistics 0.013

Other Minor Variances 0.013

Total Streetscene & Transportation {0.329)

Planning & Environment

Business {0.025)

Heaith & Safety (0.019)| Budget relating to a vacant post has been transferred form Portfolio Admin.

Minor Variances (0.005)

Community (0.027)

Licensing (0.008){ income from Licences received in August at much higher level than expected.

Pest Control {0.012})| income from fees & charges received in August at a much higher level than expected.

Minor Variances {0.007)

Development 0.002

Minor Variances 0.002

Access 0.001

Minor Variances 0.001

Strategy (0.008)

Minor Variances (0.008)

Management Strategy 0.029

Portfolio Admin 0.029|Budget relating to a vacant post has been transferred to Heaith & Safety.

Total Planning & Environment {0.028)

Page 185




Appendix 1

Service Movement between [Narrative for Movement between Periods greater than £25k
Periods
(Em)

Education & Youth

Other Minor Variances 0.022

Total Education & Youth 0.022
|schoals [ (0.000)] ]
Total Schools { {0.000}] J

People & Resources
HR & OD (0.053)| The decrease in outturn is mainly due to employee vacancies within Occupational
Health (£0.019m), Trade Union Facilities (£0.018m) and minor variances (£0.016m).

Corporate Finance 0.038] Increased staffing costs due to the filling of 2 vacant posts.
Total People & Resources {0.015}

Governance

Legal Services (0.012)| Minor variances.

Democratic Services (0.001)| Minor variances.

Procurement (0.010)| Minor variances.

Business Support 0.001| Minor variances.

Total Governance {0.021)

Organlsational Change 1
Pubilic Libraries & Arts, Culture & Events (0.035)| Timing of achieving the CAT (Community Asset Transfer) transfer efficiencies for
Libraries are at the end of the estimated time periods. This results in a pressure this
year only which is associated with continuing to operate these Libraries as a Council
prior to full handover to the community to ensure continuity of operation. A contribution
from the contingency reserve has been given to offset this pressure (£0.030m). Other
minor variances (£0.005m).
County Archives {0.001)| Minor variances.

Leisure (0.150)| Timing of achieving the CAT transfer efficiencies at Connah's Quay Leisure Centre and
Holywell Leisure Centre are at the end of the estimated time periods. This results in a
pressure this year only which is associated with continuing to operate these centres as
a Council prior to full handover to the community to ensure continuity of operation. A
contribution from the contingency reserve has been given to offset this pressure
(£0.170m). Other minor variances of £0.020m.

Total Organisational Change 1 {0.186)

Organlsational Change 2

CPM & Design Services (0.082)( (£0.081m) additionai fees secured above income target as a resuit of new works
awarded within the Design and Maintenance team.
Cleaning (0.030)| Additional cleaning contracts have been awarded resulting in an increase in income of
(£0.030m).
CCTV & Open Spaces 0.029] £0.028m salary overspend as a resuit of a delay in the service restructure which will
now be in place by the end of Sept.
Minor Variances 0.010
Total Organisational Change 2 {0.073)
[Chief Executive | 0.011] Minor variance. ]
[Total Chief Executive ] 0.011] ]
Centrail and Corporate Finance (0 441)| Central Loans and investment Account, (£0.111m), due to reduced level of borrowing

and higher than projected income from investments, due to reserves being higher than
forecast and interest rates being lower than forecast.

Additional Matrix rebate income of (£0.050m), due to increased use of agency staff.

Essential Car User, (£0.211m) funded as one off from contingency reserve as agreed
at month 4.

Car Park income, (£0.100m) funded as one off from contingency reserve as agreed at
month 4.

Additional in year pressure from commercial building £0.031m, security costs.

Total Central and Corporate Finance {0.441)

[Grand Totai {0.659)]

Page 186



(200 0) (600 0) 2890 069°0 SAJUBLEA JOUN
A3UBI01A BUIGUEId S59UIST SNOIASIU € BUIMO0) SUOHESIUEDIQ) AJETUNIOA
0} sjuswAed Joj 186pnqg ay} ul uoganpal e o} anp s) puadsIano vm.uwa.a syl | ao1'0 9600 V60 9v8'0 p|eaH poo
“pIgog bu] 2 M GUON 99
€ pue ‘Juels) 3|doad Buntoddng wayy awodu) patabpng ayy um:_mmm __mEo:m.
e pue (s100) jeg Auaqgy JO uopeaudaq syl yim pajer
51502 |edipaws pue (263] |euonippe Jo uoNeuIquIOd e S puadsiaso patafosd aul | ¥80°0 9110 8060 2640 wun 6ujpsenbajeg
“SIUSLISSASSE [BIoUeU] Ja5N S0IAIaS UIGHM SPIEbalsip
*MBIAD) PUB JOoLOW 0} BNUNUDD Wepad Jo Juadunean ws ul sabueyp Jusaas o) anp s1 awoduy ul aseanul ayl [{921°0) {2ri0) (9v0°2) {668°1) awoauy Agjjog Guibreyd
UISELING SIeMPIEL PUE SJEMJOS 1| 1SUEDE SDUIAE
3OS 0S{e pue Swea) SWaI)SAS SSAUISNG pue YO | I} 14
‘MaJAG) PUE JOJUOW O} 2NURU0Y) ay) uiyum sBuiaes Aouesea yers o) anp Ajulew st puadsiapun quo_Ea ayl J{esL o) {6€1°0) 1640 ag6°0 v [ 14 Ag ssau|sng
EENESED
ssoioe Juawubieas 1abpng e jo ved se pamajaal aq 0} SIOUBLEA JOUJW JO JAqUNU v |(£20 0) (180°0) 669°F S8LP SIOUBUEA JOUIN
“33|AIaS 9Y) JO EBIE 94} YOJaNS OF “83IAJaS 9y} JO EQIE SI} LILIIM SYSU AaY SSaIpPE OF JEIS AC[0ap Of
payieuues uaaq sey yaiym aaiasal A3uabunuod woyp w03 JO uoEsOje puswwosay | PIaU auy) 0} NP SI YDIYM WED) WAWSSASSY B AN syl uiyym puadsiao Buiseasou) | 6860 15°0 PEE'S £88'Y voddng |euoisssjoud
"WNG JO DUUOTUON
panuuo) - PasIwpdo 8q ued Hoddns Jo poLylaw SATBWAYE OU UBYM 3pEeW A|uo ase ‘sjuawaoeid
id 1eqy yaym d jaued jsnqoJ e ybnosy apew ase 1 |enuspisal Jo s} payoslosd Juaund ayy 5199|481 puadsIano Jo [9Aa; 3yl | 190°0 ¥80°0 2810 86£0 SIUsWadeld [epuapisay
EEES "SIapI0 GSUEIPJEND) [E0adg pUE adlapisoy
3y} uyns spuads sano ebiiw o) Ino paused aq o) Juawubiieal 1a6png Joj AunpoddO |10} SIapI0 WNOD OS(e Pue puewap JUAWade|d aJed 12150} O) anp S1 pusdsiano ayl | LZL'0 880°0 8T ¥6E'Z awaoe)d Ajwey
S8IALBS S,uBIpIID
8200 6£0°0 99V 1ZVE SOUEUEA JOUWN
JUEID (JVWNS) PUNS UOHDY GSNSH S0UEISqNS ay) 10) JUSURUIoD
*MBIAas 0) uaxepapun Buisq syop | awooul paonpal e yum sayabo) sease 1oafosd Jo Jaquinu e ua saunssasd 1soo Aed | LoL'D 2600 9980 v22°0 asnsyy asueisqng
SaojAIag yyjeaH jejusy
SLED €560 G0Z € 258 S3OUBLEA JOUIWN
Iy} SB aAJISaY dS S UIw Ajoeded 18yun) ou S| 13y h. Welb 10 UORNGUISIP [E90]
Joj uofiesap; IM "MBIA31 Japun daay| | pue euaiuo AqiBya jo maiaal Buimalio) swodul (dS) 8jdoad papoddng ul iepious | vzL'0 szL'o (180°L) (302t} Hoddng aajesisiuwpy
“28Je 82IAJS 3|[1BJOA [BRUIIO "MBIAB) 39pun daay *51502 pajoalosd Juauna uo paseq (wggl 03) jo puadsiapun Juedubis e st a1ay) (508 0) (581°0) SHE0 6250 1abpnq oisuasoy
“JuswUb{|ea) [eRua)od J0) UONEIBPISUDD UiIM ‘MalASs japun daay “U0JSIA0Id JUBLIND Ul 5589%@ Ul S| [9A9] PUEWSP 85 0AJ3S | £88 0 7850 €66 L1 Wil S32IN9G pajenbay g 580IN0say
S$8Jjase8 Aiqesiq
(+£0°0) (590°0) SLz'9 08¢'9 S3JUBLBA JOUIN
10 [9A3) paonpay e uj Bupinsas pajepdn usaq aney siauped 10 S{aA3) :o:SS:S
ay Ammogmzv 210)3 wawdinb3 AHUNWWOo) Ssjep 1ISET YUON au Joj Juawaaibe
1 jer d J0} 1l AN “m3)Aa) Japun daay 1y d £€ UoNdag p ue §o uof jdwi pue jo malaal Buimoloy |(591°0) (591°0) €Le0 Livo uopnquue) jJuswdinby Aunwwon
‘awodul (aJed yleaH Gunupuod) DHD aJe3aia L 0) uolejal Ul pieog yieaH aul
woJyy awaaul pajabpnqun jo 1diaaas ay s) puadsiapun ay) uo asuanyu| view ay) |(250°0) {0s0°Q) 180 LEP0 532)A18G JuawR|geay
‘G LJUOW Je Pajaajal Jou ase yojym sapligesiq
Bupuea uiyum Buia pauoddng papiacid Ajjlewaixa oju) uawubjeas axnbal
Ins (wgzz'03) Buyrelo) uoisinosd 8.3 [EWSIXS UIYNM S136PNA aWOs ‘uoflippe U]
‘W1 10°03 JO SIOUBLEA JOUIL [|EJIAC pue (WBZD'03F)
10 enuawap 1asuo Auea (w9 |0"p3) Jo asea Aep paseyaund uiyym spuadsiapun
Jayung (wszo'03) 3wodu| Auadoud [euopippe pue (WEGD'03) swosul (OHD)
ale) yyeaH Buinupuo) Jead-ul jleuonippy (wzz L 03) Wea) S5822y Jo Julod IBug
ay) uiyum wolp syluow 6 Joj sbulaes Aoueosea Jo Jnsal e se ale spuadsiapun s3YIo
) *§9SB3I0U
aa) Japinosd 0} 0} 4] WOy pany u33q SEY AWIDIUI JO-3UO [BLONIPPY
‘puny ased AejpauLBIu|
ay Aq 1aw Buiaq ARuUaLND S| PUBWAP [B20] 3Y) YDIyM J0j (WL L'03F) Suoneldepy
Jouyy apnjpoul d fosd sip uo BU] Ulew Jaylo 'suae
1) 1 30§ UONIEISPISUDD LYAA "MBIAB JBpun daay Bunsixa uo paseq (w1 2203) o pusdsiapun payalosd e spayal ase) Ayoiwoeg [(508°0) (2£8'0) SLZ'GL Ly0'9L sapieso]
8jdoad Jopi0 |
SaojAIag (€190S
(3] (wi3) 5] Twi3)
asuepep wapng yebpng
pasinbey uopay 8duepe Jofew jo asnED| tpuow Ise] HBA poyosfoid pesiaay adaseg

Txpueddy

AYVWANS - S HINOW

SajueEA PUNJ 12UN0Y
uoday Bupojuo yebpng

Page 187



SBPUSIO}A BUILUE[] S5aU1Sng

-ajeudosdde se suonoalosd awodul isn(pe pue Jojuopy | ul p 0t | $33) UON, v Bujuueld woy) jjejuoys ajqissod Jo ysiy ubi | £60°0 090°0 {t22°0) (sge0) awabeuey uawdojprag
Juewdojersq
~91q1s50d
aaym 1] /93NpaJ pue 1P PAYILILOD JOJUOW 0} ANURLOD (p20°0) {0¥0°0) 93980 9060 SHIUBLRA JOURN
‘winyno je uofis HOUBUY-ISS Ayl Ul |lejiioys Joj [enualod | 2100 000°0 6L0°0 6100 108U0D 1584
A UMoy
910'0 (800°0) vES'L vl S3JueueA JOUIN
ssaujsng
JUBWUO1AUT ' Bujuue]d
[0 110°1 SSP'6T b 82 uopeyodsues | '@ auadsjaang |ejol
(Z00 0 €100 S LES'L S3JUBLIEA JOUN SO
“BuWIGoy10) S| BUIPUN} OAA OU 1l 81/2102 SJLA Ul UOEIapISuoy “58)N0J S80JAISS [E10J8WI0J JWIO} JO SIS0 By}
‘51502 |euofippe ay) Buipuny o) pJebas Ly uodn paYINSUOD UBAQ aABY DAA “AlUluoWw|  S3PNPUI SIYL WG LE 03 ‘uonepinby o) Buiob Aued ay) Bumoyjo saoBs YHO
paJojiuow 3 (jim pue saoud JoeUOI snaomald uo paseq a.nby aaneslpu) ue |INs si Sy Jawso) Bul 10§ d-a1 Bumojio) 51502 ApISqns [euonippe p LPE0 £VE'0 1122 826°L uoftepodsues |
“BULGILNO} 51 BUIPUN) DM OU JI 81/210Z SN Ul UOEISPISUOD WGZL 03
*51502 |Buopippe 3y Bujpun 0} preBas yiwm Lodn paynsuod uaag aney HAA “Alyiuow ‘uopepinby oy Buob Auedwod ay) Buimoljo) podsues (00YIS J0j SINAIBS YHOD
pasoljuoiu Sq (M pue saoud 10enuod snotasd uo paseq 21nby aanedlpul ue |IIS SI SIYL Jawusoy Buaaod so Juswasnooid-as Buimol(o) sjsoo Apisqns jeuoRippe palewnsd | 0Z10 1000 6L0°S Ueh vodsues] [ooyas
WO '} bupuey M
Jo uonannsuod woly Buines [an) pajedionue pue wpgp 03 ‘aowues pabeuew sasols
ay) buis)iewa)xa u) skedQg "woso 03 'Alsoyine Buunogybiau yum werd isiepads
"SJIN Jo Ued se maiaal Japun daay| paJeys "saloualoiya q paAajydesapun o} Bunejas saoueuep | ZLL'D 0zZL0 [ 4 ves'y SBJIAIRS 92uN0SFY § SonsiBo
Nbeg 18 sxpom juawaaosdw)
JMOTUISBLYU) 10} 1SOD WOQEL'0F - SHSIY “siieda) pue asueuajulew fenuanbasuod pue
SN0 jed Aduafuawa 10) WES0 03 Wans Bujpoop ynbeg o) anp swea) ease ay) Joy
5150 "W} 0°0F ‘a10s ouauab uou Jo uononponul Uj ABEP "WESO 03 ‘UoNaaleD Jann
30]AIBS UONEGOId ‘(J8fSuUe| 1855y AYUNWWOD) S, 1D (IE uo suoissnasip Butobuo jo
ued s) wES0'03 ‘sidunad Ay J/umo | 0} 2 103 Aungey I
‘SN J0 Led se maiaal sapun daay sSed "sajousiiya buuueld 1snq p 0) bune(al sasuevep | 991°0 8510 6192 19¢'L SIIUBLEA JOUW JOUIO
WIOMION SAemybIH
(€00°0) SL0'0 10L'0 989'0 S3JUBLEA JOUN JBUIO
°G YIuOW 1e papiaaid uaaq sey Wwop L 3 40 (BRIOYS awodul
Syed Jed iy Joy Buipuny aasasas Asuabunuog “Ausjsusany) pue uonoys 'Aenp
*81/410Z s PaIOSE 3 OS[E [IM BWODU) JBY) UEBW S,YBULO0D WoJ) SWodul pajedidue UBY) J1aMmOo| pue Julld Je safiueyo Bunped sed jo
o) Ajayi) 51 3nUaD umo) Jujd Jo uonesauabal 3yl "SJ1W Jo Led SE majaal 1apun daay 1] iduws) auy uj shejap Bumoyjoy s) d Buisuelq 1ISNg Woyy [lejuoys | 9EL°0 ££0°0 280 0) (511 0) Juawaaiojuy g Buppey
‘G YIuoW 1e papiaosd uaaq sey WSz 03
10 papwoid (O¥H) seaua) Buyohoay BuisnoH Joj Buipuny asiasal Asuabunuo) ‘says
IIPUE] YooY Pue piepuRlS 3yl 18 AN pue [udy uaamiag uopodenxa seb Jo sjaAa|
Guonpas woay sajes APmoald psonpal o) Bunejas wpl 03 JO SUBLEA 3SIBAPY
‘s[@As)| w0 0F ‘SuoRda|0d ug S1sem passiwt soj Buiwnias jo Aojjod Bupsixa ay) aaoway
awoau Buanpas auibua seb pue y dde jo sbueyo buy ) I|euofies 3iIs OxH ‘wGgo'03 "iupue 1e uonanpold Afusu3 dojeasg "wgLo 03 'siod Jusuab uou
10} BL/LLOZ S41W Ul UOResapISUD 10§ 10BdW) JUBLINDBI AUB SSASSE 0} MaJAS) [ENUNUOD | JO UORINPOAU| SBIBUBYe Buuueld 1snq p o} Bunejas saoueuep | 0Lp0 \2Z°0 819°L 150°L uoNoaNI0D BISEM
VIUBLLIOLIAd ¥ S3d]AI9S Asejouy
rsea) 59€°0) 296°)L1 92e°ZL @s)di9ju] P AJjunwiwio] jejoL
“M3IAaJ PUE JO)UOL 0} 8NURUOY) “SaoueueA JOURN | 0000 £00°0 Z010 0040 SaWWeIboid BUISNOH |
"(we00"03) SedueLEA JOUIW JBYIO "(WHEL"03) JO PUN UoNd3|I0D
-aBueyo |xe) pouno) syl uo snidins 1onue ue ajealpu st fos (WOEcZ 03F) 30 2wayag
o} Ajawy aue suonaajosd pue ajejoa Ajybiy ale sease asay) Se A[aS0jo JOJIuoW O} BNUAUOY uofoNPayY Xe| |12uUnog ay) 1oy uoisiaold paiebpng ay) uo puadssapun paaalold [(Z1v'0) (6EY0) -T2} 506°0L s)yauag P SoNUIA3Y
TWZZ0 03 SOOUELEA JOUI
JAYIQ "91EJ BweS Y} 1B PasEalIul Jou aney sabieyd asaym ‘Jeak yoea uoneyul yim
"MalAa) pue Jojuow o} anuguod | auy u Bur ) s19fise) 2WODUI 0} ANP SIYIEW Ul WYGD' 03 JO Ilefoys patewns3 | 950’0 8L0°0 £6v°0 gLy uopessuabay
“MIIARJ PUE JOJUOW O} BNUJUOD "S30UBHEA JOUIN [ 1100 8100 (65¢ 0] (2220 BuISnoH pung [oUnoy)
“MalAR] PUE JOJ|UOL O} 2nupuo) *saouewea Jouwy ({200 01 ($20°0) 651°L £8L°1
#90°0) 0580 96909 9vE 09 S83|AIAG [2]50§ [€)0 L
w3} {us3) (5} Tui3)
asuepep wnyng 1ebpng
pasnbey uogoy aguepep Jofew J0 9sned| 1puow 1se agueueA pe1oafosy posiAY agjAleg

ZWipusddy

ANYINWNS - S HINOW

saguepeA pun4 {oune
voday bupoyuoy jebpng

Page 188



wgeo 03730

‘malAdY g Bupoliuowy panupuo) | awosu ul aseasdu) ue ul Bupinsal usaq asey Buues|d jlevopppy (000 0) (oc00) (p20°0) 800'0 Bujueain
"SOWOL 9J83 PUE S|00YIS Ul S5jeall JO yejdn oy}
“malnay g Buuoyuop panuguo) | ul aseassul ue jo ynsal e se (wip('03) Jo 1ebue) palaafosd Jaao awodul [evomppy |(z20 0) (Sy0r0) 8vL0 €620 Buyaie
“UGNEIS JaM0d apISea(] WO} SWOOU] paonpal € PUE SPIOA OF NP JuWooul
‘mapay g Bupoluop panuguon JE1US JO UONONp3J U} U [lBAUIOYS WOpZ 03 B paiebaiw sey juswubiesl 1abpng | goz 0 1bZ'0 (vv01) (r82'1) SN [emsnpu;
“liea} SOUEBUDUIEY] PUE ULIS3Q 24) UIYIIM paindas
“malaay g Bupoyuop panuguod JOM MaU Jo |)nsal e se Jafue) awaeou) aroqe paindas saay [euonippe (W1ep'03) | 0000 (280 0} 2290 v0L'0 saomag ubisaq B Wdd
"S3IUBLIEA JOUIW JBUIQ "IINdorUls
‘maaay B Suuotiuoy panunuol | -8J 321AI3S JuBUIWL) BY) Jo Jnsal e se Bupieme (we9zZ 03) Jo sBuines Aiejes tea uj [(592°0) (0gz 0} L0 1650 Juswdojaraq puy 19ssy Auadaid
Z abuey) jeuofiesjueblo
£61°0 1000 6.6'G z16°S | Bbuey) [eucfesiuens [ejoL
*M3IAS) PUB 10})UoW 0) anupuo)d 000°0 000°0 20°0 ¥20'0
*MalAB) PUE J0}UOW O} 2nUfUoD "SBOUBLEA JOURN | 0210 020°0 196'C o9p6'e EILSER]
“MalAB) PUE JO}UOW O} 8nuguo)d "S3JUEUEA JOURN | 000°0 {1000} 1820 L1820 SBAIYIIY AJUN0T)
“MalAS) PUE J0}|UOLW O} 2NURUOD 0000 0000 v00°0 $90°0 SWNasniy
“M3IA3) pue ajluow 0} anujued "S3JUeUBA Joumy | €20°0 (€10 0) £F0°L 969°L SIUSAT B SJNIiND ‘sUY '@ Sauesg] 21qnd
1 abuey) jeuopesjueni
250°0 9€0°0 £9p°8 1zv'8 83UBLIBA0Y) |ejoL
‘M3|A3I pue Jojluow 0} snupue) ‘Sadueuea Jou | €¢0°0 £v0'0 ¥20'S 186'% Jie]]
“M3IAB] PUB JO)JuscW 0) anuuoD ‘saoueUeA Joum [(Z2£0°0) (1LE0°'0) 8962’0 120 to&:m ssauisng
"MalAal puUE JOJUCUl 0] SNURUCD *S30UBLIEA JOUNN | 9800 9200 2610 9910 JUBWRINI0Id
'M3ja3) pue Jojuou! 0] anufued ‘sasuepea Jousy [(900°0) (900°07 8zr'o PEV'0 Hpny [eway|
"MBIABI pue Jojluow 0} anuuo) "S8JUBLIEA JOUNN Am—0.0V AON0.0V 168 1181 Sa3JAIBS Jnesowaq
"MatAal PUe JOJUOW 0} aNURUCY *S3JUBLIEA JOURY | 9€0°0 ¥20'0 8990 V90 S80IAJRS [EDOT]
BOUBUIBAQG
€00 9100 6¥9'Y £ESY 592JN0S3Y g 8jdoad |ejol
‘alemyjos mc.ammum._Ou —ngn auy jo :O:N«:DEW_QE_ ayu w>m_ﬂﬂ 0} anp
.«Uﬂ—o._n uofles|uwapow adueuy. >0:0_u..tm UONESIWIBPOW dJUBUIY Y} UD JUBWBABIYIRIaPUN ..mm».c_ ue pue ~mm._ma
ay) sseJbasd pue sapunuoddo L BLOTUL BAS aJojdxa 0} nuood Gueyoas swoou) Juels alp vl jlejuoys e Jo sasudwod puadsiano pajaa(oid syl | £20°0 190'0 osv'z 68€°2 aoueuly sjesodsod
'M3IASS pUB Jojuow g} anunuod ‘Sajueuea Jouw | 8000 (Gr0°0) 661°¢ 4444 ao % dH
$22Jn0SaY g 3j00dd
“JeaA |BIDUBUL U} JO pud
Ay} 1e pue; pawed ae eq ay) pue ale pNg (00YaS | 000°0 000°0 2.E48 C2LE'L8 Sj00Yd§
190°0 £80°0 88y°'LL yov'LL YINoA ‘g uoReanp3 [ejol
(E£0 0) {+20 0) ElLe 9EL'E Sadueuen JOUN
“SBJUBLEA JOUIW JBUYIO S3PN[aU| "IMO AQ Papuny ‘210z [udy wasy adas
“2injanuls jeuoibal 3mo) Jo 1dia0as ay) Bumo|o) pasnbal 8q || MalAs) BjAIBS Y uofiesoqe|jod [eualfa) B Jo 3JUBAPE Ul JUSWPUOJAS JUBLND B 0} S3ie|a) aosueueA ((190°0) (L+00) 895°0 6090 wyoddng 1 abuey) ssauisng
.Uwa:MEm_mE_
pue padojanap Gujaq ase As Buuow paacidw) p 0 3} Ul UORONPAI B "B2IAIRS Y] UIYIM WIS SIOUBNEA JOUILL JBYI0
uweddns o) paynuapl uaaq sey 1s0d BABS 0] IS8AU|, Uy ._MEO_«EGQO S dnos6 ysiui4 g yse | d pue s1s02 :9: 10} _m==0~00 Ytim 30138 IjNeI0A | GSL'D 6¥L°0 20224 6G0°L :O_mmmhg& g uojsn|ou|
INOA g uoReINpy
090°0 2e0°0 S6¥'S £9P°G Juawiuoliaug g bujuueld jejoL
0500 6200 992°0 1890 ABoyens juowebeuey
“ajqissod
253UM SJUSUILILLOD DAOWI/BINP3I PUB BUNYPUBdxX3 PaRWILLOD JOHUOL O} RNURUOD (Lo00) (600°0) 828'0 1£8°0 S3JuBLEA JOURN
ABajens |
“a1qissod
BJAYM SIL 0 /39Npa) pue anjpusdxd PARIWOD JOHUOW O} BNURLOD 1000°0) 0000 2910 1910 SAOUBLEA JOURN
$33JAIBS paseys
~a1q1ssod
ansym /33npaI pue d: 2 JOHUOW 0} BNURUOD (120°0) (020 0) 622°L 6VEL S90UBLIBA JOUIN
55303y
“a1qIssod
BIYM SIL 0 /33npa) pue ainjpuadxe PaRjWWOD JoHuOW O] anupuoD (220°0) (1£0°0) 1910 Z61°0 S9OUBLEA JOUN
{w3) w3) u3) (ui3)
aouspeA wnpaQ jabpng
paxnbay uopoy aguepen tofew Jo esneg| puop Ise 22uBpRA poydeford pesiAey L )

7Hipusddy

AUVWWNS - S HINOW

SaDUBLEA PUNY }OUNOD
woday bupioyuow 18bpng

Page 189



180°C 1Zv'l SOP'eSe ¥86°1ST €10l puess
"WZ10°03 JO SSIUBLBA JOUI IO
*3jes paonpai o} anp (wggeQ o) JO Saa4 NpNY uc puadsiapun paidalosd Jeah u)
‘Auadasd lerawwod
*Aouaiolya payRUap! [BUORIPPY - Paonpal saad Jipny uo Aige) sajey JNsawoQ UON 0) anp wigy 03 ainssasd Jeak ul [euotippy
-Ajuo amnssaud Jeah u) - Aljiqe)) Asadold [EIuaWIW0D) *Aunpyoddo jo sease Jayio Ajuapl oy Buinupuod S| yiom ybnoy ‘wooe 03
10 JuawaAaIyoeIapun ue Supdafaid s1 sapiAnoy Gunesauas awodu) leuoRIPPY
*Aoijod sableyn ‘wig.Z 03 JO JusSWanajyoeIapun ue Buimoys APUSLND SBIDUSIIIYD SIOPHUOM
pue S334 UO }IoM 0} pajuiodd 1 D - saAloY Bur © aLIOJL| [EUOIPPY
-yeis Aouaby jo asn pasealaul 0} anp (WpSQ'0) JO wodul Bjeqal XUEN [EUCHIPPY
-sBues 1ayuny Ajnuap) 0} anunuoY - S)IUBIOLYYT SOPUOM
‘Jsesa10) ey} 1amo| Buiaq sajes Jsassiul
“JO)jUOW 0} 3NUNUOD *BLI03U| dleqal xpleyy| pue ‘1sesalny ueyy sayBiy Buiag seasasal o] anp ‘SJUBWITSaAU WoJS Sulodu| pajoafosd
ueyy Jaybiy pue Buwouoq JO {aA3] P2ONPaJ 0} 3NP St SIYL TUNODJY JUSUASEAU]
-sBuiAeS Jayuiny AJruapi o} JONUOW 0} SNURUOD JUBUILS3AU| PUE SUEOT [BIUBD pue sueoT [enual 3y ulyum (wi | |°0) Jo puadsiapun pajdaloid seak ul uy | 52670 ey 0 GLEZZ LE8’LZ asueuid ajelodio) pue [RQuUID
“5jabpnq Sa0jAJas PUE Sa]j0dNs SLos JSUlebe spuadaiapun
JOUN OS[E BB AIY] ‘WEI] SUOHEeJUNWLOD J)jelodoD ay) PUe WES | UIWpPY B
-Ajuo Jeak u aq o} pajoadxa S| puadsiapun pajosfasd syy W 3y uiynm sBuaes Koueaea o} anp Ajuiew s puadsiapun pajaafosd ay) (89070} (250°0) €EL'E 681°€ aApnoax3 JoYd
Te01 0} faz1 o) 66E ¢ SI5T 7 obueyj) jeuofesiuebig [eio L
(¥c0'0) 020°0 G8L'Y 99471 S3JUBUBA Jouy
T3] Tus3) T3] {ur3]
aouspeA wapng 1ebpng
peanboy uonoy! asuepeA Jofe JO osneD! uoW Ise) ueA foid pasioy asjaleg

TxpuaAay

AHVIANNS - S HLNOW

S3DUBRMEA PUNY ||JUNCD
voday Bupojjuoy 1ebpng

Page 190



2016/17 Efficiencies Qutturn - Under or Over Achieved

Portfolio

Central & Corporate Finance
Additional Income Generating Activities.
Workforce Efficiency.

Total Central & Corporate Finance

Chief Executive's
Voluntary Sector Grants review.

Total Chief Executive’s

People & Resources
Finance Modernisation
Total People & Resources

Education & Youth
School Modernisation.
Total Education & Youth

Organisational Change 2
CCTV - Staff reductions.

Other - Campus Management.
Other - Maintenance.

Total Organisational Change 2

Community & Enterprise
Council Tax Reduction Scheme.
Total Community & Enterprise

Streetscene & Transportation

Shared Specialist Plant with neigbouring authority.
Introduce non-generic streetscene roles (3 year plan).
Develop energy production at landfill.

Remove the existing policy of returning for missed bin waste collections.

Construction of a waste handling and biomass production facility at
Greenfield.

Car Parking Charges.

Charge maintenance of Bus Shelters to Community & Town Councils.
Remove the subsidy for the Community Rail Officer.

Externalise the Stores Managed Service.

Pass Maintenance Liability and Cleanliness of Cemeteries to Town &
Community Councils.

Probation Service to take on Litter Collections in some areas.

Total Streetscene & Transportation

Planning & Environment
Staffing - service review.

Self financing for Public Protection Services.
- Animal & Pest Control.

- Licencing Charging.

Total Planning & Environment

Total 2016/17 Budget Efficiencies

Met from Contingency Reserve

Revised Efficiency Target

Total Projected 2016/17 Budget Efficiencies Underachieved
Total Projected 2016/17 Budget Efficiencies Achieved

Appendix 3

- . . . (Under)/Over
Original Efficiency Revised Efficiency Achievement
2016/17 2016/17 2016/17
£(m) £(m) £(m)
0.500 0.200 (0.300)
0.500 0.222 (0.278)
1.000 0.422 (0.578)
0.070 0.090 0.020
0.070 0.090 0.020
0.135 0.100 (0.035)
0.135 0.100 (0.035)
0.187 0.123 (0.064)
0.187 0.123 (0.064)
0.040 0.020 (0.020)
0.030 0.015 (0.015)
0.005 0.015 0.010
0.075 0.050 (0.025)
0.329 0.566 0.237
0.329 0.566 0.237
0.050 0.000 (0.050)
0.115 0.085 (0.030)
0.100 0.035 (0.065)
0.075 0.035 (0.040)
0.100 0.080 (0.020)
0.200 0.165 (0.035)
0.020 0.000 (0.020)
0.010 0.005 (0.005)
0.050 0.020 (0.030)
0.050 0.000 (0.050)
0.100 0.050 (0.050)
0.870 0.475 (0.395)
0.127 0.088 (0.039)
0.050 0.020 (0.030)
0.177 0.108 (0.069)
% £
11.282
0.761
100 10.521
9 0.909
91 9.612

Page 191



Page 192



APPENDIX 4

Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves

Total Reserves as at 1 April 2016

Less - Base Level

Total Reserves above base level available for
delegation to Cabinet

Less — allocation from contingency reserve to
meet historic child claims

Less — allocation from contingency reserve to
meet costs of summer play schemes

Less - allocation from contingency reserve to
meet shortfall in the essential car user
allowance efficiency

Less — allocation from contingency reserve to
meet shortfall in the community asset
transfers efficiency

Less — allocation from contingency reserve to
meet shortfall in the rationalisation of
household recycling centres efficiency

Less - allocation from contingency reserve to
meet shortfall in the Flint car park income
efficiency

Less - allocation from contingency reserve to
meet shortfall in the County Hall car park
income efficiency

Less projected overspend as at Month 5

Total projected Contingency Reserve as at
31st March 2017

Page 193

£m

10.144

(5.769)

£m

4.375

(0.133)

(0.076)

(0.211)

(0.200)

(0.250)

(0.100)

(0.100)

(1.421)

1.884



Page 194



000°0 000°0 000°0 0000 Junodoy anuaaay BuisnoH [eoL
cloo €000 (£20°0) (080°0) SaAIasay (wol4) / oL uonnquuo)
0000 0000 LL00L LL00) (vy30) anuaasy wo.g aunypuadx3 [epded
800 8200 09¢c [ANA4 §99IAI8G Hoddng @ Juswabeuey
‘spJepue)g Ajiieny BuisnoH Usiaa aul JO Juswaasiyoe
8y} 0} Bunnguuos ssiuadosd Adwe ul usyeuspun
Bureq yJom Jueoyubis ayy Loddns |um siyy “saiedosd
plOA 0} pajeodo||e 8q 0} 82JN0SS1 |BUOHIPPE JO) pamo||e aAey
51500 Bumoulog psonpal sy “seiadod ploa uo sunypuadxs
aoueusjuleW pue sJiedal u) asealoul ue o) selejas wg/ L 03 [(9€0°0) 2L 0 81,6 Y56 aoueusUBY B Slieday
(1100) (010°0) 961’1 L02'L S1S0Q 32IAIS PJOJPUET]
-ainjonnsal Juswabeueyy BuisnoH ayy wody Buisue sbuines
Aoueoen o} sajejas wggQ'03 40 puadsiapun pajoalosd ayL [(980°0) (8500 Sl5°1 £€9°1L juswebeuey aje)s]
VO FERETEY
1I1X349 a4y Bumojjoy sajel 1salsiul Ul uolonpal ayl pue
yuawaunbai Bumouiog (810} JNO Ul UOKONPal By} 0} aNP SI SIYL
“VyH 2y} 0} pauoiodde s)soa Bumouloq pajediogue ay) ul
uononpal e 0} sejeel w1 gL 03 Jo puadsiapun pajosfoid 8yl | +20°0 (191°0) vel'L G8C’L sabieyp ueo - Buoueuly eyden
6+0°0 G200 (p28°1€) (668°1E) awoouy|
JUNO22Y BNUBAdY BUISNOH
(w3) (w3) (w3z) (w3)
aosuelieA wninQ jebpng
paiinbay uoyoy asueleA Jofel Jo asne)| YUo isen) aJueleBA pajosfold pesinay CLITNETS

S Xipusddy

AYYINNNS - S HLNOW

S@DUBHE) JUNOJIJY ONUAATY BUISNOH

1i0doy BUGHUGH 19Bpng

Page 195



Page 196



Agenda Iltem 8

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%h.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 18 October 2016
Report Subject Provisional Learner Outcomes
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Education and Youth
Report Author Chief Officer (Education and Youth)
Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide an initial summary of pupil outcomes
across all key stages from the Summer 2016 assessments for the Cabinet and
Elected Members. At this stage, it should be noted that the data at Key Stage 4 is
based on external examinations and at this stage is only provisional. Local
authorities expect to receive the verified data on December 18t 2016 and this may
result in some minor changes to the data profile. Data at Foundation Phase, Key
Stage 2 and Key Stage 3 is based on teacher assessment which has been
verified. A more detailed overview of learner outcomes will be presented in the
Quarter 3 report in line with the usual reporting cycle.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That the Cabinet note the outcomes of pupil assessments across all key
stages.

2 That the Cabinet acknowledges the improvements in learner outcomes
where they have been achieved.

3 That Cabinet members are aware of the aspects of learner outcomes that
still require a clear focus from the Local Authority and GwE to secure
further improvements and are aware of how schools will be targeted,
challenged and supported to secure higher outcomes in 2017 and bring
Flintshire closer in line with its expected position in comparison to the other
22 Local Authorities based on its Free School Meals profile.

Page 197



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE PROVISIONAL LEARNER OUTCOMES

1.01

Foundation Phase

Pupils are assessed at the age of seven, at the end of Year 2, by their
teachers against the Areas of Learning in the Foundation Phase
curriculum.

Core assessments are made in the following areas:

-Language, Literacy & Communication (LCE English or LCW Welsh)
-Mathematical Development (MD)

-Personal & Social Development, Well-being & Cultural Diversity (PSD)

The expected level for a 7 year old is that they attain Outcome 5. If a pupil
achieves Outcome 6 then they are operating above the expected level for
their age. If they achieve less than Outcome 5 then they are not yet
achieving the expected level and this will not be counted towards the
national benchmarks.

The Foundation Phase Indicator (FPI) is achieved when a pupil achieves
Outcome 5 or above in the three core assessments listed above. This is
the main indicator used for measuring performance in Foundation Phase.

1.02

In 2016 the overall performance at the Foundation Phase Indicator in
Flintshire was 86.9%. Compared to the 2015 results, this was a drop of
0.1%. However, since 2014, the FPI in Flintshire has increased by 2.4%.
The improvement trend is generally positive but the aim is to ensure that
outcomes next year increase and this dip reversed.

1.03

In 2016, Flintshire’s performance in the FPI was above the GWE average
of 86.2% but just below the Wales average of 87.0%. Across the GwE
region, Flintshire’s performance at the FPl was 2m out of the 6 LAs
(behind Denbighshire).

1.04

Analysis of the core assessed areas shows the following:

Language, Literacy & Communication (English medium) — dip of 0.6%
Language, Literacy & Communication (Welsh medium) — dip of 3.1% *
Mathematical Development — maintained steady position

Personal & Social Development — dip of 1.1%

1.05

It needs to be noted that Flintshire has only 5 Welsh medium schools so
the cohort is much smaller than the English medium sector and the data
profile can be more variable. Also, a high percentage of pupils in Welsh
medium schools come from English speaking homes but have to be
assessed in Welsh and by 7 years old, have not fully developed their
Welsh language skills to a level of fluency. However, the drop in
performance in this area is being further analysed by the Welsh and

Page 198




Foundation Phase Advisory Teams and an action plan will be put in place.

1.06 | Based on its Free School Meal profile, Flintshire is expected to be ranked
6t or better compared with the other local authorities in Wales. Compared
to the 2015 data, Flintshire’s ranked position has decreased in 2016
across all indicators which is not the desired outcome.

Improving Flintshire’s ranked position is a key priority in the current
improvement/business plan.

Indicator 2016 2015 + / -

ranked ranked

FPI 13 9 -4

LCE 11 9 -2

LCW 20 15 -5

MD 12 10 -2

PSD 9 14 -5

1.07 | Key Stage 2
Pupils are assessed at the age of eleven, at the end of Year 6, by their
teachers against the National Curriculum for Key Stage 2.

1.08 | Core assessments are made in the following areas:

- English or Welsh (language of the school)
- Mathematics
- Science

1.09 | The expected level for an 11 year old is that they attain at least Level 4. If
a pupil achieves Level 5 or 6 then they are operating above the expected
level for their age. If they achieve less than Level 4 then they are not yet
achieving the expected level and this will not be counted towards the
national benchmarks.

1.10 | The Core Subject Indicator is achieved when a pupil achieves Level 4 or
above in the three core assessments listed above. This is the main
indicator used for measuring performance in Key Stage 2.

1.11 | In 2016 the overall performance at the Core Subject Indicator in Flintshire
was 90.1%. Compared to the 2015 results, this was an improvement of
2.2%. Positively, since 2014 the CSI in Flintshire has increased by 4.0%
which reflects well on the work being undertaken in our primary schools to
improve pupil outcomes.

1.12 | In 2016, Flintshire’s performance in the CSI was above the GwE average
of 88.8% and also above the Wales average of 88.6%. Across the GwWE
region, Flintshire’s performance at the CS| was 1st out of the 6 Las.

1.13 | Analysis of the core assessed areas shows the following:

English —up by 1.1% to 91.2%
Welsh — dip of 2.1% to 84.3% *
Mathematics — up by 1.4% to 92.3%

Page 199




Science — up by 0.7% to 92.8%

As with Foundation Phase it needs to be noted that Flintshire has only 5
Welsh medium schools so the cohort is much smaller than the English
medium sector and the data profile can be more variable. However, the
drop in performance in this area since 2014 is being further analysed by
the Welsh Advisory Team and GwE, and an action plan will be put in place
to improve leaner outcomes in this area.

1.14 | Based on its Free School Meal profile, Flintshire is expected to be ranked
6t or better compared with the other local authorities in Wales. Compared
to the 2015 data, Flintshire’s ranked position has increased in 2016 across
all indicators, except for Welsh first language, which is very positive.
Maintaining and further improving Flintshire’s ranked position is a key
priority in the current business plan.

Indicator 2016 2015 + / -
ranked ranked

CSlI 5 11 +6

English 6 9 +3

Welsh 21/21 19 -2

Mathematics 3 9 +6

Science 9 10 +1

1.15 | Key Stage 3
Pupils are assessed at the age of fourteen, at the end of Year 9, by their
teachers against the National Curriculum for Key Stage 3.
Core assessments are made in the following areas:
- English or Welsh (language of the school)
- Mathematics
- Science
The expected level for a 14 year old is that they attain at least Level 5. If a
pupil achieves Level 6 or 7 then they are operating above the expected
level for their age. If they achieve less than Level 5 then they are not yet
achieving the expected level and this will not be counted towards the
national benchmarks.
The Core Subject Indicator is achieved when a pupil achieves Level 5 or
above in the three core assessments listed above. This is the main
indicator used for measuring performance in Key Stage 3.

1.16 | In 2016 the overall performance at the Core Subject Indicator in Flintshire

was 88.4%. Compared to the 2015 results, this was an improvement of
1.3%. Positively, since 2014 the CSI in Flintshire has increased by 4.1%
which reflects well on the work being undertaken in our secondary schools
to improve pupil outcomes.

Page 200



1.17 | In 2016, Flintshire’s performance in the CSI was above the GwE average
of 87.8% and also above the Wales average of 85.9%. Across the GwE
region, Flintshire’s performance at the CSl was 2nd out of the 6 LAs,
behind Gwynedd.

1.18 | Analysis of the core assessed areas shows the following:

English — dip of 0.3% to 91.1%

Welsh — up by 16.8% to 96.8% *

Mathematics — up by 0.7% to 92.7%

Science — up by 0.5% to 94.8 %

*Flintshire has only 1 Welsh medium secondary school where pupils will
be assessed in Welsh as their first language so the cohort is smaller than
pupils assessed in English and the data profile can be more variable.
However, this is a significant improvement and reflects a very strong
upward trend over the last two years of 40.8% at Key Stage 3 in this
school.

1.19 | Based on its Free School Meal profile, Flintshire is expected to be ranked
6t or better compared with the other local authorities in Wales. Compared
to the 2015 data, Flintshire’s ranked position has been variable in 2016
across all indicators, increasing in 2 subjects but decreasing in 3. Although
pupil outcomes increased the CSI and in all subjects except English, the
rate of progress in Flintshire has not been as great as other Local
Authorities in Wales.

Maintaining and further improving Flintshire’s ranked position of 6t or
better is a key priority in the current business plan.
Indicator 2016 2015 + / -
ranked ranked
CSlI 6 7 +1
English 6 5 -1
Welsh 4 18/18 +14
Mathematics 5 3 -2

1.20 | Key Stage 4
Pupils are assessed at the age of sixteen at the end of Year 11 by external
examinations at GCSE (or BTEC equivalents).

The main indicator used to judge performance at all levels is the Level 2+
Indicator which means that a pupil has achieve 5 GCSE grades A*-C,
including English and Maths.

1.21 | In 2016, Flintshire’s performance in this key indicator improved by 0.7%
on 2015 to 61.3%. This was above the GwWE average of 60.1%. The Wales
average is not yet known. Flintshire’s performance is 2" in the region
behind Gwynedd.

1.22 | While the 2016 data represents an improvement on 2015, the overall

position of Flintshire on this indicator has reduced overall by 0.6% since
2014. The priority for the LA and GwE is to increase the performance of

Ul



Flintshire in this key measure, regain the ground lost since 2014 and make
further improvements to secure a better ranked position in the region and
Wales overall.

1.23

The actual performance of Flintshire schools in 2016 is below challenging
and aspirational targets set at the beginning of the academic year. The last
set of projections collected by GwE in April 2016, indicated a likely
outcome of 66.3%. The provisional final outcomes at 61.3% reflect a
difference of -5.0% against projections.

1.24

Of the 12 mainstream secondary schools, 5 schools were within 1% of
their final predications for this indicator but 7 were below. A continued
focus of the LA and GwE will be to continue to support schools to refine
their target setting processes and pupil tracking systems to close the gap
between projected and final performance.

1.25

Based on its Free School Meal profile, Flintshire is expected to be ranked
6t or better compared with the other local authorities in Wales. Ranked
positions for the main performance indicators for Wales will not be
available until December when all the data is verified.

1.26

Level 2 Threshold (5A*-C)

In 2016, Flintshire achieved 80.8%, a drop of 2.4% on the 2015 data. This
is below the GWE average of 81.6% and places Flintshire 5% out of the 6
Local Authorities in the region.

1.27

Level 1 Threshold (5A*-G)

In 2016, Flintshire achieved 95.3%, an increase of 0.8% on the 2015
data. This is just above the GwWE average of 95.2% and places Flintshire
4th out of the 6 Local Authorities in the region.

1.28

A*- A Performance at GCSE

In 2016, 14.5% of Flintshire pupils achieved at the highest grade levels of
A*-A. This represents an improvement of 0.4% on 2015 and an overall
improvement of 0.8% since 2014. This is above the GwE average of
14.3%. The Wales average is not yet known. This data places Flintshire
3 in the region in this indicator, behind Gwynedd and Anglesey. The
focus of the LA/GWE business plan is to improve outcomes in this area.

1.29

Key Stage 5
The model of delivery for Key Stage 5 varies within Flintshire with

provision in some schools, through local consortia arrangements and by
Coleg Cambria. Therefore it is difficult to provide a detailed overview of
performance.

Based on the provisional performance of the schools/consortia delivering A
levels, Flintshire’s performance at the Level 3 threshold of 2 A levels
increased by 1.0% to 98.1%.

Provisional data for A*-E grades is 97.2%, a drop of 0.4% from 2015.
Provisional data for A*-C grades is 73.0%, a drop of 4.3% from 2015
Provisional data for A*-A grades is 14.7%, a drop of 4.4% from 2015.

The focus of the LA/GWE business _plan is to increase the percentage of

Page 202




higher A level grades (C and above) and particularly A*-A.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

Officer time
Resources funded by GwWE as part of the Service Level Agreement

Resources within the Education & Youth Portfolio

3.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01

N/A

4.00

RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01

Poor learner outcomes places an individual school at risk in a number of
ways e.g. it develops a poor reputation within the local community; it is
more likely to have a poor Estyn inspection outcome; there is a potential
for a drop in pupil numbers which then impacts on funding levels. These
issues can all have a major outcome on the long term sustainability of a
school.

Having a number of schools performing badly with low pupil outcomes and
poor Estyn judgements, also places the Council and GwE at risk as poor
school performance is one of the main criteria used by Estyn and the
Welsh Audit Office to make judgements about the quality of these
organisations and their ability to effectively deliver core educational
services.

A key risk is that schools might not make best use of the support available
to them from the Local Authority and GwWE to secure improved learner
outcomes. This risk is mitigated by the regular monitoring of schools by the
Local Authority, through its School Performance Monitoring Group and by
the regular reviews undertaken by the Senior Manager for School
Improvement within the LA and the Senior Challenge Adviser for the
Flintshire/Wrexham hub. These meetings ensure that schools are
challenged effectively to improve their learner outcomes and that the
appropriate levels of support are in place to support the school on its
improvement journey.

5.00

APPENDICES

5.01

N/A

Page 203




6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None
Contact Officer: Claire Homard—Senior Manager for School Improvement
Telephone: 01352 704019
E-mail: claire.homard@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | Estyn — Her Majesty’s Chief Inspector for Education & Training

in Wales

GWwE - Regional School Improvement Service for North Wales

Page 204



mailto:claire.homard@flintshire.gov.uk

Agenda Item 9

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!g!z.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 18" October 2016
Report Subject School Modernisation - 21st Century Schools Programme

- Band A Capital Projects - Connah’s Quay High School

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Education and Youth
Report Author Chief Officer (Education and Youth)
Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

To inform Cabinet of the changes to the operational construction programme for
Band A - 21st Century Schools Programme.

To invite Cabinet to approve modernisation works at Connah’s Quay High School.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1

Cabinet is requested to consider the operational changes to the 21st
Century school programme.

Cabinet is requested to approve the continuation of the school capital
project at Connah’s Quay High School to design development, tender and
Full Business Case submission to the Welsh Government, in line with
programme criteria.

Page 205



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE SCHOOL MODERNISATION - 21ST CENTURY
SCHOOLS PROGRAMME - BAND A CAPITAL PROJECTS -
CONNAH’S QUAY HIGH SCHOOL

1.01

The Council has an agreed funding package with Welsh Government
(WG) for its 215t Century Schools Band A programme of £64.2m. This is
funded on a 50/50 contribution rate between the Welsh Government and
the Council.

1.02

In line with National Policy for capital projects in excess of £5 million, there
is a requirement that approvals are made at the four stages of the WG
business case process, as follows:

Strategic Outline Programme — (SOP)
Strategic Outline Case — (SOC)
Outline Business Case — (OBC)

Full Business Case — (FBC)

Capital funding is released by WG at the approval of the FBC.

1.03

The SOP submitted by the Council to WG in 2010, included proposed
projects at Holywell Learning Campus, the Post 16 Deeside 6™ Hub project
at Coleg Cambria, the Queensferry/John Summers Campus and also
subject to available finance a proposed refurbishment project at Connah’s
Quay High School.

1.04

Currently, the Council has two capital projects which have been approved
by the WG, these are projects at Holywell Learning Campus and Deeside
6th (in collaboration with Coleg Cambria).

1.05

As of August 2016, the project at Deeside 6™ was handed over and was
operational for the start of the new 2016 academic year. Phase 1 at
Holywell Learning Campus (buildings) was also handed over in August
2016, with pupils from Holywell High School, Ysgol y Fron Junior School
and Ysgol Perth y Terfyn Infants School transferring to the new facility in
September 2016. External work at Holywell Learning Campus is continuing
and will be complete during March 2017.

1.06

The construction projects at both Holywell Learning Campus and Deeside
61" have been delivered on time and within budget and they equate to
£45.636 million of the funding £64.2 million funding leaving the balance of
the £18.564 million within funding envelope available to progress other
projects agreed through the WG business case process.

Page 206




1.07

WG has requested the Council to amend its SOP to reflect changes in its
programme. The revised SOP presented to WG included the reaffirmation
of capital scheme at Connah’s Quay High School which was included in
the Council’s 2010 submission.

1.08

The revised SOP has been approved in principal by WG. There is now a
requirement that the later stage business cases are submitted to WG in
order to release capital funding.

1.09

In doing so, WG have confirmed to Councils that the Band A programme,
needs to be complete by March 2019. Additionally through programme
officials WG have so requested that all Council’s remove as much risk
from its remaining capital programme as possible in view of the above. i.e.
land purchase issues, which can potentially delay programme delivery and
affect funding.

1.10

The proposed scheme at Connah’s Quay High School, Phase 1, replaces
the existing Design and Technology (D&T) block, Art and Food
Technology block. The new 21st Century School project will see the
demolition of the existing three storey block and the provision of a
temporary entrance and administration area, together with the construction
of a new two storey block, comprising of Administration, D&T, Food Tech,
Art and Design, additional teaching provision, office space, toilets,
assessable provision, lift, stairs and plant room.

1.11

The balance of the funding envelope, will be used on two projects:

e Amalgamation of Penyffordd Primary School split-site provision onto
a single site with the village. (in separate report)

e Queensferry Campus- namely potential demolition or making
secure/safe John Summers High school and improvement works to
support the modernisation of inclusion provision in the area.

Proposals to make further improvements to Queensferry CP Primary
School will be considered in the following band of the 215t Century schools
programme.

1.12

The project will be delivered by a two stage Design and Build procured
through the North Wales Construction Framework.

1.13

The anticipated timelines are as follows:

Commissioning of Construction | November 2016
and design team
Anticipated Construction Start | August 2017

Anticipated Construction | February 2019
Completion

1.14

Contractors within the NWCF:

Page 207




Contractor Works Works Works over
between between £15m
£4.322m and | £7.5m and
£7.5m £15m

Balfour Beatty | v v v

Construction

Services UK

Galliford Try v v v

Kier Construction | V4 V4

Ltd

Read v

Construction

Holdings Ltd

Wilimott Dixon v

Construction Ltd

Wynne v v

Construction

1.15 | Business Cases (as noted in 1.02) will be completed and submitted to
compliment the anticipated programme timelines.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 There are sufficient staff resources in which to implement the revised
programme within programme constraints and timelines.

2.02 | There are no changes to the original funding packages as previously
agreed by the Council and WG to support this programme.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | No further consultations are required as part of the School Organisation
Code. Statutory proposals have already been undertaken and determined
by the Welsh Minister at Connah’s Quay High School. The age range at
the school have been reduced from 11-18 to 11-16 from 315t August 2016.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | A Programme Board is set up to oversee the implementation business

Page 208



http://www.balfourbeattycsuk.com/
http://www.balfourbeattycsuk.com/
http://www.balfourbeattycsuk.com/
http://www.gallifordtry.co.uk/
http://www.kier.co.uk/
http://www.kier.co.uk/
http://www.readconstruction.co.uk/
http://www.readconstruction.co.uk/
http://www.readconstruction.co.uk/
http://www.willmottdixon.co.uk/
http://www.willmottdixon.co.uk/
http://www.wynneconstruction.co.uk/
http://www.wynneconstruction.co.uk/

plans and manage risks in close detail. High level risks will be reported to
Programme board, Operational risks will be managed by the project team
in accordance with agreed tolerances.

5.00 | APPENDICES
5.01 | No appendices.
6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
6.01 | None.
Contact Officer: Damian Hughes, Senior Manager, School Planning
and Provision
Telephone: 01352 704135
E-mail: Damian.hughes@flintshire.gov.uk
7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS
7.01 | North Wales Construction Framework (NWCF) — Was set up by the

North Wales Authorities and sets the structure for purchases for major
construction works over the Official Journal of European Union (OJEU)
threshold for construction works (£4.322m)

Design and Build — Describes a procurement route, in which Design and
construction are contracted by a single entity, in this case a contractor with
NWCEF. It has many positives not least early contractor engagement.

School Organisation Code - The new School Standards and
Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 makes Local Authorities responsible (rather
than the Welsh Ministers prior to October 2013) for the determination of
most statutory school organisation proposals that receive objections. Such
provisions apply to any proposals published on or after 15t October 2013
that consider the establishment, discontinuance or otherwise significantly
alter schools.

The Council does this in line with the Welsh Government’s statutory
School Organisation Code

http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/1307 19-school-organisation-
codes-en.pdf

Page 209



mailto:Damian.hughes@flintshire.gov.uk
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/130719-school-organisation-codes-en.pdf
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/130719-school-organisation-codes-en.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!g!z.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 18" October 2016
Report Subject School Modernisation - 21st Century Schools Programme

Band A Capital Project — Penyffordd

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Education and Youth
Report Author Chief Officer (Education and Youth)
Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

To inform Cabinet of the changes to the operational construction programme for
Band A - 21st Century Schools Programme.

To invite Cabinet to approve the capital project to consolidate the current split site
primary school buildings in Penyffordd onto one site within the village.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1

Cabinet is requested to consider the operational changes to the 21st
Century school programme.

Cabinet is requested to approve the continuation of the capital project at
Penyffordd to design development, tender and Full Business Case
submission to WG in line with programme criteria.

Page 211



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE SCHOOL MODERNISATION - 21ST CENTURY
SCHOOLS PROGRAMME BAND A CAPITAL PROJECT -
PENYFFORDD

1.01

The Council has an agreed funding package with Welsh Government
(WG) for its 215t Century Schools Band A programme of £64.2m. This is
funded on a 50/50 basis between WG and the Council.

1.02

In line with National Policy, for capital projects in excess of £5 million there
is a requirement that they have to be approved under the four stage WG
business case process, as follows:

Strategic Outline Programme — (SOP)
Strategic Outline Case — (SOC)
Outline Business Case — (OBC)

Full Business Case — (FBC)

Capital funding is released by WG at the approval of FBC.

1.03

Currently the Council has two capital projects which have been approved
by the WG. These are the projects at Holywell Learning Campus and
Deeside 6th (in collaboration with Coleg Cambria).

1.04

As of August 2016, the project at Deeside 6" was handed over and was
operational for the start of the new 2016 academic year. Phase 1 at
Holywell Learning Campus was also handed over in August 2016, with
pupils from the Holywell High School, Ysgol y Fron Junior School and
Ysgol Perth y Terfyn Infants School transferring to the new facility in
September 2016. External work at Holywell Learning Campus is continuing
and will be complete during March 2017.

1.05

The construction projects at both Holywell Learning Campus and Deeside
6™ have been delivered on time and within budget and they equate to circa
£45.636 million of the funding £64.2 million funding leaving the balance of
the £18.564 million within funding envelope available to progress other
projects agreed through the WG business case process.

1.06

WG requested the Council to amend its SOP to reflect the changes in its
programme. The revised SOP presented to WG (January 2016) included
the reaffirmation of a capital scheme at Penyffordd which was included in
the Council’s original SOP submission.

1.07

The revised SOP has been approved in principal by WG. There is now a
requirement that appropriate business cases are submitted to WG for the
project at Penyffordd in order to release capital funding.

Page 212




1.08

In doing so, WG have confirmed to Council’s that the Band A programme,
needs to be complete by March 2019. Additionally through programme
officials, WG have also requested that all Councils remove as much risk
from their remaining capital programmes as possible in view of the above.
i.e. land purchase issues, which can potentially delay programme delivery
and affect funding.

1.09

The proposed scheme at Penyffordd will amalgamate the current split-site
arrangement, bringing all primary provision on one site. Education and
Youth have commissioned Design Consultancy to complete and options
appraisal of the options for new school provision the area and have
derived at a recommendation in liaison with Planners and Officers from
Highways. Construction on the preferred site can take place, without
unduly negatively affecting current school operation. A copy of the option
appraisal is attached as appendix 1.

1.10

The balance of the funding package will be used on two projects:

e Phase1 project to modernise Connah’s Quay High school (in a
separate report)

e Queensferry Campus, namely potential demolition or making
secure/safe John Summers High school and improvement works to
support the modernisation of inclusion provision in the area.

Proposals to improve Queensferry CP Primary School will be considered
in the following band of the 21st Century schools programme.

1.11

The projects will be delivered by a two stage Design and Build procured
through the North Wales Construction Framework.

1.12

The anticipated timelines are as follows:

Commissioning of | January 2017
Construction and  design
team

Anticipated Construction Start | January 2018

Anticipated Construction | July 2019 Phase1 ( buildings)
Completion December 2019 Phase 2 (external)

1.13

Contractors within the NWCF:

Contractor Works Works Works over
between between £15m
£4.322m and | £7.5m and
£7.5m £15m

Balfour Beatty | v v v

Construction

Services UK

Galliford Try v v v

Page 213



http://www.balfourbeattycsuk.com/
http://www.balfourbeattycsuk.com/
http://www.balfourbeattycsuk.com/
http://www.gallifordtry.co.uk/

Kier Construction | v v
Ltd

Read v
Construction

Holdings Ltd

Willmott Dixon v
Construction Ltd

Wynne v v
Construction

1.14 | Business Cases (as noted in 1.02) will be completed and submitted to
compliment the anticipated programme timelines.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | There are sufficient staff resource in which to implement the revised
programme within programme constraints and timelines.

2.02 | There are no changes to the original funding packages as previously agreed
by the Council and WG to support this programme.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | No further consultations are required as part of the School Organisation
Code. Statutory proposals have previously been undertaken and
determined at Penyffordd.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | A Programme Board is set up to oversee the implementation business
plans and manage risks in close detail. High level risks will be reported to
Programme board, Operational risks will be managed by the project team
in accordance with agreed tolerances.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1 — Penyffordd Options Appraisal

Page 214



http://www.kier.co.uk/
http://www.kier.co.uk/
http://www.readconstruction.co.uk/
http://www.readconstruction.co.uk/
http://www.readconstruction.co.uk/
http://www.willmottdixon.co.uk/
http://www.willmottdixon.co.uk/
http://www.wynneconstruction.co.uk/
http://www.wynneconstruction.co.uk/

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
6.01 | None.
Contact Officer: Damian Hughes, Senior Manager, School Planning
and Provision
Telephone: 01352 704135
E-mail: Damian.hughes@flintshire.qov.uk
7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS
7.01 | North Wales Construction Framework (NWCF) — Was set up by the

North Wales Authorities and sets the structure for purchases for major
construction works over the Official Journal of European Union (OJEU)
threshold for construction works (£4.322m).

Design and Build — Describes a procurement route, in which Design and
construction are contracted by a single entity, in this case a contractor with
NWCEF. It has many positives not least early contractor engagement.

School Organisation Code - The new School Standards and
Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 makes Local Authorities responsible (rather
than the Welsh Ministers prior to October 2013) for the determination of
most statutory school organisation proposals that receive objections. Such
provisions apply to any proposals published on or after 15t October 2013
that consider the establishment, discontinuance or otherwise significantly
alter schools.

The Council does this in line with the Welsh Government’s statutory
School Organisation Code

http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/1307 19-school-organisation-
codes-en.pdf

Page 215



mailto:Damian.hughes@flintshire.gov.uk
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/130719-school-organisation-codes-en.pdf
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/130719-school-organisation-codes-en.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank



Slry Fflint
-Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

=====

2
L3

JAREA REVIEW OPTION APPRAISAL REPORT

Infant and Primary School Amalgamation Feasibility
February 2016

Z obed

Ref EPN/388/006
Prepared by:

Property and Design Consultancy,
Flintshire County Council,
County Hall, Mold, Flintshire, CH7 6NW




CONTENTS

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

8T¢ abed

6.0

7.0

8.0

INTRODUCTION

11 Purpose of Report & Methodology
1.2 Client Brief
1.3 Proposed Area Requirements (1.5-FE & 2-FE)

SITE SUITABILITY REVIEW

2.1 Long list Site Options
2.2 Shortlist Site Options

ANALYSIS OF EXISTING SITES
3.1 Site (A) — Penyffordd Abbott’s Lane Site
3.2 Site (B) — Penymynydd Road Junior Site

OPTION APPRAISAL OF PROPOSED SITE
4.1 Site (A) — Penyffordd Abbott’s Lane Site
4.1.1 (A1) Extension Option
4.1.2 (A2) New Build Option

ESTIMATED RUNNING & BUILD COSTS

5.1 Existing & Proposed Building Comparison
5.2 Project & Build Costs

5.3 Capital Receipt / Surplus Land Value

CONSTRUCTION PHASING & GENERAL LOGISTICS

6.1 Site (A) — Penyffordd Abbott’s Lane Site
6.1.1 (Al) Extension Option
6.1.2 (A2) New Build Option

OPTIONS EVALUATION

7.1 Options Summary

7.2 Evaluation Process

7.3 Appraisal Matrix Summary

7.4 Strengths, Weaknesses & Evaluation Summary

CONCLUSION

8.1 Preferred Option

8.2 Limitation & Recommendation
8.3 Project Programmes

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page2



1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 PURPOSE OF REPORT & METHODOLOGY

Flintshire County Council, Design Consultancy have been appointed to undertake a
Feasibility Study and Appraisal Report to investigate the proposal of amalgamating the
Penyffordd Abbott’s Lane Infants & Penymynydd Road Junior School. In 2013, the Council
proceeded with Statutory amalgamate Infants and Junior School, therefore the infants and
Junior school ceased as of 31st August 2013 and as of 1st September 2013, the school
operates as a single primary but on two sites, Abbots Lane (Former Infants) and (Former
Junior) Penymynydd Road. The appraisal is to review the area and recommend a suitable
site for the physical amalgamation of the school.

The report will firstly investigate and identify a long list of sites within the catchment
settlement area of Penyffordd, which might be available to accommodate a new all-through
school. Once established, the considered long list will be evaluated and it will be determined
what plots are suitable to make a final shortlist and to obtain a feasibility study.

U The feasibility study will review the successful sites and their existing facilities against current

Q government education guidelines using Building Bulletin 99 (BB99): Briefing Framework for

 Primary School Projects as a benchmark. Based on a client brief to provide a 1.5-FE School

N With the scope to extend to 2-FE at a later date, the survey results found within the report will

= highlight the comparison between the existing facilities and BB99’s benchmark guidelines,
therefore, establishing if there are any shortfalls or surplus area amounts.

Following from this survey exercise, the feasibility will proceed by exploring and examining a
number of design options that may be able to facilitate the new 1.5-FE to 2-FE all through
school. The report will identify, compare and seek to evaluate the proposals, so that it can
be established which is the most effective solution that fulfils the client’s brief and aspirations.

Lastly, the report will close with a conclusions and recommendations with regard to what the
preferred option to move forward is. Supported by its analysis, findings, proposals and matrix
scoring exercise, the feasibility will also present associated costs, construction programmes
and limitations inclusive of the preferred option.

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Map of Penyffordd

Page3



0zz abed

1.2 CLIENT BRIEF

The Brief is to undertake a feasibility study to ascertain the most efficient & effective solution with regard to providing a new all-through school on one
site, for up to 300 full-time pupil places, plus 25 Nursery places (1.5-FE) with a view that the site could be expanded at a future date to accommodate
390 places, plus 25 Nursery places (2-FE) using the Building Bulletin 99 guidance and benchmarks, for building areas and outdoor space areas: Briefing
Framework for Primary School Projects.

The current numbers are as follows:
- Current number on roll (excluding Nursery) is 236
- Current capacity (excluding Nursery) 259
- Current surplus places 23
- Percentage of surplus places 8.88%

Projections to 2020 indicate that the nhumbers on roll are likely to be circa 232, however, this does not include Nursery pupils, nor does it include for
potential pupils generated from housing developments in the area.

Current known housing developments are:
- 224 Units at Wood Lane Farm will potentially generate 54 additional pupils
- 12 Units at Lane at Bank Farm will potentially generate 3 pupils
- Pre-application for residential development on land at Chester Road for 220 Units will potentially generate a further 53
primary age pupils.
- A potential further development of up to 50 units at Rhos Road would generate another 12 pupils.

Total so far equates to 122 potential additional pupils, however, this does not take in to account any further developments that may be included within
the Flintshire Local Development Plan Candidate Sites Register.

Housing Yield formula are based on data from the 2011 census. These are maximum numbers which do not take into account parental preference for
alternative school choices or whether pupils are already in the local education system.

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page4



Tce abed

1.3 PROPOSED AREA REQUIREMENTS (1.5-FE & 2-FE)

Proposed Area Requirements (BB99 Benchmarks):

1.5-FE + SEN Proposal: (300 place school, age 5-11 + 25 Nursery)

BB99 Benchmarks

Likely Gross Building Area: Infant, Primary & Nursery (BB99) 1,802.5mz
Pitches 6,000m?2
Soft Informal 1,612.5m?
Games Court 1,200m?
Hard Play Informal 887.5m2
Habitat 525m2
Float 1,625mz

Total — 13,652.5m2
Likely Site Area (BB99) — 13,100m2 to 14,700m?2

2-FE + SEN Proposal: (390 place school, age 5-11 + 25 Nursery) BB99 Benchmarks

BB99 Benchmarks

Likely Gross Building Area: Infant, Primary & Nursery (BB99) 2,207.5m2
Pitches 7,800m?2
Soft Informal 1,837.5m2
Games Court 1,380m?2
Hard Play Informal 1,022.5m?
Habitat 615m?2
Float 2,075m?2

Total — 16,937.5m?
Likely Site Area (BB99) — 16,340m?2 to 18,300m2

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Pageb5



SITE SUITABILITY REVIEW

2.1 LONG LIST SITE OPTIONS \ i/’ ngmtjgﬁ‘

Iy

p -‘

Kk

The purpose of this section of the report is to investigate which sites/land within the
catchment settlement area of Penyffordd, might be available to accommodate a new all-
through school which is detailed in the client brief. As the proposed amalgamation refers to
two existing schools on separate sites, these will automatically be included within the
shortlist and reviewed during the development of the report. However, to help ensure that
all possibilities are explored, it is important that any land that may be suitable is identified
and assessed.

Further to a number of consultations with Flintshire County Council’s Planning Department,

discussions led to the identification of an additional 12 possible sites including the

Penyffordd Youth & Community Centre, which could possibly accommodate a new all-

through school on one site. There were several parcels of land also identified within the

catchment area, however, all of these sites were too small. During the consultation it was
U confirmed that all of the 12 sites, which are also indicated within the OS map plan, were not
8 owned by Flintshire County Council and therefore, would have to be purchased. The sites
(D to be reviewed as part of the long list are;

¢cc

o Site A—Penyffordd-Abbett'sLanetnfantsite (Not applicable for long list review)

o Site B—Penymynydd-ReadJuniersite (Not applicable for long list review)

e Site C — Penyffordd Youth & Community Centre

e Site D — PENO41: Land to rear of Millstone ph.

e Site E — PENOO03: Station Way (N of) 1.7ha

e Site F — PENO013: Station Way (S of) 1.1ha

e Site G — PEN004: Land adj Offas Dyke, Abbotts Lane 1.0ha

e Site H— PENOO05: Land south side of Rhos Rd 0.95ha

e Site | — PENO016: Land between railway station and A550 2.3ha

e Site J— PENO14: Land north side of Ros Rd 1.6ha

e Site K- PEN040/036: Land north of Wood Lane 4.8ha

e Site L — PENO038: Chester Road 7.7ha

e Site M- PENO002: Bank Farm, Lower mountain Road OS map plan: Location, size & area of available
e Site N — PENO12: Blackbrook House, Terrace Lane land in the Penyffordd area (N.T.S)

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page6



Long List Review

Site C (Penyffordd Youth & Community Centre): Turning to the land to the rear of the Penyffordd Youth Centre (UDP SR7), the Valuation & Estates
Department have been advised that this is now a Public Open Space provision for the adjoining residential development and allocation (HSG1 37)
backed up by a S106 Agreement. Under these circumstances this site could not be used for the development of a new school.

Site D (PENO041 - Land to rear of Millstone ph.): This site is central to the village but the western part of the site comprises open space and allotments
whilst the middle part of the site has poor access. This leaves the eastern part of the site where there is a rectangular parcel of land adjoining Chester
Road (0.643ha) which might be suitable for school buildings and to the south of this is a larger parcel of land (0.985ha) which might be suitable for
playing fields but it is not clear whether there is a workable link between the two parcels. Neither of these two parcels have been promoted for housing.

Site E (PENO0O3 - Station Way (N of) 1.7ha): This site has a poor 'frontage' or presence in terms of relating to the settlement and Station Way is unlikely
to be able to provide a suitable access.

Site F (PENO013 - Station Way (S of) 1.1ha): This site has no frontage or presence in terms of relating to the settlement and Station Way is unlikely to
be able to provide a suitable access. Site too small to accommodate an all-through school based on the proposed area requirements.

Site G (PENOO4 - Land adj Offas Dyke, Abbotts Lane 1.0ha): This site is at the end of a network of residential roads with Abbotts Lane being narrow
in places. There appears to be no existing access without purchasing gardens to existing dwellings. Also part of the site is wooded and likely to have
-y amenity and ecological value. Site too small to accommodate an all-through school based on the proposed area requirements.

e

Q sjte H (PENOOS - Land south side of Rhos Rd 0.95ha): Possible planning application for housing. Site too small to accommodate an all-through school
based on the proposed area requirements.

(A=

W Site | (PENO16 - Land between railway station and A550 2.3ha): Candidate Site promotes this for employment development. Site is large enough to
accommodate a school but not well related to village as on other side of A550 and would not be good in terms of pedestrian linkages for children.

Site J (PENO14 - Land north side of Ros Rd 1.6ha): Planning application recently refused for housing on basis of waste water drainage issues.

Site K (PEN040/036 - Land north of Wood Lane 4.8ha): Well related to village and has a generous site. The northern tip of the site has also come in
as a pre-app for housing and likely to be pressure for housing on entire site - Might not be available for a school.

Site L (PENO38 - Chester Road 7.7ha): Well related to settlement, also subject of a recent pre-app for housing - Might not be available for a school.

Site M (PENO00O2 Bank Farm, Lower mountain Road): Too divorced from the settlement

Site N (PENO12 Blackbrook House, Terrace Lane): Too divorced from the settlement.

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page7



yze abed

2.2 SHORTLIST SITE OPTIONS

Originally indicated as possible sites that might be able to accommodate an all-through school, the parcels of land recognised within the Penyffordd area
are considered to be unsuccessful in relation to making the shortlist of sites that are to proceed and acquire a design feasibility. Due to the costs involved
in connection to obtaining the land, it was also identified that a number of the sites in their entirety were too small and therefore, this discounted the
locations as a feasible options. Further to the review and deliberation of the long list sites, the established final shortlist of sites are;

e Site A: Penyffordd Abbott’s Lane Infant site
e Site B: Penymynydd Road Junior site

Following the process within this section, the existing sites will now be evaluated and the report will conclude with a preferred option and scheme
proposal, including a recommendation.

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page8



Gee obed

3.0 ANALYSIS OF EXISTING SITES

The two existing schools from the Penyffordd area chosen for consideration to expand to a 1.5-Form Entry, with the scope to extend to a 2-Form Entry
School at a later date are:

* Penyffordd Abbott’s Lane Infant site, Abbots Lane, Penyffordd CH4 OHW
* Penymynydd Road Junior site, Penymynydd Road, Penyffordd, CH4 OLQ

This chapter contains some background information about the existing sites, analysis of their current building accommodation provision and use of space.
A comparison with the current government education guidelines using Building Bulletin 99 (BB99): Briefing Framework for Primary School Projects will
be used as a benchmark throughout, and will allow the report to establish a number of proposals that can provide sufficient accommodation to enable
both a 1.5 & 2-Form Entry facility. Initial feasibility costings will also be supplied in Chapter 5, with a summary and recommendation provided at the end
of the report.

Penymynydd Road Junior Site

Penyffordd Abbott's Lane Infants Site

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page9



9¢¢ abed

3.1 SITE (A)— PENYFFORDD ABBOTT’S LANE INFANTS SITE

Site Analysis

From this exercise we can see when compared to current government
guidelines from the Department for Education, the Penyfforrd Abbott’s Lane
Infants site is very generous and provides a large surplus area amount.
However, with regard to the existing building and accommodation facilities,
the findings establish that it is quite undersized. Therefore, this section of
the report can confirm, that the existing site is able to accommodate both a
1.5-FE & 2-FE new all-through school on one site.

SPACE TYPE EXISTING AREA AREA REQUIREMENTS FOR NEW SCHOOL | AREA REQUIREMENTS FOR NEW SCHOOL

(BB99 AGE 5-11:300 FT + 25N) (BB99 AGE 5-11:390 FT + 25N)
m2 m2 m2

SPORT PITCHES 10,910 6,000 (+4,910 m2) 7,800 (+3,110 m2)

SOFT INFORMAL & SOCIAL |8,008 1,612.5 (+6,395.5 m2) 1,837.5 (+6,170.5 m2)

GAMES COURT 0 1,200 (-1,200 m2) 1380 (1,380 m2)

HARD INFORMAL & SOCIAL [540 887.5 (-347.5 m2) 1022.5 (-482.5 m2)

HABITAT Q 525 (-525 m2) 615 (—615 m2)

FLOAT Q 1,625 (1,625 m2) 2075 (-2,075 m2)

TOTAL SITE AREA 20,849.3 13,100 — 14,700 (LIKELY SITE AREA) 16,340 — 18,300 (LIKELY SITE AREA)

- Area above BB99 Framework
B  ~rea below BB99 Framework

(+7.749.3 m2 — +6,149.3 m2)

(+4,509.3 m2 — +2,549.3 m2)

SPACE TYPE EXISTING AREA | AREA REQUIREMENTS FOR NEW SCHOOL AREA REQUIREMENTS FOR NEW SCHOOL
(BB99 AGE 5-11:300 FT + 25N) (BB99 AGE 5-11:390 FT + 25N)

m2 m2 m2

BASIC TEACHING 258.8 682.5 (-423.7 m2) 871.5 (=612.7 m2)

HALLS 90.5 187.5 (=107 m2) 224.5 (=134 m2)

LEARNING RESOURCES 23.7 63.75 (-40.05 m2) 77.25 (=53.55 m2)

STAFF & ADMIN n 95 (-24 m2) 13 (—42 m2)

STORAGE 35.7 126.25 (=90.55 m2) 148.75 (-113.05 m2)

DINING & SOCIAL 52.7 - (+52.7 m2) - (+52.7 m2)

'FLOAT' 0 92.5 (-92.5 m2) 101.5 (=101.5 m2)

TOTAL NET BUILDING AREA 622.8

1,257.5 (-634.7 m2)

1,536.5 (-913.7 m2)

GROSS BUILDING AREA 959.7

1,802.5 (-842.8 m2)

2,207.5 (-1,247.8 m2)

Existing site & building accommodation comparison with BB99

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Sports Pitches

Games Courts (Hard Surfaced)
Multi Use Games Areas

Soft Informal and Social Area
Hard Informal and Social Area
Habitat Areas

Access

OS map & existing site plan of Penyffordd Abbotts Lane Infants

Page10



/ze abed

Building & Condition Analysis

The felt coverings over the flat roof areas are in a satisfactory condition, and whilst isolated stained ceiling tiles were noted during the inspection, no
significant water ingress was evident. There are a number of canopies provided, the plastic sheeting to which is also in a good condition, although the
poor flashing detail to one of the canopies should be replaced. The brickwork elevations are in a good condition, with no defects apparent, although a
section of missing lead up-stand to the rear damp proofing layer along the rear elevation will require replacing. Timber doors still exist to certain elevations,
these should be repainted. The door to the external store, however, has deteriorated badly, and should be replaced as soon as possible. In addition to
the main building there is a small garage of brick construction, the felt on this building is in a poor condition, and should be replaced. The loose downpipe
to the front needs securing.

Existing Accommodation
Site Area — 20,849.3m?

Net Site Area — 19,889.6m?
Gross Building Area — 959.7m?
Total Room Area — 864.4.4m?

Identified Maintenance Works
The current backlog & list of identified

maintenance works equates to a total of Souenti Toarhing
£118,597.23 - HLET il
Art ‘
CONDITION GRADE -
ELEMENT A B (o D Music
Roofs v Drama
Floors & Stairs v
Ceilings v Hall
External Walls Windows & Library
Doors 4
Internal Walls & Doors v Resource Area
Sanitary Services v Staff Admin
Mechanical v
Electrical v Pupil Change
Redecorations v Teaching Storage
Fixed Furniture & Fittings v : e 4
External Areas ! 4 Kichen Dning
BLOCK OVERALL v Ancillary/Circ
Existing property condition grades G.F building plan of Penyffordd Abbott’s Lane Infants School

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page11



gze obed

Front Elevation

Side Elevation (Car Park)

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Side Elevation (Hard Play Area)

Page12



6¢¢ abed

3.2 SITE (B) - PENYMYNYDD ROAD JUNIOR SITE

Site Analysis

From this exercise we can see when compared to current government Sports Pitches
guidelines from the Department for Education, the Penymynydd Road Junior Games Courts (Hard Surfaced)
site’s existing building accommodation and facilities are undersized and Muli Use Games Areas
include quite a shortfall. The findings of the comparison also confirm that the Softnformal and Socia Area
existing site area/land has a notable lack of space, therefore, establishing Hard Informa and Social Avea
that the site is unable to accommodate the proposed amalgamation/new all- Habitat Areas
through school. Access

SPACE TYPE EXISTING AREA AREA REQUIREMENTS FOR NEW SCHOOL AREA REQUIREMENTS FOR NEW SCHOOL

(BB99 AGE 5-11:300 FT + 25N) (BB99 AGE 5-11:390 FT + 25N)
m2 m2 m2

SPORT PITCHES 6,010.1 6,000  (+10.1 m2) 7,800  (—1,789.9 m2)

SOFT INFORMAL & SOCIAL (1,794.9 1,612.5 (+182.4 m2) 1,837.5 (-42.6 m2)

GAMES COURT 685.6 1,200 (—~514.4 m2) 1380 (-694.4 m2)

HARD INFORMAL & SOCIAL |937.3 887.5  (+49.8 m2) 1022.5 (—-B5.2 m2)

HABITAT 0 525 (=525 m2) 615 (-615 m2)

FLOAT 0 1,625 (~1,625 m2) 2,075  (-2,075 m2)

TOTAL SITE AREA 11,441.7 13,100 — 14,700 (LIKELY SITE AREA) 16,340 — 18,300 (LIKELY SITE AREA)

(—1,658.3 m2 — —3,258.3 m2) (—4,898.3 m2 — —6,858.3 m2)

- Area above BB99 Framework
- Area below BB99 Framework

SPACE TYPE EXISTING AREA | AREA REQUIREMENTS FOR NEW SCHOOL AREA REQUIREMENTS FOR NEW SCHOOL
(BBQQ AGE 5-11:300 FT + 25N) (BBQQ AGE 5-11:390 FT + 25N)
m2 m2 m2
BASIC TEACHING 277.2 682.5 (—405.3 m2) 871.5 (-594.3 m2)
HALLS 139.1 197.5  (-58.4 m2) 2245  (-85.4 m2) N
LEARNING RESOURGES 47.8 6375  (-15.95 m2) 7725  (-29.45 m2)
STAFF & ADMIN 40.3 95 (*54,7 m2) 113 (*72,7 m2) - @
STORAGE 28.6 126.25 (*97.55 m2) 148.75 (*120.'\5 mz)
DINING & SOCIAL 56.3 - (+56.3 m2) - (+56.3 m2)
'FLOAT 0 92.5 (-92.5 m2) 1015 (-101.5 m2)
TOTAL NET BUILDING AREA T42.4 1,257.5 (*515,1 mz) 1,536.5 (*794,1 mz)
GROSS BUILDING AREA 1,163.5 1,802.5 (*539 mz) 2,207.5 (*1‘044 mz)
Existing site & building accommodation comparison with BB99 OS map & existing site plan of Penymynydd Junior School

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Pagel13



0gg abed

Building & Condition Analysis

The felt coverings over the flat roof areas are in a satisfactory condition, and whilst isolated stained ceiling tiles were noted during the inspection, no
significant water ingress was evident. There are a humber of canopies provided, the plastic sheeting to which is also in a good condition, although the
poor flashing detail to one of the canopies should be replaced. The brickwork elevations are in a good condition, with no defects apparent, although a
section of missing lead up-stand to the rear damp proofing layer along the rear elevation will require replacing. Timber doors still exist to certain elevations,
these should be repainted. The door to the external store, however, has deteriorated badly, and should be replaced as soon as possible. In addition to
the main building there is a small garage of brick construction, the felt on this building is in a poor condition, and should be replaced. The loose downpipe
to the front needs securing.

Existing Accommodation
Site Area — 11,441.7m?

Net Site Area — 10,278.2m?
Gross Building Area —1,163.5m?
Total Room Area — 742.4m?

Identified Maintenance Works
The current backlog and list of identified

maintenance works equates to a total of General Teaching

£276,913.80 .
Art
Technology
CONDITION GRADE )
ELEMENT A B c D Musts
Roofs v Drama
Floors & Stairs 4
a Hall
Ceilings 4
External Walls Windows & Doors v Library
Internal Walls & Doors v Resource Area
Sanitary Services v ——
Mechanical 4
Electrical v Pupil Change
Redecorations LA Teaching Storage
Fixed Furniture & Fittings v ) .
External Areas v Kitchen'Dining
BLOCK OVERALL i Ancillary/Circ

Existing property condition grades

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

G.F building plan of Penymynydd Road Junior School

Page14



T¢e abed

Front Elevation

Rear Elevation (Hard Play Area)

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Rear Elevation

Side Elevation (Adjacent to Car Park)

Page15



2se abed

4.0 OPTION APPRAISAL OF PROPOSED SITE

Following from carrying out an analysis on the two option sites for the new 1.5-FE Amalgamated Infant and Primary School, the findings within the report
has established and can confirm that the existing Penymynydd Road Junior site is unable to accommodate an all-through school, due to a high number
of failings when compared against BB99’s benchmark guidelines, including site area requirements. Therefore, the report will continue its feasibility by
considering the proposals positioned on the remaining option site:

Penyffordd Abbott's Lane Infants Site

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page16



4.1 SITE (A)— PENYFFORDD ABBOTT’S LANE INFANTS SITE

[ 4
HAWARDEN ROAD/VOUNOG HILL OFF A550 @

T

CORWEN ROAD OFF A550 @

VOUNOG HILL OFF A550 @
OS map & photograph key of Penyffordd Abbott’s Lane Infants site

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Site photographs

Pagel17



o
jabl
Q
@D

vec

4.1.1 (A1) EXTENSION OPTION

The Penyffordd Abbott's Lane Infants site has the potential to accommodate an all-through school,
however, this section within the report will investigate whether it is more efficient and acceptable to
propose, construct and accommodate the amalgamation/new school via an extension or a new build
development.

The proposed amalgamation will drastically increase the current pupil intake of the school, therefore,
the existing premises and curriculum provision are in need of improvement to comply with BB99,
Equality Act 2010 and The Education (School Premises) Act 1999. With these deficiencies, many
issues do not comply with current Building Regulations. The majority of the added building
accommodation and facilities will be located within the new extension connected at the rear of the
existing school. The site area is generous and has good external area provisions. As previously
indicated within the existing site analysis, some existing provisions are over prescribed i.e. soft play
and social areas, however, car parking, hard play area and games court are underprovided. A careful
and considered feasibility design solution would address and rebalance this issue.

The following internal spaces are an example of the types of building accommodation and facilities
that are required to be provided as part of the proposal to meet the standards referred to above;

Six additional classrooms (60m?2 p/classroom): 360mz2
Main Hall (double height space): 107m?
Small group SEN: 15m?

Kitchen: 25m?

ICT suite for 15 computers: 38m?

Staff Room: 30m?2

Library Resource Centre: 33m?
Food/Science, Design Technology: 24m2
Cloakrooms: 31.5m?

Pupil Toilets: 45m2

Food/Science, design technology: 24mz2
MI Room: 12m?

Total Extension Required for Option —1,179.7m?
(Please refer to site & floor plan drawings which indicate size and location of extension(s)

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Site photographs

Page18



77IH SONNOA

I Total extension - 1,179.7m2

—

Proposed extension sketch scheme

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Proposed Building Extension (Option Al)

The existing Penyffordd Abbott's Lane
Infants site has been considered suitable to
accommodate a new all-through school on
one site. With a site area of 20,849.3m2, a
new 300 full time pupil place + 25 nursery
school requires a minimum site area of
13,100m2 (Net site area - 11,297.5m? +
Gross Building area - 1,802.5m?2).

The existing school will require a large
building extension to enable the new Area
School/ internal building accommodation to
be compliant in accordance with BB99'’s
benchmarks. Based on the proposed pupll
& nursery places for this option, the total
extension required to bring it up to standard
will be 1,179.7m?

Page19



[ Extension

Demolition

9gg abed

Issues with Adaptability

0
metres

Proposed G.F plan sketch scheme

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Parking requirements will not be addressed
Positioning of Suds drainage system on
site would prove difficult.

Progress and sequencing of works would
need to be heavily considered on a live
school site, therefore, would increase
health & safety risks during part demolition
of the school.

Phasing would cause safe guarding issues.
Logistics and implications attached to
extending the existing two storey hall would
prove extremely difficult. (107m?2 extension
required to comply with BB99 minimum
benchmarks).

Standardisation and link to new build would
need careful design consideration.

The project would incur extra costs and the
construction programme would increase to
cover the following:

- Temporary classroom accommaodation

- Temporary toilet accommodation

- Boiler plant (to run temporary acc.)

- Structural alterations to existing school

- Electrical & mechanical adaptation

- Fire strategy

- Capacity/adapting onto the existing utility
infrastructure would be phased during the

operation of the Infant school.

- Future expansion would be problematic

Page20



4.1.2 (A2) NEW BUILD OPTION

71IH 9ONNOA

-

Concept diagram of new build proposal

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Proposed New Build (Option A2)

The provision of a new amalgamated school is
very fitting due to the generous area available
behind the existing school building. Retaining
access off Park Crescent via Abbotts Lane, the
front of the site offers the opportunity to
improve both vehicular access and circulation,
including the added possibility of addressing
and increasing existing car parking provisions.

With the site previously being developed, the
plot offers an existing infrastructure and
services, which are ready to be extended to
support and retain an education use of this
plot. The site includes an established and well
maintained sport pitch, which is also used
outside school hours on weekends by the
public & sport clubs.

As the existing site exceeds BB99’s area
requirements for the proposal, the plot would
allow the operation of the existing school to
stay active during the construction phases.
The plot is highly acceptable for a 1.5-FE
school and also provides a clear indication that
it could easily expand to a 2-FE school in the
future.

Total Build Required for Option —1,802.5 m?2

Page21



1.5—-FE Feasibility Sketches

|\

T7IH SONNOA

=
2

Hard Play

Soft Play

Pitches

gge abed

Existing vegetation
to be protected
during construction
to BS5837

Low flowering
shrubs

Hatch indicates 2 storey
building element

Hatch indicates single
storey building element

TJ-E> c,il_‘.l”

Concept sketch: New build development including two storey element (1.5-FE)

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page22



6c¢ abed

T1IH SONNOA

m

Concept sketch: New build development if two storey throughout (1.5-FE)

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Hard Play

Soft Play

Pitches

Existing vegetation
to be protected
during construction
to BS5837

Low flowering
shrubs

Hatch indicates 2 storey
building element

Page23



Ot’¢ abed

oo L= =1
= |
fum I
|
st |
5w I
_‘U_ _____ J —
—4~ [ ={. [
—= ] ~{ [—
T i T |
P ! o P ;
| : | !
! » ! ! e ]
| s, | ! g |
}_| i ! i
l ! " !
S — J m R —— J

Proposal developed from concept sketch: New build development if two storey throughout (1.5-FE)

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page24



Tt abed

2—FE Feasibility Sketches

11IH SONNOA

H

™

Concept sketch: New build development if two storey throughout (2-FE)

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

o

Hard Play

Soft Play

A Pitches

Existing vegetation

to be protected

during construction
4 toBS5837

Low flowering
shrubs

Hatch indicates 2 storey
building element

Page25



2 abed

i
N
415,
§§g§
i

Proposal developed from concept sketch: New build development if two storey throughout (2-FE)

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page26



ci¢ obed

5.0 ESTIMATED RUNNING & BUILD COST
51 EXISTING & PROPOSED BUILDING COMPARISON

Current consumption for Abbots Lane and Penyffordd Juniors (combined)

Average 2012-2015 Avera'g_ejlbendlmaﬁlk5~
Electricity Gas Water Electricity Gas Electricity Gas
Pupils Floor area kwWh £ kwh £ m3 £ kWh/ m2 £/m2 kwh/m2 £/m2 kwWh/pupi £/pupil |kWh/pupi £/pupil
Total 270 1996 61,735 £7,408.16 255,670 £5,113.40| 465 0 31 £3.71 128 £2.56] 229 £27.44 947  £18.94

Unit prices used: Electricity: 12p/kWh Gas: 2p/kWh

CIBSE BENCHMARKS kWh/m2 Cost/m2

- - - - The attached information and data has been obtained from the Flintshire County
Electricity Fossil Fuel Electricity Fossil Fuel .1 . . .
R T 5 T e =y Council’s Energy Conservation Unit. For the purposes of this report, the
consumption & floor areas of the existing schools have been combined. The
results show both a radical decrease in relation to the utilities/running costs of
the new amalgamated school, as well as a clear indication of the energy

2 . efficiency improvement. The data provided for the new school has been
ew School consumption and costs (based on above benchmarks) i . . . L.
| Good Practice calculated on the basis, that it will be built to CIBSE (Chartered Institution of
Electricity Gas Building Services Engineers) good practice benchmarks. The CIBSE TM46
EnmemaE IO £ L £ Energy Benchmarks publication includes a comprehensive outline of building
1180 25,960 £3,115.20] 133,340 £2,666.80 ..
1459 32,098 £3,851.76 164,867 £3,297.24 energy benchmarks; what they are, how they were developed and how it is used.

ASSUMING GOOD PRACTICE

% reduction % reduction
1180 m2 and 300 1459 m2 and 330 |1180 m2 and 1459 m2 and 390 Current |CIBSE
Current schools |pupils pupils 300 pupils pupils schools |benchmarks |% reduction

kwh/pupil 229 87 82 -62 -64| kWh/m2 31 22 -29
£/pupil £27.44) £10.38 £9.98 -62 -64| £/m2 £3.71 £2.64 -29|
Gas Gas

kwh/pupil 947 S 423 -53| -55| kwh/m2 128 113 -12|
£/pupil £18.94) £8.89 £8.45 -53| -55| £/m2 £2.56 £2.26 -12|

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page27



vz abed

5.2 PROJECT & BUILD COSTS

CONSTRUCTION BUDGET G @ COSt S umm arV
Sir v Fflint CONSTRUCTION BUDGET e
-l Y i1 Y Fili
LY ir y Fflint
CLIENT Fl Flintshire
. Children's Services, Education and Recreation COUNTY COUNCRL R )
DESIGN CONSULTANCY CLIENT:  Children's Services, Education and Recreation couavaNet (Al) Extenslon Optlon - £5 485 475
DESIGN CONSULTANCY —_—
PROJECT: New Primary School - Penyffordd
270 Pupils - 1.5 FE plus 30 plus 25 Nursery PROJECT: New Primary School -
270 Pupils - 1.5 FE plus 30 plus 25 Nursery . .
Prcebase date:  2nd Quarte 2016 (A2) New build option - £6,307,247
Price base date: 2nd Quarter 2016
Construction Works Remodel and Extend
Construction Works: New Build Primary School
New Build Extensions 1180 m2 1,770,000
Remodel and Refurbish 623 m2 560,700 New Build Single Storey Primary School 1803 m2 2,524,200
= Installation of Sprinkler System 131,395
Instaliation of Sprinkler System 1803 m2 144,240 Telophones 2
2,474,940 2,655,595
OREEAMT o% 40499 BREEAM / Sustainability 2% 53,112
External Works: . ) Worke:
Generally 950,000
550,000
ainage Drainage 280,000
g;wb' Tenk 2::3 Sprinkler Tank 80,000
Builders work in connection with services 40,000 Bdate Wk Iy conhaclich Wal sviose 40,000
CCTV including buikders work 65,000 CCTV Inclidiog billdars work 85,000
Site Securty during Construction 40,000 55 Secustty duing Consiucion 40:000
Demolition of Existing buildings - Demolition of Existing buildings 60,000
Mobsile Classrooms 120,000 Asbestos survey and remediation (risk item) 20,000
Asbestos survey and remediation (risk item) 20,000 Preliminaries on external works. 122,800
Preliminaries on external works 91.200 1,657.800
1,231,200
Contingency 436651
Contingency 375,564
CONSTRUCTION COSTS (1st Qtr 2016) £ 4,803,158
CONSTRUCTION COSTS (2nd Qtr 2016) £ 4,131,203
Estimated inflation to probable tender date and
Estimated inflation to probable tender date and allowance during construction period (1st gtr 2018 mid point). 9.70% 465,906
allowance during construction period (1t qtr 2018 mid point). 970%  400.727
Fumiture & IT; Telephones. 10% 314536
Furniture & IT; Telephones 10% 290,000
Contractor Design Build Fees 7% 390,852
Contractor Design Build Fees 7%  337.535
CONSTRUCTION COSTS AT COMPLETION 5,974,452
CONSTRUCTION COSTS AT COMPLETION 5,159,465
BREEAM Assessor Fees 15,000
BREEAM Assessor Fees 15,000
Thermal/Environmental Modelling Consultant 20,000
Thermal/Environmental Modelling Consultant 20,000 Land Sirvéy and Grotnd kivesigation 5,000
brisseberlobyeimir ot w B Other Specialist Consultants: Arbocuiture, Sound, Wikdife 20,000
r Soecielas Conmiants. Arbooums. Sound, Wadee g Planning and Building Regulation Approval 20,000
Planning and Building Regulation Approval 20,000
Professional fees 300% 176010 Professional fees 300% 202795
TOTAL BUDGET OF CONSTRUCTION AND FEES £ 5415475 TOTAL BUDGET OF CONSTRUCTION AND FEES £ samaw
(at completion) (at completion)
Other Items: Other Items:
Client Completion Costs/Additional ltems. 50,000 Ciient Completion Costs/Additional Items 50,000
£ 5465475 £ 6,307,247
Exclusions Exclusions
Does not target BREEAM Excelent Does not target BREEAM Excellent
Contaminated Ground Contaminated Ground
22nd February 2016 New Primary School, Penytfordd 8th January 2016

(Al) Extension option costs (A2) New build option costs

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page28



5.3

Girg abed

CAPITAL RECEIPT / SURPLUS LAND VALUE

On the 15.09.2015, Flintshire County Council’s Property, Valuation & Estates Department
carried out a valuation for various school sites. From this exercise, it was confirmed that
the Penyffordd C.P. School site (1.14 ha), with the benefit of Planning Consent for
residential development to include an "Affordable" element of 30% (HSG 10) was valued
in the sum of £1,852,500. However, it was disclosed that this figure was subject a number
of caveats detailed in the report plus the then unknown "SHARP" programme effect.

The SHARP programme is now in place by way of a Formal Agreement which gives the
Council's development partner, Wates Group Construction Company, priority on the take
up of any of the Council's surplus assets with residential potential. Wates recently
submitted a "Residual Valuation” on the Council's land at Maes Gwern in Mold which
resulted in a significant diminution in value from that we would have expected a achieve
by way of an "Arm’s Length" Market transaction. A significant amount of the diminution in
the value has arisen from the fact that the "Affordable" element on the Maes Gwern site
would be gifted to the Council for their Housing Estate Portfolio.

Negotiations have not, as yet, taken place with Wates in terms of agreeing a value for the
Maes Gwern land but the circumstances do indicate that the Council's Capital receipt in
cash terms on the Penyffordd C.P. School site could be significantly diminished by the
existence of the SHARP programme. At this point in time | am unable to assess the effect
on my valuations as each site would now have to be considered on its own merits. For
example that Council could require the whole of any given site to be developed for 100%
"Affordable Housing" in which case there would have to be a form of transfer of the Capital
receipt to the HRA account. I'm not sure, however, that there is a mechanism in place for
this at this moment in time.

If I had, at this stage, have to provide a figure for the Penyffordd C.P. School site based
upon Planning Consent with an affordable element of 30% and taking in account the
foregoing, it would be in the region of £1.100,000.°

(Flintshire County Council Property, Valuation & Estates Department)

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Penymynydd Road Junior Site

Page29



9tr¢ obed

6.0 CONSTRUCTION PHASING & GENERAL LOGISTICS

Option Al — Extension Option:

Phase 1
Legend
, School area duting consruction e Contractor site cabin & fencing set up
S | Site area under construction e School fenCing set up
c ) Hardplay area e Temporary classroom, school facilities
S\ \ E I & plant accommodation

e First phase of extension to commence

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page30



/¢ abed

Legend

School area during construction

Site area under construction
Hardplay area

Playing field area

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Phase 2

¢ Revise school fencing/area
Form improvements to existing vehicular
access

e First phase extension build complete

e Second phase extension to commence

Page31



Legend

Phase 3

School area during construction

Site area under construction

e Contractor to relocate & carry out site

cabin & fencing set up

o _ ¢ Revise school fencing/area

Area indicating future parking — L.
= e Form new car park & adapt onto existing
vehicular access point
Complete external works and landscape
works

Hardplay area

Playing field area

2>

%A
orotssesd

%

X
R

ol
e

L
[ )

%2

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page32



Option A2 — New Build Option:

Legend Phase 1

Schoolarea during consiruction e Contractor site cabin & fencing set up

Site area under construction e School fencin g set up

e Form temporary route for playing fields
adjacent to neighbouring bowling green
ready for phase 2 process

e Form new vehicular access/temporary
staff parking off Park Crescent

Hardplay area

Playing field area

61¢ abed

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page33



Legend Phase 2

School area during construction ° Construct new school inCIUding hard
Site area under construction play areas

Hardplay area ¢ Revise school fencing/area

Playing field area o Amend temporary route for playing fields

adjacent to neighbouring bowling green
e Formimprovements to existing vehicular
access

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page34



TG¢ abed

Legend

School area during construction

Site area under construction

Hardplay area

Playing field area

Area indicating future parking s
s

AR
10.9.9,
otet

X

oS
Po%as
854
2000,
2420000
LA
2202000,
2ate0050)
BRRHAX
\ XXX
2 XXX
% Petesese
o5enee 000 2o
RS % eoree)
QR K KRRLEHXAKARARKL, SRR
%$$$s%%%%&ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁyg%ﬂsﬁs@a&
R R I R AA R RIS
RIS
R ERIAR R IR LLR
QR IEDSERRIRR LN
SEEEERRAXRHN %
SRR IRRAL
oo et
2450

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Phase 3

Contractor to relocate & carry out site
cabin & fencing set up

Revise school fencing/area

Demolish existing school/decant pupils
& staff into new school building

Form new car park & adapt onto existing
and proposed vehicular access points
Complete external works and landscape
works

Page35



T

2S¢ abe

7.0 OPTION EVALUATION

7.1 OPTION SUMMARY

Option Al — Extension Option:

The Penyffordd Abbott’s Lane Infants site has established that it can accommodate an all-through school within the existing parameters and area of this
one site. In terms of the amalgamation and a new school being proposed via a building extension, the evaluation process of the option appraisal has
recognised that there are a number of issues that would have to be carefully reviewed and investigated if pursued further. Careful design consideration
would also be required so that Planning Consent could be obtained. In summary, the school site has the capacity to improve its existing facilities to meet
BB99’s minimum benchmark standards, however, this would be in the form of extensive internal remodelling and an extremely large building extension.

Option A2 — New Build Option:

The option of proposing a new all-through school on one site via a new build development, would be considered extremely achievable due to the generous
area of the Penyffordd Abbott’s Lane Infants site. It has been established that the existing school could be retained and carry on operating during the
construction of the new build. With little disturbance to the existing external facilities, including the football pitch, due to the positioning and size of the
proposal, Planning Consent would be obtainable. The ability to future-proof the new all-through school is also highly feasible.

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page36



£G¢ abed

7.2 EVALUATION PROCESS

To allow a comparison of the proposed options, an appraisal matrix was developed by Flintshire County Council, Design Consultancy. This matrix
defined a wide range of evaluation criteria in order to score the options on a comparable basis.

Each option was scored against all of the criteria using values between 1 and 5 to provide a thorough site, design and technical analysis. The Matrix
included sections covering evaluation criteria on the following:

e Compliance with School Regulations: Health, safety & welfare / Teaching facilities / Lighting / Acoustics / Fire Safety

e Energy Efficiency & Utilities Availability: Existing services available / Renewable technologies

e DDA Requirements: Access & circulation / Building accommaodation / Parking / Site accommodation

o Affordability: Site value & costs / Displacement costs / Site preparation / Build Costs / Capital revenue / Capital receipt & surplus land value.

e Site Location: Accessibility / Traffic circulation & good road infrastructure / Position to serve catchment area

¢ Relationship to Wider Area/ Community: Community setting / Social impact on local residents

¢ Building Bulletin Compliance: Does it meet area guidelines & accommodation set within BB99 / Site capacity?

o Development Potential & Planning Constraints: Likelihood of securing planning consent / Restrictions on development / Restrictions
imposed by presence of mature trees, protected species or archaeology

e Welsh Government Business Case Criteria: Aspiration of 21 Century School requirements

o Flood Risk & Ground Contamination: Proximity to Water Courses / Risk of Contamination

e Site Characteristics & Ground Conditions: Ecology / Topography / Level of site / Crossing of services /

e Site restraints Implementation of Design Standardisation: Classroom layout / Design fluidity / Adaptability to expand

e Phasing & Construction Complexity: Programme / Access / Site capacity & circulation during construction / Health & safety / Impact on local
area, residents & schools

e Sustainability: Environmental impact / Design & construction approach

e Future Flexibility & Expansion: Ability to expand / Site Capacity

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page37



yGe abed
O |0 | N[Ol | |W|IN

7.3 APPRAISAL MATRIX SUMMARY

5 — Strongly Agree / Improvement

4 — Agree / Slight Improvement

3 — Neither Agree nor Disagree / No change
2 — Disagree / Slightly Worse

1 — Strongly Disagree / Worse

Scoring Method for Appraisal Matrix

OPTION A1
PROPOSED EXTENSION

OPTION A2
PROPOSED NEW BUILD

—

COMPLIANCE WITH SCHOOL REGULATIONS

ENERGY EFFICIENCY & UTILITIES AVAILABILITY

DDA REQUIREMENTS

AFFORDABILITY

SITE LOCATION

RELATIONSHIP TO WIDER AREA / COMMUNITY

BUILDING BULLETIN COMPLIANCE

DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL & PLANNING CONSTRAINTS

WELSH GOVERNMENT BUSINESS CASE CRITERIA

—
(@]

FLOOD RISK & GROUND CONTAMINATION

—_—
=

SITE CHARACTERISTICS & GROUND CONDITIONS

—
N

IMPLEMENTATION OF DESIGN STANDARDISATION

W

PHASING & CONSTRUCTION COMPLEXITY

5

SUSTAINABILITY

—
6)]

FUTURE FLEXIBILITY & EXPANSION

S ECEESE IS RSN RN N E T N N NG (VO NG NG N

aldldplOIdPINTOIdPIO]D[P]IOOTO O[O

TOTAL OPTION SCORE (MAXIMUM AVAILABLE 75)

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

~
(03]

(o)}
~

Page38



GGe abed

7.4 STRENGTHS, WEAKNESES & EVALUATION SUMMARY

Further to carrying out the appraisal matrix for the two options on the Penyffordd Abbott’s Lane Infants site, we can see from this exercise the strengths,
weaknesses, risks and opportunities involved. The findings clearly indicate that the two options considered are notably very different in relation to their
attributes. After reflecting on the results and attached justification points below, one presents itself to be extremely achievable with the scope to easily
expand at a later date, however, the other includes a number of high risks items and does not appear to be a feasible option to pursue.

Option Al — Extension Option: Score 48

With the option proposing to retain the existing school building, as well as providing some form of an extension to improve the school’s compliance
in accordance with BB99, due to the percentage of what is being left as existing/inherited as part of the overall scheme (existing layouts & room
sizes etc), this would mean that an element of the school building would still not be entirely compliant and would need an extensive internal
remodel to resolve the majority of the items. Therefore, this scored the option quite low in connection to the compliance of school regulations,
building bulletin, energy efficiency, parking, DDA requirements & implementation of design standardisation. As the construction of the new
development would be running during a live school site and temporary accommodation would need to be considered, a low score was also issued
for phasing & construction complexity due to the risks involved and the extents of the accommodation that would need to be provided to safeguard
both the pupils and staff during the construction phases. With a total cost of £5.46m, this seemed quite high when compared against the new
build option.

Option A2 — New Build Option: Score 67

The option scored well with the majority of the matrix categories, which was primarily due to the overall feasibility of proposing a new all-through
school via a new build development. With the end product being designed to BB99’s benchmarks as a minimum standard, the option
encompassed a blank canvas approach, i.e it had no limitations and therefore, it had the ability to score full marks with the Welsh Government
business case criteria, building bulletin compliance, school and DDA regulations. In terms of affordability, both options included a capital receipt
on the existing Penymynydd Road Junior site, however, the proposal of a new build development proved very reasonable in comparison.
Generally, a lot of high/middle scores were issued in the remaining matrix categories due to the number of ‘slight improvements’ and ‘neither
agree nor disagree’ marks with the proposal of a new Area School (i.e Sustainability and relationship to a wider area/community). It was not
awarded full marks for development potential and planning constraints because the proposal would still need to be carefully designed to obtain
Planning Consent.

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page39



9G¢ abed

8.0 CONCLUSION

8.1 PREFERRED OPTION

Further to considering the two options for a new 1.5-FE Amalgamated all-through school in the Penyffordd area, the report has confirmed that a
satisfactory school of the correct size to comply with current government guidelines is possible to be accommodated on the existing Penyffordd Abbott’s
Lane Infants site. The study has also established that a new build development is the most favourable option to pursue. After achieving a very high score
within the matrix appraisal, the information and justification presented in the chapter, highlights that the plot and feasibility scheme benefitted from the
spacious grounds already being owned by Flintshire County Council. With the option also including excellent ground conditions and site characteristics,
the proposal proved an efficient and effective proposal with the ability to be very easily expanded and adapted to a 2.0-FE school in the future.

— 2 . FF
G.F
—
‘=g ot Y—7—7
/ = Y] | | = —_——
A B 2N “1 —
e e s ~ | 3 R s
= = o e
—_— 7 g BRI ———
- iy /= GF

Concept/feasibility sketches: Front, rear and isometric perspectives

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page40



8.2 LIMITATIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS

The design of the new school focuses very heavy on the descriptions that appears within the context of the DfE publication: Building Bulletin 99 (BB99)
Briefing Framework for Primary School Projects. Although, these guidelines include recommended floor areas (and ranges of floor areas) for various
types of use, it is important to highlight that depending on the size of the school (ie. form entry), this can become an influential factor with regard to the
size, number and type of facilities required.

For the purpose of the report, this chapter will document a number of limitations and differences between a 1.5-FE and a 2.0-FE school. This exercise
will indicate the facilities and floor areas that will need to be increased and considered within the initial designing of the smaller form entry school, so
when transitioning to a 2.0-FE school, the impact will be reduced, the cost risks will be lower and the ability to adapt will be easier.

. Group Room: 20m? (<8 classes), 40m? (8-14 classes) - 20m?
. Hall: 140m?2 (<9 classes), 180m2 (10-14 classes) - 40m?
. Studio / Small Hall: 80m2 (>10 classes / 2.0FE) - 80mz?
. Foundation Year R Play Equipment Store: 10m?2 (<8 classes), 15m? (8-14 classes) - 5m?2
. Stationery Store: 12m2 (<11 classes), 24mz2 (11-14 classes) - 12m?
. Chair Store: 15m2 (<11 classes), 30m2 (11-14 classes) - 15m2
. School Office: 15m2 (1.0FE), 20m2 (2.0FE) - 5m?
;JU . Staff Room: 40m2 (<8 classes), 55m? (8-10 classes), 60m?2 (11-14 classes) - 20m?
(@)
® Total area — 197m2
N
ol

~l It is important to highlight that a ‘studio / small hall’ is required when a school accommodates more than 10 classes. If this is not considered within the
early design stages of the project, this may cause problems in the future. Therefore, it is the report’'s recommendation that the above items/facilities
should be factored in as part of the 1.5-FE scheme design, as the cost implications during the expansion phase could be extremely problematic, thus,
creating a number of risks.

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page41



8G¢ abed

CONSTRUCTION BUDGET

CLIENT:  children's i E ion and

PROJECT: New Primary School - Penyffordd
270 Pupils - 1.5 FE plus 30 plus 25 Nursery

Price base date: 2nd Quarter 2016

Construction Works: New Build Primary Schoel

New Build Single Storey Primary School
Installation of Sprinkler System
Telephones

BREEAM / Sustainability
External Works:

Generally

Drainage

Sprinkler Tank

Builders work in connection with services
CCTV including builders work

Site Security during Construction
Demolition of Existing buildings

Asb survey and r iation (risk item)
Preliminaries on external works

Contingency

CONSTRUCTION COSTS (1st Qtr 2016)

Estimated inflation to probable tender date and
allowance during construction period (1st gtr 2018 mid point)

Furniture & IT; Telephones

Contractor Design Build Fees

CONSTRUCTION COSTS AT COMPLETION

BREEAM Assessor Fees

T ironmental C
Land Survey and Ground Investigation
Other ist C Arboculture, Sound, Wildlife

Planning and Building Regulation Approval
Professional fees

TOTAL BUDGET OF CONSTRUCTION AND FEES
(at completion)

Other Items:

Client Completion Costs/Additional Items

Exclusions
Does not target BREEAM Excellent
Contaminated Ground

New Primary School, Penyffordd

(A2) New build option cost including extra facility requirements

Sir y Fflint
r.Flinzshire

COUNTY COUNEIL

DESIGN CONSULTANCY
2000 m2 2,800,000
131,395

2,931,395

2% 58,628
950,000
280,000
80,000
40,000
65,000
40,000
60,000
20,000
122,800

1,657,800

464,782

£ 5,112,605

9.70% 495,923

10% 345,481

7% 416,781

6,370,789

15,000

20,000

5,000

20,000

20,000

3.00% 216,392

£ 6,667,181

50,000

£ 6,717,181

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

8th January 2016

1.5-FE Scheme Cost Including Recommendations

The minimum requirements for a new 300 full time
pupil place + 25 nursery school requires a minimum
site area of 13,100m2 and a Gross Building area of
1,802.5m2. The report has already established that
the existing Penyffordd Abbott’s Lane Infants site
can accommodate any future growth & expansion.
Therefore, the purpose of this section is to indicate
what the cost relevance/impact is, if the 1.5-FE
scheme was to incorporate the areas and facility
requirements included within the recommendation
statement. The total Gross Building area that will
need to considered to reduce/omit any design and
cost risk at a later date will be 2,000m?

Cost Summary

(A2) New build option: 1,803m?2 - £6,307,247

(A2) New build option: 2,000m? - £6,717,181

Page42



6G¢ abed

8.3 PROJECT PROGRAMMES

Option 1:

PROJECT PROJECT REF DATE REVIEW NO BY
New Primary School, Penyffordd EPN338/006 08/01/2016 1 lan Edwards

YEAR 1 YEAR 2
Weok Ending ECCCECCECECECECEEEEEECDCECECENECEEECECECEEECEOE ECEEEECEEEEE DD EECEE EEEEECEEEECEECEEE CECE NEEEE

Stage Sept Oct Now Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Ju A Sept Ot Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Aps May Jun

% |

(GROUND CONDITION
SURVEY

GAS MONITORING

[EUoNG REGS
CONSULTATIONIAPPROVA
LS

OJEU NOTICE

FREF OF TENDER
DOCUMENTS

EVALUATE PPQS

COMPILE TENDER LIST

TENDER PERIOD

TENDER EVALUATION

10 DAYS STAND
STILLICONTRACT AWARD

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT ¢
CONTRACTORLEAD IN?
PRICING

PRE PLANNING
APPLICATION ADVICE

PLANNING APPLICATION

(COMSULTATION WITHGPS

STAT NOTICE PERIODIWAG
PPROVAL

WORKING ORAWINGS

(COMSTRUCTION PHASE |

[YEAR 1

R
&l‘ﬂlll‘ 3[|D|"II|3I 'llulﬂllﬂ S||2|‘3|l 2[3|’GII|8

YEAR 2 YEAR 3

I I I I I 2 . O A Y
Stage S A Oat Hov Deo B [ | N T T I |- I | | M ) Feb Ma =
ot | ST T T T T O T E T T T [TTITTTIT
YEAR 3

el [ A T e e

E L

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Page43



09¢ abed

Option 2:

PROJECT PROJECT REF DATE REVIEW NO BY
New Primary School, Penyffordd EPN388/006 08/01/2016 1 lan Edwards
YEAR 1 YEAR 2
Week Ending _alt_ulnlc 1 alﬂlala s]tz]nlc a[nlulal: 1F1[2|Il l||||I8|l 4]11[10[. ||s||§|lll cltoll[a :lnlﬂl: Ilollsls[a slvzllsll ala[nlall rlulzt]l ‘I"["I' zlslu]l]c slta[nla alwlu = ala[ulala eli:l:ll 4[||||a|a Ilo]ulall
|Stage Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mart Apt Ma: Jun Ju Aug Sept Oct Now Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr
(GROUND CONDITION
[SURVEY
(GAS MONITORING
|[BUILDING REGS

ICONSULTATION/VAPPROVA
LS

(OJEU NOTICE

[PREP OF TENDER
[DOCUMENTS

EVALUATE PPQS

(COMPILE TENDER LIST

ITENDER PERIOD

TENDER EVALUATION

10 DAYS STAND
ISTILLICONTRACT AWARD

[DESIGN DEVELOPMENT ¢
(CONTRACTORLEAD IN
PRICING

PRE PLANNING
IAPPLICATION ADVICE

PLANNING APPLICATION

[CONSULTATION WITH GPS

|STAT NOTICE PERIDDIWAG
|APPROVAL

W/ ORKING DRAWINGS

[CONSTRUCTION PHASE

YEAR 1 YEAR 2 YEAR 3
Tl T e = L T L L L L L el L T o [ L o LT - o L e e [l o e o e o e o o]« o v

b | LT T T T T T T NRRENNNE  ENNARRRRNNAEENE

T

YEAR 3

Lol [e e[l <[ [l [l [l STl o o Tl e ] =

Sta. M. Jun S A Se, Ot MNowv Dec
TRUCTION PHASE ‘ ‘ | I | ‘ |

INFANT & PRIMARY SCHOOL AMALGAMATION FEASIBILITY

Paged44



Agenda Item 11

Sllfy Fflint
"'E!En!o%!z.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 18" October 2016
Report Subject School Modernisation — Nercwys VA School Review
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Education and Youth
Report Author Chief Officer (Education and Youth)
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

To inform Cabinet of the progress of the review to date.

To invite Cabinet to pause the review to allow time to consider its strategic options
for collaboration and sustainable school estate.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1

Cabinet is requested to consider the progress of discussions undertaken to
date between the Council, Diocesan Authorities and the school's
Governing Body.

Cabinet is requested to approve the request to pause the review and allow
more time to follow through strategic options for collaboration and
sustainability of its school estate.

Page 261



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE SCHOOL MODERNISATION - NERCWYS VA
SCHOOL REVIEW

1.01

In June 2015, the cabinet determined that officers could undertake a soft
consultation of Nercwys Voluntary Aided (VA) school.

1.02

Nercwys VA school met a number of triggers for review:

e Small School trigger — School Population under the National
designated number for a small school.

e Diminishing Resource Criteria - Schools supported by pupils not
from their local community and/or small numbers within the
community raise concern regarding sustainability within the schools
portfolio, higher costs per pupil, unnecessary building and
administration costs.

e Building Condition Trigger — School Condition and Suitability issues.

1.03

The Education Standards at the school are good and this is positively
acknowledged by Welsh Governments categorisation (January 2015) as
follows:

e School as Standards group — 1

e Improvement Capacity - A

e Support Category — Green

1.04

A series of meetings have been held with Officers from the Council,
Diocesan Authority and representatives of school governors, which looked
at all possible options.

1.05

The Governing Body has acted as appropriate and passionate advocates
on behalf of their school community. They have also had a clear
understanding of the budgetary pressures on both the Council and small
schools. The governors have indicated formally that they are willing to
consider and pursue formal federation arrangements.

1.06

The Council has an excellent working relationship with the St Asaph
Diocesan Authority. All parties feel that it would be prudent to pause the
review to allow additional time to pursue further strategic options for
collaboration to support a sustainable school network.

1.07

The Cabinet will be aware that The Federation of Maintained Schools
(Wales) Regulations 2014 which came into force on 22 May 2014 give
effect to LA’s powers to federate schools. (School governors already have
powers to federate by choice under provisions introduced in 2010. These
powers have now been consolidated into the 2014 Regulations).

Page 262




1.08 | Under this Act a Voluntary Aided (VA) school is unable to federate with a
community or foundation school. However VA schools are able to federate
with other VA and Voluntary Controlled (VC) schools. Alternatively
Federation would be an option if they are able to persuade a community or
foundation school to convert to VA or VC status.

1.09 | As Cabinet is fully aware from reviews in other areas, reviewing schools,
can cause uncertainty in the school community and it is important that we
provide some certainty to ensure that the school can focus on continued
education improvement.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 There are no resource implications associated with this report.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | Should cabinet agree with the recommendation currently no further
consultations would be required as part of the School Organisation Code.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | A Programme Board is set up to oversee the implementation business
plans and manage risks in close detail. High level risks will be reported to
Programme board, Operational risks will be managed by the project team
in accordance with agreed tolerances.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | No appendices.

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None.

Contact Officer: Damian Hughes, Senior Manager, School Planning
and Provision
Telephone: 01352 704135

E-mail: Damian.hughes@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 263



mailto:Damian.hughes@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

Federation and Collaboration - The federation of schools is a legal
process which enables schools to work together through a formal
structured process by sharing a governing body that will make decisions in
the best interest of all the schools, staff and pupils in that federation.

The term federation is often used to describe many forms of collaboration
between schools. The Statutory process of Federation is often referred to
as “Hard Federation” An informal, non-statutory arrangement between
schools is often called “soft federation” or collaboration, where schools
have made a commitment to work together through some form of joint
governance.

School Organisation Code - The new School Standards and
Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 makes Local Authorities responsible (rather
than the Welsh Ministers prior to October 2013) for the determination of
most statutory school organisation proposals that receive objections. Such
provisions apply to any proposals published on or after 15t October 2013
that consider the establishment, discontinuance or otherwise significantly
alter schools.

The Council does this in line with the Welsh Government’s statutory
School Organisation Code

http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/130719-school-organisation-
codes-en.pdf

Page 264



http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/130719-school-organisation-codes-en.pdf
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/130719-school-organisation-codes-en.pdf

Agenda Item 12

Sir y Fflint
("E!Emg!z.!re

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 18 October 2016
Report Subject Review of the Waste Collection Rounds and HRC
changes
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Waste and Public Protection
Report Author Chief Officer, Streetscene & Transportation
Type of Report Strategic & Operational
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

A review was undertaken by Welsh Government (WG) on the Council’'s waste
service. The review made recommendations on both the number of HRC sites and
in the way the Council collects its waste.

The outcome of the HRC review has been widely reported and this report provides
an update for Cabinet on the progress made to deliver the more localised HRC
solution, previously endorsed by Cabinet.

The WG report also made recommendations on the waste collection service and
particularly on the vehicles needed to collect the kerbside recycling. It proposed that
the Council move to a bespoke Recycling Recovery Vehicle (RRV) which would
improve the Council’s recycling performance and increase the number and types of
recycling materials collected.

This report provides details of the new vehicles and the changes required to the
rounds to accommodate both the new vehicles and the increased number of
properties in the County since the last review of the waste collection rounds in 2011.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That Cabinet approves the commencement of preparations to review the
current waste and recycling rounds and procure the new waste collection
vehicles detailed in the report.

2 That Cabinet notes the progress made on the proposed changes to the HRC
provision across the Authority.

Page 265



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE BACKGROUND TO THE PROPOSALS

1.01

In June 2010 the Council adopted its Municipal Waste Strategy. The
Strategy contains a number of key actions which were needed to meet the
challenging recycling targets set out in the all Wales National Waste
Strategy 'Towards Zero Waste'.

1.02

On 15" March 2011 the Council’'s Executive formally approved its
Household Waste Collection Policy which supported the introduction of a
Managed Weekly Collection (MWC) service, fundamentally changing the
way the Council collected all domestic waste in the County. The new MWC
service was designed to increase participation in recycling and reduce the
Council’s reliance on landfill in order meet the challenging targets set out in
the Strategy. Further revisions to the Policy were approved by Cabinet in
December 2013 and again in April 2015, with 7 day collections being
introduced in September 2015.

1.03

Failure to meet the WG National Strategy landfill targets could result in
infraction charges being levied against the Council totalling £200 for each
tonne of waste land filled above the defined allowance. This would result in
a relatively minor failure to meet the target of (say) 1,000 tonnes or the
equivalent of just 1% of the Council’s current Municipal Waste arising,
resulting in a financial penalty of £200,000 for that year alone. In addition, a
further £200/tonne infraction charge could be levied, if the Council fails to
achieve the Statutory Waste Recycling target in a same period, resulting in
the possibility of a further £200,000 penalty being served upon the Council.

1.04

Since the introduction of the Policy and the new collection arrangements,
recycling levels across all areas of the County have increased, allowing the
Council to achieve the 2012—-13 and 2015-16 statutory targets and to be well
on track to achieve the 2019 -20 target - shown below:

Table 1 - Summary of municipal waste targets

TARGET FOR EACH | TARGETS FOR
INDIVIDUAL LOCAL | EACH TARGET
AUTHORITY: YEAR

12- 15- | 19-20 | 24-25
13 16

Minimum levels of preparing for
reuse and recycling / composting

0, o) ) o
(or AD) — Statutory Target 52% | 58% | 64% 70%

Flintshire performance 53% | 58%

1.05

The 2024-25 target is more challenging and will require further changes to
both the waste and recycling collection service and the Council’'s HRC
provision in order for the Council to achieve 70%.

Page 266




1.06

The Council’s recycling service receives significant funding from WG though
the Sustainable Waste Management Grant (SWMG), which has now been
combined within the Single Environment Grant (SEG). The level of the Grant
has been reducing since the financial year 2013-14 and indications are that
further reductions are to be expected.

1.07

Waste and recycling collection round review

Since the last round review in 2011, the number of households in Flintshire
has significantly increased and although the new properties were accounted
for in the initial round design, the current rounds are now nearing capacity.
It is good practice to review waste collections rounds every 5 years, in order
to plan for future development, and with the number of households expected
to increase further in the next 5 years, now is the right time to review and
optimise the rounds once again.

1.08

The Council secured WG funding and are in the process of constructing a
second waste transfer station in Greenfield in the North of the County. This
will allow the waste and recycling material to be bulked up in the new facility
when collections take place in the North of the County, removing the need
for the collection vehicles to travel back to the Buckley transfer station twice
each day to tip - saving both time and fuel.

The new facility allows the Council to redesign the rounds to encompass a
growth in the number of properties without increasing the number of front
line vehicles required to deliver the service.

1.09

The WG review carried out with officers of the Council was completed using
the WG “Waste Collections Blueprint”. The Blueprint was devised by WG
and is designed to deliver higher rates of high quality recycling. The blueprint
provides recommendations across all waste activities that Local Authorities
undertake, but is specific in recommending that dry recycling material
(Paper/Card, tin cans/plastic, glass) is collected separately to increase the
value of the material and that food waste should be collected on the same
vehicle.

1.10

The Blueprint promotes the use of a new breed of Recycling Recovery
Vehicles (RRV’s) These vehicles are relatively lightweight and more fuel
efficient than a standard Recycling vehicle. They have multi-compartments
that can take a wider range of recyclable material than other collection
vehicles. The Council currently operates 2 RRV’s which were purchased in
2015 following a WG grant. These vehicles have been used mainly on rural
collections but worked well and proven to be fit for purpose. In addition the
new vehicles can accommodate food waste collections which are currently
collected on the domestic/garden waste vehicle.

1.1

The Council’s kerbside collection service contributes an average of 32% to
the overall recycling figure. This amounts to circa 28,000 tonnes. The
existing kerbside service performs well in comparison with other Welsh
Local Authorities but is limited in the number of recycling materials it can
collect due to the capacity of the vehicles currently used by the Council. The
introduction of RRV’S to collect dry recycling will have multiple benefits to
the authority that include:
e Increase in the volume_and quality of the materials collected

Page 267




¢ Increase the number and range of recycling material types to include
a wider range of plastics such as food trays, yogurt pots etc.
e Reduced running costs.

1.12

The existing recycling collection fleet is nearing the end of their lease term
and are due to be replaced during 2017. A number of RRV’s vehicles have
already been trialled by the service and appraised both against each other
and the existing fleet. The trial has demonstrated that RRV’s are the most
suitable vehicle in the current market that it will meet the needs of the service
both now and into the future. The recommendation therefore is to purchase
a fleet of these vehicles to collect all dry recycling and food in one pass from
all residential properties, on a weekly basis. A second standard waste
collection vehicle will collect residual waste and garden waste on alternative
weeks.

1.13

The introduction of the new vehicles into the service is planned for
September 2017 and in order to meet this deadline, the procurement
process and subsequent orders for the vehicles needs to commence
because of the extended lead in time for the manufacture and delivery of
the vehicles.

Appendix 1 provides details of a typical RRV vehicle.

1.14

A further report will be presented to Cabinet in July 2017 providing more
details of the round review which will come into operation in September 2017
and coincide with the introduction of the new vehicles. The report will outline
the essential changes to the current collection policy that will reduce waste
and increase the volumes of recyclable materials collected and ensure the
Council achieves the statutory targets for recycling in future years.

1.15

Changes to the Council’s HRC provision

Following receipt of the WG review of HRC sites, which recommended just
three sites in the County as the optimum solution, Cabinet requested officers
to explore a more localised solution for the service.

1.16

In July 2016, Cabinet approved proposals to improve the current HRC
facilities in Buckley and Mold, within the existing footprint and along the lines
to the new Sandycroft HRC facility.

This would include:-
o Clear separation of operational and service user areas — removing
the requirement to close the site when skips are emptied.
e Easy step free access to skips
e Clear entrance and exits and good traffic management arrangements

1.17

The design and procurement work is now ongoing and Appendix 2 shows
the proposed redeveloped layouts for both Buckley and Mold facilities and
it is intended that a planning application is submitted to the November
Planning Committee. The plans have been made available in Alltami depot
from the 12th September, for Local Councillors, whose wards are affected
by the redevelopments, to view and make comment on the proposals. The
plans will also be displayed at the sites for the public to view during October.

Page 268




1.18

An extensive search by FCC’s Assets Team is ongoing in order to identify a
suitable site to replace the Flint and Connahs Quay facilities. A further report
on the final proposal will be forthcoming once a site has been identified and
negotiations are completed. As previously indicated both Flint and Connahs
Quay HRC facilities will remain open at the current level until the new site
has opened.

1.19

A capital bid of £1.7 million submitted by Flintshire County Council has been
approved by WG for funding from their Capital Change Programme fund.
The funding is intended for the redevelopment of two existing HRC’s in
Buckley and Mold and to support the purchase a number of the RRV’s
detailed in this report. There is a requirement to spend this capital within the
current financial year.

1.20

The cost of the proposed HRC site in the North of the County will be
assessed once any site details have been finalised. Funding bids are being
prepared for the Councils own Capital budgets and ‘Invest to save’ funds in
order to construct the scheme.

1.21

Work on the development of the sites in Mold and Buckley will commence
directly after the Christmas break, which is one of the busiest times of the
year for the service. The construction will take approximately 12 weeks to
complete and both sites will reopen in time for the Easter Holiday.
Discussions are ongoing with WG to allow the closed HRC site in
Queensferry to reopen for the period of the proposed closure in Mold and
Buckley.

1.22

The portfolio Business Planning proposals included savings from the
rationalisation of HRC sites which consisted of two elements:

1. Savings in operational costs from reduced site numbers
2. Savings from reduced landfill cost through improved recycling.

As the saving from the first element will be significantly reduced by the
revised localised proposal, the second element will become critical if the
majority of the projected Business Planning financial saving are still to be
delivered.

1.23

A target of 90% recycling at all of the proposed facilities is required in order
to deliver the second element of the savings. Other Local Authorities in
Wales are currently achieving this level of recycling at their HRC sites
through a range of methods ranging from controlling trade use to ‘resident
only’ permit schemes. A rebranding of the sites from the traditional ‘skip site’
to a modern efficient recycling centre will be required and during the month
of October officers will be contacting these high performing authorities to
investigate their methodologies and make recommendations on those that
are most effective.

1.24

Whatever new methods are adopted it is likely this will impact on the way
the public perceive and use the sites. Support from all parties will be
required in introducing these changes in order for us to meet the 90%
target.

Page 269




2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | There will be no reduction in the number of operatives required to operate
the HRC provision.

2.02 | There will be no reduction in the number of front line collection vehicles.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | Consultation has taken place with the public, local land owners, Local
Members and front line staff.

3.02 | Consultation has taken place with HRC site users regarding their aspirations
for the HRC provision.

3.04 | A “Survey Monkey” consultation process has been completed, allowing
residents to make comments on the waste service provision.

3.05 | A Member workshop about the changes is going to be held in October on
the date of the Environment and Overview Scrutiny Committee, all Members
will be invited.

3.06 | The redevelopment plans will be displayed at both Buckley and Mold HRC'’s
during October.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | A Project Review Board has been set up to monitor and oversee the
implementation of the proposals, and to ensure that the project stays on
target.

4.02 | A review of the Equalities Impact Assessment will be required for the
changes proposed.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1 - Typical RRV vehicle details
Appendix 2 — Site layout plans for Buckley and Mold

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None.

Contact Officer: Stephen O Jones
Telephone: 01352 704700

Page 270




E-mail: stephen.o.jones@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

HRC - Household Recycling Centre

RRV - Recycling Recovery Vehicle

Page 271



mailto:stephen.o.jones@flintshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



9107 S241n1ed{ MaN
}10S-049))
dinbewoy

] d.
- - . n
-~ Ly

B TR R 2 )
¥ 4 ..jm..g«_n.?w_ g
ot e e TR
o T d

s M_—.»....

~ ypmA
T

Page 273



juswnedwod

uonoeduwios juswedwod juawpedwod
i u0I1}23}|0d uoI1}23||0d
pue uoi}Id||od sidulejuod
) Ssg|o Jlse|d
pieoqp.ie)

=

Aeq ysem

Page 274

1010edwod

nseld uoi}I3||0d

A1aneq g ajnxaL
|]0J3U0D 211)I9)7

3 JljnespAH

InoJ |ensiA

jusawpedwod
uoI}I9||0d
J19ded



dois-3

31| psezeH

W31 3PAD

sy3n
1M}JeIA 3pIS

SIY3i| H40M

M3IA 9pIS

Y31 31dAd

Page 275

81| prezeq

pPa140S du|dAdaY IP|SQIdN

_._-W_Um_._.“..mw_m




uooeag

M3IIA\ OSI

Page 276




LAUOS-GUIN  JINOVWOU

S T e R -

Page 277

elawe)

spliezeH Jeay

WS IR L, i

pa340s 3u||3A33Y ap|sqia)

MDIN JedYy Eomumﬂ_mv__

<INOEIW




J00P 9DIAI9S

uonoedwod pue
uolleAd|d 10j uonng

Josuags jeuondo

dois-3

207 1sIM1

judwiiedwod nse|d

Aeg |ouuosiad

W31 3pAD

juswisedw o) diise|d

Page 278



: B i - T P -t o
o s =
~ =g -
- | i L s 1
] o ...._ " : i
5 e . - &
 BRAYS . LI 4 =

— —_—

WY31| JvjieN

9je|d 19)yng

3Jn| nuy

1o00p 3uipeo

Y3i| Ydom

juswiaedwo) Jaded

Page 279



9je|d 1944ng

ojpueH
uden

RNy
%007

aon| puy

100p 3uipeo

31| oM

juswiiedw o) poo4

Page 280



I3 wr ——

W31 9pIs —

1o0p A9jjoa] jeuondo
)20] Sunds

Jle|d 19}jng

}207 3|pped
3Jn| Uy

loop Suipeo

Judwpedwo)
9[11Xal

Page 281



dey Suipeojun

jooy uig

aje|d 1oyng —

100p 3uipeo

Page 282

$9j0Y 1S0d —

Y31] yaoMm




Y317 1)4eN

3J9A) uoidedwod a1e|d 1ayng

10} UONINg
10suds euondo 0] quinyy

)20] 3|pped

100Q Suipeoq
SS9y wey

W31 9PAD

W31 a0Mm

-
.ﬂ.l e

juswedwo) Emo_n_e_.mu

Page 283



9T0Z S°i1nled{ MoN
}110S-G49))
dinbew oy

Page 284




*JOOJ 3|2IY3A 9} WL} paAowal mMou si Buuim |y

"‘Apoq ay} woutj Aeme sayuI)s Yyaueldd |je 193|}9p 0} paubisap Buisnoy
|99)S SSIjuUle)S PAJIOoJUId B Ul pASNOY MOU alde sajqed pue sjybi| Jeal ay

‘1Ioued Apoq
doj ayj} ojul passadal mou ale yaiym sjybi| paezey apis ayj buipunow jo wajyshs
Mau e pasiaap dinbewoy ul wea) buusauibus ayj wajqold siy) ajedipeldd o}

‘paulejuiewun ale sval) 9J9YyM seale Ul

110G-(49){ 9y} JO JOO. 3y} Uo pajeso| Hullim ayj o} pasned aq pjnod abewep jey)
uoinuajje Jno o} Jybnoiq sem }1 sayosueuaq BuiA] Mo wouy Sa)LIIS JO JNsal e Sy

dunysi jooy

Page 285



Page 286

Apoq 9y} ojul passaoal
sybi| yum dn jas maN

J00J 3y} uo pajunow
sjybi| yym dn jas jeulbuo

ST T AR e ST ST AT l_m =

3unysi jooy




LAHOS-HUIH — HIBOVWOU

e

‘Apoq

a3y} wouj Aeme sayjii)s Yyouelq
[le 303)}3p 0} paubisap
Buisnoy |99)s ssajuie)s
pa240julaJ e ul pasnoy

MOU dJe salim pue sybi|
Jeal aloym walshAs maN

Page 287

Joou ay} uo pajunow syybij
yam dn jas Bunyby jeuibo




Buisnoy 3yb1) uondaYIPS
youeuq Jeald Yyjim pajlja
pue jooud 3y} uo sajqes m

ou yum ubisap maN

~J

joou ay}
uo pajunouw sajged pue

sybi| yum ubisap plo




‘Alowaw punogal pieoqpied |043uU0d

pue pjoy 0} pajij osje ate Y3ad} ypum syoes 1addub apis ‘awesy Apoq Anp

Aaeay e yyum uonounfuo? ui 82103 uoipoedwod aiow ¢,00L 03} dn 10j Smojje os|e
uBisap mau ay] "|oAd] J8ybBiIy e sayoeal pieogp.led se 82104 saonpal jey) ubisap
snoiAald o0} paiedwod se ‘wel J0}oedwod ayj} jo ayodis ay) yJnoybnoay} 9210}
JUS)SISUO0I Y3IM pajoedwod aq 0} pieoqpied ay} smojje 1oj}oedwiod mau ayl

‘Buipuad
juajed Yyim 910z 10} pasesjal pue pajsa) usaq sey J0joedwiod mau ayl

"199]|02 0} pJeoqp.ied Jo sawnjoA abie| Ajjeloadsa

aAeY OYym siawolsnd 1o} uondo jun uonoedwos Ainp Areay mau pue
uBisap 0} papioop dinbewoy ul wea) ay) ‘seale UOI}23]|0d dwWoOS uj paiinbal
SOWN|OA UOI}93]|0D pJeoqpled uo }oeqpasj siawolsnd 1no o} Bujualsi| Ag

uondop uondedwo) pieogp.ied

Page 289



uoijoedwod usns
10} squ pajeibajul
Ylim

aje|d uonoeduwod
Anp Anean

swie s10ssI0s Jojoedwon)
|o9)s ssajuie}s Ainp AnesH

sioddub pieogpie)

Page 290



sB) 00/ 0 SS99Xd ul sl wa)sAs uoljoedwod
Buipuad juajed Ajnp AAeay mau yjim paaaiyoe peojhed pieoqpied wnwixep

. 4w

uondo :o_uumc_Eou Emoa_?m.u

Page 291




-a)9]dwo9 si [9Ad] abe)s }sa1} 8y} 0} Buipeoj asuo Jybiay wnwndo
ayj je Buipeoj Jaisea 1o} Buimojje Jijds p :09 & UO MOU die SI00pP M3au 3sayl
uoI}09s pleoqpJed 0} pappe sioop Buipeo| maN

M3N jeuibuQ

Page 292

e s - —— — [~ — e - s - - s —

paliog du|ahday apisqIay

1210S-SaI3X

100 3uipeo] pieoqgpie)



‘sIseq
Ajiep e uo 21|qnd ayj 0} M3aIA UO S| jey) 3|2IYaA
Bunjoo| Jauea|o B Ui paynsal sey siy4 'sioop
ay} wouj abewep j1oedwi wol deim Apoq sjual|o
109]04d 0} payls mou saje|d Jayng wniuiwngy

"Jeab Ul Jou SI )onJ) sy} pue uo si ayeigpuey
ay) usym ajelado Ajuo [im siy} ainiea) Ajajes
e sy ‘apis giay ay} wol} 8j9Ao uoioedwod
oy} ajelado o} Jojesado ayj sa|qeus Yolym
Bale Uol}03]|00 pJeogpied apis Jabuassed ay} 0}
Pa)jl} MOU SI UOJING [04}U0D }I] YOB( JOLSIXa Uy

‘goueUSUIBW padnpal Ajjedliselp
ul Buiyynsai adA} abuly oueid pjo sy} aonpal
0] panl} mou sabuly |9s)s ssajulels Ainp AnesH

‘uiebe Hog-qioy
3y} peo| 0] ajes sI } smouy Jojelado ayj pue yo
sayoums 1ybi| ay) Jano si 81942 ay) aouo gpho e
ybnouy} Buiob si ssaoo.id uonoedwod sy} uaym
jeuonelado si ybi 91942 siy| b1 ajoho Jequie
ue Ulim pajlj MOouU SI UONDaS pieogpled ay |

‘Buipeo] Buiulow Ajes

pue BuluaAa ajes 10j mojje 0} Juswpedwod
ay} Jano pajy mou spybil Buipeo| g37 meN

uoI129s pieoqp.ied

pa1108 du)jaAIeY dp|sqIa)

A0S~

Page 293




‘@oueUSUIBW
jo asea ul Buninsai sdejj ay) 1omod 0} pasn swia)sAs odljnelpAy Jo |eol}09]8 ou ale 318y |

‘uonjow Buisojo Joop doj ayj buisn paso|o ale sdejj ay |
‘papeojun si }I se Juswpedwod doy ay} ul el}a) ayj Jo 8210} ay) Buisn pauado ale sdejj asay|

'UoI}08s pieogpied sy} JaAo eale wel Joop ay} buusjus
uonoas doj ay} wolj [eusjew sajeulwijd yoiym walsAs Buipeojun sugap nue Ainp Aneay maN

MaN jeuibuQ

Page 294



"19Wo0)sSN9 3y} 10} S3|qejoA2al JO SBWN|OA eI)Xa Ul
Buiyinsal Aeq Buipeo| ay} ssoioe Ajuana peaids si sse|b ay) ey} ainsus yoiym
sajnyo pajesbajul yiim Buipeoj [aAd] ybiy 10j pasnpotjul walshs ajoy }sod MaN

-10)esado ay} 0} punodgal asiou Buionpau
sny} ssasoid Buipeo| ayj Jnoybnoiy) [eas e ay} sayeuw Iaulejuod Buipeoj ay)
salnsua Yysiym Joop Buipeo] pajeas Ajnj e sajelodioou; Mou UOI}I9S SSe|) ay |

"s|elidjew uolonpal
aipsnooe yjim doj o} Joojj wody pajejnsul Ajjn} mou si uol}oas sse|b ayy

"aouewoad o1psnooe s)1 parosdul

Appuesiyiubis sey yosiym walsAs Buipeoj ssejb 1no uo j3o9foid Juswaroiduwi
ue uayelapun aaey dinbewoy "sjuresysuod Aiojejnbal ayj uiyyum bBujuiewal
IS|IYM Noeqpea} Jawoisna Aq papie sjonpoud ino Buiroadwi Ajjuejsuod

aie dinbewoy je BuijoAoal apisgiay| Ul Siaped| }9yiew ujewal 0} J18p.4o uj

UOoI}23¢ 3uipeo] sse|o MapN

Page 295



‘s|ellajew Buiuadwep
ol)snooe sholieA uo Buise) |eaisAyd no Auied 0} sh mojje o} ssasold ubisap
Buipeoj sse|b mau ayj Buunp bu 1s8) 8|S ||N} B palnjoejhuew aAey dinbewoy .

m_u_m:_:._o._.,;m_>
1 N £ AT

Bry 3se} pajeinsuj Ajng

1004 juswpedwod
pajejnsul Ajin4

|aued Joop
puiyaq uone|nsu|

s|jem Juawpedwod
paje|nsul Ajin4

Page 296

jool
Juswpedwos o} jeusjew
Buiuadwep o13snooy

Juswiliedwo) 3uipeo sse|o



'JN220 JoU Ued punogal
sse|b pue Buipeo| usym sauwli} jje Je pauiejulew si [eas e jey} sainsus uoiido loop
peojlano pjo ase|dal 0} Joop Buipeo| ayj ojui pajesodiooul sajoy }1sod pajeas A|n4

‘Juswipedwod ay} Ulyim pauiejuod si asiou Buipeoj
sse|b ayj Jo abejuaaiad abie| e sainsua yoiym wajsAs Buipeo| pasojoua Ajjn} maN

MaN |euibuQ

Page 297




‘paAOWIal SI Jaulejuod ay} se uollisod pasojo oy} 0} Suin}al Joop Ayl

‘punogal asiou Buionpal sny) Aeqg uo1308jj0d ay)
pue Buiuado ay) usamiag [ess ||n} B Sa)eal0 papeojun usym Jauiejuod ssejb ayl .

paulejulew |eag papeojun Uuo payooH ulig

e




*1aWo}sno ay} 10} sa|ge|oAoal JO SBWN|OA Bijxa ul Buljnsal
Keq Buipeoj ayj ssoioe Ajuana peaids si sse|b ay} Jey} ainsua sajnyo pajelbajul ay |

‘sse|b
alow peo| 0} sajoy }sod peojiano ay} ash ued Jojesado ay} pue uoljisod ojui pax20|
2Q Ue9 Joop a8y} Jaulejuod ay} yym Buipeo| jJo sjwi| ay} payoeal sey sse|b ay} souQ

S8)NYD JO MBIA 3pIS apIsul WoJlj MaIA 00| J00Q

4 5

i T g T

AT

\

Page 299



‘(sayojey

solse|d pue pleoqpied sy} uo pajunow) Bej papod e S99S J SSajUN YIOM Jou

[IIM )] "Josuas ay} Jano |eyew Buioejd Ag yum wa)sAs ay) ssedAq Jo youy o} ApogAue oy
a|qissoduwi si ¥ 1ey; si Ajwixoid aAionpul 19A0 sey walsAs siy} abejuepe Jofew ay |
‘sayojey Buipeo] pseoqp.ied pue soise|d uo He} papoo Aj|eoluoljos|a ue o} syui| ey}
Janigoal/lapiwe Ajajes e asn jey) wajlshAs Ajajes mau e si yoopajul Alajes Qi4y ayl

‘wia)sAs yoopaul A)ajes paseq |4y ue 0} spesbdn o} uoldo ue yjm siswolsno
Ino apinoid 0} uolysod e ui mou ale dinbewoy Janamoy ‘suoljeinbai Ayajes
JUS1IND Paadxa Yoiym ¢ IS o Bunes e o) sayojey Buipeo| saise|d pue pieoqpied
8y} uo siosuas A}ajes aAloNpul YiIM pajly 21e s|oIyaA jo abuels Juanng ay|

$)20J491u| Alojes

Page 300




Juswipedwod

ay) ul Ajjeau aiojs 0} Japjoy pajelbajul yum uondo ysniq Aqqo| Aljenb ybiy meN .
‘sBuibuojaq

sjeuuosiad 1o} AJIn0as el)Xd 10} a|puey 9|dexo0] 1sim} Ainp Areay mau yum papiq .

ysnug Aqqo-

F]

00| MaN

Page 301

Pa10s uIAINY BPiSqIaY

OS-Sa1=
=

juswiliedwod abelol}g |suuosIad I



‘Buiysem

Jamod aAIssadxa Aq pasned
abewep wouj }o9j0.ud 0)
Pa131} JOAOID H}20|( SA|EeA JUO. ]

Page 302

PP110S BujiIAINY ap|SqIaY
LEI0S-Eal=
s Ioa i

i iy

J9A09) Yo0|g dljnelpAH



sladelos apis IMJINHN

Pes ==

‘eale
Juswiulejuod woyodg ojuo Buljjes sugap
Juanaid 0} Jojens|d ayj o) siadelos apis
IMJWHN pajunow Apuspusdapul XIS~ -

Buiues|o Jo asea
10} wa)sAs ulelp pajelbajul yum pap{ .

Page 303

‘peOl 8y} OO
Buljjes sugap Juanaid o} JojeAs|a Juoly
8y} Japun JOO|} Bale JUSWUIB}UOD MBN

Juswiedwod
uoI}29]|02 ued pue a1se|d jJuo.i4

pa110S BU|aAIBY ap|SqIRY




‘1eab ui

JOU S| }oNJ} 8y} pue uo si ayeligpuey ay} usym
alelado Ajuo |im siy) ainjes} A1ojes e sy ‘apis
gJay ay} wo.y} 9j9Ao uonoedwod ay} ajesado
0} Jojeiado ay} sa|geus Yyolym eale uoi}os||od
sued pue onse|d apis 1ebuassed ayj 0}

Palll} MOU SI UORNQ [0JJUOD H| ¥OBg JoSIXd uy

‘Buipeo| Buiutow Apes
pue BuluaAa ajes 10} moj|e 0} Juswpedwod
9y} Jano papy mou spybi| buipeo] g37 meN

‘urebe LH0S-ql8Y| ay} peoj 0} ajes si Ji
smouy| Jojesado ay} pue Yo sayoyms jybi| ayy
1an0 sI 8[9A2 a8y} 8ouo 8joAo e ybnouyy buiob
s| ssa20.1d uonoedwods ay} uaym [euoijesado

s ybi| 91942 siy] ybi 919A0 Jaquie ue
UM palllj MOU Si UoIi}oas ued pue oiseld ay|

Page 304




A1ajes Jojelado ainsua 0}
pajgesip ale Jojoedwod
doj pue JojeAs|a

ay) pauado si Joop 8y} }| -
"JOSuas

Axoud umopinys ojny .

'POSO|0 ale SI00P Payooj Bl [|e
usym MJom Ajuo |im uonouny siy} Ajajes
104 ‘[9A9] 1saybiy syi 0] JojeAs|e ay} syl|
Yolym ssao0ud Buiuea|do ay) J0J 10)eAs|d

3y} a)etado 0] uoiduUN) 21EMYOS MON

"I0JeAS|D JUOl} BY} Jopun eale
Juswiulejuoo ayy jo buiues|o Apdwis o)
SJOOP SS820B 32IAIBS/USEM Pa)o0}I8)ul
K1ojes apis 1abuassed pue JaAUp maN

Page 305




(edAL
M3N) so|gejoAoal jo Buiddeny
ploAe 0] abpa 100p paltade|

abuiy Ainp AnesaH

‘sajerd

abuiy ayj Buiues|d Jnoyim paso|o aq o)
sloop ay} Buimojje ease abuly ayj ul sugsp jo
dn-pjing ay} Juanaid o) seaibap G Je pajbue
saoe} Joop Buipeo| ues pue oljse|d maN

"goueBUSlUIRW padnpal Ajjeoliselp
ul Buiynsai adA} abuiy oueid p|o ayj aonpal 0}
pani} mou sabuly |99)s ssajuie}s Ainp AneaH

‘slojelado uo uoljoejsiies dlwouohia
BIIXS 10} S|apow snoiAald ueyy Jomo| wwg/
payl} s100p Buipeoj ues pue onse|d maN

Page 306




‘siseq Ajiep e uo

oliqnd a8y} 0} MaIA UO si }ey} 8|o1YaA Buiqoo)

Jaues|o e Ul pajnsal sey siy] sioop ay)

woJy abewep joedwi woly deim Apoq sjualo
109)04d 0} paj} mou saje|d Jayng wnNiUuIWN .

‘goueuajuIew paonpai Ajjealselp
| Buyinsal adA} abuiy oueld pjo ay} @onpal 0}
pani} mou sabuly |99)s ssajuiels Ainp AnesH .

Page 307

‘siojesado uo uoljoeysiies
olwouobia eixa 10} sjapow snoinald uey)
Jamo| wwQQ| sioop Buipeo| wniuiwnie MaN

‘Buipeo| buiuiow Apes
pue Buiuana ajes 10j mojje 0} Juswpedwod
8y} Jano papy mou sjybi| buipeo] 371 meN

p21105 Bu| A3y ap|sqIa)

OS-Sa15

juswliedwod uoi}oa}jod 1aded IE




Page 308

‘Buipeo} ssoio Jaisea
10} SMO||B MOU YoIym wwig9l Aq palamoj
mou si Juswpedwos Jjaded ay) ul ool ay) .

‘s1o0p 3y}
uo syooy bBuipeoj uolisod aaiy} 1obuo| maN .

juswredwod Jaded

payiog duj|aAaay ap|sqia

OS-S213)
=

juswliedwod uoi}o9||od 1oded WE



‘o BuiaLp

al10jaq uolusod ojul pa)oo| A}oa.102

10U ale sulq 8y} Jl JOALIP 8y} sulem

— UoIym |ang| ybiy e Josuas Alajes mapN

BPIYSA 8yj

0} pajy ||is ajiym no Buiysem s|qeus
0} abe||s 8y} Jo WoRoq 8y} 0} papl

dej uielp |99)s sso|ule)s |[euoljdo mapN
‘siseq Ajiep e uo 21jgnd ay} 0} MaIA UO SI
184} 9[21yaA Buiyooj| 1eues|d e ul pajnsal
sey sIy] "sioop ay} wol abewep
1oedwi wolj deim Apoq sjuaijo 10930ud
0] payl} mou saje|d Jayng wniuiwn|y
"@oueuUsjulew

paonpal Ajjeanselp ui bunynsai

adA} abuly oueid pjo ay} aosnpai 0} papl
mou sabuly |99)s ssajuiels Ainp AneaH
"s10]}elado uo uoljoejsies olwouohia
BIIXd 10} Sjopow snoinaid uey)

Jamo| s1oop Buipeo| wniuiwnje maN
‘Buipeoj buiuiow Ajea pue Buiuans
aJes 10} mojje 0} Juswnedwod ay)

juswipedwod uo}o9||0d poo IE

— JaA0 paply mou syybi| Buipeo] 37 meN

pa1s05 BujjaAIDY Ip15GIa)|

OS-Sais

Page 309



uondo ue se xoq UoI}09||09
fayeq sjsem e YjIm papl q mou ued Joop abelo)s |elauab ay |

Xog uoijo9||o)
Aiapeg [euondo

Joop Buipeoj
Ksjj04} Juspuadapu

ysjey
Buipeo

L2I0S-a2 13
A

Page 310

P93105 dut]|IAI9Y apisqliay




‘seale abeioys ay) 1no buifidwe
1o} b1 lom 037 [eusdiul Ue YIm pajli4 MON  »

"Juswiedwod ulew ay} ul palols sa|qeoAoal
Jabie| yum Bunbuiw Bugeuiwije osje ajiym
loop ulew ay} uado o0} pasau ay} Bujeuiwid
deyj Buipeoj urew ay) puiyaq papinoid

a( OS|e UBd X0 Uo1j0a||0d Alayjeq B 10j Yooy Yy

Page 311

‘A9]|0J} 3y} In0 pue ul Buye; Ino |e;

JOU ||IM JOOP ulew 3y} puiyaq |elajew pajohoal

Aue jey) sainsus siy| "papinoid dej e ybnolay)

Joop uiew ayj buiuado noyum Juswpedwos
S} WOoJj paAowal aq ued Agjjon siyl .

‘'seale ssaooe 100d ul asn Japeo| o}
~ Asjjo13 yoes Buipjoj ninw [euondo yym paplq .

031405 8u||3AI9Y DpISqIa)

1210S-SI=

cil g

sjuawliedwod abelols |elauan)




iseid paxiN

s
o=

"S)S02 8oueuUaUIeW Buionpal
Apealb 1o01oedwoo doj ay) 0} papl
MOU saysnuq bunse| Jebuoj t1eybnoj .

Page 312

‘'spunoJ dn »o1d 8y} uo ajiym
Juswpedwod e peojun 0} Ajlunuoddo
ay) Buneuiwis jodap sjoAd8l

6% 0001 iy 1Yy 6% 0001 91XV 1UOIY

ay} ui Buipeojun sy} pue apisqJay ay}
uo BuipeoT ay) sejesedas mou uoiouny
|0JJUOD SIeM}OS PEO| pUB PEOjUN -

sjusawaAolduwy JBYl0

pa140s dufj3AI9Y Ip|5QIaY

L2I0S-S2I3




gol sy} 1no bulAuied

ale Aay) ajiym siojesado ay) Jo doy
UO Ja)eMm Uikl JO MOJ} JOA0 |eidle| ay)
Buneuiwije walsAs sa)nb e ybnoly)
JOOJ BY] WO} 18)em 8y} SeAowal
uondo siy| "J00J H0S-qIay Sy} O}
pani waisAs abeulelp [euondo maN

‘Juswalinbai buisealb ps|npayos
ay) buneuiwid swel jo Ajuolew
ay)] Ul pasn MOU SaA89|S JawA|od

Page 313




This page is intentionally left blank



Danp 2165

maytc viJy

DRAWING NUMBER:

01

16206

Neal Cockerton

CYNGOR

Ay

Chief Officer (Organisational Change)
Prif Swyddog (Newid Sefydlidalol)

Sir y Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

County Hall, Mold, CH7 6NF.
www.flintshire.gov.uk

Neuadd y Sir Yr Wyddgrug. CH7 G6NF.
www.siryfflint.gov.uk

ENGINEERING SERVICES

JOB NUMBER: SCALES: AMENDMENTS: DATE
BUCKLEY
1 200 HOUSEHOLD WASTE RECYCLING

DACDIV GROUP: OHZHWH
DRAWN BY: NATIONAL GRID REF: _.UWOWVOMHU H_>%OG_H‘

SJP
CHECKED BY: STATUS: LAST EDIT DRAWING NUMBER:

DRAFT DATE: 16206 01 | A
HM Aug 2016




Site Grid North

| | N

I
_
_
_ _ _ _ _
_ _ _ _ _
O O ‘
_ _ > > WW e o= _ _
g ~
| | %) %) op %) %) D _ _ A\_\ Il ] | 1 Qm
| | | | | W L)
_ _ _ _ _
_ _ _ _ _
_ _ _ _ _
_ _ _ _ _ %
_ _ _ _ _
I [ e o o Symbols/Abbreviations (Where Applicable):
| | | | | +AV: AIR VALVE
_ _ _ _ _ +BB: BELISHA BEACON
: : : : : &BH: BOREHOLE
_ _ _ _ _ T BM: BENCHMARK
: : : : : OBOL:  BOLLARD
_ _ _ _ _ OB/S:  BUS STOP
: : : : . FCAM:  CAMERA
+Cs: CABLE STAY
_ _ _ _ _ OCATV:  C.AT.V INSPECTION CHAMBER
. . . . . +CBOX:  ELECTRICITY BOX, CABLE BOX, ETC.
_ _ _ _ _ &CCTV:  C.C.T.V CAMERA
: : : : : +C.PIT:  CATCH PIT
_ _ _ _ _ TIEC: ELECTRICITY COVER
: : : : . OEP: ELECTRICITY POLE
| | | | | THE  ARE HeoRANT
. . . . . OFP: FLAG POLE
_ _ _ _ _ 86: GULLY
_ _ _ _ _ OG: GULLY (ROUND)
Fov: GAS VALVE
: : : : : INSPECTION COVER (SQUARE)
O INSPECTION COVER Mmoczov
_ _ _ _ _
! ! ! 1L INVERT LEVEL
| | | | | +KO: KERB OUTLET
~ - — . +1B: LETTER BOX
. B 5 . - . . oLC: LIGHTING COLUMN
_ _ o |l 2 o || 2 o |l 2 o || 2 o _ _ OLP: LAMP POST
X e e e ~ - |1l = " = N : : OLP/BS: LAMP POST/BUS STOP
_ _ % — %) — = k ¢ g _ _ OMH: MANHOLE Mmo%mmv
: IS O 2 W S B : : O MH: MANHOLE (ROUND)
+MKR:  MARKER
| _ = | = = | _ OP: POST
. . | . . +RE: RODDING EYE
_ _ ! _ _ +R/S:  ROAD SIGN
: : : : +S/P:  SIGN POST
_ _ | _ _ +SNP:  STREET NAME PLATE
: : . : : +ST: STOP TAP
_ _ _ _ _ + SV STOP VALVE

+7CB: TELEPHONE CALL BOX
+T/IC: TELECOM INSPECTION COVER

| | _ _ _ +1L: TRAFFIC LIGHT
. . | Av . : OTP: TELEGRAPH POLE
_ _ _ _ _ OTP/EP: TELEGRAPH POLE/ELECTRIC POLE
. : : +W0: WATER OUTLET
+ WM: WATER METER
—_— GATE
X DEFINED POINT
A CONTROL POINT

TREE (CONIFEROUS)
TREE (DECIDUOUS)

§ FOLIAGE

ey HEDGE

DPC 99.99m DAMP PROOF COURSE LEVEL
EL 99.99m EAVES LEVEL

FL 99.99m FLOOR LEVEL

RL 99.99m RIDGE LEVEL

SL 99.99m SOFFIT LEVEL

TL 99.99m THRESHOLD LEVEL

FENCE DESCRIPTIONS:

B/W: BARBED WIRE FENCE
C/B: CLOSE BOARDED FENCE
c/L: CHAIN LINK FENCE

c/P: CHESTNUT PALING FENCE
CONC/P: CONCRETE PANEL FENCE
I/R: IRON RAILING FENCE
P/R: POST AND RAIL FENCE
P/W: POST AND WIRE FENCE
P/C: POST AND CHAIN FENCE
S/PAL: STEEL PALISADE FENCE
S/B: SAFETY BARRIER

T/PAL: TIMBER PALISADE FENCE

Revision Information

Rev Date Description

INFORMATION

1) Ordnance Survey co-ordinates and level are derived from OSTNO2 and OSGMO2,
transformed from WGS&4.

2) Copyright of this drawing remains the property of PM Surveys UK Ltd. Do not scale from
this drawing. In the event of any discrepancy, refer query to PM Surveys UK Ltd.

NOTES

Ordnance Survey Bench Mark Used %@-

PM SURVEYS UK

PM Surveys UK Ltd
Unit 4, Expressway Business Park
Station Road, Queensferry
Flintshire, CH5 2TF

| _ _ Tel: 01244 821777 Fax: 01244 821002
_ _ _ Email: info@pmsurveys.co.uk
_ _ _

Refuse @<@§Q@m

U\ \\\\|Il'll|'|_

Client Info

Flintshire County Council
County Hall
Mold
CH5 6NF

Tel: 01352 704732
Email: steven.parry@flintshire.gov.uk

| |

| |

| |

_ _

_ _ Project

| | Mold Recycling Centre

_ _ Topographical Survey
. | |
_ _ _ Praject No ) Surveyed By: AL
| | | PMS16081 | Scate 1200 | Dron By W
. . Approved By:  PM
“ " > " Dwg PMS16081 issued: Q7/07/16

Page 316



Agenda Iltem 13

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%h.ire

CABINET

Date of Meeting 18 October 2016
Report Subject Theatr Clwyd — Complimentary Ticket Policy
Cabinet Member Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance
Report Author Chief Executive

Chief Officer Organisational Change
Type of Report Operational
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

A notice of motion was brought to Full Council on 14t June 2016 stating that:

‘This Council accepts that Theatr Clwyd operates an industry-standard
complimentary ticket policy to develop audiences and encourage sponsor and
media patronage. The policy should not extend to giving complimentary tickets and
drinks to Theatr Board Members, Councillors, Senior Officers and other officials
who should be expected to meet the costs of their tickets and drinks at the Theatr.
The Theatr Clwyd Board should remove these privileges from its policy.’

This report outline an approach to responding to this petition that balances Council
considerations and the wishes of Full Council whilst recognising that the Council
has given delegated authority for the Theatre Board to manage the Theatres
operation within the objectives and financial parameters of it's agreed business
plan.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That the Cabinet ask the Theatre Board to consider this notion of motion at
its next Board meeting and to provide a final response to the Council on
this matter and how it will address this issue.

Page 317



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | EXPLAINING THE THEATR CLWYD — COMPLIMENTARY TICKET
POLICY

1.01 | The notice of motion about complimentary tickets was received at the June
Council meeting and was supported by full Council.

1.02 | Theatr Clwyd is owned by the Council. The Theatre Board is given
delegated authority by the Council to manage the operation of the Theatre.
To enable this an annual business plan is agreed with the Council and as
part of the budget process clear priorities have been agreed to ensure the
future financial and strategic direction of the theatre.

1.03 | Over the past 18 months major change has taken place at the theatre to
modernise it's operation and this includes:

¢ Appointment of a new Artistic Director;

e Appointment of a new Executive Director to manage the business
and commercial aspects of the theatre;

e A completion staffing restructure and implementation of industry
relevant terms and conditions;

e Closer connections to the community with two family open days
opening up the building and the behind the scenes operation of the
theatre;

e Agreement of an up to date and industry comparable complimentary
ticket policy (see Appendix A).

1.04 | These changes have been governed and overseen by the Board in line
with the current arrangements and relationships the Council has with the
Theatre Board.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | Minimal resource implications.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | The new complimentary ticket policy has been agreed by the Theatre
Board. The notice of motion has been considered and agreed by Full
Council.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 1. That the Council set a precedent in determining the day to day

Page 318




management and operation of the Theatre — this can be mitigated
by agreeing that the Theatre Board consider the Council notice of
motion and provides a full response to the Council on how it will
respond to the agreed notice.

2. That the Theatre Board ignore the notice of motion agreed by Full
Council — The Council retains the right to act if feels that the
Theatre Boards response does adequately address the motion
agreed by the Council.

5.00 | APPENDICES
5.01 | Appendix A — Complimentary Ticket Policy
6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
6.01 | None.
Contact Officer: lan Bancroft
Telephone: 01352 704180
E-mail: ian.bancroft@flintshire.gov.uk
7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS
7.01 | Complimentary Tickets — Tickets that are provided at a reduced rate or

free of charge to specific individuals and groups for a reason that will
benefit the overall operation and business of the Theatre.

Page 319



mailto:ian.bancroft@flintshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Complimentary Tickets

Basic Principles
Complimentary tickets (“Comps”) are an established part of the theatrical lexicon that can translate

as “free tickets”. This, however, is not an accurate description of their function organisationally.
They are an essential part of ensuring the theatre's ongoing success in the development of
organisational and regional profile, developing strategic partnerships, broadening experience of
the arts with low engagement groups and ensuring high quality service and artistic product.

Reasons Complimentary Tickets should be allocated
There are, broadly speaking, six reasons why complimentary tickets should be allocated.

(]

Organisational Profile
Increasing the profile of the organisation is essential in ensuring the theatre’s continued

sustainability through ticket sales, sponsorship and working to bring the highest calibre
artists to Flintshire. Complimentary tickets might be allocated to members of the press (for
reviews of productions), key contacts for tourism (for example Destination Management or
Visit Wales) or potential collaborators (for example star actors or writers we want to work

with in the future).

Regional Profile v
The theatre needs to play a key role in developing the profile of Flintshire and North Wales
as a centre for economic growth as part of regional regeneration, encouraging an influx of
business investment into the area by showcasing the high quality cultural offer alongside
the stunning landscape and high standard of living. Complimentary tickets might be
allocated to support Flintshire County Council's department for Economic Growth in

promoting the region.

Strategic Partnership
Sponsorship and collaborative working with private and public sector organisations allows

Theatr Clwyd to help fulfil regional objectives by running projects such as Justice In A Day
(raising awareness of the consequences of crime for ages 13 — 14), Arts From The
Armchair (supporting those with early onset memory loss) and Behind Slammed Doors
(working to engage teenage daughters promoting mental well-being and addressing youth
employment and disengagement) . Complimentary tickets would be allocated to enable
relationships to be nurtured both with potential sponsors or collaborators and with those
with limited economic means to fulfil the project and deepen engagement.

Low Engagement Groups
We recognise that we serve Communities First areas within Flintshire and it is therefore

essential that the theatre remains price accessible which is why we strive to have lower
price tickets as part of our pricing strategy. This is, of course, balanced against financial
targets and the need to ensure sustainability. However for some groups we might work with,
these prices, although reasonable, are beyond their financial capabilities (for a 21 year old
on Job Seekers Allowance a £10 ticket would represent 17% of their weekly income).
Complimentary tickets might be used in conjunction with an outreach project to ensure

Theatr Clwyd
Wp‘gﬁitéd\gﬁim



access to theatre for vulnerable people in our community.

* Developing Customer Services
There has been a huge shift in emphasis for public facing organisations to strive for high
quality customer service. This includes (but is not limited to) ensuring staff are
knowledgable, can offer insight on what is being sold and can therefore be effective
advocates for the work of both the theatre and the region. Customer service and audience
experience will feed very heavily into our onward business planning in ensuring returning
audiences and economic growth. This ensures the theatre remains a sustainable world-
class asset for the county and region. All staff who engage with the public (either directly or
through the promotion or operations of the organisation) should be allocated complimentary
tickets on a regular basis to ensure a depth of knowledge, pride in the work we produce and
understanding of the ethos of the organisation.

* Ensuring quality of Artistic product
Theatr Clwyd has an international and national reputation as a leading producer of theatre
which benefits the region, Wales and UK. When other companies and artists visit Mold our
creative and programming team needs to see shows to assess and support company
development and ensure that our high standards are upheld.

For our produced work where shows run for 3 weeks or longer the creative teams need to
have regular access to the show to ensure its continued quality - a director for example will
often tweak the show throughout the first week to ensure it's perfect for the press
performances — this has a knock on effect for other creatives working on the show. It's also
important that our staff and associate artists can talk knowledgeably about what we
produce (so box office, for example, can recommend the show and give customers insight).
One of Theatr Clwyd’s strengths is its long serving staff who are able to offer insight to all
our stakeholders to enhance and support the overall experience.

The “Complimentary” relationship.

Complimentary tickets are important across the organisation — however they are not a one-way
transaction — it is a two-way relationship, using that ticket ultimately to enhance the show and the
audience experience. A journalist returns reviews enhancing the profile of the theatre, Board
members return with advocacy and a greater understanding of the organisation, box office team
members develop understanding to better sell the show.

How do we manage the numbers allocated?

Inevitably a natural worry is how to ensure that we are not losing income as a result of
complimentary tickets. Current policy is that complimentary tickets are unavailable for sold out
shows (i.e. Fewer than 10 tickets unsold). Comps are non-transferrable ensuring that they are for
staff only. All audience development allocations for developing new audiences are signed off by
the Director of Marketing & Communications and Artistic Director and decisions are made with a
long term view for the overall development of the organisation. Comp usage is, invariably, much
higher towards the beginning of a production’s run when the necessity both artistically and
organisationally is at its most important. Finally, for high-yield productions such as the Pantomime

exclusion periods apply to ensure the highest possible box office income.

Theatr Clwyd

www.theatrclwyd.com

Page 322



Public “Free Ticket Offers”

As an organisation we should never offer free tickets publicly in an untargeted manner. Offering
free tickets to anyone, irrespective of circumstance or context, on Facebook, Twitter or the Council
Intranet sends a perceivably clear message that we do not place a value on our tickets. This can
perpetuate, grow and in some extreme cases lead to reduced audiences, unwilling to commit to

purchasing in advance, waiting for the free ticket.

Our tickets have a high value and are priced at a cost that aims to balance accessibility and
ensure high income. Our pricing policy will be reviewed over the next 12 months to ensure that we
are using pricing to build both new audiences and continued sustainability.

Should the Board have comps?
Yes. It is of vital importance to the effective governance of the organisation that the Board has a

clear understanding of the shows we produce and also the customer experience. The Board's
support, understanding and advocacy for the arts, theatre and Theatr Clwyd helps drive the
organisation forward to seek new opportunities, to develop and to maintain its status as a world-
class resource for the region and for Wales. Complimentary tickets should not be considered a
benefit — attendance should be considered a duty and an active part of supporting the leadership
of the organisation.

Is our description incorrect and how do we clarify their usage?

Part of the problem with “Complimentary Tickets” is how they are recorded; the terminology we
use must accurately assess their purpose. As part of our review of pricing and concessions over
the next 12 months this will be assessed and amended to something more appropriate for a

transparent, 215t century theatre.

Tamara Harvey | Artistic Director
Sam Freeman | Director Of Marketing & Communications

Theatr Clwyd

www.theatrclwyd.com

Page 323



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 14

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS — DECISIONS TAKEN

Organisational Change
e Ysgol Y Fron Annexe, Halkyn Street, Holywell
The sale of this section of Ysgol Y Fron to ICR Group for conversion to offices
for their own use.

e A550 Road Bridge at Weighbridge Road, Deeside Indusrial Park
Grant of Deed of Easement for the installation within land and attachment to an
existing A550 Road Bridge at Weighbridge Road, Deeside Industrial Park, of
electricity supply cables.

o Disposal of Land at the ‘Walks’ in Flint
The disposal of an area of the former ‘Walks’ housing site in Flint Town Centre.

e School Meal Price Increase
Increases the price of meals within schools to bring them more into line with
other school meal providers across Wales.

Community and Enterprise
e Transfer of 3 No. Properties(Plots 4-6) Inclusive 7,9 and 11 Llys Clark,
Abermorddu, Flintshire from Alwyl Construction Company Ltd
It is considered that the above affordable housing units should be transferred
direct to NEW Homes since this best meets housing needs. NEW Homes will
enter into a covenant with Edwards Homes that the properties will be used for
the purpose of affordable housing

Streetscene and Transportation

e Proposed Prohibition and Restriction of Waiting and Loading and Parking
Places. Civil Enforcement and Consolidation Order Amendment No. 2
To advise Members of the objections received following the advertisement of
the proposed PROHIBITON and Restriction of Waiting and Loading and Parking
Places Amendment No. 2 Order, which introduces No Waiting At Any Time,
Limited Waiting and Limited Parking on Street, at Wrexham Street, Mold, Cymau
Road, Abermorddu, Hawarden Road, Fagl Lane and St Cynfarch’s, Hope and
Allt Goch, Flint. The 3 objections received related to the Proposed No Waiting
at Any Time at Fagl Lane and St Cynfarch’s Avenue, Hope and the Proposed
Limited Waiting at Wrexham Street Mold. Summary of status no other
objections received from others.

Copies of the Delegated Powers reports are on deposit in the Team Manager’s
Room, Committee Services.

Page 325



This page is intentionally left blank



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS
COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
OCTOBER 2016 TO MARCH 2017

the Public Services Board and
Strategic Partnerships.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
October
Corporate 13 October 2016 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the
Resources Overview 2016/17 (Month 5) Council and
& Scrutiny 'This regular monthly report Cabinet Member
Bommittee provides the latest revenue for Finance
g budget monitoring position for
® 2016/17 for the Council Fund
w and Housing Revenue
ﬁ Account. The position is based
on actual income and
expenditure as at Month 5, and
projects forward to year-end
Corporate 13 October 2016 Chief Executive's Flintshire Public Services Strategic Cabinet Member
Resources Overview Board for Corporate
& Scrutiny To apprise the Committee of Management
Committee the work and performance of

Xauuy rpuaby



Youth Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

Plan and Welsh as a Second

Language
To update Members on the
progress with  Welsh in

Education

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 13 October 2016 People and Resources | Workforce Information Operational Cabinet Member
Resources Overview Report - Quarter 1 2016/17 for Corporate
& Scrutiny To provide the Committee with Management
Committee Workforce Information and to
seek comments thereon.
Corporate 13 October 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
Resources Overview The Committee is asked to
K] Scrutiny consider, and amend where
gommittee necessary, the Forward Work
[0} Programme for the Corporate
w Resources Overview &
B Scrutiny Committee.
Education and | 13 October 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Quarter 1 Improvement Plan | Strategic Cabinet Member
Youth Overview & Monitoring Report 2016/17 for Corporate
Scrutiny Committee To enable Members to fulfil Management
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.
Education and | 13 October 2016 Education and Youth Welsh in Education Strategic | Operational Cabinet Member

for Education




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Education and | 13 October 2016 Education and Youth School Balances Operational Cabinet Member
Youth Overview & To provide the Committee with for Education
Scrutiny Committee details of the closing balances
held by Flintshire schools at the
end of the financial year.
Education and | 13 October 2016 Education and Youth Nercwys Primary School Operational Cabinet Member
Youth Overview & Review for Education
Scrutiny Committee To consider the outcome of the
informal consultation with the
;? community and identified next
8 steps with the education review
ducation and | 13 October 2016 Education and Youth School Modernisation Operational Cabinet Member
@outh Overview & To update Members on the for Education
Scrutiny Committee progress made with School
Modernisation
Education and | 13 October 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational

Youth Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

(Education & Youth)

The Committee is asked to
consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Education




Change Overview &

Scrutiny Committee

Alternative Delivery Model

To provide an wupdate on
progress of the establishment
of an Employee Led Mutual
including providing details of
the recently completed
technical piece of work on the
business plan, legal structure
and Tax and VAT issues

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Organisational 17 October 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Quarter 1 Improvement Plan | Strategic Cabinet Member
Change Overview & Monitoring Report for Corporate
Scrutiny Committee To enable Members to fulfil Management
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.
Organisational 17 October 2016 Organisational Change | Facilities Management Operational Deputy Leader of
Change Overview & Alternative Delivery Model the Council and
Bcrutiny Committee To provide an wupdate on Cabinet Member
g progress of the establishment for Environment
[ of a Local Authority Trading
w Company including providing
8 details of the recent staff
engagement
Organisational 17 October 2016 Organisational Change | Leisure and Libraries Operational Cabinet Member

for Waste
Strategy, Public
Protection and
Leisure, Cabinet
Member for
Education




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Organisational
Change Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

17 October 2016

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Organisational Change)

The Committee is asked to
consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the
Organisational Change
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

Operational

abinet

TEE abed

18 October 2016

Chief Executive's

Strategic Equality Plan
2016/2020

To agree the Council’s equality
objectives and Strategic
Equality Plan (SEP) 2016/
2020.

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Corporate
Management

Cabinet

18 October 2016

Chief Executive's

Annual Performance Report
2015/16

Overview of the performance of
the Council during 2015/16
against the priorities set

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Corporate
Management

Cabinet

18 October 2016

Social Services

North Wales Regional Social
Care/Health Partnership
Board

To approve the arrangements
for the Board

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Social
Services




Review

To consider a report on
informal consultation with the
community and identify next
steps with the education review

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 18 October 2016 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring | Strategic Leader of the
2015/16 (month 5) Council and
To provide Members with the Cabinet Member
latest revenue budget for Finance
monitoring  information  for
2015/16 for the Council Fund
and Housing Revenue Account
based on actual income and
g-? expenditure as at month 5 and
(o) projected forward to year-end
® based on the most up to date
% information available.
N
Cabinet 18 October 2016 Organisational Change | Theatr Clwyd Complimentary | Operational Leader of the
Ticket Policy Council and
To consider and agree a policy Cabinet Member
for complimentary tickets from for Finance
Theatr Clwyd
Cabinet 18 October 2016 Education and Youth Nercwys Primary School Operational Cabinet Member

for Education




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 18 October 2016 Education and Youth Penyffordd Primary School Operational Cabinet Member
capital scheme for Education
To consider and approve a
Capital Scheme under the 21st
Century School programme
Cabinet 18 October 2016 Education and Youth Connah's Quay High School | Operational Cabinet Member
capital scheme for Education
To consider and approve a
. Capital Scheme under the 21st
o Century School programme
Sl
®abinet 18 October 2016 Education and Youth Provisional Learner Operational Cabinet Member
&3 Outcomes for Education
w Provisional learner outcomes
from Summer 2016
Cabinet 18 October 2016 Streetscene and Changes to Waste Collection | Operational Cabinet Member

Transportation

Vehicles and New Recycling
Operations

To review alternative delivery
options for the household
recycling centre service and
the new waste recycling
collection opportunities planned
to be introduced for residents in
2017.

for Waste
Strategy, Public
Protection and
Leisure




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Flintshire County | 19 October 2016 Chief Executive's Annual Performance Report
Council 2015/16
To recommend the adoption of
the Annual Report 2015/16 by
County Council
Flintshire County | 19 October 2016 Governance Contract Procedure Rules
Council To approve revised contract
;t\) procedure rules.
%Iintshire County | 19 October 2016 Governance Independent Remuneration
¢souncil Panel for Wales(IRPW) Draft
g Annual Report for 2017
To enable the council to
consider and respond to the
recommendations for
Members’ Allowances which
the IRPW  proposes for
2017/18.
Flintshire County | 19 October 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Overview & Scrutiny Annual
Council Report for 2015/16
To submit to Council the

Annual Report of the Overview
& Scrutiny function, as required
under section 7.4.5 of the
Constitution.




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Community and | 19 October 2016 Community and Quarter 1 Improvement Plan | Strategic Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overview Enterprise Monitoring Report 2016/17 for Corporate
& Scrutiny To enable Members to fulfil Management
Committee their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.
Community and | 19 October 2016 Community and A Growth Vision for the Strategic Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overview Enterprise Economy of North Wales for Economic
& Scrutiny To consider the adopted ‘A Development
_80mmittee Growth Vision for the Economy
) of North Wales’ which is the
-8 basis for the development and
0 negotiation of a Growth Bid for
W the regional with the UK and
o Welsh Governments
Community and | 19 October 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Strategic
Enterprise Overview The Committee is asked to
& Scrutiny consider, and amend where
Committee necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Community
& Enterprise Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
Social & Health | 20 October 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Quarter 1 Improvement Plan | Strategic Cabinet Member

Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

Monitoring Report 2016/17
To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.

for Corporate
Management




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Social & Health | 20 October 2016 Social Services Governance of Part 9 Operational Cabinet Member
Care Overview & Regional Partnership Board for Social
Scrutiny Committee To advise Members of the Services
proposals for the Regional
Partnership Board (Social
Services and Wellbeing Act
2014)
Bocial & Health | 20 October 2016 Social Services Flintshire Local Voluntary Operational Cabinet Member
are Overview & Council for Social
®crutiny Committee To receive an update on social Services
w care activity within the third
8 sector.
Social & Health | 20 October 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational

Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

(Social & Health Care)

The Committee is asked to
consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Social &
Health Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

November




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Environment 2 November 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Quarter 1 Improvement Plan | Strategic Cabinet Member
Overview & Scrutiny Monitoring Report 2016/17 for Corporate
Committee To enable Members to fulfil Management
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.
Environment 2 November 2016 Planning and Renewable Energy Operational Deputy Leader of
Overview & Scrutiny Environment To receive a report outlining the Council and
Committee the developments to include Cabinet Member
the responses received for Environment
;? following consultation.
Sl
®nvironment 2 November 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | DOG DNA Task and Finish Operational Deputy Leader of

gverview & Scrutiny
ommittee

Group feedback
To receive an update report
from the Task & Finish Group

the Council and
Cabinet Member
for Environment,
Cabinet Member
for Waste
Strategy, Public
Protection and
Leisure




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE

REPORT TYPE

PORTFOLIO

position on appraisals.

PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Environment 2 November 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
Overview & Scrutiny (Environment)
Committee The Committee is asked to
consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the
Environment  Overview &
. Scrutiny Committee.
J
gorporate 10 November 2016 | Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the
Mesources Overview 2016/17 (Month 6) Council and
& Scrutiny "This regular monthly report Cabinet Member
@ommittee provides the latest revenue for Finance
budget monitoring position for
2016/17 for the Council Fund
and Housing Revenue
Account. The position is based
on actual income and
expenditure as at Month 6, and
projects forward to Year-End.'
Corporate 10 November 2016 | People and Resources | Appraisals Substantive Operational Cabinet Member
Resources Overview Progress report for Corporate
& Scrutiny To apprise the committee with Management
Committee an analysis of the current




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Corporate
Resources Overview
& Scrutiny
Committee

10 November 2016

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Corporate Resources)

The Committee is asked to
consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Corporate
Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

Operational

orporate

esources Overview
Scrutiny

ommittee

6EEPREH

10 November 2016

Chief Executive's

Challenge to Compliance
Notice - Welsh Language
Standards

Advise members of the
proposed new Welsh
Language Standards for
Flintshire and seek
endorsement of the Council's
approach.

Cabinet Member
for Corporate
Management

Cabinet

15 November 2016

Community and
Enterprise

Purchase of Ex Council
Stock

To consider proposals and
criteria for the repurchase of ex
council property.

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Housing

Cabinet

15 November 2016

Community and
Enterprise

Council Tax Base for 2017-18
To approve the Council Tax
Base for 2017-18.

Operational

Cabinet Member
for Corporate
Management




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Cabinet

O€ abed

15 November 2016

Finance

Revenue Budget Monitoring
2016/17 (month 6)

To provide Members with the
latest revenue budget
monitoring  information  for
2015/16 for the Council Fund
and Housing Revenue Account
based on actual income and
expenditure as at month 6 and
projected forward to year-end
based on the most up to date
information available.

Strategic

Cabinet

15 November 2016

Education and Youth

Brynford / Lixwm / Rhos
Helyg Primary Schools
Review

To consider a report on
informal consultation with the
community and identify next
steps with the education
review.

Operational

Cabinet Member
for Education




Youth Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

(Education & Youth)

The Committee is asked to
consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Education &
Youth Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Education and | 17 November 2016 | Education and Youth Schools' Music Service Operational
Youth Overview & To update Members on the
Scrutiny Committee progress made with an
Alternative  Delivery  Model
(ADM) for the Schools' Music
Service
Education and | 17 November 2016 | Education and Youth Person Centred Planning Operational Cabinet Member
Youth Overview & To provide the Committee with for Education
_Ecrutiny Committee information from School
Q Leaders on outcomes from the
Q pilot scheme.
[0
ducation and | 17 November 2016 | Education and Youth Brynford / Lixwm / Rhos Operational Cabinet Member
outh Overview & Helyg Primary Schools for Education
Scrutiny Committee Review
To consider the outcome of the
informal consultation with the
community and identified next
steps with the education review
Education and | 17 November 2016 | Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Organisational 21 November 2016 | Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
Change Overview & (Organisational Change)
Scrutiny Committee The Committee is asked to
consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the
Organisational Change
Overview & Scrutiny
U Committee.
&
@ommunity and | 23 November 2016 | Community and Strategic Housing and Operational Cabinet Member
@nterprise Overview Enterprise Regeneration Project for Housing
Scrutiny (SHARP)
Committee To review progress on the
Strategic Housing and
Regeneration Project (SHARP)
Community and | 23 November 2016 | Community and Council Tax Base Setting Operational Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overview Enterprise To consider the Council Tax for Corporate
& Scrutiny Base as part of Council Tax Management
Committee charge setting and calculation
of Revenue Support Grant
Community and | 23 November 2016 | Community and Regeneration Programmes Operational Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overview Enterprise To consider an update on the for Economic
& Scrutiny Housing Regeneration Development
Committee Programme and revised

Renewal Policy




Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

To receive an update on the
Team around the family

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Community and | 23 November 2016 | Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
Enterprise Overview (Community & Enterprise)
& Scrutiny The Committee is asked to
Committee consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Community
& Enterprise Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
ocial & Health | 24 November 2016 | Social Services Dementia Services Operational Cabinet Member
are Overview & To receive an update on for Social
%crutiny Committee Dementia work in Flintshire Services
W
c.'%ocial & Health | 24 November 2016 | Social Services Population needs Strategic Cabinet Member
Care Overview & assessment for Social
Scrutiny Committee To receive a summary of the Services
outcomes of the population
needs assessment for
Flintshire
Social & Health | 24 November 2016 | Social Services Team around the Family Operational Cabinet Member

for Social
Services




Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

Transportation

Group Report

To provide Scrutiny with an
update on the outcomes of the
Deeside Environmental Task
Group which has been set up
to improve the cleanliness of
the Deeside Corridor.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Social & Health | 24 November 2016 | Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
Care Overview & (Social & Health Care)
Scrutiny Committee The Committee is asked to
consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Social &
Health Care Overview &
. Scrutiny Committee.
J
December
@
W
%nvironment 7 December 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Quarter 2/Mid-Year Strategic Cabinet Member
verview & Scrutiny Improvement Plan for Corporate
Committee Monitoring Report 2016/17 Management
To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.
Environment 7 December 2016 Streetscene and Deeside Environmental Task | Operational Deputy Leader of

the Council and
Cabinet Member
for Environment




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE

REPORT TYPE

PORTFOLIO

their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.

PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Environment 7 December 2016 Streetscene and North Wales Residual Waste | Strategic Cabinet Member
Overview & Scrutiny Transportation Project update for Waste
Committee To receive and consider further Strategy, Public
details on the progress of the Protection and
project Leisure
Environment 7 December 2016 Social Services Speed limits on C roads Operational Deputy Leader of
Overview & Scrutiny To receive an update on speed the Council and
Committee limits on C roads Cabinet Member
for Environment
T
&nvironment 7 December 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
®verview & Scrutiny (Environment)
Committee The Committee is asked to
ol consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the
Environment  Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
Corporate 8 December 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Quarter 2/Mid-Year Strategic Cabinet Member
Resources Overview Improvement Plan for Corporate
& Scrutiny Monitoring Report 2016/17 Management
Committee To enable Members to fulfil




Change Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

Improvement Plan
Monitoring Report 2016/17
To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 8 December 2016 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the
Resources Overview 2016/17 (Month 7) Council and
& Scrutiny "This regular monthly report Cabinet Member
Committee provides the latest revenue for Finance
budget monitoring position for
2016/17 for the Council Fund
and Housing Revenue
Account. The position is based
g-? on actual income and
@) expenditure as at Month 7, and
SD‘ projects forward to year-end.'
3orporate 8 December 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
Resources Overview (Corporate Resources)
& Scrutiny The Committee is asked to
Committee consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Corporate
Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
Organisational 9 December 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Quarter 2/Mid-Year Strategic Cabinet Member

for Corporate
Management




Plan (WESP)

To consider and approve the
Welsh in Education Strategic
Plan

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 13 December 2016 | Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring | Strategic Leader of the
2016/17 (month 7) Council and
To provide Members with the Cabinet Member
latest revenue budget for Finance
monitoring  information  for
2015/16 for the Council Fund
and Housing Revenue Account
based on actual income and
expenditure as at month 7 and
o projected forward to year-end
QD based on the most up to date
3 information available.
S
~Jommunity and | 21 December 2016 | Overview and Scrutiny | Quarter 2/Mid-Year Strategic Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overview Improvement Plan for Corporate
& Scrutiny Monitoring Report 2016/17 Management
Committee To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.
Cabinet 13 December 2016 | Education and Youth Welsh in Education Strategic | Operational Cabinet Member

for Education




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Community and | 21 December 2016 | Community and Rent Arrears Annual Report | Operational Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overview Enterprise To consider the Rent Arrears for Housing
& Scrutiny Annual Report including
Committee information on the suggestion
for WHQS improvements to be
delayed for tenants with long
term rent arrears.
Community and | 21 December 2016 | Community and Purchase of Ex Council Strategic Cabinet Member
gnterprise Overview Enterprise Stock for Housing
B Scrutiny To consider proposals and
wWommittee criteria for the repurchase of ex
g council properties
Community and | 21 December 2016 | Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
Enterprise Overview (Community & Enterprise)
& Scrutiny The Committee is asked to
Committee consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Community
& Enterprise Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
Social & Health | 22 December 2016 | Overview and Scrutiny | Quarter 2/Mid-Year Strategic Cabinet Member

Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

Improvement Plan
Monitoring Report 2016/17
To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.

for Corporate
Management




Youth Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

(Education & Youth)

The Committee is asked to
consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Education &
Youth Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Social & Health | 22 December 2016 | Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
Care Overview & (Social & Health Care)
Scrutiny Committee The Committee is asked to
consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Social &
Health Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
ducation and | 22 December 2016 | Overview and Scrutiny | Quarter 2/Mid-Year Strategic Cabinet Member
§outh Overview & Improvement Plan for Corporate
%crutiny Committee Monitoring Report 2016/17 Management
To enable Members to fulfil
N their scrutiny role in relation to
© performance monitoring.
Education and | 22 December 2016 | Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational

January




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE

REPORT TYPE

PORTFOLIO

budget monitoring position for
2016/17 for the Council Fund
and Housing Revenue
Account. The position is based
on actual income and
expenditure as at Month 8, and
projects forward to year-end

PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Environment 11 January 2017 Planning and Planning Enforcement Policy | Strategic Deputy Leader of
Overview & Scrutiny Environment To consider the proposed the Council and
Committee changes to the policy Cabinet Member
for Environment
Environment 11 January 2017 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
Overview & Scrutiny (Environment)
Committee The Committee is asked to
LY consider, and amend where
g necessary, the Forward Work
[0} Programme for the
w Environment Overview &
8 Scrutiny Committee.
Corporate 12 January 2017 Chief Executive's Revenue Budget Monitoring Operational Leader of the
Resources Overview 2016/17 (Month 8) Council and
& Scrutiny 'This regular monthly report Cabinet Member
Committee provides the latest revenue for Finance




1GE ebﬁ’d&?
o
o

2016/17 (month 8)

To provide Members with the
latest revenue budget
monitoring  information  for
2015/16 for the Council Fund
and Housing Revenue Account
based on actual income and
expenditure as at month 8 and
projected forward to year-end
based on the most up to date
information available.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 12 January 2017 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
Resources Overview (Corporate Resources)
& Scrutiny The Committee is asked to
Committee consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Corporate
Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
17 January 2017 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring | Strategic Leader of the

Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 17 January 2017 Community and Council Tax & Business Rate | Operational Cabinet Member
Enterprise Policies for Corporate
To approve local discretionary Management
policies for the administration
of Council Tax and Business
Rates.
Community and | 23 January 2017 Community and Council Tax & Business Rate | Operational Cabinet Member
Bnterprise Overview Enterprise Policies for Corporate
Scrutiny To consider the update to the Management
@ommittee local discretionary policies for
w the administration of Council
% Tax & Business Rates
Social & Health | 26 January 2017 Social Services Update on Delayed Transfer | Operational Cabinet Member

Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

of Care

To receive an update on
Delayed Transfer of Care data
for Flintshire

for Social
Services

February




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Community and | 1 February 2017 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
Enterprise Overview (Community & Enterprise)
& Scrutiny The Committee is asked to
Committee consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Community
& Enterprise Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
ducation and | 2 February 2017 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
;§outh Overview & (Education & Youth)
%crutiny Committee The Committee is asked to
& consider, and amend where
Ol necessary, the Forward Work
w Programme for the Education &
Youth Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.
Environment 8 February 2017 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational

Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

(Environment)

The Committee is asked to
consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the
Environment Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.




necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Corporate
Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 9 February 2017 Chief Executive's Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the
Resources Overview 2016/17 (Month 9) Council and
& Scrutiny This regular monthly report Cabinet Member
Committee provides the latest revenue for Finance
budget monitoring position for
2016/17 for the Council Fund
and Housing Revenue
Account. The position is based
g-? on actual income and
@) expenditure as at Month 9, and
SD‘ projects forward to Year-End.
ﬁorporate 9 February 2017 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
Resources Overview (Corporate Resources)
& Scrutiny The Committee is asked to
Committee consider, and amend where




Enterprise

Commissioning Plan
To set out the commissioning
and spend plan for 2017/18

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 14 February 2017 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring | Strategic Leader of the
2016/17 (month 9) Council and
To provide Members with the Cabinet Member
latest revenue budget for Finance
monitoring  information  for
2015/16 for the Council Fund
and Housing Revenue Account
based on actual income and
expenditure as at month 9 and
o projected forward to year-end
QD based on the most up to date
3 information available.
&
Wabinet 14 February 2017 Community and Council Tax setting Operational Cabinet Member
Enterprise To approve the Council Tax for Corporate
charges for the following year Management
as part of budget setting.
Cabinet 14 February 2017 Community and Customer Services Strategy | Operational Cabinet Member
Enterprise Update on progress with the for Corporate
three main workstreams; Management
Digital, Telephone contact and
face to face services
Cabinet 14 February 2017 Community and Supporting People Local Operational Cabinet Member

for Housing




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
March
Social & Health | 2 March 2017 Overview and Scrutiny | Quarter 3 Improvement Plan | Strategic Cabinet Member
Care Overview & Monitoring Report 2016/17 for Corporate
Scrutiny Committee To enable Members to fulfil Management
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.
gnvironment 8 March 2017 Overview and Scrutiny | Quarter 3 Improvement Plan | Strategic Cabinet Member
verview & Scrutiny Monitoring Report 2016/17 for Corporate
¢dommittee To enable Members to fulfil Management
% their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.
Environment 8 March 2017 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
Overview & Scrutiny (Environment)
Committee The Committee is asked to
consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the
Environrment  Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
Community and | 8 March 2017 Overview and Scrutiny | Quarter 3 Improvement Plan | Strategic Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overview Monitoring Report 2016/17 for Corporate
& Scrutiny To enable Members to fulfil Management
Committee their scrutiny role in relation to

performance monitoring.




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Community and | 8 March 2017 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
Enterprise Overview (Community & Enterprise)
& Scrutiny The Committee is asked to
Committee consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Community
& Enterprise Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
orporate 9 March 2017 Overview and Scrutiny | Quarter 3 Improvement Plan | Strategic Cabinet Member
gﬁesources Overview Monitoring Report 2016/17 for Corporate
Scrutiny To enable Members to fulfil Management
iommittee their scrutiny role in relation to
a1 performance monitoring.
Corporate 9 March 2017 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
Resources Overview (Corporate Resources)
& Scrutiny The Committee is asked to
Committee consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Corporate
Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
Organisational 13 March 2017 Overview and Scrutiny | Quarter 3 Improvement Plan | Strategic Cabinet Member

Change Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

Monitoring Report 2016/17
To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.

for Corporate
Management




Youth Overview &
g‘?crutiny Committee

8G¢€ ab

(Education & Youth)

The Committee is asked to
consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Education &
Youth Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Education and | 16 March 2017 Overview and Scrutiny | Quarter 3 Improvement Plan | Strategic Cabinet Member
Youth Overview & Monitoring Report 2016/17 for Corporate
Scrutiny Committee To enable Members to fulfil Management
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.
Education and | 16 March 2017 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Annual Performance Report 2015/16
	Enc. 1 for Annual Performance Report 2015/16
	Enc. 2 for Annual Performance Report 2015/16
	Enc. 3 for Annual Performance Report 2015/16
	Enc. 4 for Annual Performance Report 2015/16
	Enc. 5 for Annual Performance Report 2015/16

	5 Strategic Equality Plan 2016/2020
	Enc. 1 for Strategic Equality Plan 2016/2020

	6 North Wales Regional Social Care/Health Partnership Board
	7 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2016/17 (month 5)
	Enc. 1 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2016/17 (month 5)

	8 Provisional Learner Outcomes
	9 School Modernisation - 21st Century Schools Programme - Band A Capital Projects - Connah's Quay High School
	10 School Modernisation - 21st Century Schools Programme Band A Capital Project - Penyffordd
	Appendix 1 - Penyffordd Options Appraisal

	11 School Modernisation - Nercwys VA School Review
	12 Changes to Waste Collection Vehicles and New Recycling Operations
	Appendix 1 - Typical RRV Vehicle Details
	Appendix 2 - Mold and Buckley HRC Proposed Layouts
	Buckley HRC Proposed Layout
	Mold HRC Proposed Layout


	13 Theatr Clwyd Complimentary Ticket Policy
	Enc. 1 for Theatr Clwyd Complimentary Ticket Policy

	14 EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS
	 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - COUNTY COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - FOR INFORMATION

